

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION COMMONWEALTH KEYSTONE BUILDING 400 NORTH STREET, HARRISBURG, PA 17120

BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION & ENFORCEMENT

June 21, 2022

Via Electronic Filing

Rosemary Chiavetta, Secretary Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Commonwealth Keystone Building 400 North Street Harrisburg, PA 17120

Re: Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission v.
 UGI Utilities, Inc. – Gas Division Base Rate Case
 Docket No. R-2021-3030218
 I&E Pre-Served Testimony, Exhibits, and Verification Statements

Dear Secretary Chiavetta,

Enclosed for electronic filing please find the **Non-Proprietary versions of the Pre-Served Testimony, Exhibits, and Verification Statements** of the Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement's (I&E) witnesses in the above-captioned proceeding. *The Proprietary versions have been submitted to the Secretary's Bureau Sharefile*. The following documents were admitted into the record at the evidentiary hearing held on June 2, 2022:

Zachari Walker:	I&E Statement No. 1 I&E Exhibit No. 1 I&E Statement No. 1-R I&E Exhibit No. 1-R I&E Statement No. 1-SR I&E Exhibit No. 1-SR Verification Statement
Anthony Spadaccio:	I&E Statement No. 2 I&E Exhibit No. 2 I&E Statement No. 2-SR Verification Statement
Brian J. LaTorre:	I&E Statement No. 3 I&E Exhibit No. 3 I&E Statement No. 3-SR Verification Statement
Ethan H. Cline:	I&E Statement No. 4 I&E Exhibit No. 4 I&E Statement No. 4-SR I&E Exhibit No. 4-SR Verification Statement

Esyan Sakaya	I&E Statement No. 5 I&E Exhibit No. 5 I&E Statement No. 5-SR I&E Exhibit No. 5-SR Verification Statement
Jessalynn Heydenreich	I&E Statement No. 6 <i>(Proprietary and Non-Proprietary)</i> I&E Exhibit No. 6 <i>(Proprietary and Non-Proprietary)</i> I&E Statement No. 6-SR Verification Statement

Copies of this letter are being served on parties of record per the attached Certificate of Service. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Carri B Whizek

Carrie B. Wright Prosecutor Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement PA Attorney ID No. 208185 (717) 783-6156 carwright@pa.gov

CBW/cem Enclosures

Deputy Chief ALJ Joel Cheskis (Cover Letter and Certificate of Service only – via email) cc: ALJ Gail M. Chiodo (*Cover Letter and Certificate of Service only – via email*) Per Certificate of Service (Cover Letter and Certificate of Service only – via email)

I&E Statement No. 1 Witness: Zachari Walker

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

V.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Direct Testimony

of

Zachari Walker

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

TAXES

CASH WORKING CAPITAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION1
I&E OVERALL RECOMMENDED REVENUE REQUIREMENT
EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY COSTS4
COVID-19 RELATED UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS EXPENSE7
ADVERTISING EXPENSE
MEMBERSHIP DUES
INTEREST ON CUSTOMER DEPOSITS15
PAYROLL EXPENSE17
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
PAYROLL TAXES
CASH WORKING CAPITAL

INTRODUCTION

2	Q.	PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
3	A.	My name is Zachari Walker, and my business address is Pennsylvania Public
4		Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120.
5		
6	Q.	BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?
7	A.	I am employed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) in
8		the Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement (I&E) as a Fixed Utility Financial
9		Analyst.
10		
11	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL AND EMPLOYMENT BACKGROUND?
12	A.	My education and employment background is attached as Appendix A.
13		
14	Q.	PLEASE DESCRIBE THE ROLE OF I&E IN RATE PROCEEDINGS.
15	A.	I&E is responsible for representing the public interest in rate and other
16		proceedings before the Commission. I&E's analysis in this proceeding is based on
17		its responsibility to represent the public interest. This responsibility requires
18		balancing the interests of ratepayers, the regulated utility, and the regulated
19		community as a whole.

1	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
2	A.	The purpose of my direct testimony is to review the base rate filing of UGI
3		Utilities, Inc. – Gas Division (UGI Gas or Company) and recommend adjustments
4		to the Company's proposed operating and maintenance (O&M) expenses, taxes,
5		and cash working capital (CWC) claims for the fully projected future test year
6		(FPFTY) ending September 30, 2023.
7		
8	Q.	DOES YOUR TESTIMONY INCLUDE AN EXHIBIT?
9	A.	Yes. I&E Exhibit No. 1 contains schedules that support my direct testimony.
10		
11	Q.	PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE COMPANY'S REQUESTED REVENUE
12		INCREASE.
13	A.	UGI Gas' base rate case was filed on January 28, 2022, with a requested increase
14		of \$82,742,000 ¹ to claimed present rate revenues of \$1,062,724,000 resulting in an
15		overall revenue requirement of \$1,145,466,000 for the FPFTY. ²
16		
17	Q.	PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR ADJUSTMENTS.
18	A.	The following table summarizes my recommended adjustments:

UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-2. UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-2. 1

²

		I&E	
	UGI Gas	Recommended	I&E
	<u>Claim</u>	Allowance	<u>Adjustment</u>
O&M Expenses:			
Employee Activity Costs	\$588,226	\$217,935	(\$370,291)
Advertising Expense	\$1,901,541	\$1,016,363	(\$885,178)
Membership Dues	\$1,115,404	\$961,406	(\$153,998)
Interest for Customer Deposits	\$972,000	\$648,000	(\$324,000)
Payroll Expense	\$82,929,000	\$80,677,324	(\$2,251,676)
Employee Benefits Expense	\$22,117,000	\$21,510,994	<u>(\$606,006)</u>
Total O&M Adjustments			<u>(\$4,591,139)</u>
Taxes:			
Payroll Taxes	\$6,927,000	\$6,738,985	<u>(\$188,015)</u>
Total Tax Adjustments			<u>(\$188,015)</u>
Rate Base:			
Cash Working Capital	\$62,148,000	\$61,313,000	<u>(\$835,000)</u>
Total Rate Base Adjustments			(\$835,000)

1

3 <u>I&E OVERALL RECOMMENDED REVENUE REQUIREMENT</u>

4 Q. WHAT IS I&E'S TOTAL RECOMMENDED REVENUE REQUIREMENT?

5 A. I&E's total recommended revenue requirement is \$1,094,441,000. This

6 recommended revenue requirement represents an increase of \$18,072,000 to the

7 I&E-adjusted present rate revenues of \$1,076,369,000. This total recommended

8 allowance incorporates my adjustments made in this testimony to O&M expenses,

9 taxes, and CWC, and those recommended adjustments made in the testimony of

10 I&E witnesses Anthony Spadaccio,³ Brian LaTorre,⁴ Ethan Cline,⁵ and Esyan

11 Sakaya.⁶

³ I&E Statement No. 2.

⁴ I&E Statement No. 3.

⁵ I&E Statement No. 4.

⁶ I&E Statement No. 5.

UGI Utilities Inc Gas Division		TAB	LEI		
R-2021-3030218		INCOME	SUMMARY		
(\$ in Thousands)					
	9/30/23		INVESTIGATION	& ENFORCEMEN	Т
	Proforma	[]
	Present Rates	Adjustments	Present Rates	Allowances	Proposed
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Operating Revenue	1,062,724	13,645	1,076,369	18,072	1,094,441
Deductions:					
O&M Expenses	689,306	-996	688,310	298	688,608
Depreciation	125,537	-3,666	121,871		121,871
Taxes, Other	13,658	-188	13,470	0	13,470
Income Taxes:					
Current State	4,364	2,109	6,473	1,776	8,249
Current Federal	15,064	3,992	19,056	3,360	22,416
Deferred Taxes	20,732	0	20,732		20,732
ITC	-324	0	-324		-324
Total Deductions	868,337	1,251	869,588	5,434	875,022
Incomo Availablo	10/ 397	12 304	206 781	12 630	210 420
	194,307	12,354	200,781	12,039	219,420
Measure of Value	3,169,023	-146,707	3,022,316	1	3,022,316
Rate of Return	6.13%		6.84%		7.26%

A calculation of I&E's recommended revenue requirement is shown below:

2

1

3

4 <u>EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY COSTS</u>

5 Q. WHAT IS INCLUDED IN EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY COSTS?

6 A. Per the Company's response to I&E-RE-24(b),⁷ the employee activity costs

7 consist of expenses related to the company picnic, employee service awards, an

8 annual holiday breakfast, and "other activity." In further explanation, the

9 Company states "other activity" includes, but is not limited to, department

⁷ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 1, pp. 1-2.

1		meetings, employee gifts, field employee welfare (water, ice, etc.), special activity
2		gifts, flowers, and cards. ⁸
3		
4	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY
5		COSTS?
6	A.	UGI Gas' FPFTY expense claim for Employee Activity Costs is \$588,226.9 A
7		breakdown of the FPFTY claim is as follows: ¹⁰

Company Picnic	\$213,000
Service Awards	\$165,996
Annual Holiday Breakfast	\$24,800
Other Activity	<u>\$184,430</u>
Total	<u>\$588,226</u>

DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM? Q.

A. No.

I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 1, p. 2. UGI Gas Book II, SDR-RR-30(e). I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 1, p. 2.

1 Q. WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY 2 COSTS?

A. I recommend an allowance of \$217,935 or a reduction of \$370,291 (\$588,226 \$217,935) to the Company's claim.

5

6 Q. WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?

7 A. My recommendation is based on the historic year 2019 level expense inflated to 8 the FPFTY. The 2019 data represents the most recent known and measurable data 9 prior to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. In response to I&E-RE-24, the 10 Company provided a breakdown of employee activity costs by year for 2019 through the FPFTY.¹¹ There is a considerable difference in expense level during 11 2020 and the HTY, seemingly due to the impact of the COVID-19.¹² Going 12 forward the Company plans to resume the Company picnic in 2022 and 2023;¹³ 13 14 however, it appears the Company has accepted the new level of expense as the new normal.¹⁴ At this juncture, given that we are still in the midst of a pandemic, 15 16 it is impossible to determine whether all employees would be willing to gather at 17 an optional Company picnic. Even if all UGI Gas employees attend the picnic, the $123 (213,000^{15} \div 1,731 \text{ employees}^{16}) \text{ cost per employee is not prudent.}$ 18

¹¹ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 1, p. 2.

¹² I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 1, p. 1, Response Part B.

¹³ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 1, p. 1, Response Part B.

¹⁴ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 1, p. 2.

¹⁵ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 1, p. 2.

¹⁶ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 2, p. 2.

Q.

HOW DID YOU CALCULATE YOUR RECOMMENDATION?

2 A. First, I started with the known and measurable historic expense level from 2019, \$189,346, provided in response to I&E-RE-24.¹⁷ Using the CPI Inflation 3 4 Calculator, I converted the September 30, 2019 expense to the September 30, 2021 (2021) equivalent after inflation, \$202,289.¹⁸ Next, I applied an average of 5 consumer price index (CPI)¹⁹ inflation factors of 6.0% [(7.9% + 5.8% + 6.6% + 6 7 3.8% ÷ 4] and 2.8% [(3.0% + 2.9% + 2.6% + 2.6%) ÷ 4] for the four quarters in 8 the 2022 fiscal year and the four quarters in the 2023 fiscal year, respectively, to 9 adjust the 2021 equivalent value to the 2023 equivalent value. This yields 10 217,935 [$202,289 x (1+6.0\%) \} x (1+2.8\%)] for my FPFTY recommended$ 11 allowance. My recommended allowance of \$217,935 represents a reduction of 12 \$370,291 (\$588,226 - \$217,935) to the Company's FPFTY employee activity costs 13 claim. 14 **COVID-19 RELATED UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS EXPENSE** 15

16 **Q.** WHAT IS UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS EXPENSE?

17 A. Uncollectible accounts expense are specific receivables that are determined to be

18 uncollectible, in whole or in part, either because the debtors do not pay or because

- 19 the creditor finds it impracticable to enforce payment. Those accounts deemed
- 20 uncollectible are charged against income as uncollectible accounts expense.

¹⁷ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 1, p. 2.

¹⁸ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 3.

¹⁹ Blue Chip Financial Forecasts Vol 41, No. 4, April 1, 2022, p. 2.

Q. HOW DO UTILITIES RECOGNIZE UNCOLLECTIBLE EXPENSE FOR RATEMAKING PURPOSES?

3	A.	Generally, for ratemaking purposes, utilities compute uncollectible expense on an
4		annual prospective basis. While the uncollectible expense is a prospective claim,
5		the proper calculation begins with a historic analysis of actual net write-offs to
6		gross revenues to develop a historic write-off ratio. Thus, net write-offs are gross
7		write-offs less recoveries of amounts previously written off. This ratio is applied
8		to projected revenues to determine the proper prospective allowance. Normally,
9		the historic analysis is based on several years of data.
10		
11	Q.	WHAT CLAIM ARE YOU ADDRESSING HEREIN FOR
12		UNCOLLECTIBLE EXPENSE?
12 13	A.	UNCOLLECTIBLE EXPENSE? I am addressing the COVID-19 related cost recovery associated with uncollectible
12 13 14	A.	UNCOLLECTIBLE EXPENSE? I am addressing the COVID-19 related cost recovery associated with uncollectible accounts expense.
12 13 14 15	A.	UNCOLLECTIBLE EXPENSE? I am addressing the COVID-19 related cost recovery associated with uncollectible accounts expense.
12 13 14 15 16	A. Q.	UNCOLLECTIBLE EXPENSE? I am addressing the COVID-19 related cost recovery associated with uncollectible accounts expense. WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR COVID-19 RELATED
12 13 14 15 16 17	A. Q.	UNCOLLECTIBLE EXPENSE? I am addressing the COVID-19 related cost recovery associated with uncollectible accounts expense. WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR COVID-19 RELATED UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS EXPENSE?
12 13 14 15 16 17 18	А. Q. А.	UNCOLLECTIBLE EXPENSE? I am addressing the COVID-19 related cost recovery associated with uncollectible accounts expense. WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR COVID-19 RELATED UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS EXPENSE? The Company's total claim for COVID-19 cost recovery of deferred uncollectible
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	А. Q. А.	UNCOLLECTIBLE EXPENSE? I am addressing the COVID-19 related cost recovery associated with uncollectible accounts expense. WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR COVID-19 RELATED UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS EXPENSE? The Company's total claim for COVID-19 cost recovery of deferred uncollectible accounts expense is \$1,503,000 which represents \$607,000 through September 30,

20 2020, and \$896,000 through 2021.²⁰ This produces a ten-year amortization of

²⁰ UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-11.

1		$150,000$ ($1,503,000 \div 10$ years). The Company is also proposing regulatory
2		asset treatment going forward for incremental uncollectible costs above what is
3		included in this proceeding to be recovered in the next base rate proceeding. ²¹
4		
5	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPANY'S COVID-19 RELATED
6		UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS EXPENSE CLAIM?
7	А.	The Company followed the Commission's guidance in the May 13, 2020
8		Secretarial Letter regarding COVID-19 Cost Tracking and Creation of Regulatory
9		Asset, Docket No. M-2020-3019775 (May 13, 2020 Secretarial Letter), taking the
10		difference between the amount of uncollectible expense claimed in the prior base
11		rate case and the amount experienced at the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020,
12		and the amount experienced at the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. The
13		Company included this amount in a regulatory asset and is following the 10-year
14		amortization period in line with the Settlement Agreement in the previous base
15		rate case at Docket No. R-2019-3015162.22 Additionally, the Company does not
16		agree that the accumulation of COVID-19 related uncollectible deferrals should
17		cease upon the effective date of new rates in the instant proceeding. ²³ In this
18		regard, the Company states it should be able to continue to accumulate and defer
19		costs above the normalized level as approved within the Company's new rates as a

I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 4, p. 1, Response Part B. UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-11. I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 4, p. 1, Response Part B.

1		regulatory asset citing higher than normal delinquency rates on COVID-19 related
2		payment arrangements. ²⁴
3		
4	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
5	А.	No.
6		
7	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR THE CONTINUED
8		DEFERRAL OF COVID-19 RELATED UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS
9		EXPENSE?
10	A.	I accept the Company's total deferral claim of \$1,503,000 for the 2020 and 2021
11		excess COVID-19 related uncollectible accounts, as well as the 10-year
12		amortization period as approved by the Commission as part of the settlement in
13		the UGI Gas 2020 BRC proceeding. ²⁵ However, I disagree that the Company
14		should be allowed to continue recording a regulatory asset for ongoing COVID-19
15		related incremental uncollectible costs after the effective date of new rates for the
16		instant proceeding. Upon the effective date of new rates for this proceeding, the
17		Company will have a new uncollectible accounts expense percentage built into the
18		rate formula that accounts for the increased delinquency rates and higher customer
19		balances.

I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 4, p. 1, Response Part B. *Pa. PUC, et al. v. UGI,* Docket Nos. R-2019-3015162 (Order entered on October 8, 2020).

Q. WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?

2	A.	First, the Company has provided evidence that COVID-19 related uncollectible
3		accounts expenses are included in forward-looking routine uncollectible accounts
4		expense as seen in the discrepancy between the rate of accrual provided in UGI
5		Gas Book I, Attachment III-A-5 and UGI Gas Book V, Schedule D-11. The
6		Company states the 2020 Uncollectible Accounts Expense on Schedule D-11,
7		$13,417^{26}$ (12,810 ²⁷ + 607^{28}), includes the COVID-19 related uncollectible
8		accounts expense, and the 2021 Uncollectible Accounts Expense, \$13,706 ²⁹
9		($$12,810^{30} + 896^{31}), includes the COVID-19 related uncollectible accounts
10		expense. Therefore, allowing the Company to continue the deferral past the
11		effective date of new rates in this proceeding would allow for redundant recovery
12		of the COVID-19 related uncollectible accounts since they are already built into
13		the routine uncollectible accounts percentage on Schedule D-11 for the FPFTY
14		calculation. ³²
15		Additionally, in the 2020 Joint Petition for Unopposed Settlement – UGI
16		Gas et al., page 21, item 49, the Company states COVID-19 Pandemic Costs may
17		include reasonable and prudently incurredannual uncollectible accounts expense
18		beginning with the fiscal year period ending September 30, 2020 and continuing

²⁶ UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-11, line 2.

²⁷ UGI Gas Book I, Attachment III-A-5.

²⁸ UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-11, Footnote 1.

²⁹ UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-11, line 3.

³⁰ UGI Gas Book I, Attachment III-A-5.

³¹ UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-11, Footnote 1.

³² UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-11, lines 1-4.

1		for annual periods thereafter until the effective date of the Company's next base
2		rate filing. This statement in the previous base rate case Settlement Agreement
3		indicates the Company agreed not continue to accumulate COVID-19 related costs
4		beyond the effective date of new rates for the instant proceeding.
5		
6	<u>ADV</u>	VERTISING EXPENSE
7	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR ADVERTISING EXPENSE?
8	А.	The Company's FPFTY claim for advertising expense is \$1,901,541. ³³
9		
10	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
11	A.	In response to I&E-RE-30, the Company indicated it has an integrated advertising
12		campaign promoting the benefits of domestic natural gas, including messaging
13		that relates to the overall economic value of natural gas versus other energy
14		sources and benefits of high efficiency natural gas appliances. ³⁴
15		
16	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
17	A.	No.

³³ UGI Gas Book 1, Attachment III-A-25.
³⁴ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 5, p. 1, Response Part C.

1	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR ADVERTISING EXPENSE?
2	A.	I recommend an allowance of \$1,016,363 or a reduction of \$885,178 (\$1,901,541 -
3		\$1,016,363) to UGI Gas' FPFTY advertising expense claim.
4		
5	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
6	A.	In response to I&E-RE-31, the Company provided a breakdown of the other
7		advertising programs included in its advertising expense claim. ³⁵ The listed
8		categories: Sponsorship, Builder Meetings/Trade Shows, Branded Promotional
9		Items, Customer Promotional Offers, and Miscellaneous Advertising, are
10		represented by images provided in response to I&E-RE-30. ³⁶ These
11		representations merely promote the Company's image without promoting the
12		benefits of domestic natural gas. Therefore, I recommend the other advertising
13		programs in the amount of \$885,178 ³⁷ be disallowed for ratemaking purposes as
14		they are not necessary to ensure safe and reliable gas service.
15		
16	<u>MEN</u>	ABERSHIP DUES

17 WHAT IS INCLUDED IN MEMBERSHIP DUES? Q.

The Company's claim includes payments to industry organizations with the 18 A.

³⁵

I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 6, p. 2. I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 5, pp. 2-5. UGI Gas Book I, Attachment III-A-25. 36

³⁷

1		intention of improving the welfare, educational, social, and economic climate in
2		the Company's local communities. ³⁸
3		
4	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR MEMBERSHIP DUES?
5	А.	UGI Gas is claiming membership dues of \$1,115,404 for the FPFTY. ³⁹
6		
7	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
8	А.	No.
9		
10	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR MEMBERSHIP DUES?
11	А.	I recommend an allowance of \$961,406, or a decrease of \$153,998 (\$1,115,404 -
12		\$961,406) to the Company's membership dues claim.
13		
14	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
15	А.	My recommendation is based on disallowing, for ratemaking purposes, claims for
16		numerous organizations where the Company has not provided adequate support
17		for their necessity to ensure safe and reliable gas service. ⁴⁰ The recommended
18		decrease to the FPFTY claim is the total of the following: Allentown Economic
19		Development Corporation (\$5,148); Economic Development Company of
20		Lancaster County (\$32,964); Lebanon Valley Economic Development Corporation

I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 7. 38

³⁹ UGI Gas Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-30. I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 8, pp. 1-3.

⁴⁰

1		(\$8,244); Lehigh Valley Economic Development Corporation (\$21,636);
2		Northeastern Pennsylvania Alliance (\$1,704); Penn's Northeast (\$5,664);
3		Pennsylvania Chamber of Business & Industry (\$66,521); and Pennsylvania
4		Economy League (\$12,117). The total of the organizations listed above is my
5		recommended reduction of \$153,998 (\$5,148 + \$32,964 + \$8,244 + \$21,636 +
6		\$1,704 + \$5,664 + \$66,521 + \$12,117) to the Company's FPFTY membership
7		dues claim.
8		
9	<u>INT</u>	EREST ON CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
10	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR INTEREST ON CUSTOMER
11		DEPOSITS?
12	А.	The Company's FPFTY expense claim for interest on customer deposits is
13		\$972,000. ⁴¹
14		
15	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
16	A.	UGI Gas is required to pay interest on customer deposits that it holds in
17		accordance with tariff requirements. The interest is calculated by using the
18		average level of customer deposits anticipated for the FPFTY times the required
19		interest rate (4.50%) anticipated for the FPFTY, as published by the Department of
20		Revenue and as required under the Company's tariff. ⁴² Additionally, in response

 ⁴¹ UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-15, line 7.
 ⁴² UGI Gas Statement No. 2, pp. 21-22.

1		to I&E-RE-59, the Company stated 4.50% is the maximum lawful rate of interest
2		for residential mortgages for December 2021 as published by the Department of
3		Banking and Securities on November 13, 2021.43
4		
5	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
6	А.	No.
7		
8	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR INTEREST ON CUSTOMER
9		DEPOSITS?
10	А.	I recommend an allowance of \$648,000, or a reduction of \$324,000 (\$972,000 -
11		\$648,000) to the Company's claim.
12		
13	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
14	А.	Per the Pennsylvania Secretary of Revenue, the current interest rate for Title 72
15		taxes is 3% for 2021 and 2022. ⁴⁴ This interest rate is revised every year in
16		December. The Company's FPFTY begins in October 2022 and the Pennsylvania
17		Department of Revenue may revise the current interest rate in December 2022;
18		however, as of today, this is speculative. Thus, I am recommending the allowance
19		of \$648,000 ($$21,600,000^{45}$ x 3.00%) using the current interest rate for Title 72
20		taxes.

I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 9. I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 10. UGI Gas Statement No. 2, p. 21.

PAYROLL EXPENSE

2	Q.	WHAT IS INCLUDED IN THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR PAYROLL
3		EXPENSE?
4	A.	The Company's payroll expense claim includes operations and maintenance
5		salaries and wages for union, exempt, and non-exempt employees.
6		
7	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR PAYROLL EXPENSE?
8	A.	The Company's FPFTY claim for payroll expense is \$82,929,000.46
9		
10	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPANY'S PAYROLL EXPENSE
11		CLAIM?
12	A.	The Company's claim for payroll expense is based on the HTY budgeted
13		headcount with an increase of 43 regular employees in the FTY and an additional
14		27 regular employees to the FTY headcount. ⁴⁷ The claim includes compensation
15		changes targeted at increasing retention and recruitment.48
16		
17	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S PAYROLL EXPENSE
18		CLAIM?
19	A.	No.

UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-7, p. 1. UGI Gas Book II, SDR-RR-20. UGI Gas Book II, SDR-RR-20.

1	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR PAYROLL EXPENSE?
2	А.	I recommend an allowance of \$80,677,324, or a reduction of \$2,251,676
3		(\$82,929,000 - \$80,677,324) to the Company's FPFTY claim.
4		
5	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
6	А.	My recommendation is based on an employee vacancy adjustment for unfilled
7		positions included in the Company's claim.
8		
9	Q.	PLEASE EXPLAIN YOUR RECOMMENDED VACANCY ADJUSTMENT.
10	A.	My recommended vacancy adjustment is based on an average employee vacancy
11		rate of 2.74% [($2.63\% + 5.04\% + 0.54\%$) \div 3] determined from the response to
12		I&E-RE-63. ⁴⁹ I calculated the monthly vacancy rate by dividing the actual
13		monthly vacancies by the budgeted positions for each month in the fiscal years
14		ended September 30, 2019; September 30, 2020; and September 30, 2021. ⁵⁰ Next,
15		I calculated the annual average vacancy rate for each fiscal year and then
16		calculated the overall average vacancy rate, ⁵¹ as summarized in the table below:
17		

Fiscal Year Ended	Vacancy Rate
September 30, 2019	2.63%
September 30, 2020	5.04%
September 30, 2021	0.54%
Average Vacancy Rate	2.74%

I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 11, pp. 1-3. I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 12. I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 12.

1		The average of the annual employee vacancy rate, 2.74% [($2.63\% + 5.04\% +$
2		$(0.54\%) \div 3$ yields 47 (1,731 FPFTY budgeted employees ⁵² x 0.0274) vacant
3		employee positions for the FPFTY. Finally, I multiplied the vacant positions by
4		the average annual payroll, \$47,908 ($$82,929,000 \div 1,731$), per employee which
5		produces my recommended payroll adjustment of \$2,251,676 (\$47,908 x 47
6		positions). This adjustment results in my recommended payroll allowance of
7		\$80,677,324 (\$82,929,000 - \$2,251,676).
8		
9	Q.	EXPLAIN YOUR RATIONALE FOR THE VACANCY ADJUSTMENT.
10	A.	The Company budgeted its payroll expense based on the average employee count
11		of 1,731 at the end of the FPFTY as compared with the HTY employee count of
12		1,667 employees, ⁵³ which includes 20 anticipated additional new employees in the
13		FPFTY. ⁵⁴ It is unreasonable to assume that the Company will fill and maintain
14		100% full staffing of 1,731 budgeted positions in the FPFTY based on its own
15		historic vacancy records of the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019, 2020, and
16		2021. As discussed above, using my recommendation, the Company would reflect
17		a normal vacancy rate of 2.74% in the FPFTY. Additionally, as evidenced at the
18		end of the first quarter of the FTY, the Company experienced an overall increase to
19		a 2.24% vacancy rate and an average vacancy rate of 1.73%. ⁵⁵ These historic

I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 2, p. 2. I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 2, p. 2. UGI Gas Statement No. 9, p. 16. I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 12.

1		vacancy rates support my recommended 47 vacant positions based on an average
2		vacancy rate of 2.74% for an adjustment to payroll expense.
3		With the current COVID-19 pandemic, the Company may continue to face
4		challenges to fill all positions as budgeted in the FTY and FPFTY. Additionally,
5		there will always be a certain level of normal vacancies due to retirements,
6		resignations, transfers, layoffs, etc., on a day-to-day operating basis, which are
7		unpredictable and there will always be search and placement time involved in
8		filling normal employee vacancies as well as newly added positions. Such
9		vacancies will yield an annual savings in payroll costs that must be reflected in
10		payroll expense to eliminate an unreasonable impact to ratepayers.
11		
12	EMP	PLOYEE BENEFITS
13	Q.	WHAT IS INCLUDED IN THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR EMPLOYEE
14		BENEFITS EXPENSE?
15	A.	The Company's employee benefits claim includes insurance premiums for
16		medical, dental, basic life, long term disability, accidental death and
17		dismemberment, and business travel accident insurances. ⁵⁶

⁵⁶ UGI Gas Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-22.

1	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2		EXPENSE?
3	A.	The Company is claiming employee benefits expense of \$22,177,000 for the
4		FPFTY. ⁵⁷
5		
6	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
7	A.	The Company has based its FPFTY claim for employee benefits expense on
8		budgeted 2022 fiscal year health and dental insurance expense.
9		
10	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
11	А.	No.
12		
13	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
14		EXPENSE?
15	А.	I recommend an allowance of \$21,510,994, or a reduction of \$606,006
16		(\$22,117,000 - \$21,510,994) to the Company's FPFTY claim.
17		
18	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
19	A.	My recommendation is based on an employee vacancy adjustment as noted in the
20		payroll expense section above. I applied the 2.74% vacancy rate to the Company's

⁵⁷ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 13, p. 2.

1		claim for employee benefits to calculate my employee benefits expense
2		adjustment. The result is my recommended adjustment of \$606,006 (\$22,117,000
3		x 0.0274).
4		
5	<u>PAY</u>	ROLL TAXES
6	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR PAYROLL TAXES?
7	A.	The Company is claiming \$6,927,000 for FPFTY payroll taxes. ⁵⁸
8		
9	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
10	A.	The Company's claim is based on the FPFTY payroll expense claim including an
11		adjustment for an increase in payroll expense ⁵⁹ and the social security and
12		Medicare taxes, federal unemployment tax, and Pennsylvania state unemployment
13		tax.
14		
15	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
16	A.	No.
17		
18	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR PAYROLL TAXES?
19	A.	I recommend an allowance of \$6,738,985, or a reduction of \$188,015 (\$6,927,000
20		- \$6,738,985) to the Company's FPFTY claim.

UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-31, lines 4-6. UGI Gas Statement No. 2, p. 25. 58

⁵⁹

1	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
2	А.	My recommendation is based on my recommended total payroll expense
3		adjustment of \$2,251,676 and calculated by applying the Company's payroll tax
4		rate of 8.35% (7.59% + 0.14% + 0.62%). ⁶⁰ The result is my recommended
5		adjustment of \$188,015 (\$2,251,676 x 0.0835), a reduction to the Company's
6		FPFTY payroll tax claim.
7		
8	CAS	H WORKING CAPITAL
9	Q.	WHAT IS A CASH WORKING CAPITAL (CWC) ALLOWANCE FOR
10		RATEMAKING PURPOSES?
11	A.	CWC includes the amount of funds necessary to operate a utility during the
12		interim period between the rendition of service, including the payment of related
13		expenses, and the receipt of revenue in payment for services rendered by the
14		utility.
15		
16	Q.	HOW DOES THE COMPANY CALCULATE ITS CWC CLAIM?
17	A.	The Company calculates its CWC claim by using a lead/lag study. A lead/lag
18		study measures the differences in time between: (1) the time services are rendered
19		until payment of those services is received; and (2) the time between the point
20		when a utility has incurred an expense and the actual payment of the expense.

 $^{^{60}}$ $\,$ UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-32, lines 3,7, and 9.

1		Stated a different way, the lead/lag study measures how many days exist on an
2		average between the midpoint of the service period and the date the payment is
3		made.
4		
5	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S USE OF THE LEAD/LAG
6		METHOD?
7	А.	Yes. I agree with the Company's use of the lead/lag method for CWC calculation.
8		
9	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CWC CLAIM?
10	А.	The Company's FPFTY CWC claim is \$62,148,000.61
11		
12	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
13	А.	No.
14		
15	Q.	WHAT DO YOU RECOMMEND?
16	А.	I recommend an allowance of \$61,313,000, or a reduction of \$835,000
17		(\$62,148,000 - \$61,313,000) to the Company's claim. ⁶²
18		
19	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
20	A.	My recommendation includes modification of the Company's claim based on my

⁶¹ UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule C-4, p. 1.
⁶² I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 14, p. 1, line 5.

1		recommended adjustments to O&M expenses as discussed previously in this
2		testimony and the other I&E witnesses as explained below.
3		
4	Q.	HOW DO YOUR PROPOSED ADJUSTMENTS, DISCUSSED ABOVE,
5		IMPACT YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR CWC?
6	A.	All O&M adjustments that are cash-based expense claims are included when
7		determining the Company's overall CWC requirement. Therefore, CWC was
8		adjusted to reflect these recommended adjustments. To reflect the I&E
9		recommended adjustments, I modified the Company's electronic CWC file as
10		shown on UGI Gas Book V, Schedule C-4, pp. 1, 2, 3, and 7, for each
11		recommended adjustment. ⁶³
12		
13	Q.	SUMMARIZE WHERE EACH OF THE I&E RECOMMENDED O&M
14		EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS ARE REFLECTED IN THE CWC
15		COMPUTATION.
16	A.	Expense Lag Days - Payroll:
17		I recommended a payroll expense adjustment of (\$2,251,676) in the Expense Lag -
18		Payroll, which is reflected as reduction to line 3 of the Company's Exhibit A –
19		Fully Projected, Schedule C-4, p. 2 as shown in I&E modified Schedule C-4.64

⁶³

I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 14, pp. 1-4. I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 14, p. 2, line 3. 64

1 Expense Lag Days – Purchased Gas Costs:

- 2 Mr. Cline recommended a purchased gas expense increase of \$7,729,631, which is
- 3 reflected as an addition in the FPFTY purchased gas costs of \$404,893,000
- 4 (\$397,163,000 + \$7,729,631) in the Purchased Gas Costs Expense Lag Days

5 calculation.⁶⁵

6 <u>Expense Lag Days – Other Expenses</u>:

- 7 Mr. LaTorre and I recommended the following expense adjustments in the
- 8 Expense Lag Days Other Expenses as an overall decrease of \$6,662,328 of the
- 9 Company's Exhibit A Fully Projected, Schedule C-4, p. 2 as shown in I&E

10 modified Schedule C-4:⁶⁶

Other Expenses	Reduction
Employee Activity Costs	\$370,291
Advertising Expense	\$885,178
Membership Dues	\$153,998
Interest on Customer Deposits	\$324,000
Rate Case Expense	\$422,000
Environmental Remediation Expense	\$1,861,600
OSHA/Emergency Temporary Standard Compliance Costs	\$1,851,240
Employee Benefits Expense	\$606,006
Payroll Taxes	\$188,015
Total	<u>\$6,662,328</u>

11

⁶⁵ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 14, p. 2, line 4.

⁶⁶ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 14, p. 2, line 5.

1 **Revenue Lag Calculations:** 2 The Company provided a correction to miscellaneous revenue reducing present 3 rate revenue by \$1,003,000 as seen in the Company's response to I&E-RS-27.⁶⁷ 4 Mr. Cline recommended an adjustment to increase present rate revenue by 5 \$14,648,202. The net of the two adjustments, \$13,645,202, is reflected as an 6 addition in the total account receivable amount of \$1,304,884,202 (\$1,327,239,000 7 + \$13,645,202) and in the total sales revenue of \$857,917,202 (\$844,272,000 + \$13,645,202) in the Revenue Lag calculation.⁶⁸ 8 9 **Interest Payment Lag Calculations:** 10 Mr. Sakaya recommended an adjustment to rate base of \$145,872,000 11 (\$137,649,000 + \$8,223,000), which is reflected as a reduction to rate base 12 resulting in an updated total of \$3,023,154,000 (\$3,169,026,000 - \$145,872,000) in the Interest Payments Lag calculation.⁶⁹ 13 14 15 **Q**. **DOES YOUR RECOMMENDED ALLOWANCE REPRESENT A FINAL** 16 **RECOMMENDED ALLOWANCE FOR CWC?**

A. No. All adjustments to the Company's claims for revenues, expenses, taxes, and
rate base must be consistently brought together in the Administrative Law Judge's
Recommended Decision and again in the Commission's Final Order. This

⁶⁷ I&E Exhibit No. 4, Schedule 5.

⁶⁸ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 14, p. 3, lines 15 and 18.

⁶⁹ I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 14, p. 4, line 1.

1		process, which is known as iteration, effectively prevents the determination of a
2		precise calculation until such time as all adjustments have been made to the
3		Company's claim.
4		
5	Q.	DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
6	A.	Yes.

I&E Statement No. 1 Appendix A Page 1 of 2

Zachari Walker

Professional and Educational Background

Experience:

<u>Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission</u>, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania March 2021 to Present: Fixed Utility Financial Analyst, Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Bridgestone Retail Operations, LLC, Nashville, Tennessee December 2014 to July 2020: Business Manager Evaluated and validated accounting entry postings. Monitored, reconciled, and corrected daily transactions and accounts. Ensured accuracy of daily reports of business and researched inaccuracies. Utilized data analysis to determine key performance indicators and corresponding trends.

Education/Professional Development:

Bridging the Gap, Holly Ridge, North Carolina, 2021 Business Analyst Blueprint Training Program, 36 PD hours earned

Stevenson University, Stevenson, Maryland, 2014 Bachelor of Science, *magna cum laude*, Business Administration Concentration in Finance

Professional Affiliations:

International Institute of Business Analysis (IIBA), Pickering, Ontario, Canada Active Member 2021

Utility-Related Trainings & Other Courses/Webinars:

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Rate School 2022, January 18-February 8, 2022

Michigan State University IPU Accounting and Ratemaking Course 2021, September 14-16, 2021

NARUC Staff Subcommittee on Accounting & Finance, Spring 2021 Virtual Conference, April 6-8, 2021

I&E Statement No. 1 Appendix A Page 2 of 2

Testimony Submitted:

R-2021-3026682	City of Lancaster – Bureau of Water
R-2021-3026116	Borough of Hanover – Hanover Municipal Water Works
R-2021-3025206	Community Utilities of Pennsylvania Inc. – Water Division
R-2021-3025207	Community Utilities of Pennsylvania Inc. – Wastewater Division

I&E Exhibit No. 1 Witness: Zachari Walker

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

V.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Exhibit to Accompany

the

Direct Testimony

of

Zachari Walker

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

CASH WORKING CAPITAL

<u>I&E-RE-24</u>

Request:

Reference UGI Gas Book II, SDR-RR-30(e) concerning the employee activity costs (for picnics, parties, and awards) of \$588,226 claimed in the FPFTY, provide the following:

- A. Employee activity cost incurred in the fiscal years 2019, 2020, and the HTY, and claimed costs in the FTY and the FPFTY with breakdown by type of cost; and
- B. Explanation for any increases by year in the employee activity costs from the HTY to the FPFTY.

Response:

- A. Please see Attachment I&E-RE-24.
- B. The increase from the HTY to the FPFTY is primarily due to resumption of the company picnic in 2022 and 2023 after cancellation in 2020 and 2021 due to the COVID pandemic.

Prepared by or under the supervision of: Vivian K. Ressler
I&E Exhibit No. 1 Schedule 1 Page 2 of 2

UGI UTILITIES, INC. - GAS DIVISION Employee Activity Cost For the 12 Months Ending September 30,

	2019		2020		2021	2022			2023
	 Actual	Actual		Actual		Budget		I	Budget
Company Picnic	\$ 138,124	\$	500	\$	-	\$	183,000	\$	213,000
Service Awards	\$ 33,467	\$	33,766	\$	93,382	\$	165,996	\$	165,996
Annual Holiday Breakfast	\$ 10,288	\$	6,950	\$	-	\$	22,500	\$	24,800
Other Activity	\$ 7,468	\$	318,301	\$	385,928	\$	151,481	\$	184,430
Total Employee Activity	\$ \$ 189,346		\$ 359,517		\$ 479,309		\$ 522,977		588,226

*Other Activities include but not limited to Department meetings, employee gifts, Field employee welfare (water, ice, etc.), Special Activity Gifts, Flowers and Cards.

<u>I&E-RE-5</u>

Request:

Reference UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A, Schedule D-7, p. 1 concerning the Salaries and Wages adjustment, provide the following:

- A. Detailed calculation and basis for the FPFTY budgeted total payroll expense of \$79,358,000, breakdown of payroll expense, and number of employees by employee class (Union, Non-exempt, and Exempt) considered in budgeting this expense;
- B. Detailed calculation and basis for the FTY budgeted total payroll expense of \$75,040,000, breakdown of payroll expense, and number of employees by employee class (Union, Non-exempt, and Exempt) considered in budgeting this expense;
- C. Breakdown of the HTY payroll expense of \$70,777,000 and number of employees by employee class (Union, Non-exempt, and Exempt); and
- D. Total payroll expense incurred through January 31, 2022, in the FTY and number of employees by employee class (Union, Non-exempt, and Exempt) as of that date.

Response:

- Please see Attachment I&E-RE-5-A for payroll expense by employee class.
 Calculation of FPFTY total payroll expense is included in Attachment I&E-RE-5-B.
- B. Please see Attachment I&E-RE-5-A for payroll expense by employee class. Calculation of FPFTY total payroll expense is included in Attachment I&E-RE-5-B.
- C. Please see Attachment I&E-RE-5-A.
- D. Please see Attachment I&E-RE-5-A.

UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division

Page 1 of 1

	<u>Total Payroll</u>	Employee Count
	(\$ in Thousands)	
<u>HTY - September 30, 2021</u>		
Union	28,311	673
Exempt	14,863	644
Non-Exempt	27,603	350
	70,777	1,667
FTY - YTD January 31. 2022		
Union	10,852	668
Exempt	10,592	652
Non-Exempt	5,458	336
	26,902	1,656
FTY - September 30, 2022		
Union	30,016	669
Exempt	15,758	665
Non-Exempt	29,266	370
	75,040	1,704
FPFTY - September 30, 2023		
Union	31,743	680
Exempt	16,665	675
Non-Exempt	30,950	376
	79,358	1,731

Attachment I&E- RE-5-B T.A. Hazenstab Page 1 of 1

UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division

(\$ in Thousands)

HTY Actual Payroll	70,777
Merit Increase	1,899
Reduced Vacancy to 4.5%	2,177
Additional Hires	200
Other	(12)
Sub-Total	4,263
FTY Budget	75,040

FTY Budget	75,040
Merit Increase	2,251
Reduced Vacancy to 3.5%	726
Additional Hires	1,389
Other	(48)
Sub-Total	4,318
FPFTY Budget	79,358

🜟 CPI Inflation Calculator					
https://data.bls.gov/cgi-bin/cpicalc.pl?cost1=189346&year1=201909&year2=202109	$\forall y$	20	5⁄≡	Ē	<u>↓</u>
CPI Inflation Calculator					
\$ 189,346.00 in September ~ 2019 ~ has the same buying power as \$202,288.92 in September ~ 2021 ~ Calculate					

<u>I&E-RE-41</u>

Request:

Reference UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-11, Adjustment #2 for Uncollectible Accounts:

- A. Provide a monthly breakdown for the years 2020 and 2021 that make up the entire regulatory asset balance prior to any amortization along with each monthly amount; and
- B. State whether the Company agrees that the accumulation of COVID-19 uncollectible deferrals should cease upon the effective date of new rates in this proceeding.

Response:

- A. Please see Attachment I&E-RE-41.
- B. The Company does not agree. Consistent with the Commission's March 13, 2020 Emergency Order at Docket No. M-2020-3019244, Secretarial Letter dated May 13, 2020, and the Commission's October 8, 2020 Order, the Company had in place a moratorium on all terminations through October 2020 and restrictions on certain terminations through April 1, 2021. The Company also offered extended payment arrangements to customers through September 30, 2021 at the direction of the Commission which extend up to 5 years. The Company has continued to experience higher than normal delinquency rates on the COVID related payment arrangements as shown in the responses to OCA-II-40 and OCA-II-41, and the customers on these arrangements continue to carry balances higher than prior to the March 13, 2020 Emergency Order. As a result, the Company will continue to incur additional incremental expenses above those embedded in rates as a result of the 2020 orders until the COVID related payment arrangements are settled. Therefore, the Company should be able to continue to accumulate and defer costs above the normalized level as approved within the Company's new rates as a regulatory asset.

UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division Regulatory Asset: Uncollectible Accounts 24 Months Ended September 30, 2021

	<u>R</u>	egulatory Asset:
	<u>Uncollectible</u>	<u>Uncollectible</u>
	<u>Accounts</u> Acc	counts Cumulative
<u>Month</u>	Expense	<u>Balance</u>
10/31/2019	\$-\$	-
11/30/2019	-	-
12/31/2019	-	-
1/31/2020	-	-
2/29/2020	-	-
3/31/2020	-	-
4/30/2020	-	-
5/31/2020	-	-
6/30/2020	-	-
7/31/2020	679,208	679,208
8/31/2020	306,447	985,655
9/30/2020	(378,562)	607,093
10/31/2020	-	607,093
11/30/2020	-	607,093
12/31/2020	-	607,093
1/31/2021	-	607,093
2/28/2021	-	607,093
3/31/2021	-	607,093
4/30/2021	-	607,093
5/31/2021	-	607,093
6/30/2021	-	607,093
7/31/2021	-	607,093
8/31/2021	-	607,093
9/30/2021	895,401	1,502,494

<u>I&E-RE-30</u>

Request:

Reference UGI Gas Book V, Schedule D-2 concerning Sales Expense:

- A. Explain in detail the basis for the total claim of \$1,651,000 in the FTY over the HTY amount of \$2,071,000, and provide a detailed breakdown for the FTY budgeted amount;
- B. Explain in detail the basis for the FPFTY total claim of \$1,738,000 over the FTY claim of \$1,651,000, and provide a detailed breakdown for the FPFTY budgeted claim; and
- C. For each type of demonstrating and selling expense and the advertising expense included in responses to Parts A and B above, explain why it is appropriate to include each one for ratemaking purposes, and provide examples for each type, along with dollar amounts by type of advertising.

Response:

- A.-B. Please see Attachment I&E-RE-30(a).
- C. Please see Attachment I&E-RE-30(c). The Company has an integrated advertising campaign promoting the benefits of domestic natural gas, including messaging that relates to the overall economic value of natural gas versus other energy sources and benefits of high efficiency natural gas appliances. This campaign encourages energy independence, promotes energy conservation as well as the wise development of natural gas as a fuel source. Please see Attachment III-A-25 for types of advertising.

I&E Exhibit No. 1 Schedule 5 Page 2 of 5



σ















Attachment I&E-RE-30(c) T. A. Hazenstab Page 23 of 23 I&E Exhibit No. 1 Schedule 5 Page 5 of 5

	Product Name: Soothe-It Ice/Heat Pack	ltem #1655	lotes to ProPress
Product	Imprint Area: Front Side Only: 1 1/2"H x 3"W		
Information			Art contains Halftones
	PLEASE NOTE: Any art issues are indicated on the	first page of this proof	
	Image Size May Have Been Reduced For Pr	oofing Purposes	

dashed line represents imprint area only and will not print



<u>I&E-RE-31</u>

Request:

Reference UGI Gas Book I, Attachment III-A-25 concerning Advertising Expenses:

- A. Provide a breakdown of other advertising expenses listed as other advertising programs for the fiscal years 2019, 2020, the HTY, and the FTY, and the FPFTY claims;
- B. State whether each expense listed is included in expenses for ratemaking purposes;
- C. Explain why advertising expenses listed as other advertising programs, increased from \$1,220,127 in the HTY to \$1,857,544 in the FTY and \$1,901,541 in the FPFTY; (an increase of 55.85% from the HTY to the FPFTY); and
- D. Explain why advertising expenses listed as other advertising programs, increased by 54.01% from \$671,093 in the HTY to \$1,033,556 in the FPFTY.

Response:

- A. Refer to Attachment I&E-RE-31(A).
- B. Yes.
- C. The numbers referenced in this request are the amounts for Total Advertising Programs per Attachment III-A-25. The primary sources of the variances in these totals are 1) Other Advertising Programs, which varied between the HTY and the FPFTY as described in subpart D below; and 2) the resumption of normal activities in print and digital channel adverting related to Conservation of Energy (i.e., conversion-related efforts), which help customers reduce energy consumption.
- D. The variance of advertising expenses listed as Other Advertising Programs in the HTY as compared to other years shown in Attachment III-A-25 is driven primarily by the reduction in event sponsorship, builder meetings, tradeshows and arena signage opportunities as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Company expects a more normal level of these activities in the FTY and the FPFTY.

Prepared by or under the supervision of: Vivian K. Ressler

Attachment I&E-RE-31(A) V. K. Ressler Page 1 of 1 I&E Exhibit No. 1 Schedule 6 Page 2 of 2

UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division Other Advertising Programs - Other Expenses For the Years Ended September 30, 2019 through 2023

Description	FY2019	FY2020	FY2021	FY2022	FY2023
Sponsorship	633,785	803,503	405,949	634,905	646,021
Builder Meetings/Trade Shows	178,468	148,031	41,938	178,783	181,914
Branded Promotional Items	29,649	26,362	3,660	29,701	30,221
Customer Promotional Offers	-	6,775	-	-	-
Misc. Advertising	26,510	37,083	29,760	26,557	27,022
Grand Total	868,412	1,021,754	481,308	869,946	885,178

SDR-RR-31

Request:

Please provide a description and the purpose for membership for each organization listed in the previous response.

Response:

Refer to response SDR-RR-32 for the purpose of memberships in industry organizations. The purpose of the Company's membership in other organizations is to improve the welfare, educational, social and economic climate in the Company's local communities, as well as to sponsor memberships for employees whose active participation in these organizations would be in the best interests of the Company and the communities within which the Company serves.

<u>I&E-RE-20</u>

Request:

Reference UGI Gas Book II, SDR-RR-30(c) concerning membership dues of \$588,226 claimed in the FPFTY, provide the following:

- A. Similar breakdown to Attachment SDR-RR-30 by year for the fiscal years 2019, 2020, and the HTY, and claimed FTY expenses; and
- B. Explanation for any increases by year from 2019 through the FPFTY claim;
- C. Explanation of the specific benefit to distribution ratepayers for the following memberships:
 - 1. Allentown Economic Development Corporation \$5,148;
 - 2. Economic Development Co. of Lancaster County \$32,964;
 - 3. Lebanon Valley Economic Development Corp. \$8,244;
 - 4. Lehigh Valley Economic Development Corp. \$21,636;
 - 5. Natural Gas Supply Collaborative \$20,000;
 - 6. Natural Gas Vehicles for America \$26,753
 - 7. Pennsylvania Economy League \$12,117
 - 8. Coalition for Renewable Natural Gas \$29,000; and
 - 9. Identify any portions of memberships attributable to lobby not specifically identified on Attachment SDR-RR-30.

Response:

Membership dues in Attachment SDR-RR-30(c) totaled \$1.1 million for FY23, not \$588,226 as listed above. The amount of \$588,226 is the direct employee activity cost for FY23 as described in part (e) of SDR-RR-30.

- A. Please see Attachment I&E-RE-20(A) for a breakdown of membership dues.
- B. The increase in association dues is related to anticipated increases in annual dues and new memberships to professional associations. Additionally, certain association dues were categorized within Other Expenses for 2019, but within Association Dues for all other years presented, resulting in lower Association Dues expense for 2019 than would have been shown if these dues were categorized consistently.

I&E-RE-20 (Continued)

- C.1. Allentown Economic Development Corporation is a nonprofit organization specializing in the property rehabilitation, business incubation, and strengthening of urban manufacturing in the City of Allentown.
- C.2. The Economic Development Co. of Lancaster County is the leading local organization dedicated to promoting business development and expansion throughout Lancaster County, PA.
- C.3. The Lebanon Valley Economic Development Corporation is a nonprofit organization that works with area businesses and the community at large to strengthen existing business and create an environment in which new companies can flourish.
- C.4. The Lehigh Valley Economic Development Corporation markets the economic assets of the Lehigh valley and creates partnerships to support the recruitment, growth and retention of employers and the creation of jobs for people of all skill and education levels.
- C.5. The Natural Gas Supply Collaborative is a group of natural gas purchasers that promote safe and responsible practices for natural gas supply.
- C.6. The Natural Gas Vehicles for America (NGV America) is a national organization dedicated to the development of a growing, profitable, and sustainable market for vehicles powered by natural gas or biomethane.
- C.7. The Pennsylvania Economy League addresses critical issues by providing impactful research, connecting diverse leaders, and advancing sharing of knowledge.
- C.8. The Coalition for Renewable Natural Gas serves as the public policy advocate and educational platform for Renewable Natural Gas in North America.
- C.9. There are no additional portions of memberships attributable to lobbying expense not already identified on Attachment SDR-RR-30.

Prepared by or under the supervision of: Vivian K. Ressler

V. K. Ressler Page 1 of 1

UGI UTILITIES, INC. - GAS DIVISION SCHEDULE OF COMPANY MEMBERSHIPS FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019, 2020, 2021, AND 2022

	2010			HTY		FTY		
Organization Name	<u>2019</u>		<u>2020</u>		<u>2021</u>		<u>2022</u>	
Allentown Economic Development Corp.	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	5,000	
American Gas Association	526,563		535,757		559,659		580,015	*
Association for Material Protection and Performance	-		-		-		1,932	
Clinton County Economic Partnership	1,600		500		1,000		-	
Cumberland Area Economic Assoc.	-		5,000		5,000		-	
Cyber Resilient Energy Delivery Consortium (CREDC)	22,500		22,500		25,000		30,000	
Economic Development Co. of Lancaster County	30,000		60,000		30,000		32,000	
Energy Association of Pennsylvania	147,025		146,997		146,963		145,058	*
Energy Solutions Center Inc.	5,000		40,144		17,576		6,050	
Focus Central Pennsylvania Inc.	3,000		3,000		3,000		3,000	
Gas Technology Institute	-		25,000		25,000		-	
Gold Shovel Association	1,612		2,400		-		-	
Greater Lehigh Valley Chamber of Commerce	2,384		2,384		1,180		-	
Greater Reading Chamber of Commerce & Industry	20,000		32,100		20,550		-	
Greater Scranton Chamber of Commerce	5,605		5,605		5,690		-	
Greater Susquehanna Valley Chamber of Commerce	682		-		5,717		-	
Greater Wilkes Barre Chamber of Commerce	-		7,000		-		-	
Harrisburg Regional Chamber	-		-		1,673		-	
Lancaster City Alliance	-		10,000		-		-	
Lebanon Valley Economic Development Corp.	7,500		7,500		7,500		8,000	
Lehigh Valley Economic Development Corp	21,000		42,000		-		21,000	
Lehigh Valley Economic Investment Corporation	-		1,700		-		-	
Midwest Energy Association	-		4,883		4,883		-	
Natural Gas Supply Collaborative	-		-		20,000		20,000	
Natural Gas Vehicles for America	26,620		26,620		26,620		26,000	
Northeast Gas Association	55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000	
Northeastern Pennsylvania Alliance	1,655		1,655		1,655		1,650	
Penn's Northeast	5,500		5,500		11,000		5,500	
Pennsylvania Chamber of Business & Industry	30,670		37,462		29,246		32,651	*
Pennsylvania Economy League	6,759		6,799		6,802		11,764	
Society of Gas Operators	-		272		-		1,845	
The Coalition for Renewable Natural Gas	-		-		18,750		18,750	*
Wayne Economic Development Corp.	-		5,000		7,000		-	
Wyoming County Chamber of Commerce	5,000		5,000		12,000		-	
Organizations Under \$1,500	12,601		11,662		11,769		10,864	
	\$ 938,275	\$	1,109,439	\$	1,060,233	\$	1,016,079	

*Does not include Lobbying expense

<u>I&E-RE-59</u>

Request:

Reference UGI Gas Book V, Schedule D-15 and UGI Gas Statement No. 2, pp. 21-22 concerning Interest for Customer Deposits, provide the following:

- A. The basis for the 4.50% interest rate; and
- B. Supporting documentation for the calculation based on the 4.50% interest rate.

Response:

- A. The 4.50% interest rate was the maximum lawful rate of interest for residential mortgages for December 2021 as published by the Department of Banking and Securities on November 13, 2021.
- B. Please see the response to I&E-RE-15.



2022

Interest Rate and Calculation Method for Title 72 Taxes Due After Jan. 1, 1982

REV-1611 (AD+) 01-22

The PA Department of Revenue will calculate daily interest on taxes due the commonwealth using an annual interest rate, which varies by calendar year. The following interest rates are applied on any outstanding tax balance originally due on or after Jan. 1, 1982, and on delinquent taxes originally due during the years indicated below:

CALENDAR YEAR	INTEREST RATE	DAILY RATE	CHARGED FROM
2021 - 2022	3%	0.000082	1/1/21 - 12/31/22
2020	5%	0.000137	1/1/20 - 12/31/20
2019	6%	0.000164	1/1/19 - 12/31/19
2017 - 2018	4%	0.000110	1/1/17 - 12/31/18
2011 - 2016	3%	0.000082	1/1/11 - 12/31/16
2010	4%	0.000110	1/1/10 - 12/31/10
2009	5%	0.000137	1/1/09 - 12/31/09
2008	7%	0.000192	1/1/08 - 12/31/08
2007	8%	0.000219	1/1/07 - 12/31/07
2006	7%	0.000192	1/1/06 - 12/31/06
2005	5%	0.000137	1/1/05 - 12/31/05
2004	4%	0.000110	1/1/04 - 12/31/04
2003	5%	0.000137	1/1/03 - 12/31/03
2002	6%	0.000164	1/1/02 - 12/31/02
2001	9%	0.000247	1/1/01 - 12/31/01
2000	8%	0.000219	1/1/00 - 12/31/00
1999	7%	0.000192	1/1/99 - 12/31/99
1995 - 1998	9%	0.000247	1/1/95 - 12/31/98
1993 - 1994	7%	0.000192	1/1/93 - 12/31/94
1992	9%	0.000247	1/1/92 - 12/31/92
1988 - 1991	11%	0.000301	1/1/88 - 12/31/91
1987	9%	0.000247	1/1/87 - 12/31/87
1986	10%	0.000274	1/1/86 - 12/31/86
1985	13%	0.000356	1/1/85 - 12/31/85
1984	11%	0.000301	1/1/84 - 12/31/84
1983	16%	0.000438	1/1/83 - 12/31/83
1982	20%	0.000548	1/1/82 - 12/31/82

Interest is calculated on a daily basis using the following formula:

INTEREST = LATE OR UNPAID TAX x NUMBER OF DAYS x APPLICABLE DAILY INTEREST RATE

Outstanding taxes due on or before Dec. 31, 1981, will bear interest at the old rates and using the old calculation methods governed by individual laws and regulations for each of the various taxes. Motor and Alternative Fuel Taxes are statutorily administered by Title 75, the PA Vehicle Code; interest rates for these tax types are available upon request.

<u>I&E-RE-63</u>

Request:

Reference Company filing Book II, SDR-RR-20, SDR-RR-21, and SDR-RR-26 concerning employee counts and employee additions. Provide the following:

- A. Monthly total number of full-time employees by category (union, non-union, and non-union temporary) for twelve months ended September 30, 2020, and the corresponding monthly labor cost in a similar format to Attachment SDR-RR-26;
- B. Total number of full-time employees by category (union, non-union, and nonunion temporary) claimed for the FTY and the FPFTY, detailing total number of additional new hires and retirements anticipated by month; and
- C. Number of normal vacancies by month for unfilled open positions in the fiscal years 2019, 2020, the HTY, and for October 2021, November 2021, December 2021, and January 2022.

Response:

- A. SDR-RR-26 provides the twelve months ended September 30, 2020 in the categories requested. Labor cost is also provided for the same period including expense and capital labor costs on page 2. Full time and part time employee costs are included.
- B. Please see Attachment I&E-RE-5-A for the total number of employees by category. The total number of part time employees by month is attached in Attachment I&E-RE-63B. Additional new hires by month can be found at OCA-III-7.
- C. Please see Attachment I&E-RE-63C for open positions by month. The attachment includes temporary positions in the total headcount. The average vacancy percentage for FY19-FY21 was 2.6%.

Attachment I&E-RE-63B T.A. Hazenstab Page 1 of 1

UGI UTILITIES, INC. PART TIME POSITION COUNT

<u>12 MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019</u>

OctNovDecJanFebMarAprMayJunJulAugSepPart time positions111211121312121015131312

12 MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

OctNovDecJanFebMarAprMayJunJulAugSepPart time positions131515131313141414131316

12 MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

OctNovDecJanFebMarAprMayJunJulAugSepPart time positions181817161616181919181818

12 MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

<u>Oct</u> <u>Nov</u> <u>Dec</u> <u>Jan</u>

Part time positions 17 17 16 14

117

116

127

111

UGI UTILITIES, INC. OPEN POSITION COUNT

		12 M	ONTHS E	NDED SE	РТЕМВЕ	R 30, 2019						
	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep
Budgeted Positions	1,665	1,665	1,666	1,668	1,669	1,676	1,682	1,688	1,688	1,688	1,688	1,689
Actual Headcount	1,615	1,614	1,621	1,616	1,620	1,624	1,635	1,655	1,671	1,668	1,634	1,629
Vacancies- Actual	50	51	45	52	49	52	47	33	17	20	54	60
		<u>12 M</u>	ONTHS E	NDED SE	PTEMBE	R 30, 2020	<u>!</u>					
	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	<u>Mar</u>	<u>Apr</u>	May	Jun	<u>Jul</u>	Aug	<u>Sep</u>
Budgeted Positions	1,659	1,680	1,685	1,718	1,723	1,732	1,750	1,751	1,753	1,753	1,753	1,753
Actual Headcount	1,622	1,627	1,638	1,646	1,643	1,657	1,650	1,636	1,637	1,636	1,626	1,642

		12 M	ONTHS E	NDED SE	PTEMBE	R 30, 2021						
	<u>Oct</u>	Nov	Dec	<u>Jan</u>	<u>Feb</u>	Mar	<u>Apr</u>	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep
Budgeted Positions	1,652	1,671	1,671	1,682	1,682	1,682	1,683	1,683	1,683	1,683	1,683	1,683
Actual Headcount	1,640	1,635	1,636	1,658	1,667	1,677	1,675	1,685	1,704	1,698	1,687	1,667
Vacancies- Actual	12	36	35	24	15	5	8	(2)	(21)	(15)	(4)	16

72

47

80

75

100

115

		<u>12 M</u>	ONTHS E	NDED SI
	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan
Budgeted Positions	1,693	1,693	1,693	1,694
Actual Headcount	1,668	1,671	1,661	1,656
Vacancies- Actual	25	22	32	38

37

Vacancies- Actual

53

				I&E Ca	lculations B	ased on (Company	Provided	Data					
2019														
	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Annual Average ²	2019-2021 Average ²
Budgeted ¹	1665	1665	1666	1668	1669	1676	1682	1688	1688	1688	1688	1689		
Actual ¹	1615	1614	1621	1616	1620	1624	1635	1655	1671	1668	1634	1629		
Vacancies-Actual	50	51	45	52	49	52	47	33	17	20	54	60		
Vacancy Rate ²	3.00%	3.06%	2.70%	3.12%	2.94%	3.10%	2.79%	1.95%	1.01%	1.18%	3.20%	3.55%	2.63%	
2020														
	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep		
Budgeted	1659	1680	1685	1718	1723	1732	1750	1751	1753	1753	1753	1753		
Actual ¹	1622	162/	1638	1646	1643	1657	1650	1636	1637	1636	1626	1642		
vacancies-Actual	37	55	47	12	80	/5	100	115	110	11/	127	111		
Vacancy Rate ²	2.23%	3.15%	2.79%	4.19%	4.64%	4.33%	5.71%	6.57%	6.62%	6.67%	7.24%	6.33%	5.04%	
2021														
	Oct	Nov	Dec	<u>Jan</u>	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep		
Budgeted ¹	1652	1671	1671	1682	1682	1682	1683	1683	1683	1683	1683	1683		
Actual	1640	1635	1636	1658	1667	1677	1675	1685	1704	1698	1687	1667		
Vacancies-Actual ⁴	12	30	35	24	15	5	8	(2)	(21)	(15)	(4)	16		
Vacancy Rate ²	0.73%	2.15%	2.09%	1.43%	0.89%	0.30%	0.48%	-0.12%	-1.25%	-0.89%	-0.24%	0.95%	0.54%	2.749/
														2.1470
<u>2022</u>														
D 1	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	<u>Q1 Average</u>									
Astuall	1693	1693	1693	1694										
Vacancies-Actual ¹	25	22	32	38										
Vacancy Rate ²	1.48%	1.30%	1.89%	2.24%										
					1.73%									
¹ Data provided by the Company in	Attachment I&E-RE-	-63C												
² I&E Calculations														

<u>I&E-RE-32</u>

Request:

Reference UGI Gas Book V, Schedule D-2, line 19 and Schedule D-3 concerning Administrative & General Expense:

- A. Explain in detail the basis for the total claim and each adjustment component and provide a detailed breakdown for the FTY budgeted/adjusted amount of \$111,878,000 an increase of \$3,656,000, or 3.38%, over the HTY amount of \$108,222,000; and
- B. Explain in detail the basis for the total claim and each adjustment component and provide a detailed breakdown for the FPFTY claim of \$128,357,000, a significant increase of \$16,479,000, or 14.73%, over the FTY amount of \$111,878,000.

Response:

Please see Attachment I&E-RE-32.

21,222

25,612

11,027

13,722

1,138

2,728

4,394

116,044

\$

263

288

38

UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division Administrative and General Expense - Schedule D-2 (\$ in Thousands)

Account Number	۱ ۲ ۱۳		Total FTY 2022 Sch D-2		Total HTY 2021 Sch D-2		Change		Total FTY 2022 Budget	
	ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL EXPENSE									
920.0 921.0 923.0 925.0 926.0 928.0 930.1 930.2 931.0 932.0 935.0	Administrative and General Salaries ¹ Office Supplies and Expenses Outside Service Employed ¹ Property Insurance Injuries and Damages Employee Pensions and Benefits Regulatory Commission Expenses General Advertising Expenses Miscellaneous General Expenses ² Rents A&G Maintenance of General Plant A&G Maintenance of General Plant	\$	34,424 20,600 24,151 - 10,332 13,214 394 284 3,911 37 4,272 259	\$	17,806 17,564 36,515 360 7,140 25,210 770 - 2,216 21 620 -	\$	16,618 3,036 (12,364) (360) 3,192 (11,996) (376) 284 1,695 16 3,652 259	\$	33,895 20,600 24,151 - 10,317 13,188 394 280 2,642 37 4,255 255	
	Total Administrative and General Expense	\$	111,878	\$	108,222	\$	3,656	\$	110,014	
Account Number	- ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL EXPENSE	FPI	Total FTY 2023 Sch D-2	F §	Total TY 2022 Sch D-2	(Change	FP	Total PFTY 2023 Budget	
920.0	Administrative and General Salaries	\$	35,895	\$	34,424	\$	1,471	\$	35,612	

\$

21,222

25,612

10,372

22,117

1,193

6,938

4,411

128,357

267

292

38

\$

20,600

24,151

10,332

13,214

394

284

37

3,911

4,272

111,878

259

\$

622

40

1,461

8,903

3,027

16,479

799

8

1

8

139

¹ For FY21, all corporate allocation amounts were allocated to FERC 923, for FY22 & 23, the amounts are allocated to various FERC accounts, including FERC 923.

² Includes \$1.883 million for FPFTY and \$1.269 million for FTY in Schedule D-13 for OSHA/ETS expenses. Please see OCA-III-25 for the Company's proposed adjustments to these amounts.

921.0

923.0

924.0

925.0

926.0

928.0

930.1

930.2

931.0

932.0

935.0

Rents

Office Supplies and Expenses

Employee Pensions and Benefits

Regulatory Commission Expenses

Miscellaneous General Expenses²

A&G Maintenance of General Plant

A&G Maintenance of General Plant

Total Administrative and General Expense

General Advertising Expenses

Outside Service Employed

Property Insurance Injuries and Damages

l Fully Proj	UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division Before the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commiss ected Future Period - 12 Months Ended Septen (\$ in Thousands)	sion nber 30, 2023	Schedule Witness: Page	C-4 V. K. Ressler 1 of 9
	Working Capital	I&E	Modified	
		[1]	[2]	
Line No	Description	Fully Projected FTY 9-30-23	Reference	
1	Working Capital for O & M Expense	\$ 51,401	C-4, Page 2	
2	Interest Payments	(4,489)	C-4, Page 7	
3	Tax Payment Lag Calculations	4,353	C-4, Page 8	
4	Prepaid Expenses	10,047	C-4, Page 9	
5	Total Cash Working Capital Requirements	\$ 61,313	-	

	Before th Fully Projected Fu	, 2023	Schedule Witness: Page	C-4 V. K. Ressler 2 of 9		
	(\$ in Thousands)			I&E I	Modified	
		Summary of Working Cap	pital			
		[1]	[2]	[3]	[4]	[5]
Line #	Description	Reference	Test Year Expenses	Factor	Number of (Lead) / Lag Days	Totals
WORKING	CAPITAL REQUIREMENT				[2]*[3]	
1	REVENUE LAG DAYS	Page 3				60.91
2 3 4 5	EXPENSE LAG DAYS Payroll Purchased Gas Costs Other Expenses Total	Page 4 Sch D-7 Sch D-6 L 19 - L 2 to L 4 Sum (L 3 to L 5)	\$ 80,6 404,8 185,9 \$ 671,5	77 12.00 93 39.85 57 27.08 27	 \$ 968,122 16,136,808 5,035,709 \$ 22,140,639 	
7	O & M Expense Lag Days	L6, C 4 / C 2				32.97
8	Net (Lead) Lag Days	L 1 - L 7				27.94
9	Operating Expenses Per Day	L 6, C 2 / 365				\$ 1,840
10	Working Capital for O & M Expense	L 8 * L 9				\$ 51,401
11	Interest Payments	Page 7				(4,489)
12	Tax Payment Lag Calculations	Page 8				4,353
13	Prepaid Expenses	Page 9				10,047
14	Total Working Capital Requirement	Sum (L 10 to L 13)				\$ 61,313
15	Pro Forma O & M Expense		\$ 688,1	22		
16	Less: Uncollectible Expense		16,5	95		
17	Sub-Total		16,5	95		
18	Pro Forma Cash O&M Expense		\$ 671,52	27		

	Befo Fully Projecte	UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Divi ore the Pennsylvania Public Utilit ed Future Period - 12 Months En	ision ty Commission ded September 30, 202	3	Schedule Witness: Page 3	C-4 V. K. Ressler of 9
		(\$ in Thousands)		I&E Mo	dified	
		Revenue Lag	L			
		[1]	[2] Accounts	[3]	[4]	[5]
Line	Description	Reference Or Exeter	Receivable Balance End of Month	Total Monthly	A/R	Days
<u> </u>	Description	Factor		Page 2	[3]/[2]	365 / [4]
1	Annual Number of Days					365
2 3 4	September, 2020 October November		\$ 52,950 \$ 61,679 \$ 72,123	\$ 41,665 \$ 55,297		
5 6 7	December, 2020 January, 2021 February Masab		\$ 106,368 \$ 140,439 \$ 164,061	\$ 100,676 \$ 126,612 \$ 130,900		
8 9 10 11	March April May		\$ 133,477 \$ 133,479 \$ 116,982 \$ 100,284	\$ 74,513 \$ 48,952 \$ 39,572		
12 13 14	July August September, 2021		\$ 87,161 \$ 76,062 \$ 62,224	\$ 31,323 \$ 33,489 \$ 32,352		
15	Total	Sum L 2 to L 14	\$ 1,340,884			
16	Number of Months	13				
17	Average Acct Rec Balance	L 15 / L 16	\$103,145			
18	Total Sales for Year	Sum L 2 to L 14		\$ 857,917		
19	Acct Rec Turnover Ratio	L 18 / L 17			8.32	
20	Collection Lag Day Factor	L 1 / L 19				43.87
21	Meter Read Lag Factor					1.83
22	Midpoint Lag Factor		365	/ 12 /	2 =	15.21
23	Total Revenue Lag Days	Sum L 20 to L 22				60.91

	UGI Before the Pe Fully Projected Future	UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division ore the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission ed Future Period - 12 Months Ended September 30, 2023			C-4 V. K. Ressler of 9		
		Interest Payments					
		[1]	[2]	[3]	[4]		
Line No.	Description	Reference Or Factor	# of Days	# of Days	Total		
1	Measure of Value at September 30, 2023	Sch C-1			\$ 3,023,154		
2	Long-term Debt Ratio	Sch B-6			44.88%		
3	Embedded Cost of Long-term Debt	Sch B-6			3.98%		
4	Pro forma Interest Expense	L1*L2*L3			\$ 54,000		
5	Daily Amount	L 4 / L 5 [2]	365		\$ 148		
6	Days to mid-point of interest payments			91.25			
7	Less: Revenue Lag Days	Page 3		60.91			
8	Interest Payment lag days	L 7 - L 6	-		(30.3)		
9	Total Interest for Working Capital	L 5 * L 8			\$ (4,489)		

I&E Statement No. 2 Witness: Anthony Spadaccio

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Direct Testimony

of

Anthony Spadaccio, CRRA

Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement

Concerning:

Rate of Return

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
BACKGROUND	2
COMPANY'S RATE OF RETURN CLAIM	4
I&E POSITION	5
PROXY GROUP	6
CAPITAL STRUCTURE	9
COST OF LONG-TERM DEBT	13
COST OF COMMON EQUITY	13
COMMON METHODS	13
SUMMARY OF THE COMPANY'S RESULTS	
I&E RECOMMENDATION	19
DISCOUNTED CASH FLOW	
CAPITAL ASSET PRICING MODEL	
CRITIQUE OF MR. MOUL'S PROPOSED COST OF EQUITY	25
WEIGHTS GIVEN TO THE CAPM, RP, AND CE METHODS	
RISK ANALYSIS	27
COST OF EQUITY ADJUSTMENTS	
INFLATED GROWTH RATES USED IN DCF ANALYSIS	
LEVERAGE ADJUSTMENT APPLIED TO DCF ANALYSIS	
RISK-FREE RATE OF RETURN	
INFLATED BETAS USED IN CAPM ANALYSIS	
SIZE ADJUSTMENT APPLIED TO CAPM ANALYSIS	
MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE	47
OVERALL RATE OF RETURN RECOMMENDATION	

1 INTRODUCTION

2	Q.	PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
3	A.	My name is Anthony Spadaccio. My business address is Pennsylvania Public Utility
4		Commission, Commonwealth Keystone Building, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA
5		17120.
6		
7	Q.	BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?
8	A.	I am employed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) in the
9		Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement (I&E) as a Fixed Utility Financial Analyst.
10		
11	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATION AND PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE?
12	A.	My educational and professional experience is set forth in Appendix A, which is
13		attached.
14		
15	Q.	PLEASE DESCRIBE THE ROLE OF I&E IN RATE PROCEEDINGS.
16	A.	I&E is responsible for representing the public interest in rate and other proceedings
17		before the Commission. I&E's analysis in this proceeding is based on its responsibility
18		to represent the public interest. This responsibility requires balancing the interests of
19		ratepayers, the utility company, and the regulated community as a whole.
20		
21	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
22	A.	The purpose of my testimony is to address the rate of return, including capital structure,
23		cost of long-term debt, the cost of equity, and the overall fair rate of return for UGI
24		Utilities, Inc. – Gas Division (UGI Gas or Company) for the fully projected future test
25		year (FPFTY) ending September 30, 2023.

1	Q.	DOES YOUR TES	STIMO	NY INCLUDE AN EXHIBIT?
2	A.	Yes. I&E Exhibit I	No. 2 cc	ontains schedules that support my direct testimony.
3				
4	<u>BAC</u>	KGROUND		
5	Q.	WHAT IS THE G	ENER	AL DEFINITION OF RATE OF RETURN IN THE
6		CONTEXT OF A	RATE	CASE?
7	A.	Rate of return is on	e of the	components of the revenue requirement formula. Rate of
8		return is the amoun	t of rev	enue an investment generates in the form of net income and is
9		usually expressed a	s a perc	entage of the amount of capital invested over a given period of
10		time.		
11				
12	Q.	WHAT IS THE R	EVEN	UE REQUIREMENT FORMULA?
13	A.	The revenue require	ement f	ormula used in base rate cases is as follows:
14		RR	= E + D	$+T + (RB \times ROR)$
15		Where:		
16		RR	=	Revenue Requirement
17		E	=	Operating Expenses
18		D	=	Depreciation Expense
19		Т	=	Taxes
20		RB	=	Rate Base
21		ROF	{ =	Overall Rate of Return
22		In the above formu	la, the r	ate of return is expressed as a percentage. The calculation of
23		that percentage is in	ndepend	lent of the determination of the appropriate rate base value for
24		ratemaking purpose	es. As s	such, the appropriate total dollar return is dependent upon the

1		prope	r computation of the rate of return and the proper valuation of the Company's rate
2		base.	
3			
4	Q.	WHA	AT CONSTITUTES A FAIR AND REASONABLE OVERALL RATE OF
5		RET	URN?
6	А.	A fair	and reasonable overall rate of return is one that will allow the utility an opportunity
7		to rec	over those costs prudently incurred by all classes of capital used to finance the rate
8		base d	during the prospective period in which its rates will be in effect.
9			The Bluefield Water Works & Improvements Co. v. Public Service Comm. of West
10		Virgir	nia, 262 U.S. 679, 692-93 (1923), and the Federal Power Commission et al v. Hope
11		Natur	ral Gas Co., 320 U.S. 591, 603 (1944) cases set forth the principles that are
12		gener	ally accepted by regulators throughout the country as the appropriate criteria for
13		meası	uring a fair rate of return:
14		1.	A utility is entitled to a return similar to that being earned by other enterprises
15			with corresponding risks and uncertainties, but not as high as those earned by
16			highly profitable or speculative ventures.
17		2.	A utility is entitled to a return level reasonably sufficient to assure financial
18			soundness.
19		3.	A utility is entitled to a return sufficient to maintain and support its credit and
20			raise necessary capital.
21		4.	A fair return can change (increase or decrease) along with economic conditions
22			and capital markets.

1

2

Q. EXPLAIN HOW THE OVERALL RATE OF RETURN IS TRADITIONALLY CALCULATED IN BASE RATE PROCEEDINGS.

3 In base rate proceedings, the overall rate of return is traditionally calculated using the A. 4 weighted average cost of capital method. To calculate the weighted average cost of 5 capital, a company's capital structure must first be determined by comparing the 6 percentage of each capitalization component, which has financed rate base, to total 7 capital. Next, the effective cost rate of each capital structure component must be 8 determined. The historical component of the cost rate of debt can be computed 9 accurately, and any future debt issuances are based on estimates. The cost rate of 10 common equity is not fixed and is more difficult to measure. Because of this difficulty, a 11 proxy group is used as discussed later in this testimony. Next, each capital structure 12 component percentage is multiplied by its corresponding effective cost rate to determine 13 the weighted capital component cost rate. The table in the "I&E Position" section below 14 demonstrates the interaction of each capital structure component and its corresponding 15 effective cost rate. Finally, the sum of the weighted cost rates produces the overall rate of 16 return. This overall rate of return is multiplied by the rate base to determine the return 17 portion of a company's revenue requirement.

18

19 <u>COMPANY'S RATE OF RETURN CLAIM</u>

20

Q. WHO IS THE COMPANY'S RATE OF RETURN WITNESS IN THIS CASE?

A. Paul R. Moul is the primary witness addressing rate of return. Throughout his Direct
Testimony (UGI Gas Statement No. 6), Mr. Moul provides his analysis for the claimed
capital structure, long-term debt, and cost of common equity for UGI Gas.
1 Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE

2 COMPANY'S RATE OF RETURN CLAIM.

- 3 A. Mr. Moul recommends the following rate of return for the Company based on its
- 4 FPFTY ending September 30, 2023:¹

UGI UTILITIES, INC GAS DIVISION				
Summary of Cost of Capital				
Type of Capital	Ratio	Cost	Weighted Cost	
-jpe or cuptur		Rate		
	UGI Utilities, Inc C	Bas Division		
Long-Term Debt	44.88%	3.98%	1.79%	
Common Equity	55.12%	11.20%	6.17%	
Total	100.00%		7.96%	

- 5
- 6

7 <u>I&E POSITION</u>

8 Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR RATE OF RETURN RECOMMENDATION FOR

9 **THE COMPANY.**

10 A. I recommend the following rate of return for the Company:²

I&E				
Summary of Cost of Capital				
Type of Capital	Ratio	Cost Rate	Weighted Cost	
	UGI Utilities, Inc G	as Division		
Long-Term Debt	44.88%	3.98%	1.79%	
Common Equity	55.12%	9.92%	5.47%	
Total	100.00%		7.26%	

¹ UGI Gas Exhibit B, Schedule 1.

² I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 1.

1 PROXY GROUP

2	Q.	WHAT IS A PROXY GROUP AS USED IN BASE RATE CASES?
3	A.	A proxy group is a set of companies that have similar traits as compared to the subject
4		utility. This group of companies acts as a benchmark for determining the subject utility's
5		rate of return in a base rate case.
6		
7	Q.	WHAT ARE THE REASONS FOR USING A PROXY GROUP?
8	A.	A proxy group's cost of equity is used as a benchmark to satisfy the long-established
9		guideline of utility regulation that seeks to provide the subject utility with the opportunity
10		to earn a return similar to that of enterprises with corresponding risks and uncertainties.
11		A proxy group is typically utilized since the use of data exclusively from one
12		company may be less reliable. The lower reliability occurs because the data for one
13		company may be subject to events that can cause short-term anomalies in the
14		marketplace. The rate of return on common equity for a single company could become
15		distorted in these circumstances and would therefore not be representative of similarly
16		situated companies. Therefore, a proxy group has the effect of smoothing out potential
17		anomalies associated with a single company.
18		
19	Q.	WHAT CRITERIA DID YOU USE IN SELECTING YOUR GAS UTILITY
20		PROXY GROUP?
21	A.	The criteria for my proxy group was designed to select companies that are representative
22		of UGI Gas. I applied the following criteria to Value Line's "Natural Gas Utility"
23		company group:
24		1. Fifty percent or more of the company's revenues must be generated from the
25		regulated gas utility industry.

1		2.	The company's stock must be publicly traded.
2		3.	Investment information for the company must be available from more than one
3			source, which includes Value Line.
4		4.	The company must not be currently involved in an announced merger or the target
5			of an acquisition.
6		5.	The company must have four consecutive years of historic earnings data.
7		6.	The company must be operating in a state that has a deregulated gas utility
8			market.
9			
10	Q.	WHA	AT CRITERIA DID MR. MOUL USE IN SELECTING THE COMPANIES
11		THA	T FORMULATE HIS "GAS GROUP"?
12	A.	Mr. N	Youl began with the gas utilities contained in Value Line's Investment Survey.
13			
14		From	there, he eliminated one company, UGI Corp., due to its diversified businesses,
14		From which	there, he eliminated one company, UGI Corp., due to its diversified businesses, n includes six reportable segments. These various business segments include
14		From which propa	there, he eliminated one company, UGI Corp., due to its diversified businesses, n includes six reportable segments. These various business segments include ne, international LPG segments, natural gas utility, energy services, and electric
14 15 16		From which propa gener	there, he eliminated one company, UGI Corp., due to its diversified businesses, n includes six reportable segments. These various business segments include ne, international LPG segments, natural gas utility, energy services, and electric ation. Beyond his rationale for excluding UGI Corp., Mr. Moul has not provided a
14 15 16 17		From which propa gener list of	there, he eliminated one company, UGI Corp., due to its diversified businesses, in includes six reportable segments. These various business segments include ne, international LPG segments, natural gas utility, energy services, and electric ation. Beyond his rationale for excluding UGI Corp., Mr. Moul has not provided a criteria used to determine the remainder of his Gas Group other than that it is made
14 15 16 17 18		From which propa gener list of up of	there, he eliminated one company, UGI Corp., due to its diversified businesses, in includes six reportable segments. These various business segments include one, international LPG segments, natural gas utility, energy services, and electric ation. Beyond his rationale for excluding UGI Corp., Mr. Moul has not provided a for criteria used to determine the remainder of his Gas Group other than that it is made the companies the Commission's Bureau of Technical Utility Services used to
14 15 16 17 18 19		From which propa gener list of up of calcul	there, he eliminated one company, UGI Corp., due to its diversified businesses, in includes six reportable segments. These various business segments include one, international LPG segments, natural gas utility, energy services, and electric ation. Beyond his rationale for excluding UGI Corp., Mr. Moul has not provided a criteria used to determine the remainder of his Gas Group other than that it is made the companies the Commission's Bureau of Technical Utility Services used to late the cost of equity in its Quarterly Earnings Reports approved on October 9,

³ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 5, lines 4-18.

1 Q. WHAT PROXY GROUP DID YOU USE IN YOUR ANALYSIS?

Atmos Energy Corp.	ATO
Chesapeake Utilities	СРК
NiSource Inc.	NI
Northwest Natural Gas Co.	NWN
One Gas Inc.	OGS
South Jersey Industries Inc.	SJI
Spire Inc.	SR

2 A. I included the following seven companies in my proxy group:

3

4

5 Q. WHAT PROXY GROUP DID MR. MOUL USE IN HIS ANALYSIS?

6 A. Mr. Moul's Gas Group consists of the following nine companies:⁴

Atmos Energy Corp.	ATO
Chesapeake Utilities	СРК
New Jersey Resources Corp.	NJR
NíSource Inc.	NI
Northwest Natural Gas Co.	NWN
One Gas Inc.	OGS
South Jersey Industries Inc.	SJI
Southwest Gas Corp.	SWX
Spire Inc.	SR

7

8

9 Q. DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. MOUL'S GAS PROXY GROUP?

10 A. Not entirely. While Mr. Moul's Gas Group included all seven of the companies in my

11 proxy group, I have excluded two of the companies he uses.

⁴ UGI Gas Exhibit B, Schedule 3, p. 2.

Q. PLEASE IDENTIFY THE TWO COMPANIES MR. MOUL HAS INCLUDED THAT YOU DO NOT AND EXPLAIN WHY YOU HAVE EXCLUDED THEM FROM YOUR PROXY GROUP.

4 A. The two companies Mr. Moul included in his Gas Group that I have excluded from my 5 proxy group are New Jersey Resources Corp. and Southwest Gas Holdings, Inc. as these 6 companies did not meet my first criterion that fifty percent or more of the company's 7 revenues must be generated from the regulated gas utility industry. This is important 8 because revenues represent the percentage of cash flow a company receives from each 9 business line related to providing a good or service. If less than fifty percent of revenues 10 come from the regulated gas sector, the companies are not comparable to the subject 11 utility as they do not provide a similar level of regulated business. Therefore, these 12 companies should be removed from the proxy group.

13

14 CAPITAL STRUCTURE

15 Q. WHAT IS A CAPITAL STRUCTURE?

A. A capital structure represents how a firm has financed its rate base with different sources
of funds. The primary sources of funding are long-term debt and common equity. A
capital structure may also include preferred stock and/or short-term debt, although this is
not the case for UGI Gas.

1 Q. WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIMED CAPITAL STRUCTURE?

- **UGI Utilities, Inc. Gas Division** Capital Structure - September 30, 2023 Long-Term Debt 44.88% **Common Equity** 55.12% Total 100.00% 3 4 5 WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPANY'S CLAIMED CAPITAL Q. 6 **STRUCTURE?** 7 Mr. Moul explains that UGI Utilities, Inc. raises its own long-term debt directly in the A. 8 capital markets. He believes the consolidated capital structure ratios for UGI Utilities, 9 Inc. should be used in determining the rate of return for each of its utility divisions 10 because all operations of each the division are financed on a consolidated basis.⁶ 11 12 WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION REGARDING THE COMPANY'S Q. 13 **CAPITAL STRUCTURE?** 14 A. I recommend using the Company's claimed capital structure as presented in the table 15 above.
- 2 A. The Company's claimed capital structure is summarized in the table below:⁵

⁵ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 21, ln. 22 through p. 22, ln. 4 and UGI Gas Exhibit B, Schedule 5.

⁶ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 20, lines 5-16.

2

Q. WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR CAPITAL STRUCTURE

RECOMMENDATION?

3 Although I believe a capital structure of 50% long-term debt and 50% common equity is A. 4 optimal when trying to balance the financial integrity of a utility as well as trying to 5 control costs to ratepayers, in this proceeding, I recommend using the Company's 6 claimed capital structure as it falls within the range of my proxy group's 2020 (most 7 recently available) capital structures. The most recent five-year average range contains 8 individual company capital structure ratios from 27.88% to 55.48% long-term debt and 9 34.19% to 56.96% equity, with an overall five-year average of 41.48% long-term debt 10 and 46.93% common equity.⁷ UGI Gas only employs short-term debt to finance non-rate 11 base items, which is why it has been excluded in this proceeding.

12It is worth noting that the Company's equity ratio is well above the average and13near the highest end of the proxy group's equity ratios. In fact, five of the seven14companies in my proxy group have a capital structure wherein the equity ratio is less than1550%. This equity heavy capital structure must be recognized when considering UGI Gas'16financial risk, as higher equity ratios generally correspond with lower financial risk as17Mr. Moul himself concedes.8

For consideration when examining the Company's overall financial risk, the example below illustrates the cost savings to ratepayers if the Company were to employ a 50% long-term debt and 50% common equity capital structure in its cost of capital while

⁷ I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 2.

⁸ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 17, lines 5-7.

UGI UTILITIES, INC GAS DIVISION				
Summary of Cost of Capital				
Type of Capital	Ratio	Cost Rate	Weighted Cost	
	AS FILED CAPI	TAL STRUCTURE		
Long-Term Debt	44 88%	3 98%	1 79%	
Common Equity	55 12%	11 20%	6.17%	
Total	100.00%	11.2070	7.96%	
Tour	100.0070		1.5070	
	50/50 OPTIMAL CA	PITAL STRUCTURE		
Long-Term Debt	50.00%	3.98%	1.99%	
Common Equity	50.00%	11.20%	5.60%	
Total	100.00%		7.59%	
Difference In The Overal	Rate of Return		0.37%	
(7.96% - 7.59% = 0.37%)				
	,			
Impact To Ratepayers			\$11,725,385	
(Claimed Rate Base* x D	ifference In The Overa	ll Rate of Return)		
(\$3,169,023,000 x .0037)				
Gross Revenue Conversion Fator** 1.429864				
Total Impact To Ratepayers\$16,765,706				
(\$11,725,385 x 1.429864)				
*UGI Gas Exhibit A, Schedule A-1, In. 9.				
**UGI Gas Exhibit A, Schedule A-1, In. 24.				

1

In this example, if the Company were to employ a 50/50 capital structure, the cost
savings to ratepayers would be \$16,765,706. While I understand achieving and
maintaining an exact 50/50 capital structure is not truly feasible, this example is intended
to demonstrate UGI Gas's financial security as compared to its peers and prove that Mr.
Moul's various "add-ons" to his cost of equity calculations are unnecessary.

1 **COST OF LONG-TERM DEBT**

2	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION REGARDING THE COMPANY'S
3		COST RATE OF LONG-TERM DEBT?
4	A.	I recommend using the Company's claimed long-term debt cost rate of 3.98% for the
5		FPFTY. ⁹
6		
7	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO USE THE
8		COMPANY'S CLAIMED COST RATE OF LONG-TERM DEBT?
9	A.	The Company's claimed cost rate of long-term debt is reasonable, as it is representative
10		of the industry. It falls within my proxy group's implied long-term debt cost range of
11		1.96% to 4.58%, with an average implied long-term debt cost of 3.99%. ¹⁰ Additionally,
12		the Company's forecasted cost of long-term debt has been gradually trending downward,
13		which is beneficial to ratepayers; therefore, I recommend the claimed cost rate of long-
14		term debt be used.
15		
16	<u>COS</u>	T OF COMMON EQUITY
17		COMMON METHODS
18	Q.	WHAT METHODS ARE COMMONLY PRESENTED BY UTILITIES IN
19		DETERMINING THE COST OF COMMON EQUITY?
20	A.	Four methods commonly presented to estimate the cost of common equity are the
21		Discounted Cash Flow (DCF), the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM), the Risk
22		Premium (RP) Method, and the Comparable Earnings (CE) Method.

⁹ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 23, ln. 25 through p. 24, ln. 1 and UGI Gas Exhibit B, Schedule 6, p. 3. I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 3.

¹⁰

Q. WHAT IS THE THEORETICAL BASIS FOR THE DCF METHOD?

A. The DCF method is the "dividend discount model" of financial theory, which maintains
that the value (price) of any security or commodity is the discounted present value of all
future cash flows. The DCF method assumes that investors evaluate stocks in the
traditional economic framework, which maintains that the value of a financial asset is
determined by its earning power, or its ability to generate future cash flows.

7

8 Q. WHAT IS THE THEORETICAL BASIS FOR THE CAPM?

9 A. The CAPM describes the relationship of a stock's investment risk and its market rate of 10 return. It identifies the rate of return investors expect so that it is comparable with returns 11 of other stocks of similar risk. This method hypothesizes that the investor-required return 12 on a company's stock is equal to the return on a "risk free" asset plus an equity premium 13 reflecting the company's investment risk. In the CAPM, two types of risk are associated 14 with a stock: (1) firm-specific risk (unsystematic risk); and (2) market risk (systematic 15 risk), which is measured by a firm's beta. The CAPM allows for investors to receive a 16 return only for bearing systematic risk. Unsystematic risk is assumed to be diversified 17 away, and therefore, does not earn a return.

18

19 Q. WHAT IS THE THEORETICAL BASIS FOR THE RP METHOD?

A. The theoretical basis for the RP method is a simplified version of the CAPM. The RP method's theory is that common stock is riskier than debt, thus, investors require a higher expected return on stocks than bonds. In the RP approach, the cost of equity is made up of the cost of debt and a risk premium. While the CAPM uses the market risk premium,

1		it also directly measures the systematic risk of a company or proxy group through the use
2		of beta. The RP method does not measure the specific risk of a company.
3		
4	Q.	WHAT IS THE THEORETICAL BASIS FOR THE CE METHOD?
5	A.	The CE method utilizes the concept of opportunity cost. This means that investors will
6		likely dedicate their capital to the investment offering the highest return with similar risk
7		to alternative investments. Unlike the DCF, CAPM, and the RP methods, the CE method
8		is not market-based and relies upon historic accounting data. The most problematic issue
9		with the CE method is determining what constitutes comparable companies.
10		
11	Q.	WHAT METHOD DO YOU RECOMMEND USING TO DETERMINE AN
12		APPROPRIATE COST OF COMMON EQUITY FOR UGI GAS?
13	A.	I recommend using the DCF method as the primary method to determine the cost of
14		common equity. Additionally, I recommend using the results of the CAPM as a
15		comparison to the DCF results. This is consistent with the methodology historically used
16		by the Commission in base rate proceedings, but also as recently as 2017, 2018, 2020,
17		and 2021. ¹¹

¹¹ Pa. PUC v. City of DuBois – Bureau of Water; Docket No. R-2016-2554150 (Order Entered March 28, 2017). See generally Disposition of Cost Rate Models, pp. 96-97; Pa. PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc. – Electric Division; Docket No. R-2017-2640058 (Order Entered October 25, 2018). See generally Disposition of Cost of Common Equity, p. 119; Pa. PUC v. Wellsboro Electric Company; Docket No. R-2019-3008208 (Order Entered April 29, 2020). See generally Disposition of Primary Methodology to Determine ROE, pp. 80-81; Pa. PUC v. Citizens Electric Company of Lewisburg, PA; Docket No. R-2019-3008212 (Order Entered April 29, 2020). See generally Disposition of Cost of Common Equity, pp. 91-92. Pa. PUC v. Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc.; Docket No. R-2020-3018835 (Order Entered February 19, 2021). See generally Disposition of Cost of Common Equity, p. 131.

Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN WHY YOU CHOSE TO USE THE DCF AND CAPM IN YOUR ANALYSIS.

3 I have used the DCF as the primary method for a variety of reasons. The DCF is A. 4 appealing to investors since it is based upon the concept that the receipt of dividends in 5 addition to expected appreciation is the total return requirement determined by the market.¹² The use of a growth rate and expected dividend yield are also strengths of the 6 7 DCF, as this recognizes the time value of money and is forward-looking. The use of the 8 utilities' own, or in this case the proxy group's, stock prices and growth rates directly in 9 the calculation also causes the DCF to be industry and company specific. Therefore, the 10 DCF method is superior for determining the rate of return for the current economic 11 market because it measures the cost of equity directly.

12 I have included a CAPM analysis as a comparison because the CAPM and the 13 DCF include inputs that allow the results to be specific to the utility industry, although 14 the CAPM is far less responsive to changes in the industry than the DCF. The CAPM is 15 based on the performance of U.S. Treasury bonds and the performance of the market as 16 measured through the S&P 500 and is company-specific only through the use of beta. 17 Beta reflects a stock's volatility relative to the overall market, thereby incorporating an 18 industry-specific aspect to the CAPM, but only as a measure of how reactive the industry 19 is compared to the market as a whole. Although changes in the utility industry are more 20 likely to be accurately reflected in the DCF, which uses the companies' actual prices, 21 dividends, and growth rates, I have included the results of my CAPM analysis because 22 changes in the market, whether as a whole or specific to the utility industry, affect the

¹² David C. Parcell, "The Cost of Capital – A Practitioner's Guide," 2010 Edition, p. 151.

outcome of each method in different ways. Although I have chosen to use the CAPM as
 a secondary method, it does have several disadvantages and should not be used as a
 primary method.

- 4
- 5

Q. EXPLAIN THE DISADVANTAGES OF THE CAPM.

6 The CAPM, and the RP method by virtue of its similarities to the CAPM, give results that A. 7 indicate to an investor what the equity cost rate should be if current economic and 8 regulatory conditions are the same as those present during the historical period in which 9 the risk premiums were determined. This is because beta, which is the only company-10 specific variable in the CAPM model, measures the *historical* volatility of a stock 11 compared to the *historical* overall market return. Reliance on historical values is 12 especially problematic now given the recent impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on 13 economic conditions. Although the CAPM and RP results can be useful to investors in 14 making rational buy and sell decisions within their portfolios, the DCF method is the 15 superior method for determining the rate of return for the current economic market and 16 measuring the cost of equity directly. The CAPM and the RP methods are less reliable 17 indicators because they measure the cost of equity indirectly and risk premiums vary 18 depending on the debt and equity being compared. Also, regulators can never be certain 19 that economic and regulatory conditions underlying the historical period during which the 20 risk premiums were calculated are the same today or will be the same in the future.

21

22 Q. IS THERE ANY ACADEMIC EVIDENCE THAT QUESTIONS THE

23 CREDIBILITY OF THE CAPM MODEL?

A. Yes. An article, "Market Place; A Study Shakes Confidence in the Volatile-Stock

14	
13	decision making process does not carry over into the regulatory rate setting process.
12	applications." ¹⁴ As a result, I conclude that the CAPM's relevance to the investment
11	empirical record of the model is poor - poor enough to invalidate the way it is used in
10	measure risk and the relation between expected return and risk. Unfortunately, the
9	CAPM is that it offers powerful and intuitively pleasing predictions about how to
8	which appeared in the Journal of Economic Perspectives, states that "the attraction of the
7	A more recent article, "The Capital Asset Pricing Model: Theory and Evidence,"
6	returns and suggested the use of more elaborate multi-factor models.
5	expected return. However, they found that the model did not do well in predicting actual
4	common stock. In CAPM theory a stock with a higher beta should have a higher
3	study examined the importance of beta, CAPM's risk factor, in explaining returns on
2	CAPM study conducted by professors Eugene F. Fama and Kenneth R. French. ¹³ Their
1	Theory," which appeared in the New York Times on February 18, 1992, summarized a

16 **METHOD FROM YOUR ANALYSIS.**

A. The RP method is excluded because it is a simplified version of the CAPM and is subject
to the same faults explained above. Most importantly, unlike the CAPM, the RP method
does not recognize company-specific risk through beta.

 ¹³ Berg, Eric N. "Market Place; A Study Shakes Confidence in the Volatile-Stock Theory" *The New York Times*, 18 Feb 1992: *nytimes.com* Web. 23 Mar 2016.

 ¹⁴ Fama, Eugene F. and French, Kenneth R., "The Capital Asset Pricing Model: Theory and Evidence." *Journal of Economic Perspectives* (2004): Volume 18, Number 3, pp. 25-46.

-	
Q.	EXPLAIN WHY YOU HAVE CHOSEN TO EXCLUDE THE CE METHOD IN
	YOUR ANALYSIS.
A.	The CE method is excluded because the choice of which companies are comparable is
	highly subjective, and it is debatable whether historic accounting values are
	representative of the future. Moreover, its historical usage in this regulatory forum has
	been minimal.
<u>SUMN</u>	MARY OF THE COMPANY'S RESULTS
Q.	WHAT ARE THE RESULTS OF THE COMPANY'S COST OF EQUITY
	ANALYSES?
A.	Mr. Moul employed the DCF, CAPM, RP, and CE methods in analyzing the Company's
	cost of equity. He makes several adjustments to his results, which include consideration
	of risk, leverage, and size. ¹⁵ Ultimately, Mr. Moul opines that a cost of equity of 11.20%
	is warranted due to UGI Gas' risk characteristics, so it can compete in the capital
	markets, attain reasonable credit quality, and be recognized for the Company's strong
	management performance. ¹⁶
<u>I&E R</u>	RECOMMENDATION
Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDED COST OF COMMON EQUITY FOR UGI
	GAS?
A.	Based upon my analysis, I recommend a cost of common equity of 9.92%. ¹⁷
Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
	Q. A. <u>SUMN</u> Q. A. <u>I&E F</u> Q. A.

My recommendation is based on the use of the DCF method. As explained below, I used A.

UGI Gas Exhibit B, Schedule 1, p. 2. UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 50, lines 2-16. I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 1.

	my CAPM result only to present to the Commission a comparison to my DCF results.
	My DCF analysis uses a spot dividend yield, a 52-week dividend yield, and earnings
	growth forecasts.
	DISCOUNTED CASH FLOW
Q.	PLEASE EXPLAIN YOUR DCF ANALYSIS.
A.	My analysis employs the constant growth DCF model as portrayed in the following
	formula:
	$K = D_1/P_0 + g$
	Where:
	K = Cost of equity
	D_1 = Dividend expected during the year
	$P_0 = Current price of the stock$
	g = Expected growth rate
	When a forecast of D_1 is not available, D_0 (the current dividend) must be adjusted by one
	half of the expected growth rate to account for changes in the dividend paid in period
	one. As forecasts for each company in my proxy group were available from Value Line,
	no dividends were adjusted for the purpose of my analysis.
Q.	PLEASE EXPLAIN HOW YOU DEVELOPED THE DIVIDEND YIELDS USED
	IN YOUR DCF ANALYSIS.
A.	A representative dividend yield must be calculated over a time frame that avoids the
	problems of both short-term anomalies and stale data series. For my DCF analysis, the
	dividend yield calculation places equal emphasis on the most recent spot and the 52-week
	Q. A. A.

average dividend yields. The following table summarizes my dividend yield computations for the proxy group:¹⁸

		Proxy	Group - Average D	ividend Yields	
		Spot		3.23%	
		52-week av	verage	3.55%	
		Average		3.39%	
3					
4					
5	Q.	WHAT INFORMATIO	N DID YOU RELY U	JPON TO DETERM	INE YOUR
6		EXPECTED GROWTH	I RATE?		
7	A.	I have used five-year proj	ected growth rate estin	nates from Value Line	e, Yahoo! Finance,
8		Zacks, and Morningstar.			
9					
10	Q.	WHAT WERE THE RE	ESULTS OF YOUR H	FORECASTED EAR	NINGS
11		GROWTH RATES?			
12	A.	The expected average gro	owth rates for my gas p	proxy group ranged fro	m 4.63% to 7.33%
13		with an overall average of	f 6.53%. ¹⁹		

I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 4. I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 5.

1 Q. WHAT IS THE RESULT OF YOUR DCF ANALYSIS BASED ON YOUR

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND YIELD AND GROWTH RATE?

Κ D_1/P_0 g 6.53% 9.92% 3.39% 4 5 6 CAPITAL ASSET PRICING MODEL 7 **Q**. PLEASE EXPLAIN YOUR CAPM ANALYSIS. 8 My analysis employs the traditional CAPM as portrayed in the following formula: A. 9 $\mathbf{K} = \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{f}} + \beta(\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{m}} - \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{f}})$ 10 Where: 11 Κ Cost of equity = 12 Risk-free rate of return R_{f} = 13 Expected rate of return on the overall stock market R_m = 14 β Beta measures the systematic risk of an asset = 15 16 WHAT IS BETA AS EMPLOYED IN YOUR CAPM ANALYSIS? Q. 17 Beta is a measure of the systematic risk of a stock in relation to the rest of the stock A. 18 market. A stock's beta is estimated by calculating the linear regression of a stock's return 19 against the return on the overall stock market. The beta of a stock with a price pattern 20 identical to that of the overall stock market will equal one. A stock with a price

³ A. The results of my DCF analysis are calculated as follows:²⁰

²⁰ I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 6.

movement that is greater than the overall stock market will have a beta that is greater than
one and would be described as having more investment risk than the market. Conversely,
a stock with a price movement that is less than the overall stock market will have a beta
of less than one and would be described as having less investment risk than the overall
stock market.

- 6
- 7

Q. HOW DID YOU DETERMINE YOUR BETA FOR YOUR CAPM ANALYSIS?

A. In estimating an equity cost rate for my proxy group, I used the average of the betas for
the companies as provided in the Value Line Investment Survey. The average beta for
my proxy group is 0.84.²¹

11

12 Q. WHAT RISK-FREE RATE OF RETURN HAVE YOU USED FOR YOUR 13 FORECASTED CAPM ANALYSIS?

14 I have chosen to use the risk-free rate of return (R_f) from the projected yield on 10-year A. 15 Treasury Notes. While the yield on the short-term T-Bill is a more theoretically correct 16 parameter to represent a risk-free rate of return, it can be extremely volatile. The 17 volatility of short-term T-Bills is directly influenced by Federal Reserve policy. At the 18 other extreme, the 30-year Treasury Bond exhibits more stability but is not risk-free. 19 Long-term Treasury Bonds have substantial maturity risk associated with market risk and 20 the risk of unexpected inflation. Long-term treasuries normally offer higher yields to 21 compensate investors for these risks. As a result, I chose to use the yield on the 10-year 22 Treasury Note because it mitigates the shortcomings of the other two alternatives.

²¹ I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 7.

1		Additionally, the Commission has recently agreed with I&E and recognized the 10-year
2		Treasury Note as the superior measure of the risk-free rate of return. ²²
3		The forecasted yield on the 10-year Treasury Note, as seen in Blue Chip Financial
4		Forecasts, is expected to range between 2.00% and 2.50% from the second quarter of
5		2022 through the second quarter of 2023, and it is forecasted to be 2.90% from 2023-
6		2027. For my forecasted CAPM analysis, I used 2.35%, which is the average of all the
7		yield forecasts I observed. ²³
8		
0	0	HAW DID VAU DETEDMINE THE DETUDN AN THE AVED ALL STACK
9	Q.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE RETURN ON THE OVERALL STOCK
9	Q.	MARKET EMPLOYED IN YOUR FORECASTED CAPM ANALYSIS?
9 10 11	Q. A.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE RETURN ON THE OVERALL STOCK MARKET EMPLOYED IN YOUR FORECASTED CAPM ANALYSIS? To arrive at a representative expected return on the overall stock market, I observed
9 10 11 12	Q. A.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE RETURN ON THE OVERALL STOCK MARKET EMPLOYED IN YOUR FORECASTED CAPM ANALYSIS? To arrive at a representative expected return on the overall stock market, I observed Value Line's 1700 stocks and the S&P 500. Value Line expects its universe of 1700
9 10 11 12 13	Q. A.	 HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE RETORN ON THE OVERALL STOCK MARKET EMPLOYED IN YOUR FORECASTED CAPM ANALYSIS? To arrive at a representative expected return on the overall stock market, I observed Value Line's 1700 stocks and the S&P 500. Value Line expects its universe of 1700 stocks to have an average yearly return of 12.57% over the next three to five years based
 9 10 11 12 13 14 	Q. A.	 HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE RETORN ON THE OVERALL STOCK MARKET EMPLOYED IN YOUR FORECASTED CAPM ANALYSIS? To arrive at a representative expected return on the overall stock market, I observed Value Line's 1700 stocks and the S&P 500. Value Line expects its universe of 1700 stocks to have an average yearly return of 12.57% over the next three to five years based on a forecasted dividend yield of 1.90% and a yearly index appreciation of 50%. The
 10 11 12 13 14 15 	Q. A.	 HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE RETURN ON THE OVERALL STOCK MARKET EMPLOYED IN YOUR FORECASTED CAPM ANALYSIS? To arrive at a representative expected return on the overall stock market, I observed Value Line's 1700 stocks and the S&P 500. Value Line expects its universe of 1700 stocks to have an average yearly return of 12.57% over the next three to five years based on a forecasted dividend yield of 1.90% and a yearly index appreciation of 50%. The S&P 500 index is expected to have an average yearly return of 15.41% over the next five
 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 	Q. A.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE REFORM ON THE OVERALL STOCK MARKET EMPLOYED IN YOUR FORECASTED CAPM ANALYSIS? To arrive at a representative expected return on the overall stock market, I observed Value Line's 1700 stocks and the S&P 500. Value Line expects its universe of 1700 stocks to have an average yearly return of 12.57% over the next three to five years based on a forecasted dividend yield of 1.90% and a yearly index appreciation of 50%. The S&P 500 index is expected to have an average yearly return of 15.41% over the next five years based upon Barron's forecasted dividend yield of 1.41% and Morningstar's average

Pa. PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc. – Electric Division; Docket No. R-2017-2640058 (Order Entered October 25, 2018). See generally Disposition of Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM), p. 99.
 I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 8.
 I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 9.



²⁵ I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 9.

²⁶ I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 10.

1 WEIGHTS GIVEN TO THE CAPM, RP, AND CE METHODS

2 Q. DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. MOUL'S RELIANCE ON THE CAPM AND RP 3 MODELS?

4 A. No. While I am not opposed to providing the Commission the results of the CAPM 5 methodology for a point of comparison to the results of the DCF calculation, I am 6 opposed to giving the CAPM and RP considerable weight. For the reasons previously 7 discussed in this testimony, including my reference to recent Commission orders, it is 8 inappropriate to give the CAPM and RP models similar weight to the DCF as Mr. Moul has done in creating his recommended cost of equity range.²⁷ As discussed above, the 9 10 CAPM measures the cost of equity indirectly and can be manipulated by the time period 11 chosen. Since the RP is a simplified version of the CAPM, it suffers these same flaws.

12

13 Q. DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. MOUL'S USE OF THE CE METHOD?

14 A. No. The companies in Mr. Moul's analysis are not utilities, and, therefore, they are too 15 dissimilar to be used in a CE analysis. The companies in Mr. Moul's CE proxy group are 16 simply not comparable to gas utilities in terms of business risk or financial risk profile. 17 Natural gas distribution companies are monopolies, which are subject to very little 18 competition, if any at all. Due to this minimal competition, utilities in general have very 19 low business risk and can maintain higher financial risk profiles by employing more 20 leverage. Conversely, since the companies in Mr. Moul's CE proxy group operate in an 21 unregulated competitive environment with a higher level of business risk, they must 22 maintain lower financial risk profiles by employing a smaller amount of leverage.

²⁷ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 6, ln. 10 through p. 7, ln. 3.

1		Further, in his CE analysis, Mr. Moul states, "I used 20% as the point where those
2		returns could be viewed as highly profitable and should be excluded from the
3		Comparable Earnings approach." ²⁸ I do not believe this arbitrary use of 20% is justified,
4		as I am unaware of any natural gas utility company that has been granted a Commission
5		authorized or regularly earns a 20% or greater return on equity.
6		
7		RISK ANALYSIS
8	Q.	PLEASE SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S CLAIMS REGARDING THE RISK
9		FACTORS THE COMPANY FACES.
10	A.	Mr. Moul described the Company's claimed risk factors in two different sub-sections. In
11		the first section, labeled "Natural Gas Risk Factors," he described the qualitative risk
12		factors. In this section, Mr. Moul discussed the potential for bypass, the Company's
13		construction program, and the proposed weather normalization adjustment (WNA)
14		mechanism. ²⁹ In the second section of his risk analysis, labeled "Fundamental Risk
15		Analysis," he described the quantitative risk factors. In this section, Mr. Moul discusses
16		the Company's credit quality, as well as many different financial metrics including size,
17		market ratios, common equity ratios, return on book equity, operating ratios, pre-tax
18		interest coverage, quality of earnings, internally generated funds, and betas. ³⁰
19		
20	Q.	WHAT HAS MR. MOUL CLAIMED REGARDING THE POTENTIAL RISK OF
21		BYPASS?

Mr. Moul opines that the Company's close proximity to the Marcellus Shale production A.

UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 49, lines 15-17. 28

²⁹

UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 7, ln. 12 through p. 14, ln. 2. UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 14, ln. 3 through p. 20, ln. 3. 30

1		area, and the competition gas utilities face from alternative energy sources such as
2		electricity, fuel oil, and propane contribute to the Company's risk profile. ³¹
3		
4	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MR. MOUL'S CLAIMED RISK OF BYPASS
5		FOR UGI GAS?
6	A.	All natural gas distribution utilities face competition from the alternate sources of energy
7		Mr. Moul mentions. Furthermore, all gas utilities face similar risk with competitive
8		market customers. The overlapping territories in western Pennsylvania provide a good
9		example. In my opinion, UGI Gas faces no more risk than any of the companies in my
10		proxy group. The cost of equity measured by my proxy group adequately compensates
11		investors for these risks common to all gas utilities.
12		
13	Q.	WHAT IS MR. MOUL'S CLAIM REGARDING ADDITIONAL RISK DUE TO
14		THE COMPANY'S CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM AND AGING
15		INFRASTRUCTURE?
16	A.	Mr. Moul claims that the Company must invest in new facilities to meet growth demands
17		and to maintain and upgrade existing facilities to maintain safe and reliable service to
18		existing customers. ³² The Company anticipates that gross construction expenditures will
19		represent a 59% increase in net utility plant, including construction work in progress
20		during 2022-2025 period. ³³

UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 8, lines 6-18. UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 10, lines 5-9. UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 11, lines 1-4.

Q. WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MR. MOUL'S CLAIM REGARDING THE COMPANY'S CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM AND REPLACEMENT OF AGING INFRASTRUCTURE?

4 A. First, Mr. Moul states, "[w]ith customer demand for the Company's service at high 5 levels, the Company is faced with the requirement to invest in new facilities..."³⁴ It is 6 worth noting that this statement is contrary to Mr. Moul's concerns regarding loss of 7 customers and risk of bypass as discussed above. Every gas utility faces the same issues 8 of upgrading or replacing its infrastructure. As costs for replacing infrastructure increase, 9 UGI Gas, like any other regulated gas utility, has the option to file a base rate case at any 10 time to address revenue inadequacy due to increasing costs, infrastructure replacement, or 11 any other associated issues. Base rate cases allow a utility to recover its costs and 12 provide it with the *opportunity* to earn a reasonable return on capital investments. 13 Additionally, the Commission offers risk reducing mechanisms such as the Distribution 14 System Improvement Charge (DSIC) and the FPFTY to help reduce any regulatory lag in 15 recovery of infrastructure investment or other unforeseen expenditures. It should be 16 noted that these mechanisms were not designed to eliminate the need for periodic base 17 rate case filings, but only to mitigate regulatory lag and support increasing infrastructure 18 replacement needs.

19

20 Q. ACCORDING TO MR. MOUL, WHAT ADDITIONAL BUSINESS RISKS

21

AFFECT THE COMPANY?

A. Mr. Moul suggests that regulatory risks such as the requirements to obtain the necessary

³⁴ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 10, lines 5-7.

1		permits and approvals to secure adequate and reliable gas supply have become time
2		consuming and costly. ³⁵ Further, he opines that the Company faces operational risks
3		such as counterparty risk, cyber security, and attacks from foreign enemies and domestic
4		terrorists. ³⁶
5		
6	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MR. MOUL'S CLAIMS REGARDING THE
7		VARIOUS BUSINESS (REGULATORY AND OPERATIONAL) RISKS HE
8		MENTIONS?
9	А.	The issues referenced by Mr. Moul affect the entire gas utility industry, therefore, UGI
10		Gas faces the same exposure to these issues as do all the other companies in our
11		respective proxy groups. Investors voluntarily buy and hold shares of stocks in natural
12		gas utility companies, indicating they are aware of these risks and the returns. The cost
13		of equity I present for UGI Gas in this proceeding is adequately measured by my proxy
14		group and adequately compensates investors for these risks.
15		
16	Q.	PLEASE COMMENT ON THE COMPANY'S PROPOSAL REGARDING A
17		WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT (WNA) MECHANISM AND ITS
18		CLAIM REGARDING THE POTENTIAL IMPACT ON THE COMPANY'S
19		COST OF EQUITY.
20	A.	Generally, the goal of a WNA is to stabilize revenues from volumetric charges as they are
21		highly variable depending on weather conditions. Company witness John D. Taylor
22		(UGI Gas Statement No. 11) discusses in detail the specifics of UGI Gas' WNA proposal.

UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 9, lines 8-13. UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 9, lines 15-21.

1		Mr. Moul claims that all the companies in his Gas Group have similar WNA mechanisms
2		to what UGI Gas is proposing in this proceeding, and that his market-determined return
3		on equity analysis reflects the effects of decoupling on investor expectations. ³⁷
4		
5	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MR. MOUL'S CLAIM REGARDING THE
6		COMPANY'S PROPOSED WNA MECHANISM?
7	А.	The Commission allows utilities the opportunity to propose alternative ratemaking
8		mechanisms such as the WNA requested by the Company in this proceeding. If the
9		Commission approves the Company's WNA proposal, the benefits of revenue decoupling
10		would certainly reduce the Company's overall risk profile. However, I&E's position on
11		UGI Gas' specific request regarding the WNA proposal are addressed in the testimony of
12		I&E witness Cline (I&E Statement No. 4).
13		
14	Q.	PLEASE DISCUSS THE CLAIMS MR. MOUL MAKES REGARDING
15		QUANTITATIVE RISK FACTORS IN THE SECTION HE LABELS
16		"FUNDAMENTAL RISK ANALYSIS."
17	А.	Mr. Moul states that it is necessary to establish a company's relative risk position within
18		its industry through an analysis of quantitative and qualitative factors. In this section,
19		Mr. Moul uses various financial metrics to compare UGI Gas to the S&P Public Utilities
20		Index and his Gas Group. ³⁸

UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 12, lines 4-11. UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 14, lines 6-13.

Q. WHAT ARE YOUR COMMENTS REGARDING MR. MOUL'S

2

"FUNDAMENTAL RISK ANALYSIS?"

3 Two of the points he examines, size risk and betas, are discussed and disputed elsewhere A. 4 in my direct testimony. Throughout the remainder of his "fundamental risk analysis," 5 Mr. Moul makes several statements to indicate that UGI Gas has no more of a risk than 6 any other company in his Gas Group. First, Mr. Moul identifies the Company's long-7 term issuer credit quality rating from Moody's Investors Service (Moody's) to be A2, 8 which is categorized as upper-medium investment grade with low credit risk. By 9 comparison, the average Moody's ratings of Mr. Moul's Gas Group and the S&P Public 10 Utilities Index both have a rating one step lower at A3.³⁹ These ratings indicate that UGI 11 Gas has a lower credit risk than both Mr. Moul's Gas Group and the S&P Public Utilities 12 Index. 13 Second, while discussing common equity ratios, Mr. Moul states, "The five-year 14 average common equity ratios, based on permanent capital, were 56.6% for UGI Gas, 15 51.5% for the Gas Group, and 41.3% for the S&P Public Utilities." He concludes that 16 UGI Gas' higher common equity ratio indicates lower financial risk than that of his Gas 17 Group.⁴⁰ 18 Third, regarding operating ratios, Mr. Moul states, "The five-year average 19 operating ratios were 76.7% for the Company, 83.6% for the Gas Group, and 78.8% for 20 the S&P Public Utilities".⁴¹ As Mr. Moul explains, the operating ratio illustrates the

21

percentage of revenue required to cover operating expenses. The lower the operating

³⁹ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 15, lines 11-19.

⁴⁰ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 17, lines 3-7.

⁴¹ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 17, lines 20-21.

1		ratio is, the higher the operating margin becomes. ⁴² In this case, UGI Gas's lower
2		operating ratio implies less risk than the Gas Group and the S&P Public Utilities Index.
3		Fourth, concerning coverage, he explains that excluding the Allowance for Funds
4		Used During Construction, the five-year average pre-tax interest coverage was 5.07 times
5		for the Company, 4.05 times for the Gas Group, and 3.02 times for the S&P Public
6		Utilities. Mr. Moul acknowledges that "[t]he interest coverages were higher for the
7		Company as compared to the Gas Group, thereby indicating lower credit risk."43
8		Fifth, regarding quality of earnings, Mr. Moul concludes, "[q]uality of earnings
9		has not been a significant concern for the Company, the Gas Group, and the S&P Public
10		Utilities."44
11		Finally, concerning internally generated funds (IGF), Mr. Moul shows the five-
12		year average percentage of IGF to capital expenditures to be 72.4% for UGI Gas, 56.0%
13		for his Gas Group, and 69.5% for the S&P Public Utilities. ⁴⁵ Although the Company's
14		IGF to capital expenditures dropped in 2019 and 2020, the higher five-year average
15		percentage indicates lower financial risk as compared to the Gas Group and the S&P
16		Public Utilities.
17		
18	Q.	PLEASE CONTINUE.
19	A.	Mr. Moul summarizes his fundamental risk analysis by stating, "[0]n balance, the cost of
20		equity measured with the Gas Group data will provide a reasonable, albeit conservative,
21		representation of the Company's cost of equity." ⁴⁶ While some measures he discusses

UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 17, lines 18-20 and Footnote 3.

UGI Gas Statement No. 6. p. 18, lines 5-9. UGI Gas Statement No. 6. p. 18, lines 21-22.

UGI Gas Statement No. 6. p. 18, ln. 23 through p. 19, ln. 4. UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 20, lines 1-3.

1		may imply a higher risk profile for the Company, he provides a greater amount and more
2		convincing measures that illustrate the Company has lower risk. Overall, through his
3		own analysis and testimony, Mr. Moul substantiated that the Company has very similar
4		risk as compared to that of his Gas Group, therefore, any additional consideration for the
5		Company's risk profile is unnecessary.
6		
7		COST OF EQUITY ADJUSTMENTS
8		INFLATED GROWTH RATES USED IN DCF ANALYSIS
9	Q.	WHAT GROWTH RATE HAS MR. MOUL USED IN HIS DCF ANALYSIS?
10	A.	Mr. Moul has chosen a growth rate of 6.75%.
11		
12	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. MOUL'S GROWTH RATE?
12 13	Q. A.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. MOUL'S GROWTH RATE? Mr. Moul indicates that Schedule 9 of his exhibit shows the prospective five-year
12 13 14	Q. A.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. MOUL'S GROWTH RATE?Mr. Moul indicates that Schedule 9 of his exhibit shows the prospective five-yearearnings per share growth rates projected for the Gas Group to be 5.41% from IBES/First
12 13 14 15	Q. A.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. MOUL'S GROWTH RATE?Mr. Moul indicates that Schedule 9 of his exhibit shows the prospective five-yearearnings per share growth rates projected for the Gas Group to be 5.41% from IBES/FirstCall, 5.88% from Zacks, and 7.61% from Value Line.47 Although the average of his
 12 13 14 15 16 	Q. A.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. MOUL'S GROWTH RATE?Mr. Moul indicates that Schedule 9 of his exhibit shows the prospective five-yearearnings per share growth rates projected for the Gas Group to be 5.41% from IBES/FirstCall, 5.88% from Zacks, and 7.61% from Value Line. ⁴⁷ Although the average of hissources for the growth rate is 6.30%, ⁴⁸ Mr. Moul chooses to use 6.75% claiming that
 12 13 14 15 16 17 	Q. A.	 WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. MOUL'S GROWTH RATE? Mr. Moul indicates that Schedule 9 of his exhibit shows the prospective five-year earnings per share growth rates projected for the Gas Group to be 5.41% from IBES/First Call, 5.88% from Zacks, and 7.61% from Value Line.⁴⁷ Although the average of his sources for the growth rate is 6.30%,⁴⁸ Mr. Moul chooses to use 6.75% claiming that DCF growth rates should not be established by mathematical formulation and that the
12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. A.	 WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. MOUL'S GROWTH RATE? Mr. Moul indicates that Schedule 9 of his exhibit shows the prospective five-year earnings per share growth rates projected for the Gas Group to be 5.41% from IBES/First Call, 5.88% from Zacks, and 7.61% from Value Line.⁴⁷ Although the average of his sources for the growth rate is 6.30%,⁴⁸ Mr. Moul chooses to use 6.75% claiming that DCF growth rates should not be established by mathematical formulation and that the reasonableness of his chosen growth rate is justified by investor-expected growth for the
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q. A.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. MOUL'S GROWTH RATE?Mr. Moul indicates that Schedule 9 of his exhibit shows the prospective five-yearearnings per share growth rates projected for the Gas Group to be 5.41% from IBES/FirstCall, 5.88% from Zacks, and 7.61% from Value Line. ⁴⁷ Although the average of hissources for the growth rate is 6.30%, ⁴⁸ Mr. Moul chooses to use 6.75% claiming thatDCF growth rates should not be established by mathematical formulation and that thereasonableness of his chosen growth rate is justified by investor-expected growth for theGas Group and continuation of gas utility infrastructure spending. ⁴⁹
 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 	Q. A.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. MOUL'S GROWTH RATE? Mr. Moul indicates that Schedule 9 of his exhibit shows the prospective five-year earnings per share growth rates projected for the Gas Group to be 5.41% from IBES/First Call, 5.88% from Zacks, and 7.61% from <u>Value Line</u> . ⁴⁷ Although the average of his sources for the growth rate is 6.30%, ⁴⁸ Mr. Moul chooses to use 6.75% claiming that DCF growth rates should not be established by mathematical formulation and that the reasonableness of his chosen growth rate is justified by investor-expected growth for the Gas Group and continuation of gas utility infrastructure spending. ⁴⁹

No. Contrary to Mr. Moul's belief that DCF growth rates should not be established by A.

UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 31, lines 12-13. (5.41% + 5.88% + 7.61%) ÷ 3 = 6.30%. UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 32, lines 8-15.

1		mathematical formulation, I feel that any alternative is subjective and introduces
2		additional and unnecessary bias and should be avoided when possible. The use of a
3		higher growth rate than the average of his proxy group ignores the fact that analysts
4		making earnings per share growth forecasts are already aware of the economic conditions
5		and the state of the gas utility industry. The reasons Mr. Moul has given for choosing a
6		growth rate above his calculated average are factors that are already included in the
7		earnings per share growth forecasts; thus, choosing a growth rate higher than the average
8		of his proxy group would account for the same factors twice.
9		
10	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY ADDITIONAL COMMENTS REGARDING THE
11		RESULTS OF MR. MOUL'S PROJECTED GROWTH RATES?
12	A.	Yes. While the five-year projected growth rates can be used in analyses, one must be
13		aware that analysts' estimates may be biased. This bias has been observed in literature
14		An article authored by Professors Ciciretti, Dwyer, and Hasan in 2009 observed strong
14 15		An article authored by Professors Ciciretti, Dwyer, and Hasan in 2009 observed strong support of earnings forecasts being higher than actual earnings. ⁵⁰ In spring of 2010,
14 15 16		An article authored by Professors Ciciretti, Dwyer, and Hasan in 2009 observed strong support of earnings forecasts being higher than actual earnings. ⁵⁰ In spring of 2010, <u>McKinsey on Finance</u> presented an article reporting that after a decade of stricter
14 15 16 17		An article authored by Professors Ciciretti, Dwyer, and Hasan in 2009 observed strong support of earnings forecasts being higher than actual earnings. ⁵⁰ In spring of 2010, <u>McKinsey on Finance</u> presented an article reporting that after a decade of stricter regulation analysts' forecasts are still overly optimistic. ⁵¹
14 15 16 17 18		An article authored by Professors Ciciretti, Dwyer, and Hasan in 2009 observed strong support of earnings forecasts being higher than actual earnings. ⁵⁰ In spring of 2010, <u>McKinsey on Finance</u> presented an article reporting that after a decade of stricter regulation analysts' forecasts are still overly optimistic. ⁵¹ Analysts' estimates are an attempt to forecast future cash flows and thus expected
 14 15 16 17 18 19 		An article authored by Professors Ciciretti, Dwyer, and Hasan in 2009 observed strong support of earnings forecasts being higher than actual earnings. ⁵⁰ In spring of 2010, <u>McKinsey on Finance</u> presented an article reporting that after a decade of stricter regulation analysts' forecasts are still overly optimistic. ⁵¹ Analysts' estimates are an attempt to forecast future cash flows and thus expected earnings growth. However, it should be kept in mind that prudent judgment must be
 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 		An article authored by Professors Ciciretti, Dwyer, and Hasan in 2009 observed strong support of earnings forecasts being higher than actual earnings. ⁵⁰ In spring of 2010, <u>McKinsey on Finance</u> presented an article reporting that after a decade of stricter regulation analysts' forecasts are still overly optimistic. ⁵¹ Analysts' estimates are an attempt to forecast future cash flows and thus expected earnings growth. However, it should be kept in mind that prudent judgment must be exercised as to the sustainability of forecasted growth rates with respect to the base

⁵⁰ Ciciretti, Rocco; Dwyer, Gerald R; and Iftekhan Hasan. "Investment Analysts' Forecasts of Earnings" Federal <u>Reserve Bank of St. Louis *Review*</u>, September/October 2009, 91 (5, part 2) pp. 545-67.

⁵¹ Goedhart, Marc J; Raj, Rishi; and Abhishek Saxena. "Equity analyst: Still too bullish" <u>McKinsey on Finance</u> Number 35 Spring 2010, pp. 14-17.

1		they are calculated will be biased downward. Similarly, if the base year earnings are
2		abnormally low, the growth rates from which they are calculated will be biased upward.
3		As a result, it is typically necessary to employ a methodology to smooth out the
4		abnormally high or low base year earnings.
5		In summary, since analysts' projected growth forecasts are most often overly
6		optimistic, there is no need to arbitrarily and non-formulaically increase the estimates
7		used in a DCF analysis.
8		
9		LEVERAGE ADJUSTMENT APPLIED TO DCF ANALYSIS
10	Q.	HAS MR. MOUL MADE ANY ADDITIONAL ADJUSTMENTS TO THE
11		RESULT OF HIS DCF ANALYSIS?
12	A.	Yes. Mr. Moul proposes to make a 95-basis point "leverage" adjustment ⁵² to the results
13		of his DCF analysis to account for applying a market-determined cost of equity to a book
14		value capital structure. ⁵³
15		
16	Q.	WHAT IS FINANCIAL LEVERAGE?
17	A.	Financial leverage is the use of debt capital to supplement equity capital. A firm with
18		significantly more debt than equity is considered highly leveraged.
19		
20	Q.	WHAT IS A MARKET-TO-BOOK (M/B) RATIO?
21	A.	A market-to-book ratio is used to evaluate a public firm's equity value by comparing the
22		market value and book value of a company's equity. One way of doing this is to divide

⁵² UGI Gas Exhibit B, Schedule 1, p. 2.
⁵³ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 33, lines 12-14.

1		the current price per share of stock by the book value per share. A M/B result of above
2		one (1) is desired.
3		
4	Q.	HAS MR. MOUL PROPOSED TO ADJUST THE RESULT OF HIS DCF
5		ANALYSIS TO RECOGNIZE HOW THE COMPANY IS LEVERAGED?
6	A.	No. Mr. Moul does not propose to change the capital structure of the utility (a leverage
7		adjustment), nor does he proposed to apply the market-to-book ratio to the DCF model (a
8		market-to-book adjustment). Instead, Mr. Moul proposes to make an adjustment to
9		account for applying the market value cost rate of equity to the book value of the utility's
10		capital structure. I am not aware of any term in academic journals, textbooks, or other
11		literature that describes this type of adjustment.
12		
13	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. MOUL'S PROPOSED LEVERAGE
14		ADJUSTMENT?
15	A.	As stated above, Mr. Moul theorizes that to make the DCF results relevant to a book
16		value capital structure, the market-derived cost of equity needs to be adjusted to take into
17		consideration the difference in financial risk. ⁵⁴ Mr. Moul opines this is because market
18		valuations of equity are based on market value capital structures, which in general have
19		more equity, less debt, and therefore, less risk than book value capital structures. ⁵⁵

UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 33, lines 12-14. UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 33, lines 4-10.

1 Q. HOW DOES MR. MOUL CALCULATE THE LEVERAGE ADJUSTMENT USED

2		IN HIS ANAYSIS?
3	A.	Mr. Moul simply states:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11		I know of no means to mathematically solve for the 0.95% leverage adjustment by expressing it in the terms of any particular relationship of market price to book value. The 0.95% adjustment is merely a convenient way to compare the 11.21% return computed using the Modigliani & Miller formulas to the 10.26% return generated by the DCF model based on a market-value capital structure. ⁵⁶
12	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. MOUL'S "LEVERAGE ADJUSTMENT"?
13	A.	No. Mr. Moul's adjustment is inappropriate for a couple of reasons, including the
14		characterization of financial risk and its inconsistency with Commission precedent.
15		
16	Q.	EXPLAIN HOW RATING AGENCIES ASSESS FINANCIAL RISK.
17	A.	Rating agencies assess financial risk based upon a company's booked debt
18		obligations and the ability of its cash flow to cover the interest payments on those
19		obligations. The agencies use a company's financial statements for their analysis, not
20		market capital structure. The income statement reflects the financial risk of a company
21		because it represents the performance of the company over a certain period. A change in
22		the market value of the stock is not reflected in the income statement nor is a change in
23		market value capital structure reflected in the book value capital structure unless treasury
24		stock is purchased. It is a company's financial statements that affect the market value of
25		the stock, and, therefore, the financial statements and the book value capital structure are
26		relied upon in an analysis such as that done by rating agencies.

⁵⁶ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 36, lines 17-23.

2

Q. WHAT ARE THE MOST RECENT COMMISSION DECISIONS REGARDING A **LEVERAGE ADJUSTMENT?**

3 The following cases are the most recent instances where the Commission has addressed A. 4 the use of a "leverage adjustment." In these cases, this adjustment has been rejected. 5 First, in Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission v. Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., at 6 Docket No. R-00072711 (Order Entered July 31, 2008), pp. 38-39, the Commission 7 rejected the ALJ's recommendation for a leverage adjustment stating, "[t]he fact that we 8 have granted leverage adjustments in the past does not mean that such adjustments are 9 indicated in all cases." In this proceeding, the Commission determined that there was no 10 viable support for an upwards adjustment to compensate for any perceived risk. 11 Second, in Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, et al v. City of Lancaster -12 Bureau of Water, at Docket No. R-2010-2179103 (Order Entered July 14, 2011), p. 101, 13 the Commission agreed with the I&E position and stated, "any adjustment to the results 14 of the market based DCF are unnecessary and will harm ratepayers. Consistent with our 15 determination in Aqua 2008 there is no need to add a leverage adjustment. . ." 16 Third, in Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, et al v. UGI Utilities, Inc. -17 Electric Division, at Docket No. R-2017-2640058 (Order Entered October 25, 2018), pp. 18 93-94, the Commission agreed with the I&E position and stated, "we conclude that an 19 artificial adjustment in this proceeding is unnecessary and contrary to the public interest. 20 Accordingly, we decline to include a leverage adjustment in our calculation of the DCF 21 cost of equity." 22 Fourth, in Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, et. al v. Columbia Gas of 23

Pennsylvania, Inc., at Docket R-2020-3018835 (Order Entered February 19, 2021), pp.

1		137-141, the Commission adopted the ALJ's recommendation to use I&E's DCF
2		methodology, which excluded Columbia's application of a leverage adjustment.
3		Finally, in the most recent case of Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, et. al
4		v. PECO Energy Company – Gas Division, at Docket R-2020-3018929 (Order Entered
5		June 22, 2021, Public Version), pp. 172-173, the Commission adopted the ALJ's
6		recommendation to use I&E's DCF methodology, which excluded PECO's application of
7		a leverage adjustment.
8		
9	Q.	BASED ON THE COMPANY'S FILED RATE BASE AND CLAIMED CAPITAL
10		STRUCTURE, WHAT IS THE VALUE OF AN ADDITIONAL 95 BASIS POINTS
11		FOR MR. MOUL'S LEVERAGE ADJUSTMENT TO THE COST OF EQUITY?
12	A.	The example below illustrates the impact of 95 additional basis points for the leverage
13		adjustment to the Company's cost of equity:

UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division			
Claimed Equity Percentage of Capital Structure	55.12%		
Additional Basis Points to Calculated Cost of Equity	95		
Claimed Rate Base*	\$3,169,023,000		
Impact Prior to Gross Up (0.5512 x 0.0095 x \$3,169,023,000)	\$16,594,272		
Gross Revenue Conversion Factor**	1.429864		
Total Impact (\$16,594,272 x 1.429864)	\$23,727,552		
*UGI Gas Exhibit A, Schedule A-1, ln. 9. **UGI Gas Exhibit A, Schedule A-1, ln. 24.			
In this example, an addition of 95 basis points for the leverage adjustment to the cost of equity would force ratepayers to fund an unwarranted additional amount of \$23,727,552 annually to cover the increase of the inflated rate of return along with the associated impact resulting from increases to income taxes, gross receipts tax, uncollectibles, and assessments.

- 6
- 7

8

Q. SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION REGARDING THE PROPOSED LEVERAGE ADJUSTMENT.

9 A. I recommend that Mr. Moul's proposed 95-basis point leverage adjustment be rejected
10 because true financial risk is a function of the amount of interest expense, and capital
11 structure information provided to investors through Value Line is that of book values, not
12 market values. This demonstrates that investors base their decisions on book value debt
13 and equity ratios for the regulated utilities; therefore, no adjustment is needed. Mr.
14 Moul's proposed adjustment serves only to manipulate the DCF's market-based

15 methodology and causes undue harm to ratepayers as illustrated above.

16

17 Q. DO YOU HAVE ANY FURTHER COMMENTS REGARDING MR. MOUL'S 18 DCF CALCULATION?

19 A. Yes. While I am not directly disputing Mr. Moul's adjusted dividend yields, it is

- 20 important to recognize that, as cited above, the Commission has recently agreed with
- 21 I&E's DCF methodology which includes the appropriate calculation of dividend yields.
- 22 Although it is acceptable to adjust historical dividend yields as Mr. Moul has done, it is
- 23 preferable to use forecasted dividends to calculate the dividend yields when available,
- such as the ones offered by Value Line that I have employed.

41

1	Q.	WHAT WOULD MR. MOUL'S DCF BE WITHOUT ANY ADJUSTMENTS?
2	A.	Without Mr. Moul's use of inflated growth rates and a leverage adjustment, his DCF
3		would consist of a dividend yield of 3.51% and an average growth rate of 6.30%, which
4		results in an 9.81% cost of equity. This result is slightly lower, yet comparable to my
5		DCF result of 9.92% and is much more reasonable than his originally calculated and
6		inappropriately inflated result of 11.21%.
7		
8		RISK-FREE RATE OF RETURN
9	Q.	HOW HAS MR. MOUL CALCULATED HIS RISK-FREE RATE FOR USE IN
10		HIS CAPM MODEL?
11	A.	Mr. Moul's calculation of his risk-free rate is similar to mine. He considered Treasury
12		yield estimates published by Blue Chip Financial Forecasts over the next six quarters,
13		from the time of his analysis, as well as long-range, five-year averages. However, he
14		used the 30-year Treasury Bond while I employed the 10-year Treasury Note. Also,
15		where I used a long-range, five-year average, future data point accounting for years 2023-
16		2027 predictions, Mr. Moul used two future data points accounting for not only years
17		2023-2027, but also included an estimate for years 2028-2032. His calculation resulted
18		in a 2.75% risk-free rate as opposed to the 2.35% I used. ⁵⁷
19		
20	Q.	WHAT COMMENTS DO YOU HAVE REGARDING MR. MOUL'S
21		CALCULATION OF THE RISK-FREE RATE?

22 A. First, I must reiterate my earlier statements that long-term Treasury Bonds have

⁵⁷ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 43, ln. 14 through p. 45, ln. 5 and UGI Gas Exhibit B, Schedule 13, p. 2.

1		substantial maturity risk associated with the market risk and the risk of unexpected
2		inflation and normally offer higher yields to compensate investors for these risks. Using
3		the 10-year Treasury Note is more appropriate to balance the short-term volatility risk
4		and the long-term inflation risk.
5		The Commission has recently recognized the 10-year Treasury Note as the
6		superior measure for the risk-free rate by stating the following: ⁵⁸
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17		We agree with I&E and the ALJs that using the yield on the 10-year Treasury Note provides a better measure of the risk-free rate of return than using the yield on the 30-year Treasury Bond, as recommended by UGI. In our view, using the 10-year Treasury Note balances the shortcomings of the short-term T-Bill and the 30-year Treasury Bond. Although long-term Treasury Bonds have less risk of being influenced by federal policies, they have substantial maturity risk associated with the market risk. In addition, long-term Treasury Bonds bear the risk of unexpected inflation.
1/		Additionally, the further out into the future one projects, the less rehable the
18		information becomes. Using the projection for 2028-2032 is an unreliable measure and
19		this should not be included in the risk-free rate. The Company's FPFTY ends September
20		30, 2023, and in my opinion using an estimated risk-free rate that is up to nine years
21		beyond the FPFTY is unreasonable and unnecessary.
22		
23		INFLATED BETAS USED IN CAPM ANALYSIS
24	Q.	HOW HAS MR. MOUL INFLATED THE BETAS EMPLOYED IN HIS CAPM
25		ANALYSIS?
26	A.	Mr. Moul has used the same logic for inflating his CAPM betas from 0.88 to 1.00 that he

⁵⁸ Pa. PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc. – Electric Division; Docket No. R-2017-2640058 (Order entered October 25, 2018), p. 99. (Disposition of Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM)).

1 2

22

used to enhance his DCF returns, through a financial risk or "leverage" adjustment.⁵⁹

3 **Q**. DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. MOUL'S USE OF ADJUSTED BETAS? 4 A. No. Such enhancements are unwarranted for beta in a CAPM analysis for the same 5 reasons that the "leverage" adjustment is unwarranted for DCF results. 6 Additionally, if the unadjusted *Value Line* betas do not reflect an accurate 7 investment risk as Mr. Moul contends, the question naturally arises as to why Value Line 8 does not publish betas that are adjusted for leverage. Until this type of adjustment is 9 demonstrated in the academic literature to be valid, such leverage adjusted betas in a 10 CAPM model should be rejected. 11 Finally, as described in my CAPM analysis above, a stock with a price movement 12 that is greater than the overall stock market will have a beta that is greater than one and 13 would be described as having more investment risk than the market. Due to being 14 regulated and the monopolistic nature of utilities, very rarely do they have a beta equal to 15 or greater than one. Therefore, in this case, to apply an adjusted beta of 1.00 to the entire 16 industry or gas proxy group is irrational. 17 18 SIZE ADJUSTMENT APPLIED TO CAPM ANALYSIS 19 0. PLEASE EXPLAIN MR. MOUL'S PROPOSED SIZE ADJUSTMENT. 20 Mr. Moul adds 102 basis points to his CAPM indicated cost of common equity because A. 21 he believes that as the size of a firm decreases, its risk and required return increases. Mr.

Moul relies upon technical literature including the Stocks, Bonds, Bills, and Inflation

⁵⁹ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 42, ln. 14 through p. 43, ln. 13.

1		Yearbook, a Fama and French study entitled "The Cross-Section of Expected Stock
2		Returns," and an article published in Public Utilities Fortnightly entitled "Equity and the
3		Small-Stock Effect."60
4		
5	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. MOUL'S SIZE ADJUSTMENT?
6	A.	No. Mr. Moul's proposed size adjustment is unnecessary because the technical literature
7		he cites supporting investment adjustments relating to the size of a company is not
8		specific to the utility industry, and therefore, has no relevance in this proceeding.
9		
10	Q.	IS THERE ACADEMIC EVIDENCE THAT SUPPORTS YOUR CONCLUSION
11		THAT THE SIZE ADJUSTMENT FOR RISK IS NOT APPLICABLE TO
12		UTILITY COMPANIES?
13	A.	Yes. In the article "Utility Stocks and the Size Effect: An Empirical Analysis," Dr.
14		Annie Wong concludes:
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22		The objective of this study is to examine if the size effect exists in the utility industry. After controlling for equity values, there is some weak evidence that firm size is a missing factor from the CAPM for the industrial but not for utility stocks. This implies that although the size phenomenon has been strongly documented for the industriales, the findings suggest that there is no need to adjust for the firm size in utility rate regulation. ⁶¹
23		UGI Gas presents no evidence to support application of a non-utility study regarding a
24		size adjustment for risk to a utility setting. Absent any credible article to refute Dr.
25		Wong's findings, Mr. Moul's size adjustment to his CAPM results should be rejected.

⁶⁰

UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 45, ln. 21 through p. 46 ln. 16. Dr. Annie Wong, "Utility Stocks and the Size Effect: An Empirical Analysis," *Journal of Midwest Finance* 61 Association 1993, pp. 95-101.

Further, the Commission has recently rejected the application of a size adjustment
 to the CAPM cost of equity calculation where it agreed that the same literature the
 Company cites is not specific to the utility industry.⁶²

4

5 Q. BASED ON THE COMPANY'S CLAIMED RATE BASE AND CAPITAL

6 STRUCTURE, WHAT IS THE VALUE OF AN ADDITIONAL 102 BASIS

7 POINTS FOR MR. MOUL'S SIZE ADJUSTMENT TO THE COST OF EQUITY?

- 8 A. The example below illustrates the impact of 102 additional basis points for the size
- 9 adjustment to the Company's cost of equity:

UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division	
Claimed Equity Percentage of Capital Structure	55 12%
enanie zymy i ereenage er eupiar subeare	
Additional Basis Points to Calculated Cost of Equity	102
Claimed Rate Base*	\$3,169,023,000
Impact Prior to Gross Up	\$17 817 008
$(0.5512 \times 0.0102 \times \$3,169,023,000)$	<i><i><i></i></i></i>
Gross Revenue Conversion Factor**	1.429864
Total Impact	\$25,475,898
(\$17,817,008 x 1.429864)	
*UGI Gas Exhibit A, Schedule A-1, In. 9.	
**UGI Gas Exhibit A, Schedule A-1, ln. 24.	

¹⁰

⁶² Pa. PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc. – Electric Division; Docket No. R-2017-2640058 (Order Entered October 25, 2018), p. 100 (Disposition of Cost of Common Equity).

Q. WHAT WOULD MR. MOUL'S CAPM RESULT BE USING YOUR
 CALCULATED 10-YEAR TREASURY NOTE FOR HIS RISK-FREE RATE AND
 WITHOUT HIS SIZE ADJUSTMENT AND INFLATED BETAS?
 A. Mr. Moul's CAPM result would be 11.13%. This is 242 basis points lower than his
 originally calculated 13.55% result. The calculation is repeated below without Mr.

6 Moul's unnecessary adjustments:

 $Rf + \beta x (Rm-Rf) + size = k$ 2.35% + 0.88 x 9.98% + 0% = 11.13%

8

7

9 <u>MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE</u>

10 Q. DISCUSS THE COMPANY'S CLAIMS SPECIFIC TO MANAGEMENT 11 PERFORMANCE.

A. Mr. Moul proposes that 20 basis points be added to the calculated cost of equity in
recognition of the Company's exemplary management performance. He refers to the
direct testimony of Company witness Christopher R. Brown (UGI Gas Statement No. 1)
to support the consideration of additional basis points for UGI Gas' management

16 performance.⁶³

17

18 Q. WHAT INFORMATION DOES MR. BROWN PROVIDE TO SUPPORT THE

19 COMPANY'S CLAIM OF EXEMPLARY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE?

20 A. Mr. Brown claims that UGI Gas' superior management performance has been

⁶³ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 6, ln. 20 through p. 7, ln. 11.

1		demonstrated in recent years through management efforts that include excellent customer
2		service, infrastructure improvements made in line with the Company's Long-Term
3		Infrastructure Improvement Plan, investments in safety and training, modernization of
4		information technology, environmental and social governance initiatives, community
5		engagement, and diversity and inclusion. ⁶⁴
6		
7	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIMS REGARDING
8		MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE?
9	A.	No. First, many of the topics presented by Mr. Brown fall within the categories of
10		reliability, customer satisfaction, and safety which are required of every public utility
11		company under 66 Pa C.S.A. §1501. Additionally, the Company passes capital
12		expenditures to its ratepayers via base rates, or it can utilize a DSIC for capital
13		expenditure recovery. Further, if the Company is effective at controlling operating and
14		maintenance costs, those savings should flow through to ratepayers and/or investors.
15		These savings would likely be offset by the addition of basis points for management
16		performance as ratepayers would have to fund the additional costs. This defeats the
17		purpose of any cost cutting measures to benefit ratepayers.
18		
19	Q.	BASED ON THE COMPANY'S FILED RATE BASE AND CLAIMED CAPITAL
20		STRUCTURE, WHAT IS THE VALUE OF AN ADDITIONAL 20 BASIS POINTS
21		FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE TO THE
22		COST OF EQUITY?
23	A.	The example below illustrates the impact of 20 additional basis points for the

 $^{^{64}}$ $\,$ UGI Gas Statement No. 1, p. 30, ln. 12 through p. 39, ln. 2.

UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division						
Claimed Equity Percentage of Capital Structure	55.12%					
Additional Basis Points to Calculated Cost of Equity	20					
Claimed Rate Base*	\$3,169,023,000					
Impact Prior to Gross Up (0.5512 x 0.0020 x \$3,169,023,000)	\$3,493,531					
Gross Revenue Conversion Factor**	1.429864					
Total Impact (\$3,493,531 x 1.429864)	\$4,995,274					
*UGI Gas Exhibit A, Schedule A-1, ln. 9. **UGI Gas Exhibit A, Schedule A-1, ln. 24.						
In this example, an addition of 20 basis points to the cost of e	quity in consideration of					
management performance would force ratepayers to fund an unwarranted additional						
amount of \$4,995,274 annually to cover the increase of the inflated rate of return along						
with the associated impact resulting from increases to income	taxes, gross receipts tax					
uncollectibles, and assessments.						

9 Q. WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION REGARDING THE CONSIDERATION

10 OF ADDITIONAL BASIS POINTS FOR THE COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT

PERFORMANCE?

A. Ultimately, as alluded to above, true strong management performance is earning a higher
return through efficient use of resources and cost cutting measures. The greater net

1		income resulting from cost savings and true efficiency in management and operations is							
2		available to be passed on to both ratepayers and shareholders. I do not believe that UGI							
3	Gas, or any utility should be gifted additional basis points for doing what they are								
4	required to do to provide adequate, efficient, safe, and reasonable service under 66 Pa								
5		C.S.A. §1501.							
6		For these reasons, I recommend that any addition of basis points to the cost of							
7		equity for management performance be disallowed.							
8									
9	OVE	RALL RATE OF RETURN RECOMMENDATION							
10	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S PROPOSED COST OF EQUITY AND OVERALL							
11		RATE OF RETURN?							
12	A.	The Company recommends a cost of equity of 11.20% and an overall rate of return of							
13		7.96%.							
14									
15	Q.	WHAT IS I&E'S RECOMMENDED COST OF EQUITY AND OVERALL RATE							
16		OF RETURN?							
17	A.	I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 1, shows the calculation of an appropriate cost of equity to							
18		be 9.92% with an overall rate of return for UGI Gas to be 7.26%.							
19									
20	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY FINAL COMMENTS REGARDING THE COMPANY'S							
21		PROPOSED RETURN ON EQUITY?							
22	А.	Yes. First, a report issued by Regulatory Research Associates, a group within S&P							

1	Global Market Intelligence, 65 illustrates that UGI Utilities Inc Gas Division's 11.20%
2	requested return on equity is a significant 99 basis points higher than the average return
3	on equity request of 10.21% of all pending gas utility rate cases as of March 10, 2022.
4	Second, when asked, Mr. Moul indicated he was unaware if any natural gas
5	distribution utilities throughout the United States were granted a Commission authorized
6	return of 11.20% or higher cost of common equity in the past two years. ⁶⁶
7	Third, the Company's requested return on common equity is 100 basis points
8	higher than the Commission's approved DSIC rate of 10.20% (Q3 2021 Quarterly
9	Earnings Summary Report) for gas distribution companies. The DSIC rate is designed to
10	encourage its use and to incentivize accelerated pipeline replacement and infrastructure
11	upgrades to bring the existing aging infrastructure closer to meeting safety and reliability
12	requirements in between base rate filings. Additionally, the DSIC rate establishes a
13	benchmark above which a utility company is considered "overearning." As such, the
14	DSIC rate does not serve as a proper measurement of a subject utility's cost of equity in a
15	rate case proceeding. To suggest the cost of equity must be at or above the DSIC rate in
16	this base rate proceeding is inappropriate and not in the public interest.
17	Finally, as detailed in the various charts above, the effect of Mr. Moul's
18	adjustments to the market-determined cost of common equity are an enormous burden to
19	ratepayers and are completely unwarranted and unnecessary. Although they are not
20	cumulative, the impact to ratepayers of each of the disputed adjustments is summarized

Regulatory Research Associates, "Major energy utility cases in progress in the US, Quarterly update on pending rate cases," *S&P Global Market Intelligence*, March 16, 2022. I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 11.

as follows:

1

2

3

Leverage Adjustment	\$23,727,552
Size Adjustment	\$25,475,898
Management Performance	\$4,995,274

4 Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

5 A. Yes.

ANTHONY D. SPADACCIO, CRRA

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE AND EDUCATION

EMPLOYMENT

Fixed Utility Financial Analyst 2014 – Present

PA Public Utility Commission Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement

Auditor 2012 - 2014 Public School Employee's Retirement System Bureau of Benefits Administration

Tax Technician 2010 – 2012 PA Department of Labor and Industry Unemployment Compensation Tax Services

Staff Accountant 2006 – 2009

Boyer & Ritter Certified Public Accountants

EDUCATION & TRAINING

EDUCATION/CERTIFICATIONS:

Society of Utility and Regulatory Financial Analysts (SURFA) – 2018 Certified Rate of Return Analyst (CRRA)

Indiana University of Pennsylvania, A.A. Accounting - 2006

The Pennsylvania State University, B.S. Labor and Industrial Relations - 2003

The Pennsylvania State University - The Smeal College of Business - 2003 Certificates of Completion: Business Management - 20 credits of instruction General Business - 20 credits of instruction

UTILITY SPECIFIC TRAINING/CONFERENCES:

NARUC Staff Subcommittee on Accounting & Finance, Fall 2021 webinar, October 5-7, 2021

NARUC Staff Subcommittee on Accounting & Finance, Spring 2021 webinar, April 6-8, 2021

SURFA Annual Financial Forum – New Orleans, LA – 2018

SURFA Annual Financial Forum - Indianapolis, IN - 2016

Western NARUC Utility Rate School – San Diego, CA - 2015

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Rate School – Harrisburg, PA – 2014

EXPERIENCE

I have submitted testimony or assisted in the following proceedings:

- Docket No. A-2021-3027268 Aqua PA Wastewater, Inc. Acquisition of the Wastewater System Assets of Willistown Township (§1329)*
- Docket No. R-2021-3026682 City of Lancaster Water Fund*
- Docket Nos. R-2021-3027385 & R-2021-3027386 Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. & Aqua Pennsylvania Wastewater, Inc.*
- Docket Nos. R-2021-3024773, R-2021-3024774 & R-2021-3024779 Pittsburgh Water & Sewer Authority*
- Docket No. R-2021-3024601 PECO Energy Company Electric Division*
- Docket No. R-2021-3023618 UGI Utilities, Inc. Electric Division*
- Docket No. R-2020-3022135 Pike County Light & Power Company (Electric)*
- Docket No. R-2020-3022135 Pike County Light & Power Company (Gas)*
- Docket No. R-2020-3020919 Audubon Water Company*
- Docket No. R-2020-3020256 City of Bethlehem Bureau of Water*
- Docket Nos. R-2020-3019369 & R-2020-3019371 Pennsylvania-American Water Company*
- Docket Nos. R-2020-3017951, R-2020-3017970 & P-2020-3019019 Pittsburgh Water & Sewer Authority*
- Docket No. R-2020-3017206 Philadelphia Gas Works*
- Docket No. R-2020-3017850 Peoples Natural Gas Company, LLC 1307(f)*
- Docket No. R-2020-3017846 Peoples Gas Company, LLC 1307(f)*
- Docket No. R-2019-3010955 City of Lancaster Sewer Fund*
- Docket No. R-2019-3008208 Wellsboro Electric Company*
- Docket No. R-2019-3008212 Citizens' Electric Company of Lewisburg, PA*
- Docket No. R-2019-3008948 Community Utilities of PA, Inc. Wastewater Division*
- Docket No. R-2019-3008947 Community Utilities of PA, Inc. Water Division*
- Docket No. A-2019-3006880 Pennsylvania-American Water Company Acquisition of the Water Treatment and Distribution System Assets of Steelton Borough Authority (§1329)*
- Docket No. R-2018-3006814 UGI Utilities, Inc. Gas Division*
- Docket Nos. M-2018-2640802 & 2640803 Pittsburgh Water & Sewer Authority (Compliance Plan)*
- Docket Nos. R-2018-3002645 & 3002647 Pittsburgh Water & Sewer Authority*
- Docket Nos. A-2018-3003517 & 3003519 SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. Acquisition of the Water and Wastewater Assets of Mahoning Township (§1329)*
- Docket No. R-2018-3000124 Duquesne Light Company*
- Docket No. R-2018-3000164 PECO Energy Company Electric Division*
- Docket No. R-2018-2645296 Peoples Gas Company LLC 1307(f)*

- Docket No. R-2018-3000236 Peoples Natural Gas Equitable Division 1307(f)*
- Docket No. R-2018-2645278 Peoples Natural Gas Company, LLC 1307(f)*
- Docket No. R-2017-2640058 UGI Utilities, Inc. Electric Division*
- Docket No. R-2017-2595853 Pennsylvania-American Water Company*
- Docket No. A-2017-2606103 Pennsylvania-American Water Company Acquisition of Assets of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport (§1329)*
- Docket No. A-2016-2580061 Aqua PA Wastewater, Inc. Acquisition of the Wastewater System Assets of New Garden Township and the New Garden Township Sewer Authority (§1329)
- Docket No. R-2016-2531551 Wellsboro Electric Company*
- Docket No. R-2016-2531550 Citizens' Electric Company of Lewisburg, PA*
- Docket No. R-2016-2542923 PNG, LLC Equitable Division (Rate MLX)*
- Docket No. R-2016-2542918 Peoples Natural Gas Company, LLC (Rate MLX)*
- Docket No. P-2016-2543140 Duquesne Light Company (DSP VIII)*
- Docket No. R-2016-2529660 Columbia Gas of PA, Inc.*
- Docket No. R-2016-2538660 Community Utilities of PA, Inc.
- Docket No. P-2016-2521993 Columbia Gas of PA, Inc. (DSIC)*
- Docket No. R-2015-2506337 Twin Lakes Utilities, Inc.
- Docket No. R-2015-2479955 Allied Utility Services, Inc.
- Docket No. R-2015-2479962 Corner Water Supply & Service Corp.
- Docket No. R-2015-2470184 Borough of Schuylkill Haven Water Dept.
- Docket No. R-2014-2452705 Delaware Sewer Company*
- Docket No. R-2014-2430945 Plumer Water Company
- Docket No. R-2014-2427189 B.E. Rhodes Sewer Company
- Docket No. R-2014-2427035 Venango Water Company
- Docket No. R-2014-2428745 Metropolitan Edison Company
- Docket No. R-2014-2428744 Pennsylvania Power Company
- Docket No. R-2014-2428743 Pennsylvania Electric Company
- Docket No. R-2014-2428742 West Penn Power Company

*Testimony Submitted

I&E Exhibit No. 2 Witness: Anthony Spadaccio

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Exhibit to Accompany

the

Direct Testimony

of

Anthony Spadaccio, CRRA

Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement

Concerning:

Rate of Return

I&E Summary of Cost of Capital								
Type of Capital	Ratio	Cost Rate	Weighted Cost					
	JGI Utilities, Inc	Gas Division						
Long-Term Debt	44.88%	3.98%	1.79%					
Common Equity	55.12%	9.92%	5.47%					
Total	100.00%	-	7.26%					

I&E Exhibit No. 2 Schedule 2

Proxy Group Capital Structure

	2020	2019	1	2018		2017		2016		Average
Atmos Energy Corp.	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •									
Long-term Debt	\$ 4,732.850 41.07%	\$ 3,529.452	36.22%	\$ 2,493.665	31.81%	\$ 3,067.045	41.37%	\$ 2,188.779	33.77%	36.85%
Short-term Debt	- 0.00%	464.915	4.77%	575.780	7.34%	447.745	6.04%	829.811	12.80%	6.19%
Common Equity	6,791.203 58.93%	5,750.223	59.01%	4,769.950	60.85%	3,898.666	52.59%	3,463.059	53.43%	56.96%
	11,524.053 100.00%	9,744.590	100.00%	7,839.395	100.00%	7,413.456	100.00%	6,481.649	100.00%	100.00%
Chesapeake Utilities										
Long-term Debt	518.371 37.26%	450.064	35.75%	316.020	27.99%	197.395	21.12%	136.954	17.27%	27.88%
Short-term Debt	175.644 12.63%	247.371	19.65%	294.458	26.08%	250.969	26.85%	209.871	26.47%	22.34%
Common Equity	697.085 50.11%	561.577	44.60%	518.439	45.92%	486.294	52.03%	446.086	56.26%	49.79%
	1,391.100 100.00%	1,259.012	100.00%	1,128.917	100.00%	934.658	100.00%	792.911	100.00%	100.00%
NiSource Inc.										
Long-term Debt	9,249.700 63.25%	7,907.800	53.48%	7,105.400	50.92%	7,512.200	57.62%	6,058.200	52.15%	55.48%
Short-term Debt	503.000 3.44%	1,773.200	11.99%	1,977.200	14.17%	1,205.700	9.25%	1,488.000	12.81%	10.33%
Common Equity	4,872.200 33.31%	5,106.700	34.53%	4,870.900	34.91%	4,320.100	33.13%	4,071.200	35.04%	34.19%
	14,624.900 100.00%	14,787.700	100.00%	13,953.500	100.00%	13,038.000	100.00%	11,617.400	100.00%	100.00%
Northwest Natural Gas Co.										
Long-term Debt	940.702 44.08%	806.796	44.28%	706.247	41.88%	683.184	46.16%	679.334	42.91%	43.86%
Short-term Debt	304.525 14.27%	149.100	8.18%	217.620	12.90%	54.200	3.66%	53.300	3.37%	8.48%
Common Equity	888.730 41.65%	865.999	47.53%	762.634	45.22%	742.776	50.18%	850.497	53.72%	47.66%
	2,133.957 100.00%	1,821.895	100.00%	1,686.501	100.00%	1,480.160	100.00%	1,583.131	100.00%	100.00%
One Gas Inc.										
Long-term Debt	1,613.228 37.83%	1,314.064	33.18%	1,285.483	35.44%	1,193.257	33.99%	1,192.446	36.97%	35.48%
Short-term Debt	418.225 9.81%	516.500	13.04%	299.500	8.26%	357.215	10.18%	145.000	4.50%	9.16%
Common Equity	2,233.311 52.37%	2,129.390	53.77%	2,042.656	56.31%	1,960.209	55.84%	1,888.280	58.54%	55.36%
	4,264.764 100.00%	3,959.954	100.00%	3,627.639	100.00%	3,510.681	100.00%	3,225.726	100.00%	100.00%
South Jersey Industries Inc.										
Long-term Debt	2,777.698 55.17%	2,070.767	47.68%	2,106.863	57.81%	1,122.999	42.19%	808.005	33.76%	47.32%
Short-term Debt	596.400 11.85%	848.700	19.54%	270.500	7.42%	346.400	13.01%	296.100	12.37%	12.84%
Common Equity	1,660.881 32.99%	1,423.785	32.78%	1,267.022	34.77%	1,192.409	44.80%	1,289.240	53.87%	39.84%
	5,034.979 100.00%	4,343.252	100.00%	3,644.385	100.00%	2,661.808	100.00%	2,393.345	100.00%	100.00%
Spire Inc.										
Long-term Debt	2,482.100 45.88%	2,082.600	40.62%	1,900.100	40.35%	1,995.000	44.69%	1,833.700	45.84%	43.48%
Short-term Debt	648.000 11.98%	743.200	14.50%	553.600	11.76%	477.300	10.69%	398.700	9.97%	11.78%
Common Equity	2,280.300 42.15%	2,301.000	44.88%	2,255.400	47.89%	1,991.300	44.61%	1,768.200	44.20%	44.75%
	5,410.400 100.00%	5,126.800	100.00%	4,709.100	100.00%	4,463.600	100.00%	4,000.600	100.00%	100.00%
Five-Year Average Capital Structure	44 400/	Maximum	EE 400/	Minimum	27 000/					
Cong-term Debt	41.48%	waximum	35.48%	winimum	21.88%					
	11.09%	Minimum	3/ 10%	Maximum	56 96%					
Common Equity	100.00%	Mininum	34.13/0	Maximum	30.30 %					
	100.00 /0									

Source: Compustat (S&P Global Market Intelligence - Data Management Solutions) Yearly data updates typically provided late April of each year (data in millions)

				I&E Ex Sched	hibit No. 2 ule 3
			20	20	
Company	Intere	st Charges	Long	J-Term Debt	Debt Cost
Atmos Energy Corp.	\$	92.91	\$	4,732.85	1.96%
Chesapeake Utilities		21.50		518.37	4.15%
NiSource Inc.		377.70		9,249.70	4.08%
Northwest Natural Gas Co.		43.05		940.70	4.58%
One Gas Inc.		66.71		1,613.23	4.13%
South Jersey Industries Inc.		125.63		2,777.70	4.52%
Spire Inc.		111.30		2,482.10	4.48%
	R	ange:		Low High	1.96% 4.58%
				Average	3.99%

Source:

Compustat (S&P Global Market Intelligence - Data Management Solutions) Yearly data updates typically provided late April of each year (data in millions)

Dividend Yields of the Proxy Group							
Company	Atmos Energy Corp.	Chesapeake Utilities	NiSource Inc.	Northwest Natural Gas Co.	One Gas Inc.	South Jersey Industries Inc.	Spire Inc.
Symbol	ATO	CPK	NI	NWN	OGS	SJI	SR
Div	2.92	2.16	0.98	1.94	2.64	1.28	2.86
52-wk low	85.80	105.30	21.11	43.07	62.52	20.75	59.60
52-wk high	110.68	146.30	30.19	56.75	83.88	34.05	77.95
Spot Price	109.81	132.95	28.93	52.01	83.09	33.93	67.11
Spot Div Yield	2.66%	1.62%	3.39%	3.73%	3.18%	3.77%	4.26%
52-wk Div Yield	2.97%	1.72%	3.82%	3.89%	3.61%	4.67%	4.16%
Average	2.82%	1.67%	3.60%	3.81%	3.39%	4.22%	4.21%

	Average
Spot Div Yield	3.23%
52-wk Div Yield	3.55%
Average	3.39%

Barrons Value Line

Source:

3/1/2022 & 2/25/2022 02/25/22

0	Question	Yahoo!	Zacks	Morningstar	Value Line	Average
Company	Symbol			Source		
Atmos Energy Corp.	ATO	7.20%	7.30%	7.30%	7.50%	7.33%
Chesapeake Utilities	CPK	4.74%	NA	8.20%	8.00%	6.98%
NiSource Inc.	NI	3.52%	6.70%	6.70%	10.50%	6.86%
Northwest Natural Gas Co.	NWN	5.70%	5.10%	6.40%	6.00%	5.80%
One Gas Inc.	OGS	2.90%	5.00%	NA	6.00%	4.63%
South Jersey Industries Inc.	SJI	5.20%	5.20%	NA	10.00%	6.80%
Spire Inc.	SR	7.31%	5.30%	7.60%	9.00%	7.30%

Five-Year Growth Estimate Forecast for Proxy Group (Actual)

Average

6.53%

Sources date:

2/11/2022 & 2/25/2022

Expected Market Cost Rate of Equity for the Proxy Group

5-Year Forecasted Growth Rates

	Time Period	Adjusted Dividend Yield	Growth Rate	Expected Return on Equity
		(1)	(2)	(3=1+2)
(1)	52-Week Average Ending: 3/1/2022 & 2/25/2022	3.55%	6.53%	10.08%
(2)	Spot Price Ending: 3/1/2022 & 2/25/2022	3.23%	6.53%	9.76%
(3)	Average:	3.39%	6.53%	9.92%

Sources: Value Line 02/25/22 Barrons 3/1/2022 & 2/25/2022

<u>Company</u>	<u>Beta</u>
Atmos Energy Corp	0.80
	0.00
Chesapeake Utilities	0.80
NiSource Inc.	0.85
Northwest Natural Gas Co.	0.80
One Gas Inc.	0.80
South Jersey Industries Inc.	1.00
Spire Inc.	0.85
Average beta for CAPM	0.84

Source: Value Line

02/25/22

Risk-Free Rate <u>Treasury note 10-yr Note</u>	Yield
2Q 2022	2.00
3Q 2022	2.10
4Q 2022	2.20
1Q 2023	2.40
2Q 2023	2.50
2023-2027	2.90
Average	2.35

Source:

Blue Chip 12/1/2021 & 2/2/2022

Required Rate of Return on Market as a Whole Forecasted

	Dividend <u>Yield</u>	+	Growth <u>Rate</u>	=	Expected Market <u>Return</u>
Value Line Estimate	1.90%		10.67%	(a)	12.57%
S&P 500	1.51%	(b)	13.90%		15.41%
Average Expected Market Return				=	13.99%

(a) ((1+50%)^.25) -1) Value Line forecast for the 3 to 5 year index appreciation is 50% (b) S&P 500 dividend yield multiplied by half the S&P 500 growth rate

(b) $1.41\%^*((1+13.90\%/2)) = 1.51\%$

Sources:

S&P 500 Growth Rate Morningstar	2/11/2022	13.90%
S&P 500 Dividend Yield Barron's	2/25/2022	1.41%
Value Line Dividend Yield	2/25/2022	1.90%
Value Line Appreciation Potential	2/25/2022	50.00%

CAPM with Forecasted Return

- Re Required return on individual equity security
- Rf Risk-free rate
 - **Rm** Required return on the market as a whole
 - Be Beta on individual equity security

Re =	Rf+Be(Rm-Rf)
------	--------------

Rf =	2.35
Rm =	13.99
Be =	0.84
Re =	12.13

Sources:	Value Line	02/25/22
	Blue Chip	12/1/2021 & 2/2/2022

<u>I&E-RR-10-D</u>

Request:

Reference UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 50, lines 11-16:

- A. State whether Mr. Moul is aware of any natural gas distribution utilities throughout the United States that have been granted a Commission authorized 11.20% or higher cost of common equity in the past two years.
- B. If the answer to I&E-RR-10-D Part A is yes, state which company/companies have been authorized such cost of common equity and in what jurisdiction.

Response:

- A. Mr. Moul has not researched this issue.
- B. See the response to (A) above.

Prepared by or under the supervision of: Paul R. Moul

I&E Statement No. 3 Witness: Brian J. LaTorre

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Direct Testimony

of

Brian J. LaTorre

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ADJUSTMENTS	2
RATE CASE EXPENSE	3
UNRECOVERED ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION EXPENSE	7
OSHA/EMERGENCY TEMPORARY STANDARD (ETS) COMPLIANCE COSTS 1	3

1 INTRODUCTION

2	Q.	PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, OCCUPATION, AND BUSINESS
3		ADDRESS.
4	A.	My name is Brian LaTorre. I am a Fixed Utility Financial Analyst in the
5		Technical Division of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission's (Commission
6		or PUC) Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement (I&E). My business address is
7		Commonwealth Keystone Building, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120.
8		
9	Q.	PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR EDUCATION AND PROFESSIONAL
10		BACKGROUND.
11	A.	My education and professional background are set forth in Appendix A, which is
12		attached.
13		
14	Q.	DESCRIBE THE ROLE OF I&E IN RATE PROCEEDINGS.
15	А.	I&E is responsible for protecting the public interest in rate proceedings. I&E's
16		analysis in this proceeding is based on its responsibility to represent the public
17		interest. This responsibility requires balancing the interests of ratepayers, the
18		regulated utility, and the regulated community as a whole.
19		
20	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?
21	A.	The purpose of my testimony is to review the base rate filing of UGI Utilities, Inc.
22		- Gas Division (UGI Gas or Company) and make recommended adjustments to

1		the Company's proposed operating and maintenance (O&M) expense claims for	
2		the fully projected future test year (FPFTY) ending September 30, 2023.	
3			
4	Q.	DOES YOUR TESTIMONY INCLUDE AN EXHIBIT?	
5	A.	Yes. I&E Exhibit No. 3 contains schedules that support my direct testimony.	
6			
7	SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ADJUSTMENTS		
8	Q.	PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDED ADJUSTMENTS AS	
0			
9		EXPLAINED IN THIS DIRECT TESTIMONY.	
10	A.	EXPLAINED IN THIS DIRECT TESTIMONY. The following table summarized my recommended adjustments to the O&M	
9 10 11	A.	EXPLAINED IN THIS DIRECT TESTIMONY. The following table summarized my recommended adjustments to the O&M expense claims under my purview. These recommended adjustments are reflected	
10 11 12	A.	EXPLAINED IN THIS DIRECT TESTIMONY. The following table summarized my recommended adjustments to the O&M expense claims under my purview. These recommended adjustments are reflected in the overall I&E recommended revenue requirement presented by I&E witness	
10 11 12 13	A.	EXPLAINED IN THIS DIRECT TESTIMONY. The following table summarized my recommended adjustments to the O&M expense claims under my purview. These recommended adjustments are reflected in the overall I&E recommended revenue requirement presented by I&E witness Zachari Walker ¹ in this proceeding.	

	Company <u>Claim</u>	Recommended <u>Allowance</u>	I&E <u>Adjustment</u>
O&M Expenses:			
Rate Case Expense	\$1,055,000	\$633,000	(\$422,000)
2020 and 2021 Environmental	\$2,327,000	\$465,400	(\$1,861,600)
Remediation Expense			
OSHA/Emergency Temporary Standard	\$1,883,000	\$31,760	<u>(\$1,851,240)</u>
Compliance Costs			
Total O&M Expense Adjustments			(\$4,134,840)

14

¹ I&E Statement No. 1.

1 <u>RATE CASE EXPENSE</u>

2 Q. **DESCRIBE THE NATURE AND TYPES OF EXPENDITURES** 3 **TYPICALLY ALLOWED AS PART OF A REGULATED UTILITY'S** 4 **OVERALL RATE CASE EXPENSE.** 5 A. The nature and types of individual expenditures that comprise a utility's allowable 6 claim for rate case expense are those directly incurred to compile, present, and 7 defend a utility's request for a rate base increase before the Commission. The 8 actual expenditures and estimated costs typically found in an allowable rate case 9 expense claim include legal fees for outside counsel, fees to outside consultants, 10 and the cost of printing, document assembly, and postage. 11 12 HOW HAS THE COMMISSION TRADITIONALLY TREATED RATE **Q**. 13 CASE EXPENSE FOR RATEMAKING PURPOSES? The Commission has historically stated that it considers prudently incurred rate 14 A. 15 case expense as an ongoing expense, occurring at irregular intervals, related to the 16 rendering of utility service. Thus, it is necessary to normalize rate case expense 17 for ratemaking purposes. The Commission has also cited the importance of 18 considering the involved utility's history regarding the frequency of rate case 19 filings as an essential element in determining the normalized level of rate case 20 expense for ratemaking purposes.

3

1	Q.	HOW IS THE FREQUENCY OF RATE CASE FILINGS DETERMINED?
2	A.	The frequency is determined by calculating the average number of months
3		between the filing dates of a utility's previous base rate cases.
4		
5	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR RATE CASE EXPENSE?
6	A.	The Company's FPFTY claim for rate case expense is \$1,055,000. ²
7		
8	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
9	A.	The Company has estimated a total rate case expense of \$1,055,000 and is
10		requesting a normalization period of one year (12 months). In his testimony, UGI
11		Gas witness Christopher R. Brown indicated the Company expects to file its next
12		rate case approximately one year following the filing of this base rate case. ³
13		
14	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
15	A.	No.
16		
17	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR RATE CASE EXPENSE?
18	A.	I recommend the Company's rate case expense be normalized over a 20-month
19		period resulting in an annual allowance of $633,000$ [($1,055,000 \div 20$ months) x
20		12] or a reduction of \$422,000 (\$1,055,000 - \$633,000) to the Company's annual
21		rate case expense claim.

UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-10. UGI Gas Statement No. 1, pp. 9-10. 3

1 **Q.**

WHAT IS THE BASIS OF YOUR RECOMMENDATION?

A. The Company's requested normalization period of one year for rate case expense
is not supported by the historic filing frequency of the Company. In response to
I&E-RE-46,⁴ the Company provided the following information about its last three
historic base rate cases:

Docket No.	Filing Date	Filing Interval - Months
R-2021-3030218	1/28/2022	24
R-2019-3015162	1/28/2020	12
R-2018-3006814	1/28/2019	24
R-2016-2580030	1/19/2017	

6

7 The Company filed its three most recent rate cases on January 19, 2017; 8 January 28, 2019; and January 28, 2020. Including the current rate case, which 9 was filed on January 28, 2022, the average filing frequency is 20 months [(24 10 months + 12 months + 24 months) $\div 3$]. The recommended 20-month 11 normalization period is consistent with the Commission's emphasis on the 12 importance of considering the utility's history of rate case filings when 13 determining the normalization period of rate case expenses. A one-year 14 normalization period should be disallowed as it would result in an unreasonable increase in customer rates. 15

⁴ I&E Exhibit No. 3, Schedule 1.

Q. ARE THERE ANY COMMISSION DECISIONS THAT SUPPORT YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR A RATE CASE FILING INTERVAL BASED ON HISTORIC FILING FREQUENCY?

- A. Yes. In a base rate case filed by Emporium Water Company, the Commission
 adopted the I&E-recommended historic filing frequency finding in favor of I&E's
 recommended five-year normalization period based on historic average filing
 frequency that was rounded down from 64 months.⁵
- 8 Similarly, the Commission agreed with I&E's recommendation in the City
- 9 of DuBois base rate case to use a historic filing frequency finding in favor of
- 10 I&E's recommended 64-month normalization period, matching the actual historic
- 11 filing frequency.⁶

12 Likewise, in the 2020 Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc. base rate

- 13 proceeding, the Commission confirmed the normalization period should align with
- 14 the historic data rather than the Company's intent to file its next rate case.⁷
- 15 Finally, and most recently, the Commission determined that a
- 16 normalization period based on actual historic filing frequency is more reliable than
- 17 future speculation in the 2020 PECO Energy Company Gas Division (PECO
- 18 Gas) rate case. In the PECO Gas case, the Commission accepted I&E's

⁵ *PA PUC v. Emporium Water Company,* Docket No. R-2014-2402324, pp. 47-50 (Order Entered January 28, 2015).

⁶ PA PUC v. City of DuBois – Bureau of Water, Docket No. R-2016-2554150, pp. 65-66 (Order Entered March 28, 2017); PA PUC v. City of DuBois – Bureau of Water, Docket No. R-2016-2554150, p. 13 (Order Entered May 18, 2017).

⁷ PA PUC v. Columbia Gas, Docket No. R-2020-3018835, Opinion and Order, pp. 78-79 (Order Entered February 19, 2021).

- recommended five-year normalization period in contrast to a claim based on a
 three-year period.⁸
- 3

4 UNRECOVERED ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION EXPENSE

5 Q. WHAT ARE THE ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION COSTS

6 ASSOCIATED WITH MANUFACTURED GAS PLANTS (MGPs)?

- 7 A. Environmental remediation costs are those costs attributed to the site
- 8 investigations, remediation, restoration of MGPs, and Pennsylvania Department of
- 9 Environmental Protection oversight costs. There may also be costs incurred to
- 10 obtain an environmental covenant at the site to prevent certain uses of the site and
- 11 miscellaneous costs associated with transferring the site to a third party once the
- 12 site has been restored.⁹ Briefly, remediation costs are expenses for investigation,
- 13 assessment, site characterization, and clean-up of MGPs.
- 14

15 Q. BRIEFLY SUMMARIZE THE COMPONENTS OF THE COMPANY'S

16 ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION EXPENSE CLAIM.

- 17 A. The Company is claiming a current ongoing cash expenditure based on a three-
- 18
- year historic average,¹⁰ it is making a claim for the unrecovered MGP expenses for

PA PUC v. PECO Energy Company – Gas Division, Docket No. R-2020-3018929, Opinion and Order, pp. 117-119 (Non-Proprietary Order Entered June 22, 2021).

⁹ UGI Gas Statement No. 9, pp. 24-25.

¹⁰ UGI Gas Statement No. 3, p. 17 and UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-8, Environmental Adjustment #1.
1		the Fiscal Year 2019 and prior periods, ¹¹ and it is making a claim for under-
2		recovery of environmental expenditures for 2020 and 2021. ¹²
3		
4	Q.	WHAT IS UNRECOVERED ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION
5		EXPENSE?
6	А.	This expense represents the Company's amortization of unrecovered
7		environmental remediation costs for MGPs that exceed the annual allowance for
8		the expense amount approved in the prior base rate cases.
9		
10	Q.	WHICH UNRECOVERED ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION
11		EXPENSE CLAIM ARE YOU ADDRESSING HEREIN?
12	A.	I am addressing the proposed amortization of: (1) unrecovered 2019 and prior
13		years' environmental remediation expenses; and (2) unrecovered 2020/2021
14		environmental remediation expenses.

¹¹ UGI Gas Statement No. 3, p. 18 and UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-8, Environmental Adjustment #2.

¹² UGI Gas Statement No. 3, p. 18 and UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-8, Environmental Adjustment #3.

1		Unrecovered 2019 and Prior Years' Environmental Remediation Expense
2	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR THE AMORTIZATION OF
3		2019 AND PRIOR YEARS' UNRECOVERED ENVIRONMENTAL
4		REMEDIATION EXPENSE?
5	A.	The Company is claiming \$1,865,000 for the FPFTY. ¹³
6		
7	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS OF THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
8	A.	UGI Gas witness Vivian K. Ressler has indicated that in the 2020 rate case, the
9		Company was authorized to amortize \$8.103 million of under-recovered expense
10		over five years, resulting in \$1.621 million per year for fiscal years prior to
11		September 2018, and it was authorized \$1.219 million over five years, or \$0.24
12		million per year for Fiscal Year 2019. Thus, she asserts that the annual amount is
13		\$1.865 million per year until the total is fully amortized. ¹⁴
14		
15	Q.	DO YOU ACCEPT THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR THE 2019 AND
16		PRIOR YEARS' UNRECOVERED ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION
17		EXPENSE AMORTIZATION?
18	A.	Yes. However, I recommend the Company be required to provide a full line-by-
19		line account of the yearly amortizations in the next base rate proceeding because,
20		based on the explanation provided below, by the time the Company files its next
21		rate case and new rates go into effect in that subsequent proceeding I anticipate

14 UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-8, Environmental Adjustment #2. UGI Gas Statement No. 3, p. 18.

1		that the amounts prior to Fiscal Year 2019 will be fully extinguished and there will
2		be no remaining balance left to recover.
3		
4	Q.	IN WHAT YEAR SHOULD THE AMORTIZATIONS HAVE BEGUN?
5	A.	According to the Commission Orders as cited below, the Company should have
6		begun the amortization on October 1, 2019 for periods prior to September 2019
7		(for the \$1.621 million), and January 1, 2021 for the \$0.244 million per year that
8		applies to the Fiscal Year 2019.
9		
10	Q.	WHEN WOULD THOSE AMOUNTS BE FULLY EXTINGUISHED?
11	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows:
11 12	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: For Periods Prior to September 2019: ¹⁵
11 12 13	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: <u>For Periods Prior to September 2019</u> : ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million
11 12 13 14	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: <u>For Periods Prior to September 2019</u> : ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million
11 12 13 14 15	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: <u>For Periods Prior to September 2019</u> : ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million
11 12 13 14 15 16	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: <u>For Periods Prior to September 2019</u> : ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million 2022 \$1.621 million
11 12 13 14 15 16 17	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: <u>For Periods Prior to September 2019</u> : ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million 2022 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: <u>For Periods Prior to September 2019</u> : ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million 2022 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million (After FPFTY 2023, fully extinguished)
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: <u>For Periods Prior to September 2019</u> : ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million 2022 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million (After FPFTY 2023, fully extinguished)
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Α.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: <u>For Periods Prior to September 2019</u> : ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million 2022 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million (After FPFTY 2023, fully extinguished) <u>For Fiscal Year 2019</u> : ¹⁶
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: For Periods Prior to September 2019: ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million 2022 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million (After FPFTY 2023, fully extinguished) <u>For Fiscal Year 2019</u> : ¹⁶ 2021 \$0.244 million x 75% (for JanSep.) or \$0.183 million
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Α.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: For Periods Prior to September 2019: ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million 2022 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million (After FPFTY 2023, fully extinguished) For Fiscal Year 2019: ¹⁶ 2021 \$0.244 million x 75% (for JanSep.) or \$0.183 million 2022 \$0.244 million
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: <u>For Periods Prior to September 2019</u> : ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million 2022 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million (After FPFTY 2023, fully extinguished) <u>For Fiscal Year 2019</u> : ¹⁶ 2021 \$0.244 million x 75% (for JanSep.) or \$0.183 million 2022 \$0.244 million
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: For Periods Prior to September 2019: ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million 2022 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million (After FPFTY 2023, fully extinguished) <u>For Fiscal Year 2019</u> : ¹⁶ 2021 \$0.244 million x 75% (for JanSep.) or \$0.183 million 2023 \$0.244 million 2023 \$0.244 million
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: For Periods Prior to September 2019: ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million 2022 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million 2021 \$0.244 million x 75% (for JanSep.) or \$0.183 million 2022 \$0.244 million 2023 \$0.244 million 2023 \$0.244 million 2024 \$0.244 million
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 	A.	Based on the following table, the amounts would be fully extinguished as follows: For Periods Prior to September 2019: ¹⁵ 2019 \$1.621 million 2020 \$1.621 million 2021 \$1.621 million 2022 \$1.621 million 2023 \$1.621 million (After FPFTY 2023, fully extinguished) For Fiscal Year 2019: ¹⁶ 2021 \$0.244 million x 75% (for JanSep.) or \$0.183 million 2022 \$0.244 million 2023 \$0.244 million 2023 \$0.244 million 2024 \$0.244 million 2025 \$0.244 million 2026 \$0.244 million

¹⁵ PA PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc – Gas Division Docket No. R-2018-3006814, Order Entered September 19, 2019; Paragraph 64

PA PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc – Gas Division Docket No. R-2019-3015162, Order Entered October 8, 2020;
 Paragraph 33

1		Unrecovered 2020/2021 Environmental Remediation Expense
2	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR AMORTIZATION OF 2020
3		AND 2021 UNRECOVERED ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION
4		EXPENSE?
5	А.	The Company is claiming amortization of unrecovered 2020 and 2021
6		environmental remediation expense of \$2,327,000 over a period of one year. ¹⁷
7		
8	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
9	А.	The Company's claim is based on amortization of the total 2020 and 2021
10		unrecovered expense related to environmental remediation costs of \$2,327,000
11		over one year, which is also the FPFTY claim. ¹⁸
12		
13	Q.	UPON WHAT DID THE COMPANY BASE ITS PROPOSED ONE-YEAR
14		AMORTIZATION?
15	A.	The Company's claimed one-year amortization for unrecovered 2020/2021
16		environmental remediation expense is in line with its claimed one-year
17		normalization period for rate case expense. ¹⁹

UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-8, Environmental Adjustment #3. UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-8, line 13-17. UGI Gas Statement No. 3, p. 18 and UGI Gas Statement No. 1, pp. 9-10.

1	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR THE
2		AMORTIZATION OF 2020 AND 2021 UNRECOVERED
3		ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION EXPENSE?
4	А.	No.
5		
6	Q.	WHAT DO YOU RECOMMEND FOR THE AMORTIZATION OF
7		UNRECOVERED 2020 AND 2021 ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION
8		EXPENSE?
9	А.	I recommend an allowance of \$465,400 for unrecovered 2020 and 2021
10		environmental remediation expense or a reduction of \$1,861,600 (\$2,327,000 -
11		\$465,400) to the Company's claim.
12		
13	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
14	А.	My recommended allowance for the amortization of 2020 and 2021 environmental
15		remediation expense is based on an amortization period of five years to remain
16		consistent with the amortization period of five years for unrecovered
17		environmental remediation expense from the Opinion and Order in the prior
18		case. ²⁰ Accordingly, I calculated the FPFTY amortization or the unrecovered
19		expense by applying the amortization period of five years, which produced my
20		recommended allowance of \$465,400 ($$2,327,000 \div 5$ years).

PA PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc – Gas Division Docket No. R-2019-3015162, Order Entered October 8, 2020; Paragraph 33.

1		This amortization would begin in the FPFTY 2023 and be fully amortized
2		by Fiscal Year 2027.
3		
4	<u>OSH</u>	IA/EMERGENCY TEMPORARY STANDARD (ETS) COMPLIANCE COSTS
5	Q.	WHAT ARE OSHA/ETS COMPLIANCE COSTS?
6	А.	OSHA/ETS compliance costs are costs associated with President Biden's COVID-
7		19 Action Plan and the U.S. Department of Labor's OSHA ETS requirements
8		relating to vaccination and testing mandates. These costs include vaccination
9		status tracking, performing required COVID-19 tests, legal assistance, and policy
10		drafting and communication to affected employees and contractors. ²¹
11		
12	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR OSHA/ETS COMPLIANCE
13		COSTS?
14	А.	In its filing, the Company claims a total budget of \$1,883,000 as an adjustment to
15		operating expenses in the FPFTY. These costs include \$1,692,000 for the tracking
16		of COVID-19 Vaccination Status and performing required testing, and \$191,000
17		in one-time costs for communication and legal costs. ²²
18		
19	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPANY'S PROPOSED OSHA/ETS
20		COMPLIANCE COSTS?
21	A.	The Company proposes amortizing these COVID-19 related costs over a one-year

²¹

UGI Gas Statement No. 3, pp. 24-26. UGI Gas Statement No. 3, p. 25 and UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-13. 22

1		period in line with its claimed rate case filing interval. ²³ On November 5, 2021,
2		OSHA issued the vaccination and testing ETS for businesses that have over 100
3		employees. Company witness Ressler acknowledges that there is uncertainty
4		concerning the federal mandates due to a recent decision by the U.S. Supreme
5		Court but asserted that "it is appropriate to include a cost associated with
6		vaccination and testing mandates in its revenue requirement to ensure future cost
7		recovery in the event such mandates or similar mandates become law."24
8		
9	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR OSHA/ETS
10		COMPLIANCE COSTS?
11	А.	No.
12		
13	Q.	WHAT DO YOU RECOMMEND FOR OSHA/ETS COMPLIANCE
14		COSTS?
15	А.	I recommend an allowance of \$31,760 for amortization of deferred COVID-19
16		related OSHA/ETS compliance costs or a reduction of \$1,851,240 (\$1,883,000 -
17		\$31,760) to the Company's claim.
18		
19	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
20	A.	In response to OCA-III-25, ²⁵ the Company states that it is withdrawing a majority

²³ UGI Gas Book V, Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-13.

²⁴ UGI Gas Statement No. 3, p. 25.

²⁵ I&E Exhibit No. 3, Schedule 2.

1		of the claim because the U.S. Supreme Court overturned the Federal Mandate.
2		However, the Company is still claiming \$52,934 on already incurred costs and is
3		requesting to amortize this cost over a one-year period. These are costs that were
4		associated with legal advice related to the application of the mandate, and a
5		subscription to a vaccine tracking software.
6		While I accept that these COVID-19 related costs are already incurred, I
7		recommend an amortization period of 20 months in line with my recommended
8		rate case filing frequency for rate case expense as explained above. This would
9		minimize any over- or under-recovery of the related cost. Therefore, I recommend
10		an allowance of \$31,760 [(\$52,934 ÷ 20 months) x 12].
11		
12	Q.	DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
13	A.	Yes.

Brian LaTorre

Professional and Educational Background

Professional Experience

<u>Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission</u>, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania November 2021 to Present Fixed Utility Financial Analyst, Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

<u>Pennsylvania House of Representatives,</u> Lansdale, Pennsylvania December 2018 to October 2021 Constituent Services Advisor Organized meetings with local officials and stakeholders on issues impacting the community. Assisted residents and business owners with issues relating to state government, including LIHEAP and Unemployment Compensation.

SimiTree Healthcare Consulting, Conshohocken, Pennsylvania June 2016 to March 2018 Analyst Tracked and analyzed revenue cycle accounts receivable trends for home healthcare and hospice clients. Identified and corrected Medicare, Medicaid, and Private Insurance billing issues. Maintained external dashboards that displayed key performance indicators for clients.

Education and Training

Pennsylvania State University – Smeal College of Business Bachelor of Science, Finance, 2016 Minor in Economics

PUC Rate School, January 18 through February 8, 2022

Testimony Submitted

• R-2022-3030235 – National Fuel Gas Distribution Corporation (§ 1307(f))

I&E Exhibit No. 3 Witness: Brian J. LaTorre

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Exhibit to Accompany

the

Direct Testimony

of

Brian J. LaTorre

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

<u>I&E-RE-46</u>

Request:

Reference UGI Gas Book V, Schedule D-10 for the FPFTY, concerning Rate Case Expense, provide the following details for the last three base rate cases (by rate district where applicable) filed with the Commission:

- A. The docket number, date of filing, and the method of resolution (e.g., settlement or litigation); and
- B. Requested rate case expense and the actual rate case expense incurred.

Response:

Please see Attachment I&E-RE-46.

Prepared by or under the supervision of: Tracy A. Hazenstab

Attachment I&E-RE-46 T. A. Hazenstab Page 1 of 1

UGI UTILITIES, INC. - GAS DIVISION Prior Rate Case Costs Incurred

Company	Docket No.	Filing Date	Cost	ate Case s Incurred	F Cost	kate Case s Requested	Resolution
UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division	R-2019-3015162	January 28, 2020	Ŷ	1,050,932	Ŷ	1,077,000	Settlement
UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division	R-2018-3006814	January 28, 2019	Ŷ	859,194	ᡐ	1,378,390	Settlement
UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc.	R-2016-2580030	January 19, 2017	Ś	576,127	ጭ	821,000	Settlement

I&E Exhibit No. 3 Schedule 1 Page 2 of 2

OCA-III-25

Request:

Refer to Ms. Ressler's Statement No. 3 at 24. Please provide a breakdown of the Company's proposed ongoing costs for tracking and testing (Schedule D-13) of \$1.692 million and the one-time costs for communication and legal advice of \$191,000. Please provide any known updates regarding the "Federal Mandates" proceeding before the U.S. Supreme Court.

Response:

Since the Company finalized the preparation of its revenue requirement claim, the U.S. Supreme Court overturned the Federal Mandate for vaccination and testing requirements. Due to this decision and the fact that there likely will not be a similar mandate passed into law, the Company will withdraw substantially all of its claim associated with this mandate.

The Company did incur certain costs associated with legal advice related to application of the mandate and a subscription to vaccine tracking software. These costs (\$52,934) are detailed in Attachment OCA-III-25 and the Company will maintain its claim to defer and amortize these costs over a one year period.

Prepared by or under the supervision of: Vivian K. Ressler

		Attachmer V.	ent OCA-III-25 V. K. Ressler Page 1 of 1		
(OSHA/Emergen	UGI Utilitie cy Tempora	es, Inc Gas Division ary Standard (ETS) Complia	ance Costs	I&E Exhibit No. 3 Schedule 2 Page 2 of 2
			UGI Utilities allocation	UGI Gas allocation	UGI Gas
			from UGI Corporation	from UGI Utilities	Cost
		Α	В	С	A * B * C
Legal Costs	\$	19,143	31.8%	90.69%	\$ 5,521

5	•	,			•	,
* Vaccine Tracking Software	\$	164,406	31.8%	90.69%	\$	47,414
		Total Costs			\$	52,934
				~		

* Because the OSHA / ETS mandate was initially to be effective in January 2022, the Company needed to be prepared to implement requirements on that date, and entered into a 3-year subscription agreement for vaccine tracking software as part of that preparation process. The cost indicated here (which has been paid by the Company) is only for the first year of that subscription, as the Company expects to be able to mitigate the costs for future years.

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Direct Testimony

of

Ethan H. Cline

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

Test Year Present Rate Revenue Weather Normalization Adjustment Average Bill Comparison Scale Back of Rates

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT	2
TEST YEAR	5
PRESENT RATE REVENUE	6
R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER USAGE DECLINE	7
R/RT HEATING CUSTOMERS – REGRESSION ANALYSIS	15
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE	22
AVERAGE BILL COMPARISON	23
SCALE BACK OF RATES	26

1 INTRODUCTION

2	Q.	WOULD YOU PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS?
3	А.	My name is Ethan H. Cline. My business address is 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA
4		17120.
5		
6	Q.	BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?
7	А.	I am employed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) in the
8		Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement (I&E) as a Fixed Utility Valuation
9		Engineer.
10		
11	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL AND PROFESSIONAL BACKGROUND?
12	А.	My education and professional background are set forth in Appendix A, which is
13		attached.
14		
15	Q.	PLEASE DESCRIBE THE ROLE OF I&E IN RATE PROCEEDINGS.
16	A.	I&E is responsible for protecting the public interest in proceedings before the
17		Commission. The I&E analysis in the proceeding is based on its responsibility to
18		represent the public interest. This responsibility requires the balancing of the interests
19		of ratepayers, the regulated utility, and the regulated community as a whole.
20		
21	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
22	А.	The purpose of my testimony is to evaluate UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division's
23		("UGI" or "Company") request for an annual increase in operating revenue of

1		approximately \$82.7 million. My testimony will address issues related to the weather
2		normalization adjustment, present rate revenue, and scale back of rates.
3		
4	Q.	DOES YOUR TESTIMONY INCLUDE AN EXHIBIT?
5	A.	Yes. I&E Exhibit No. 4 contains schedules relating to my testimony.
6		
7	<u>WE</u> A	ATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT
8	Q.	WHAT IS A WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT MECHANISM?
9	A.	As stated on page 6 of UGI Statement No. 11, a Weather Normalization Adjustment
10		("WNA") mechanism adjusts a customer's bill to correct for variations from normal
11		weather in order to have the bill reflect normal weather conditions through credits and
12		surcharges for colder than normal and warmer than normal weather, respectively.
13		
14	Q.	IS UGI PROPOSING TO INTRODUCE A WEATHER NORMALIZATION
15		ADJUSTMENT IN THIS CASE?
16	А.	Yes. UGI is proposing to implement a WNA mechanism that adjusts billings on a
17		monthly basis as the bill is being calculated and issued (UGI St. No. 11, p. 7).
18		
19	Q.	IS UGI'S PROPOSED WNA MECHANISM SIMILAR TO A WNA RIDER OF
20		ANOTHER PENNSYLVANIA NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION COMPANY?
21	A.	Yes. UGI claims that its proposed WNA mechanism is similar to the calculation of
22		Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania's ("Columbia") WNA rider (UGI St. No. 11, p. 9).

Q. DO YOU AGREE THAT THE UGI WNA IS SIMILAR TO THE COLUMBIA
 WNA APPROVED BY THE COMMISSION?

- A. No. Columbia's WNA includes a deadband range while the UGI's proposal does not.
 The Company believes that application of a deadband adds unnecessary complexity to
 the rider. Additionally, UGI stated that the WNA's intended goal is to stabilize
 billings and distribution revenues from readily identified weather related variances
- 7 rather than "arbitrarily established" elements of weather variance (UGI St. No. 11, p.

8

9

10 Q. WHAT IS A DEADBAND?

11).

A. A deadband is a threshold of Normal Heating Degree Days where the WNA
adjustment is not triggered (UGI St. No. 11, p. 11).

13

14 Q. DO ANY OTHER PENNSYLVANIA NGDCS WITH A WNA UTILIZE A

- 15 **DEADBAND**?
- 16 A. Yes. As previously mentioned, Columbia Gas has a 3% deadband and PGW has a
 17 1% deadband (UGI St. No. 11, p. 11).

18

19 Q. ARE THERE CURRENTLY ANY PENNSYLVANIA NGDCS WITH A WNA

- 20 THAT DO NOT UTILIZE A DEADBAND?
- A. I am not aware of any Pennsylvania NGDC with a WNA that does not utilize a
 deadband.

Q. HAS THE COMMISSION DESCRIBED WHY A DEADBAND COMPONENT IS APPROPRIATE IN A WNA?

A. Yes. In Columbia's 2020 base rate case, the Commission determined that "without an
extraordinary set of circumstances, there is no need for Columbia to reconcile day-today temperature variations that are part of normal business." (Docket No. R-20203018835, Order entered February 19, 2021, pp. 264-265).

7

8 Q. WHY IS A DEADBAND A REASONABLE PROVISION TO INCLUDE IN 9 UGI'S PROPOSED WNA?

10 A WNA is a departure from traditional ratemaking in that it allows the Company to Α 11 adjust a customer's base rate bill, which was calculated based on Commission 12 approved rates, outside the scope of a base rate case. I believe such a departure from 13 traditional ratemaking should only occur due to circumstances that are an 14 extraordinary departure from normal operating conditions, such as abnormal weather. 15 There is no need to reconcile the day-to-day temperature variations that can be 16 considered a normal part of doing business. Therefore, a 3% deadband as is 17 applicable in Columbia Gas' WNA mechanism is a reasonable provision because it 18 allows for a range of what is considered "normal" weather in which the Company's 19 Commission-approved rates would be applied without adjustment. Without the 20 deadband customer rates could be subject to constant adjustment for normal weather 21 variations in every billing cycle.

1	Q.	DID UGI PROVIDE ANY EVIDENCE THAT WOULD SHOW WHY A
2		DEADBAND WOULD NOT BE APPROPRIATE IN ITS CIRCUMSTANCES?
3	A.	No. UGI presented no evidence to show that, unlike other Pennsylvania NGDCs,
4		UGI should be permitted to reconcile day-to-day temperature variations that are part
5		of normal business. UGI provided no evidence or support that would show how or
6		why a departure from the Commission's previous ruling in Columbia regarding the
7		deadband should not be followed.
8		
9	Q.	WHAT DO YOU RECOMMEND REGARDING UGI'S PROPOSED WNA?
10	А.	I recommend that UGI's WNA be approved on the condition that a 3% deadband is
11		included. My recommendation maintains consistency with the Commission's
12		previous ruling and with Columbia's existing WNA.
13		
14	<u>TEST</u>	<u>YEAR</u>
15	Q.	WHAT IS A TEST YEAR AND HOW IS IT USED?
16	А.	A test year is the twelve-month period over which a utility's costs and revenues are
17		measured as the basis for setting prospective base rates. In order to meet its burden of
18		proof, a utility has the option of selecting to use a historic test year (HTY), a future
19		test year (FTY), or a fully projected future test year (FPFTY). An HTY is a twelve-
20		month period selected by a company that represents the most recent full year of actual
21		data. The FTY begins the day after the HTY ends and is determined using a
22		combination of actual data and a projection of annualized and normalized estimates of
23		future revenues and expenses and a corresponding measure of value at the end of that

1		period. The FPFTY is defined as the twelve-month period that begins with the first
2		month that the new rates will be placed into effect, after the application of the full
3		suspension period permitted under Section 1308(d). The FPFTY is made up entirely
4		of projections forecasted by the Company.
5		
6	Q.	WHAT TEST YEARS HAS THE COMPANY USED IN THIS PROCEEDING?
7	А.	UGI has selected the year ended September 30, 2021 as the HTY, the year ending
8		September 30, 2022 as the FTY, and the year ending September 30, 2023 as the
9		FPFTY (UGI St. No. 2, p. 2).
10		
11	Q.	WHAT TEST YEAR HAS THE COMPANY BASED ITS REVENUE
12		REQUIREMENT UPON IN THIS PROCEEDING?
13	A.	UGI based its requested revenue requirement on the FPFTY ending September
14		30, 2023 (UGI St. No. 1, p. 6).
15		
16	<u>PRE</u>	SENT RATE REVENUE
17	Q.	WHAT AMOUNT PRESENT RATE REVENUE IS THE COMPANY
18		REFLECTING FOR THE FPFTY ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023?
19	A.	UGI is reflecting approximately \$1,062,724,000 of present rate revenue including gas
20		costs, surcharges, and other operating revenues (UGI Book V, FPFTY Ex. A-1 p. 1).

1	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE CLAIMED \$1,062,724,000 OF PRESENT RATE
2		REVENUE FOR THE FPFTY?
3	A.	No. As described below, I have determined that UGI has understated its present rate
4		revenue in the FPFTY and I am recommending an increase of \$14,648,202 from
5		\$662,172,239 to \$676,822,441. My recommendation is based on two adjustments to
6		UGI's claimed \$662,172,239 of present rate revenue in the FPFTY as discussed
7		below.
8		
9	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS OF YOUR TWO ADJUSTMENTS TO UGI'S
10		PRESENT RATE REVENUE CLAIM IN THE FPFTY?
11	A.	First, I will address the rate class R/RT heating customer usage decline reflected in
12		the FPFTY that was projected beyond the end of the FPFTY. Second, I will address
13		the overall regression analysis performed by UGI to project usage per R/RT heating
14		customer to determine sales volumes.
15		
16		R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER USAGE DECLINE
17	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM REGARDING R/RT HEATING
18		CUSTOMER USAGE?
19	A.	UGI projected that R/RT heating customer usage is declining and its usage per
20		customer projections included a reduction to account for conservation items and
21		measures including, but not limited to, regular and accelerated appliance
22		replacements, high efficiency appliance installations, setback thermostat installations,
23		modifications to new and existing buildings that are designed to decrease energy

1		consumption, and changes in consumer behavior in response to energy price changes,
2		and other economic influences (UGI St. No. 8, p. 10).
3		
4	Q.	WHAT AVERAGE USAGE PER R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER IS THE
5		COMPANY PROJECTING?
6	А.	The Company's projected annual usage in the FPFTY for R/RT heating customers is
7		approximately 87.8 Mcf per customer (UGI, Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-11(a), p. 8
8		of 9).
9		
10	Q.	HOW DID UGI PROJECT THAT R/RT HEATING CUSTOMERS WOULD
11		USE 87.8 MCF PER YEAR?
11 12	A.	USE 87.8 MCF PER YEAR? The Company performed a regression analysis of actual usage, degree day, lagged
11 12 13	A.	USE 87.8 MCF PER YEAR? The Company performed a regression analysis of actual usage, degree day, lagged heating degree days, and the weighted trend data for the period October 2003 through
 11 12 13 14 	A.	USE 87.8 MCF PER YEAR? The Company performed a regression analysis of actual usage, degree day, lagged heating degree days, and the weighted trend data for the period October 2003 through September 2021 (UGI Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-11(a)). The Company then used
 11 12 13 14 15 	A.	USE 87.8 MCF PER YEAR? The Company performed a regression analysis of actual usage, degree day, lagged heating degree days, and the weighted trend data for the period October 2003 through September 2021 (UGI Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-11(a)). The Company then used the results of the regression analysis to project the usage decline per month through
 11 12 13 14 15 16 	A.	USE 87.8 MCF PER YEAR? The Company performed a regression analysis of actual usage, degree day, lagged heating degree days, and the weighted trend data for the period October 2003 through September 2021 (UGI Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-11(a)). The Company then used the results of the regression analysis to project the usage decline per month through the FTY, the FPFTY, and through March 2024, which is six months past the end of
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 	A.	USE 87.8 MCF PER YEAR? The Company performed a regression analysis of actual usage, degree day, lagged heating degree days, and the weighted trend data for the period October 2003 through September 2021 (UGI Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-11(a)). The Company then used the results of the regression analysis to project the usage decline per month through the FTY, the FPFTY, and through March 2024, which is six months past the end of the FPFTY with the final result being the projected 87.8 Mcf per customer. UGI also
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 	A.	USE 87.8 MCF PER YEAR? The Company performed a regression analysis of actual usage, degree day, lagged heating degree days, and the weighted trend data for the period October 2003 through September 2021 (UGI Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-11(a)). The Company then used the results of the regression analysis to project the usage decline per month through the FTY, the FPFTY, and through March 2024, which is six months past the end of the FPFTY with the final result being the projected 87.8 Mcf per customer. UGI also projected its commercial usage through March 2024, but that projection did not result
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 	A.	USE 87.8 MCF PER YEAR? The Company performed a regression analysis of actual usage, degree day, lagged heating degree days, and the weighted trend data for the period October 2003 through September 2021 (UGI Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-11(a)). The Company then used the results of the regression analysis to project the usage decline per month through the FTY, the FPFTY, and through March 2024, which is six months past the end of the FPFTY with the final result being the projected 87.8 Mcf per customer. UGI also projected its commercial usage through March 2024, but that projection did not result in any change from the year end September 2023 projection as shown on UGI Exhibit

1	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S PROJECTED USAGE PER R/RT
2		HEATING CUSTOMER?
3	А.	No. I believe the Company has understated its projected usage per customer for R/RT
4		heating customers.
5		
6	Q.	WHY HAVE YOU CONCLUDED THE COMPANY'S PROJECTED USAGE
7		PER CUSTOMER FOR R/RT HEATING CUSTOMERS IS UNDERSTATED?
8	A.	My disagreement with the Company's determination of average usage per customer
9		concerns the inclusion of usage decline beyond the end of the FPFTY period used to
10		project the average usage per R/RT heating customer in the FPFTY. The FPFTY
11		ends September 30, 2023; however, the Company's analysis projects residential
12		heating customer usage declines through March 2024, which is six months beyond the
13		FPFTY.
14		
15	Q.	DID THE COMPANY EXPLAIN WHY IT EXTENDED THE DECLINE IN
16		USAGE BEYOND THE END OF THE FPFTY?
17	A.	In its response to I&E-RS-14-D, attached as I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 1, the Company
18		stated that it used a "mid-period convention in order to capture the full annualized
19		impacts related to customer conservation activities" through the September 30, 2023
20		end date of the FPFTY.
21		
22	Q.	IS THE USE OF A MID-YEAR CONVENTION APPROPRIATE?
23	A.	No. The Company has selectively used a mid-year convention to make a projection

1		that extends beyond the end of the FPFTY for usage decline when all other financial
2		criteria are based on the end of the FPFTY. This inappropriately misaligns data for
3		determination of a revenue requirement and affords the Company a greater revenue
4		increase than is appropriate for its FPFTY claim. I explain the impact of this
5		discrepancy further below.
6		
7	Q.	IS THERE ANY BASIS FOR PROJECTING USAGE BEYOND THE END OF
8		THE FPFTY?
9	A.	No. The Company selected September 30, 2023 as the end of the FPFTY, and there
10		is no basis for projecting usage six months beyond the end of the FPFTY. The test
11		year period is meant to be a snapshot look at one year of a utility's revenue
12		requirement such that all inputs into the ratemaking equation, i.e. rate base,
13		depreciation, revenues, expenses, taxes, are determined using the same time period.
14		Therefore, the average usage per R/RT heating customer that is used to determine
15		revenue should also be determined consistent with the end-of-FPFTY time period.
16		For example, the Company based its projection of customer count as of the end of the
17		FPFTY; therefore, it is improper to base the usage per R/RT heating customer on the
18		projected average usage per customer six months past the end of the FPFTY as a
19		different customer count would be applicable to that time period. The proposed
20		mismatch in the usage per customer conflicts with all other ratemaking inputs.

Q. WILL THE USE OF "ANNUALIZED" USE PER CUSTOMER DATA BENEFIT THE COMPANY THROUGH INCREASED REVENUES?

3 A. Yes. If permitted to use the mid-period annualization, the Company would receive 4 additional revenue during the FPFTY. This additional revenue would be the result of 5 deducting the usage of R/RT heating customers that are projected to use less gas after 6 the end of the FPFTY before these customers use less gas. For example, the 7 Company may believe that if a R/RT heating customer replaces their furnace with a 8 high efficiency furnace in February or March 2024, then that customer's usage should 9 be "annualized" for the FPFTY ending September 2023. However, in this example, 10 this R/RT heating customer will use the higher level of gas from October 1, 2023 11 through January or February 2024, which is 4-5 months beyond the end of the 12 FPFTY. As a result, the Company will sell more gas to this customer for the prior 16-13 17 months and keep the incremental revenue until that customer potentially uses less 14 gas in February or March of 2024.

15

16 Q. WILL THE CUSTOMER AND THE COMPANY EXPERIENCE LOWER

17 SALES FROM A CUSTOMER THAT INSTALLS A HIGH EFFICIENCY

18 HEATING SYSTEM IN FEBRUARY OR MARCH IMMEDIATELY?

A. No. Any furnace replacement in February or March occurs towards the end of the
 heating season. As such, the savings experienced by those R/RT heating customers
 would be much less than residential customers that replaced their heating system at
 the beginning heating season in September or October. Since customers use much
 less gas in the summer, the late winter/early spring furnace replacement described

1		above lessens the impact on usage until the following heating season. Therefore, that
2		customer (and the Company) likely would not experience any potential meaningful
3		usage decline until the winter heating season begins in the following October. For
4		those customers replacing their heating systems in February or March of 2023, their
5		saving would not be experienced fully until a full year after the end of the of the
6		FPFTY in this case.
7		
8	Q.	PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR CONCLUSIONS CONCERNING THE
9		COMPANY'S "ANNUALIZATION" OF POST FPFTY USAGE DECLINES?
10	A.	The usage decline beyond the end of the FPFTY should be rejected. There is no
11		justification for allowing the level of usage projected at the end of the FPFTY to be
12		"annualized" by projecting out to March 2024. The inclusion of such an
13		"annualization" will benefit the Company to the detriment of customers.
14		
15	Q.	WHAT AVERAGE USAGE PER R/RT CUSTOMER DO YOU RECOMMEND
16		TO ELIMINATE THE INCLUSION OF ANY POST FPFTY DECLINE?
17	A.	I recommend that the average usage per R/RT customer be increased by 0.1307 Mcf
18		per customer per year (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2, line 6). This 0.1307 Mcf per customer
19		per year was determined by subtracting the 87.9625Mcf per customer at the end of the
20		FPFTY from the 87.8318 Mcf per customer as of March 2024 as shown on UGI Book
21		II, Attachment SDR-RR-11(a), page 9.

1	Q.	HOW MUCH DO GAS VOLUMES INCREASE IF THE AVERAGE USAGE
2		PER R/RT CUSTOMER IS INCREASED BY 0.1307 PER CUSTOMER PER
3		YEAR?
4	А.	Gas volumes increase by 77,061 Mcf (589,601 X 0.1307). This 77,061 Mcf of gas
5		was determined by multiplying the 0.1307 per customer per year times 589,601 R/RT
6		heating customers shown on UGI Book III, Exhibit SAE-7(a).
7		
8	Q.	HOW MUCH DOES PRESENT RATE USAGE REVENUE INCREASE IF
9		THE AVERAGE USAGE PER R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER IS INCREASED
10		BY 0.1307 MCF PER CUSTOMER PER YEAR?
11	A.	If my recommendation to use the FPFTY year-end usage is approved, present rate
12		usage revenue increases by \$316,752 (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2, line 6, col. D). This
13		\$316,752 of present rate R/RT revenue was determined by multiplying the 77,061
14		Mcf of gas described above times the present usage rate of \$4.1104 per Mcf shown on
15		UGI Book V, Exhibit E, p. 2. The result would be to increase the Company's claimed
16		present rate revenue for residential heating customers by \$316,752 from
17		\$662,174,239 to \$662,490,991.
18		
19	Q.	IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO
20		INCREASE R/RT PRESENT USAGE RATE REVENUE BY \$316,752 TO
21		\$662,490,991 SHOULD THERE BE A CORRESPONDING INCREASE IN
22		PURCHASED GAS REVENUE AND EXPENSES?
23	А.	Yes. Under present rates, the PGC volumes equal approximately 85.47% of total

1		usage volumes (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2, line 11, col. A). Therefore, increasing total
2		R/RT sales volumes by 77,061 Mcf increases the PGC by 65,862 Mcf (77,061 Mcf X
3		0.8547) (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2, line 10, col. B). This results in an increase in PGC
4		revenue and expenses of \$413,399 (65,862 Mcf X the \$6.2767 per Mcf PGC rate)
5		(I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 4, line 10, col. D).
6		
7	Q.	IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO
8		INCREASE R/RT PRESENT USAGE RATE REVENUE BY \$541,133 TO
9		\$191,863,159 SHOULD THERE BE A CORRESPONDING INCREASE IN
10		OTHER SURCHARGES?
11	A.	Yes. Since the following surcharges are based upon volumes or revenue, they would
12		each increase if the Commission accepts my recommendation to eliminate the post
13		FPFTY usage decline. Under present rates, the Merchant Function Charge will
14		increase by \$8,971 to \$6,189,251 (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2, line 14, col. D). The Gas
15		Procurement Charge will increase by \$4,347 to \$2,999,100 (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2,
16		line 17, col. D). The Universal Service Program rider will increase by \$25,484 to
17		\$17,562,382 (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2, line 20, col. D). The Energy and Conservation
18		Efficiency Rider will increase by \$16,006 to \$11,042,760 (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2, line
19		23, col. D).
20		
21	Q.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE IF THE
22		COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO INCREASE
23		R/RT PRESENT USAGE RATE DISTRIBUTION VOLUME BY 77,061 MCF?
24	A.	Present rate revenue increases by \$427,964 from \$662,174,239 to \$662,602,203 (I&E

1		Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2, line 29, col. D). It should be noted that, if the Commission accepts
2		my second adjustment, discussed below, then this \$427,964 adjustment would not be
3		added as it is already a part of the regression analysis adjustment below.
4		
5		<u>R/RT HEATING CUSTOMERS – REGRESSION ANALYSIS</u>
6	Q.	WHAT IS THE SECOND ADJUSTMENT YOU RECOMMEND TO THE
7		COMPANY'S PROJECTED USAGE FOR R/RT HEATING CUSTOMERS?
8	А.	As described above, my second recommendation addresses UGI's use of 18 years of
9		data to project the 87.8 Mcf annual usage for the R/RT heating customers (UGI Book
10		III, Ex. SAE-7(a)).
11		
12	Q.	DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS WHY IT SELECTED 18 YEARS?
13	A.	No. UGI only stated that it selected 18 years of data because October 2003 was the
14		earliest common data set available for the entire service territory (UGI St. No. 8, p,
15		10).
16		
17	Q.	DO YOU AGREE THAT USING ALL AVAILABLE DATA TO PERFORM
18		THE REGRESSION ANALYSIS TO DETERMINE USAGE DECLINE IS
19		REASONABLE?
20	A.	No. As a rule, older usage data is less indicative of recent trends. As Ms. Epler
21		described on page 10 of UGI Statement No. 8, the changes in usage per customer are
22		influenced by regular appliance replacements, accelerated appliance replacements,
23		high-efficiency appliance installations, setback thermostat installations, modifications

1		to new and existing buildings that are designed to decrease energy consumption, and
2		changes in consumer usage behavior due to other economic influences. It is
3		reasonable to assume that, as UGI's service territory becomes more saturated with
4		high-efficiency appliance installations and more buildings are modified as time goes
5		on, the decline in residential usage per customer will have a progressively declining
6		impact. Therefore, it is not reasonable to allow less significant older data from a time
7		period when the service territory was not as saturated with usage reducing appliances
8		to influence the results of the projection of future usage.
9		
10	Q.	WHAT TIME PERIOD DO YOU RECOMMEND FOR THE REGRESSION
11		ANALYSIS IN THIS CASE?
12	A.	In this case, I recommend the 15-year time period from October 2006 through
13		September 2021 for the residential usage per customer regression analysis.
14		
15	Q.	WHY DO YOU RECOMMEND THE USE OF 15 YEARS TO PROJECT THE
16		AVERAGE USAGE PER R/RT CUSTOMER FOR THE FPFTY?
17	A.	I recommend the use of 15-years of data for several reasons. First, a fifteen-year time
18		period is consistent with the reasons UGI described for utilizing a multi-year
19		regression period. Second, the 15-year time period is consistent with the time period
20		used for the Company's weather normalization adjustment. Third, the Company has
21		supported the use of 15-year time period for its regression analysis in its previous
22		cases. Finally, I believe that usage and temperature data older than 15 years is not
23		representative of recent usage trends on which to base the usage projection.

1	Q.	WHAT REASONS DID UGI PROVIDE FOR UTILIZING A MULTI-YEAR
2		REGRESSION ANALYSIS TO DETERMINE RESIDENTIAL USE PER
3		CUSTOMER TRENDS?
4	А.	On page 11 of UGI Statement No. 8, Ms. Epler stated that "[t]he Company decided to
5		use the multi-year period because it provides a larger sample set of data to smooth out
6		short-term variations and capture the underlying long-term use per customer trends to
7		more accurately project usage per customer during the period rates are likely to be in
8		effect."
9		
10	Q.	IS THE USE OF A FIFTEEN-YEAR PERIOD IN THE MULTI-YEAR
11		REGRESSION ANALYSIS CONSISTENT WITH THE COMPANY'S
12		REASONS FOR USING A MULTI-YEAR REGRESSION ANALYSIS?
13	A.	Yes. A fifteen-year period remains long enough to smooth out short-term variations
14		and capture the underlying long-term use per customer trends while having the added
15		benefit of not including data that is no longer representative of more recent trends,
16		such as data before October 2006.
17		
18	Q.	WHAT TIME PERIOD DOES THE COMPANY USE TO DETERMINE
19		ADJUSTMENTS FOR TEMPERATURE DATA?
20	A.	UGI has consistently used, over the previous seven base rate cases of both UGI and
21		its former affiliates, a 15-year period updated every five years to determine normal
22		heating degree days (UGI St. No. 8, p. 7). While the analyses performed to determine
23		normalized temperatures and use per customer are different types of analyses, the fact

1		that the Company has consistently used 15-years to normalize highly variable weather
2		data shows that the use of 15-years of data to project use per customer data is
3		reasonable.
4		
5	Q.	HAS UGI SUPPORTED THE USE OF 15 YEARS OF DATA TO PERFORM
6		ITS USE PER CUSTOMER ANALYSIS IN PREVIOUS CASES?
7	A.	Yes. The UGI gas rate case at Docket R-2018-3006814 ("2018 Base Rate case") the
8		Company utilized and supported using 15 years of data to project usage per customer
9		that is used to determine sales volumes for R/RT heating customers at the end of the
10		FPFTY.
11		
12	Q.	IN THE 2018 BASE RATE CASE, DID THE COMPANY STATE THAT 15
13		YEARS OF DATA WAS STATISTICALLY VALID TO PROJECT R/RT
14		HEATING CUSTOMERS USAGE?
15	A.	Yes. In the 2018 base rate case, the Company supported the use of 15 years of data
16		stating:
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27		 "This is the same methodology was used by the Company in the past several rate base rate cases. UGI's use of a fifteen-year period in its regression analysis is statistically valid and consistent with its use of extended, available periods of data to show long term trends in use per customer" (UGI St. No. 8-R, p. 7). "UGI Gas's 15-year regression results are strongly supported by other data from the American Gas Association ("AGA") and the US Energy Information Administration ("EIA")" (UGI St. No. 8-R, P. 7).

1	Q.	DOES USING 15 YEARS OF DATA RATHER THAN 18 YEARS OF DATA
2		MAKE A DIFFERENCE IN THE USAGE PER R/RT HEATING
3		CUSTOMER?
4	А.	Yes. Using 15 years of data, the projected average usage per R/RT customer for the
5		FPFTY ending September 30, 2023 is approximately 90.2576 Mcf per year (I&E Ex.
6		No. 4, Sch. 3, p. 4). This shows that when the stale data beyond the fifteen-year time
7		period is removed, the average usage per R/RT customer increases from 87.8138 Mcf
8		per customer per year to 90.2576 Mcf per customer per year, which is an increase of
9		2.4438 (90.2576 – 87.8138) Mcf per R/RT customer per year.
10		
11	Q.	HOW MUCH DO GAS VOLUMES INCREASE IF THE AVERAGE USAGE
12		PER R/RT CUSTOMER IS INCREASED BY 2.4438 MCF PER CUSTOMER
13		PER YEAR?
14	А.	Gas volumes increase by 1,440,867 Mcf (589,601 X 2.4438). This 1,440,867Mcf of
15		gas was determined by multiplying the 2.4438 MCF per customer per year times
16		589,601 R/RT heating customers shown on UGI Book III, Exhibit SAE-7(a).
17		
18	Q.	HOW MUCH DOES PRESENT RATE USAGE REVENUE INCREASE IF
19		THE AVERAGE USAGE PER R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER IS INCREASED
20		BY 2.4438 MCF PER CUSTOMER PER YEAR?
21	A.	If my recommendation to use the FPFTY average usage is approved, present rate
22		usage revenue increases by \$5,922,539 (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 4, line 6). This
23		\$5,922,539 of present rate R/RT revenue was determined by multiplying the

1		1,440,867 Mcf of gas described above times the present usage rate of \$4.1104 per
2		Mcf shown on UGI Book V, Exhibit E, p. 2. The result would be to increase the
3		Company's claimed present rate revenue for residential customers by \$5,922,539
4		from \$662,174,239 to \$668,096,778.
5		
6	Q.	IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO
7		INCREASE R/RT PRESENT USAGE RATE REVENUE BY \$5,922,539 TO
8		\$668,096,778 SHOULD THERE BE A CORRESPONDING INCREASE IN
9		PURCHASED GAS REVENUE AND EXPENSES?
10	А.	Yes. Under present rates, the PGC volumes equal approximately 85.47% of total
11		usage volumes (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 4, line, col. A). Therefore, increasing total R/RT
12		sales volumes by 1,440,867 Mcf increases the PGC by 1,231,480 Mcf (1,440,867 Mcf
13		X 0.8547) (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 4, line 10 col. B). This results in an increase in PGC
14		revenue and expenses of \$7,729,631 (1,231,480 Mcf X the \$6.2767 per Mcf PGC
15		rate) (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 4, line 10, col. D).
16		
17	Q.	IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO
18		INCREASE R/RT PRESENT USAGE RATE REVENUE BY \$5,922,539 TO
19		\$668,096,778 SHOULD THERE BE A CORRESPONDING INCREASE IN
20		OTHER SURCHARGES?
21	А.	Yes. Since the following surcharges are based upon volumes or revenue, they would
22		each increase if the Commission accepts my recommendation to eliminate the post
23		FPFTY usage decline. Under present rates, the Merchant Function Charge will
1		increase by \$167,733 to \$6,348,013 (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 4, line 14, col. 14). The
----	----	---
2		Gas Procurement Charge will increase by \$81,278 to \$3,076,030 (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch.
3		Post-FPFTY, line 17, col. D). The Universal Service Program rider will increase by
4		\$118,297 to \$17,655,195 (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 4, line 20, col. D). The Energy and
5		Conservation Efficiency Rider will increase by \$299,268 to \$11,101,118 (I&E Ex.
6		No. 4, Sch. 4, line 23, col. D).
7		
8	Q.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE IF THE
9		COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO INCREASE
10		R/RT PRESENT USAGE RATE DISTRIBUTION VOLUME BY 1,440,867
11		MCF?
12	А.	Present rate revenue increases by \$14,648,202 from \$662,174,239 to \$676,822,441
13		(I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 4, line 29, col. D).
14		
15	Q.	DOES YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO INCREASE USAGE PER R/RT
16		HEATING CUSTOMER INCLUDE THE VOLUMES AND DOLLARS OF
17		YOUR FIRST RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING POST FPFTY R/RT
18		HEATING USAGES?
19	А.	Yes. As I stated above, the adjustments in my second recommendation are inclusive
20		of the adjustment I described regarding the inclusion of post FPFTY usage data.
21		Therefore, if the Commission accepts my second recommendation and adjustments,
22		there is no need to reflect the first adjustment of \$316,752 of present rate revenue nor

1		the \$413,399 of additional purchase gas expense shown on I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2,
2		line 29 concerning post FPFTY usage declines.
3		
4		MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
5	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
6		UNDER PRESENT RATES IN THE FPFTY?
7	A.	The Company's claim for miscellaneous revenue under present rates in the FPFTY is
8		\$1,998,000 (UGI Book IX, Schedule E, p. 4).
9		
10	Q.	DID THE COMPANY PROVIDE AN UPDATE TO THIS CLAIM DURING
11		THE PROCESS OF DISCOVERY?
12	A.	Yes. In its response to I&E-RS-27, attached as I&E Exhibit No. 4, Schedule 5, the
13		Company admitted that it inadvertently included the company share of off-system
14		sales that should be reflected below the line for ratemaking purposes. The Company
15		further indicated that it would reduce its miscellaneous revenue claim by \$1,003,000
16		from \$1,998,000 to \$995,000 to correct this error.
17		
18	Q.	IS THE COMPANY'S PLANNED ADJUSTMENT TO ITS MISCELLANEOUS
19		REVENUE CLAIM REASONABLE?
20	A.	Yes. It is reasonable for the Company to correct its claim for miscellaneous revenues
21		in its rebuttal testimony.

1 AVERAGE BILL COMPARISON

2	Q.	DID THE COMPANY MAKE ANY CLAIMS IN ITS DIRECT TESTIMONY
3		REGARDING THE COMPARISON OF CURRENT RESIDENTIAL RATES
4		TO HISTORIC RESIDENTIAL RATES?
5	A.	Yes. On page 7 of UGI Statement No. 1, the Company claimed that "the Company's
6		average customer bills are less than they were in 2008."
7		
8	Q.	DID THE COMPANY PROVIDE ANY DATA TO SUPPORT ITS CLAIM
9		THAT THE COMPANY'S AVERAGE CUSTOMER BILLS ARE LESS THAN
10		THEY WERE IN 2008?
11	А.	No. The Company provided no data, support, or any other form of analysis support
12		its claim regarding its average customer bills in 2008.
13		
14	Q.	IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIMED COMPARISON OF RATES IN 2008
15		REPRESENTATIVE OF RATE INCREASES CUSTOMERS HAVE
16		EXPERIENCED IN RECENT HISTORY?
17	A.	No. The level of customer rates in 2008 is not representative of base rate increases
18		customers have experienced in recent history. Specifically, UGI customers, and the
19		customers of its former affiliates, have experienced rate increases in 2016 (UGI
20		Utilities, Inc., Docket No. R-2015-2518438), 2017 (UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc.,
21		Docket No. R-2016-2580030), 2019 (UGI Utilities, Inc., Docket No. R-2018-
22		3006814), 2019 (UGI Utilities, Inc., Docket No. R-2019-3015162), and now in 2022
23		with the current proceeding.

1	Q.	ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY RATE DECREASES PROPOSED BY UGI OR
2		ITS FORMER AFFILIATES SINCE 2008?
3	A.	No. I am not aware of any rate decreases proposed by UGI or its former affiliates
4		since 2008.
5		
6	Q.	IF UGI HAS ONLY INCREASED ITS BASE RATES SINCE 2008, HOW
7		COULD CUSTOMER RATES BE LOWER NOW THAN IN 2008?
8	A.	Because UGI has not provided any data supporting its claim that rates are lower now
9		than in 2008 despite the multiple increases in base rates in that same time period, it is
10		not possible to accurately determine the cause of this anomaly. One explanation
11		could be that UGI is including the Gas Cost Rate in its analysis.
12		
13	Q.	HOW HAS THE GAS COST RATE CHANGED BETWEEN 2008 AND NOW?
14	A.	In 2008, the purchased gas rate (PGC) for UGI Utilities peaked at approximately
15		\$13.261 per Mcf. In this filing, the Company reflected a PGC rate of \$6.2757 per Mcf
16		(I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch 6, pp. 1-2). Therefore, even after more than doubling the customer
17		charge, increasing the distribution rate, and creating numerous surcharges, the total bill
18		of a customer is less than it was in 2008 because the PGC component of a customer's
19		bill was so large.
20		
21	Q.	WILL THIS ALWAYS BE THE CASE?
22	A.	Not necessarily. The PGC rate fluctuates and could increase in the future. Just recently
23		the PGC rate increased from \$4.4594 per MCF in June 2021 to \$6.2767 today (I&E Ex.

1		No. 4, Sch. 7, pp. 1-2). This is an increase of \$1.8173 per Mcf or 40.8%. Given this
2		recent increase, it is certainly possible future increases could match or be greater than
3		the 40.8%.
4		
5	Q.	SHOULD THE GAS COST RATE BE INCLUDED IN A COMPARISON OF
6		HISTORIC TO CURRENT RATES IN THE CONTEXT OF A BASE RATE
7		CASE?
8	A.	No. Gas Cost Rates do not change as a result of a base rate case. In fact, UGI has no
9		control over the historic or present level of the Gas Cost Rate. Therefore, it is
10		disingenuous for UGI to claim credit for lower overall rates when the driving factor of
11		that circumstance is entirely outside of UGI's control.
12		
13	Q.	WHAT DO YOU RECOMMEND REGARDING UGI'S CLAIM THAT
14		CURRENT RATES ARE LOWER THAN RATES IN 2008?
15	A.	I recommend that this claim be disregarded because it is unsupported and misleading
16		for the reasons I described above.
17		
18	Q.	DID UGI INCLUDE ANY OTHER INACCURATE CLAIMS IN ITS FILING?
19	A.	Yes. On page 10 of UGI Statement No. 1, Mr. Brown included a chart showing a
20		comparison of UGI's current and proposed rates of residential heating customers of
21		the major Pennsylvania NGDCs.

2

Q. DID THE COMPANY EXCLUDE A MAJOR PENNSYLVANIA GAS COMPANY IN ITS RESIDENTIAL BILL COMPARISON?

- 3 A. Yes. The Company failed to include National Fuel Gas Distribution Corporation
- 4 ("NFGD"). If they had, the Company would have determined that the average bill of an
- 5 NFGD customer is much lower than the average bill of a UGI customer. After the UGI
- 6 rate increases, the average bill of a residential customer will be \$108 per month. With
- 7 this increase and including NFGD in the comparison results show that four major gas
- 8 distribution companies will have lower average rates than UGI instead of just three.
- 9

10 Q. WHAT DO YOU RECOMMEND THE COMPANY DO IN FUTURE FILINGS?

- A. I recommend that if the Company chooses to provide a comparison of its rates to other
 NGDCs in Pennsylvania, then the Company should include all major gas companies and
- 13 compare proposed rates after the UGI increase.
- 14

15 SCALE BACK OF RATES

16 Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE COMPANY'S PROPOSED INCREASE BY

17 CLASS?

18 A. The Company proposed R/RT revenue increase by \$68,115,150, N/NT revenue -

- 19 increase by \$14,452,827, DS revenue by, \$653,949, LFD revenue by \$1,531,227, XD
- 20 revenue decrease by \$931,834 and Interruptible revenue decrease by \$1,049,187 (UGI
- 21 Book V, Ex. E, p. 1).

1	Q.	WHAT IS A SCALE BACK OF RATES?
2	А.	If the Commission grants an increase less than the amount UGI requested, the
3		Company's proposed rates would be reduced, or scaled back, to produce the revenue
4		requirement allowed by the Commission.
5		
6	Q.	WHAT SCALE BACK METHODOLOGY DO YOU RECOMMEND FOR THE
7		R/RT AND N/NT CLASSES?
8	А.	I recommend that both the customer charge and usage rates be scaled back such that
9		increase for each customer class is scaled back proportionally to the increase
10		originally proposed by the UGI based on the cost of service study that is ultimately
11		approved.
12		
13	Q.	WHY DO YOU RECOMMEND THAT CUSTOMER CHARGES BE
14		INCLUDED IN ANY SCALE BACK?
15	А.	There are several. First, the proposed increase in the R/RT and N/NT customer
16		charges are larger than increases proposed for the respective usage rates. Therefore,
17		in order to limit the increase in the customer charge applicable to zero and low usage
18		customers, it should be included in the scale back. Second, this recommendation
19		promotes conservation because it causes a larger portion of the customer's bill to be
20		recovered in volumetric rates, thus giving customers more of an incentive to reduce
21		usage. Finally, in the last UGI Electric case, the Commission determined that in spite
22		of the higher customer cost determination in the cost of service study, the customer

1		charges should be reduced for all customers (UGI Electric R-2017-2640058, Order
2		entered October 25, 2018, p. 175).
3		
4	Q.	WHAT SCALE BACK METHODOLOGY DO YOU RECOMMEND FOR THE
5		DS CLASS?
6	A.	The DS customer charge was not increased under proposed rates, so it should not be
7		included in any scale back. I recommend that the usage rates be scale back but no
8		lower than the present North / Central division usage rate of \$2.930 per Mcf.
9		
10	Q.	WHAT SCALE BACK METHODOLOGY DO YOU RECOMMEND FOR THE
11		LFD CLASS?
12	A.	The LFD customer charge was not increased under proposed rate, so it should not be
13		included in any scale back. I recommend that the usage rates be scale back
14		proportionally to reduce the revenue from this class.
15		
16	Q.	WHAT SCALE BACK METHODOLOGY DO YOU RECOMMEND FOR THE
17		XD AND INTERRUPTIBLE CLASSES?
18	A.	The customer charges and usage rates were not increased under proposed rate, so they
19		should not be included in any scale back. I recommend that only the surcharges be
20		for these competitive customers be adjusted.
21		
22	Q.	DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
23	A.	Yes.

ETHAN H. CLINE

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE AND EDUCATION

EXPERIENCE:

03/2009 - Present

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement, Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission - Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

<u>Fixed Utility Valuation Engineer</u> – Assists in the performance of studies and analyses of the engineering-related areas including valuation, depreciation, cost of service, quality and reliability of service as they apply to fixed utilities. Assists in reviewing, comparing and performing analyses in specific areas of valuation engineering and rate structure including valuation concepts, original cost, rate base, fixed capital costs, inventory processing, excess capacity, cost of service, and rate design.

06/2008 - 09/2008

Akens Engineering, Inc. - Shiremanstown, Pennsylvania

<u>Civil Engineer</u> – Responsible, primarily, for assisting engineers and surveyors in the planning and design of residential development projects

10/2007 - 05/2008

J. Michael Brill and Associates - Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania

<u>Design Technician</u> – Responsible, primarily, for assisting engineers in the permit application process for commercial development projects.

01/2006 - 10/2007

CABE Associates, Inc. - Dover, Delaware

<u>Civil Engineer</u> – Responsible, primarily, for assisting engineers in performing technical reviews of the sewer and sanitary sewer systems of Sussex County, Delaware residential development projects.

EDUCATION:

<u>Pennsylvania State University</u>, State College, Pennsylvania Bachelor of Science; Major in Civil Engineering, 2005

- Attended NARUC Rate School, Clearwater, FL
- Attended Society of Depreciation Professionals Annual Conference and Training, 2017, 2018, and 2019

TESTIMONY SUBMITTED:

I have testified and/or submitted testimony in the following proceedings:

- 1. Clean Treatment Sewage Company, Docket No. R-2009-2121928
- 2. Pennsylvania Utility Company Water Division, Docket No. R-2009-2103937
- 3. Pennsylvania Utility Company Sewer Division, Docket No. R-2009-2103980
- 4. UGI Central Penn Gas, Inc., 1307(f) proceeding, Docket No. R-2010-2172922
- 5. AQUA Clarion Wastewater Operations, Docket No. R-2010-2166208
- 6. AQUA Claysville Wastewater Operations, Docket No. R-2010-2166210
- 7. Citizens' Electric Company of Lewisburg, Pa, Docket No. R-2010-2172665
- 8. City of Lancaster Bureau of Water, Docket No. R-2010-2179103
- 9. Peoples Natural Gas Company LLC, Docket No. R-2010-2201702
- 10. UGI Central Penn Gas, Inc., Docket No. R-2010-2214415
- 11. Pennsylvania-American Water Company, Docket No. R-2011-2232243
- 12. Pentex Pipeline Company, Docket No. A-2011-2230314
- 13. Peregrine Keystone Gas Pipeline, LLC, Docket No. A-2010-2200201
- 14. Philadelphia Gas Works 1307(f), Docket No. R-2012-2286447
- 15. Peoples Natural Gas Company LLC, Docket No. R-2012-2285985
- 16. Equitable Gas Company, Docket Nos. R-2012-2312577, G-2012-2312597
- 17. City of Lancaster Sewer Fund, Docket No. R-2012-2310366
- 18. Peoples TWP, LLC 1307(f), Docket No. R-2013-2341604
- 19. UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. 1307(f), Docket No. R-2013-2361763
- 20. UGI Central Penn Gas, Inc. 1307(f), Docket No. R-2013-2361764
- 21. Joint Application, Docket Nos. A-2013-2353647, A-2013-2353649, A-2013-2353651
- 22. City of Dubois Bureau of Water, Docket No. R-2013-2350509
- 23. The Peoples Water Company, Docket No. R-2013-2360798
- 24. Pennsylvania American Water Company, Docket No. R-2013-2355276
- 25. Generic Investigation Regarding Gas-on-Gas Competition, Docket Nos. P-2011-227868, I-2012-2320323
- 26. Philadelphia Gas Works 1307(f), Docket No. R-2014-2404355
- 27. Pike County Light and Power Company (Gas), Docket No. R-2013-2397353
- 28. Pike County Light and Power Company (Electric), Docket No. R-2013-2397237
- 29. Peoples Natural Gas Company LLC 1307(f), Docket No. R-2014-2403939
- 30. UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. 1307(f), Docket No. R-2014-2420273
- 31. UGI Utilities, Inc. Gas Division 1307(f), Docket No. R-2014-2420276
- 32. UGI Central Penn Gas, Inc. 1307(f), Docket No. R-2014-2420279
- 33. Emporium Water Company, Docket No. R-2014-2402324
- 34. Borough of Hanover Hanover Municipal Water, Docket No. R-2014-2428304
- 35. Philadelphia Gas Works 1307(f), Docket No. R-2015-2465656
- 36. Peoples Natural Gas Company LLC 1307(f), Docket No. R-2015-2465172
- Peoples Natural Gas Company Equitable Division 1307(f), Docket No. R-2015-2465181
- 38. PPL Electric Utilities Corporation, Docket No. R-2015-2469275
- 39. UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. 1307(f), Docket No. R-2015-2480934

- 40. UGI Central Penn Gas, Inc. 1307(f), Docket No. R-2015-2480937
- 41. UGI Utilities, Inc. Gas Division 1307(f), Docket No. R-2015-2480950
- 42. UGI Utilities, Inc. Gas Division, Docket No. R-2015-2518438
- 43. Joint Application of Pennsylvania American Water, et al., Docket No. A-2016-2537209
- 44. UGI Utilities, Inc. Gas Division 1307(f), Docket No. R-2016-2543309
- 45. UGI Central Penn Gas, Inc. 1307(f), Docket No. R-2016-2543311
- 46. City of Dubois Company, Docket No. R-2016-2554150
- 47. UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc., Docket No. R-2016-2580030
- 48. UGI Central Penn Gas, Inc. 1307(f), Docket No. R-2017-2602627
- 49. UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. 1307(f), Docket No. R-2017-2602633
- 50. UGI Utilities, Inc. Gas Division 1307(f), Docket No. R-2017-2602638
- 51. Application of Pennsylvania American Water Company Acquisition of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport, Docket No. A-2017-2606103
- 52. Pennsylvania American Water Company, Docket No. R-2017-2595853
- 53. Pennsylvania American Water Company Lead Line Petition, Docket No. P-2017-2606100
- 54. UGI Utilities, Inc. Electric Division, Docket No. R-2017-2640058
- 55. Peoples Natural Gas Company, LLC Peoples and Equitable Division 1307(f), Docket Nos. R-2018-2645278 & R-2018-3000236
- 56. Peoples Gas Company, LLC 1307(f), Docket No. R-2018-2645296
- 57. Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket No. R-2018-2647577
- 58. Duquesne Light Company, Docket No. R-2018-3000124
- 59. Suez Water Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket No. R-2018-3000834
- 60. Application of Pennsylvania American Water Company Acquisition of the Municipal Authority of the Township of Sadsbury, Docket No. A-2018-3002437
- 61. The York Water Company, Docket No. R-2018-3000006
- 62. Application of SUEZ Water Pennsylvania, Inc. Acquisition of the Water and Wastewater Assets of Mahoning Township, Docket Nos. A-2018-3003517 and A-2018-3003519
- 63. Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority, Docket Nos. R-2018-3002645 and R-2018-3002647
- 64. Joint Application of Aqua America, Inc. et al., Acquisition of Peoples Natural Gas Company LLC, et al., Docket Nos. A-2018-3006061, A-2018-3006062, and A-2018-3006063
- 65. Implementation of Chapter 32 of the Public Utility Code Regarding Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority, Docket Nos. M-2018-2640802 and M-2018-2640803
- 66. Philadelphia Gas Works 1307(f), Docket No. R-2019-3007636
- 67. People Natural Gas Company, LLC, Docket No. R-2018-3006818
- 68. Application of Pennsylvania American Water Company Acquisition of the Steelton Borough Authority, Docket No. A-2019-3006880
- 69. Application of Aqua America, Inc. et al., Acquisition of the Wastewater System Assets of the Township of Cheltenham, Docket No. A-2019-3006880
- 70. Philadelphia Gas Works, Docket No. R-2019-3009016
- 71. Wellsboro Electric Company, Docket No. R-2019-3008208

- 72. Valley Energy, Inc., Docket No. R-2019-3008209
- 73. Citizens' Electric Company of Lewisburg, Pa, Docket Non. R-2019-3008212
- 74. Application of Aqua America, Inc. et al., Acquisition of the Wastewater System Assets of the East Norriton Township, Docket No. A-2019-3009052
- 75. Peoples Natural Gas Company, LLC 1307(f), Docket No. R-2020-3017850
- 76. Peoples Gas Company, LLC 1307(f), Docket No. R-2020-3017846
- 77. Philadelphia Gas Works, Docket No. R-2020-3017206
- 78. Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority, Docket Nos. R-2020-3017951 et al.
- 79. Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Docket No. R-2020-3018835
- 80. Pennsylvania America Water Company, Docket Nos. R-2020-3019369 and R-2020-3019371
- 81. PECO Energy Company Gas Division, Docket No. R-2020-3019829
- 82. PGW 1307(f), Docket No. R-2021-3023970
- 83. Peoples Natural Gas Company, LLC 1307(f), Docket No. R-2021-3023965
- 84. Peoples Gas Company, LLC 1307(f), Docket No. R-2021-3023967
- 85. UGI Utilities, Inc. Electric Division, Docket No. R-2021-3023618
- 86. Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket No. R-2021-3024926
- 87. Duquesne Light Company, Docket No. R-2021-3024750
- 88. UGI Utilities, Inc. Gas Division 1307(f), Docket No. R-2021-3025652
- 89. Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority, Docket Nos. R-2021-3024773 et al.
- 90. Application of Aqua America Wastewater, Inc. et al., Acquisition of the Wastewater System Assets of Lower Makefield Township, Docket No. A-2021-3024267
- 91. Aqua Pennsylvania Water, Inc. and Aqua Pennsylvania Wastewater, Inc., Docket Nos. R-2021-3027385 and R-2021-3027386
- 92. Application of Pennsylvania-American Water Company for Acquisition of the Wastewater Collection and Treatment System Assets of the York City Sewer Authority, Docket No. A-2021-3024681
- 93. City of Lancaster Bureau of Water, Docket No. R-2021-3026682
- 94. Application of Aqua America Wastewater, Inc. et al., Acquisition of the Wastewater System Assets of East Whiteland Township, Docket No. A-2021-30246132

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Exhibit to Accompany

the

Direct Testimony

of

Ethan H. Cline

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

Test Year Present Rate Revenue Weather Normalization Adjustment Average Bill Comparison Scale Back of Rates

UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division Docket No. R-2021-3030218 UGI Gas 2022 Base Rate Case Responses to I&E (RS-12-D thru RS-16-D) Delivered on March 15, 2022

<u>I&E-RS-14-D</u>

Request:

Reference UGI SDR-RR-11(a) page 8 as of September 2023 showing 87.9625 Mcf labeled "FY 23".

- A. Does the 87.9625 Mcf represent the normal annualized usage of a customer on September 30, 2023, or some other point in time?
- B. Does the 87.9625 Mcf represent the average normal annualized usage for the twelve months ending March 31, 2023, or some other period of time?

Response:

A. The normal annualized usage of a customer as of September 30, 2023 is 87.8138 Mcf, and is noted as "Fully Projected Future Test Year Annualized FY 23" in the last column shown on page 8 of UGI SDR-RR-11(a). The value of 87.9625 Mcf represents the normalized annualized usage as of March 31, 2023. By way of further response, for the end of any specific month listed in the first column of the referenced page 8, the normalized annualized usage for such month can be determined by summing the 6 months of "1 Month UPC" data up to such specific month and the 6 months following such specific month; this represents the use of a mid-period convention in determining UPC.

This projection of data is needed in order to properly annualize customer usage for conditions existing at the end of the FPFTY for all customers in the residential class. Specifically, in order to establish use per customer as of the end of the FPFTY, or as of September 30, 2023, the company utilized a mid-period convention in order to capture the full annualized impacts related to customer conservation activities through that date. As September 30, 2023, is the middle of the annual period ending March 31, 2024, the projected annualized value for use per customer for that 12-month period would represent the annualized rate of use for those customers existing as of September 30, 2023.

A single customer example will help demonstrate this mid-point convention use in calculating usage per customer. For example, assume the 12-month history of an individual customer's actual gas usage for a twelve month period ending on September 30, 2023, totals 85 Mcf and is reflective of the customer's usage of their then-existing 80% efficient heating equipment during the 2022-2023 heating UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division Docket No. R-2021-3030218 UGI Gas 2022 Base Rate Case Responses to I&E (RS-12-D thru RS-16-D) Delivered on March 15, 2022

I&E-RS-14-D (Continued)

season (the season ending March of 2023). If that customer installs a new, 95% efficient heating system in July of 2023, the customer's annual projected usage will drop to 71.5 Mcf per year as of the day the new system is installed in July. (85 Mcf use x 0.80 old furnace efficiency = 68 Mcf heat requirement; 68 Mcf heat requirement/0.95 new furnace efficiency = 71.5 Mcf use) The Company's method captures this new, lower usage resulting from an installation prior to the end of the FPFTY and is appropriate to include in an annualization.

B. Yes. Please see the response to A above.

Prepared by or under the supervision of: Sherry A. Epler

UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division	ential Service - Rate Schedules R & RT	lation of the Effect of Proposed Rates	Months Ending September 30, 2023
IÐN	Residentia	Calculatio	12-Mon

Pro Forma

Line		Consumption							P	oposed	P	oposed	
No. Description	Number of Bills	Mcf	0	urrent Rate	Curre	nt Revenue	Propo:	ed Rate	R	evenue	Rever	nue Change	% Change
:	(A)	(B)		(C)		(D)		E)		(F)		(B)	
1 Non-Heating Customer Charge	272,784		ŝ	14.60	ŝ	3,982,646	s, ·	19.95	ა. •	5,442,041	s ·	1,459,394	
2 Non Heating Distribution Charges		435,108	Ŷ	4.1104	Ŷ	1,788,468	Ŷ	4.9996	Ŷ	2,175,366	ჯ	386,898	
3 Heating Customer Charge	7,120,800		ዯ	14.60	\$ 10	33,963,680	Ŷ	19.95	\$ 7	2,059,960	\$ \$	38,096,280	
4 GET Gas Customer Charge	5,988		Ŷ	28.25	Ŷ	169,164	Ŷ	28.25	Ŷ	169,164	Ŷ	,	
5 Heating Distribution Charges		51,571,875	Ŷ	4.1104	\$ 21	11,981,035	Ŷ	4.9996	\$ 5	7,838,746	Ş	45,857,711	
	on control of												
6 Increase in Usage per Customer - Post FPFTY	0.1307	77.061	ŝ	4.1104	ŝ	316.752	Ś	4.9996	Ś	385.274			
7 Company Claim	87.8318	51.571.875	01	4.1104	\$ 21	11.981.035	0	4.9996	\$ 5	7.838.746			
8 <u>Total Heating</u>	87.9625	51,648,936	\$	4.1104	\$ 21	12,297,787	\$	4.9996	\$	8,224,020			
9 State Tax Adjustment Surcharge (STAS) - Rider A				0.00%	Ŷ			0.00%	Ŷ		Ŷ		
10 Increase in Usage per Customer - Post FPFTY		65,862	Ŷ	6.2767	Ŷ	413,399	Ŷ	6.2767	Ŷ	413,399			
 Purchased Gas Costs (PGC) - Rider B 	0.85468	45,375,042 45,440,904	ŝ	6.2767	\$ 28 \$ 28	34,805,526 35,218,925	Ŷ	6.2767	\$ 28 \$ 28	14,805,526 15,218,925	\$		
 Merchant Function Charge (MFC) - Rider D Adjustment 		45,375,042 65,862		2.17%	ŝ	6,180,280 8.971		2.27%	Ŷ	6,465,085 9.384	Ś	284,806	
15 I&EMFC		45,440,904		2.17%	Ŷ	6,189,251		2.27%	Ŷ	6,474,470			
16 Gas Procurement Charge (GPC) - Rider E		45,375,042	Ŷ	0.0660	Ş	2,994,753	Ŷ	0.0660	Ŷ	2,994,753	Ŷ	·	
17 Adjustment		65,862				4,347				4,347			
18 I&E GPC		45,440,904	ጭ	0.0660	ዯ	2,999,100	ŝ	0.0660	Ŷ	2,999,100			
19 Universal Service Program (USP) - Rider F	0.92736	49,233,290	Ŷ	0.3562	\$	17,536,898	Ŷ	0.3562	ŝ	7,536,898	Ŷ		
20 Adjustment		(932,631)				(332,203)				(332,203)			
21 I&E USP		48,300,659	ዯ	0.3562	Ŷ	17,204,695	ዯ	0.3562	Ś	.7,204,695			
22 Energy Efficiency & Conservation Rider (EEC) - Rider G		52,006,983	Ŷ	0.2077	\$	10,801,850	Ŷ	0.2077	\$	0,801,850	Ŷ		
23 Adjustment 24 I&E EEC		77,061 52,084,044	Ŷ	0.2077	Ś	16,006 10,817,856	Ŷ	0.2077	ŝ	16,006 .0,817,856			
											4		
25 Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC) - Rider I 26 Adjustmont		I		5.00%	۰ ۲	17,969,939 604		0.00%	Ŷ		с. С	17,969,939)	
				5.00%	ş	17,970,632		0.00%	Ş		ŝ	17,970,632)	
28 Company Claim	7,393,584	52,006,983			\$ 66	52,174,239			\$ 7	0,289,390			
29 I&E Adjustment		77,061			ŝ	427,964			ŝ	496,207			
30 Total - Rates R/RT	7,393,584	52,084,044			\$ 66	52,602,203			\$ 7	0,785,596	ŝ	58,183,393	10.3%
21 Durchased Gas Costs					5 <i>C1</i> 2	24 805 526)			SC) \$	M 805 576)			
					5				r 1	lozr'roo't			
32 Total Distribution Costs					\$ 37	77,796,677			\$ 4	5,980,070			

Regression Results:	0.819457 Constant
-	0.000517 HDD-1
	0.013939 HDD
	-0.00034 Trend

	Normal Degree	Normal Degree Days for Prior	HDD Weighted		1 Month	12 Months
0	Days (HDD)	Month (HDD-1)	Irend		UPC	Ended UPC
Oct-03	350	83	4		5.7397	
NOV-03	672	350	10		10.3648	
Jon-04	902	072	10		14.4329	
Feb-04	962	1 1 2 0	12		14 8036	
Mar-04	805	962	10		12 5342	
Apr-04	414	805	4		7 0044	
Mav-04	164	414	2		3.3187	
Jun-04	30	164	0		1.3222	
Jul-04	0	30	0		0.8350	
Aug-04	16	0	0		1.0424	
Sep-04	83	16	1	FY04	1.9843	90.3008
Oct-04	350	83	4		5.7396	90.3007
Nov-04	672	350	8		10.3645	90.3004
Dec-04	952	672	11		14.4325	90.3000
Jan-05	1,120	952	13		14 9032	90.2995
Mar-05	805	962	9		12 5338	90 2988
Apr-05	414	805	5		7.0042	90.2986
May-05	164	414	2		3.3186	90.2986
Jun-05	30	164	0		1.3222	90.2986
Jul-05	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2986
Aug-05	16	0	0		1.0424	90.2986
Sep-05	83	16	1	FY05	1.9843	90.2985
Oct-05	350	83	4		5.7394	90.2984
NOV-05	672	350	8		10.3642	90.2981
Dec-05	952	072	12		14.4322	90.2977
Feb-06	962	1 120	12		14 8028	90 2969
Mar-06	805	962	10		12,5335	90.2965
Apr-06	414	805	5		7.0041	90.2964
May-06	164	414	2		3.3185	90.2963
Jun-06	30	164	0		1.3222	90.2963
Jul-06	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2963
Aug-06	16	0	0	51/00	1.0424	90.2963
Sep-06	83	10	1	FYU6	1.9843	90.2962
Nov-06	672	350	5 0		10 3639	90.2901
Dec-06	952	672	13		14.4318	90.2954
Jan-07	1.120	952	16		16.9173	90.2950
Feb-07	962	1,120	13		14.8024	90.2946
Mar-07	805	962	11		12.5332	90.2943
Apr-07	414	805	6		7.0039	90.2941
May-07	164	414	2		3.3185	90.2940
Jun-07	30	164	0		1.3222	90.2940
Jui-07	16	30	0		0.8350	90.2940
Sen-07	83	16	0	EY 07	1.0424	90.2940
Oct-07	350	83	5	1107	5.7391	90.2938
Nov-07	672	350	10		10.3637	90.2936
Dec-07	952	672	14		14.4314	90.2932
Jan-08	1,120	952	17		16.9168	90.2927
Feb-08	962	1,120	15		14.8021	90.2923
Mar-08	805	962	12		12.5328	90.2920
Apr-08	414	805	6		7.0037	90.2918
May-08	164	414	3		3.3184	90.2918
Jun-08	30	104	0		0.8350	90.2917
Aug-08	16	30 0	0		1 0424	90 2917
Sep-08	83	16	1	FY 08	1 9842	90 2917
Oct-08	350	83	6		5.7390	90.2916
Nov-08	672	350	11		10.3634	90.2913
Dec-08	952	672	15		14.4310	90.2909
Jan-09	1,120	952	18		16.9164	90.2904
Feb-09	962	1,120	16		14.8017	90.2900
Mar-09	805	962	13		12.5325	90.2897
Apr-09	414	805	7		7.0036	90.2895

0.819457 Constant
0.000517 HDD-1
0.013939 HDD
-0.00034 Trend

		Normal Degree				
	Normal Degree	Days for Prior	HDD Weighted		1 Month	12 Months
	Days (HDD)	Month (HDD-1)	Trend		UPC	Ended UPC
May-09	164	414	3		3.3183	90.2895
Jul-09	30	104	1		0.8350	90.2895
Aug-09	16	0	0		1.0424	90.2895
Sep-09	83	16	1	FY 09	1.9842	90.2894
Oct-09	350	83	6		5.7388	90.2893
Nov-09	672	350	12		10.3631	90.2890
Dec-09	952	672	17		14.4306	90.2886
Jan-10 Feb-10	1,120	902	20		14 8013	90.2002
Mar-10	902 805	962	14		12.5322	90.2874
Apr-10	414	805	7		7.0034	90.2873
May-10	164	414	3		3.3182	90.2872
Jun-10	30	164	1		1.3221	90.2872
Jul-10	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2872
Aug-10 Sop-10	16	0	0	EV 10	1.0424	90.2872
Oct-10	350	83	2	1110	5 7387	90.2872
Nov-10	672	350	12		10.3628	90.2867
Dec-10	952	672	18		14.4302	90.2863
Jan-11	1,120	952	21		16.9154	90.2859
Feb-11	962	1,120	18		14.8009	90.2855
Mar-11	805	962	15		12.5319	90.2852
Apr-11 Mov-11	414	805 /1/	8		7.0032	90.2850
Jun-11	30	164	1		1 3221	90 2849
Jul-11	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2849
Aug-11	16	0	0		1.0424	90.2849
Sep-11	83	16	2	FY 11	1.9841	90.2849
Oct-11	350	83	7		5.7386	90.2847
Nov-11	6/2	350	13		10.3626	90.2845
Jan-12	1 120	952	22		16 9150	90 2836
Feb-12	962	1,120	19		14.8005	90.2832
Mar-12	805	962	16		12.5315	90.2829
Apr-12	414	805	8		7.0030	90.2827
May-12	164	414	3		3.3181	90.2827
Jun-12	30	164	1		1.3221	90.2826
Jui-12 Aug-12	16	30	0		1 0424	90.2826
Sep-12	83	16	2	FY 12	1.9841	90.2826
Oct-12	350	83	7		5.7384	90.2825
Nov-12	672	350	14		10.3623	90.2822
Dec-12	952	672	20		14.4294	90.2818
Jan-13	1,120	952	24		16.9145	90.2813
Mar-13	902 805	1,120	20		14.6001	90.2809
Apr-13	414	805	9		7.0029	90.2805
May-13	164	414	4		3.3180	90.2804
Jun-13	30	164	1		1.3221	90.2804
Jul-13	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2804
Aug-13	16	0	0	EV 42	1.0424	90.2804
Sep-13 Oct-13	83	16	2	FY 13	1.9840	90.2803
Nov-13	672	350	15		10.3620	90 2799
Dec-13	952	672	21		14.4291	90.2795
Jan-14	1,120	952	25		16.9141	90.2791
Feb-14	962	1,120	22		14.7997	90.2787
Mar-14	805	962	18		12.5309	90.2783
Apr-14 May 14	414	805	9		7.0027	90.2782
Jun-14	30	414	4		1 3221	90.2781 90.2781
Jul-14	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2781
Aug-14	16	0	0		1.0424	90.2781
Sep-14	83	16	2	FY 14	1.9840	90.2781
Oct-14	350	83	8		5.7381	90.2779
Nov-14	672	350	16		10.3617	90.2776

Regression Results:	0.819457 Constant
-	0.000517 HDD-1
	0.013939 HDD
	-0.00034 Trend

		Normal Degree				
	Normal Degree	Days for Prior	HDD Weighted		1 Month	12 Months
	Days (HDD)	Month (HDD-1)	Trend		UPC	Ended UPC
Dec-14	952	672	22		14.4287	90.2773
Jan-15 Fob 15	1,120	952	26		16.9136	90.2768
Hep-15 Mar-15	962 805	1,120	23		12 5305	90.2764
Apr-15	414	805	10		7 0025	90.2759
May-15	164	414	4		3.3179	90.2758
Jun-15	30	164	1		1.3221	90.2758
Jul-15	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2758
Aug-15	16	0	0		1.0423	90.2758
Sep-15	83	16	2	FY 15	1.9840	90.2758
Oct-15	350	83	9		5.7380	90.2756
Dec-15	952	672	23		14 4283	90.2754
Jan-16	1.120	952	28		16.9132	90.2745
Feb-16	962	1,120	24		14.7989	90.2741
Mar-16	805	962	20		12.5302	90.2738
Apr-16	414	805	10		7.0024	90.2736
May-16	164	414	4		3.3178	90.2736
Jun-16	30	164	1		1.3221	90.2736
Jui-16	0 16	30	0		0.8350	90.2736
Sep-16	83	16	2	FY 16	1.9839	90.2735
Oct-16	350	83	9		5.7378	90.2734
Nov-16	672	350	17		10.3612	90.2731
Dec-16	952	672	25		14.4279	90.2727
Jan-17	1,120	952	29		16.9127	90.2722
Feb-17	962	1,120	25		14.7985	90.2719
Apr-17	805 /1/	902 805	21		7 0022	90.2715
May-17	164	414	4		3 3178	90 2713
Jun-17	30	164	1		1.3221	90.2713
Jul-17	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2713
Aug-17	16	0	0		1.0423	90.2713
Sep-17	83	16	2	FY 17	1.9839	90.2712
Oct-17	350	83	9		5.7377	90.2711
NOV-17	072	350	18		10.3609	90.2708
Jan-18	1.120	952	30		16.9122	90.2700
Feb-18	962	1,120	26		14.7981	90.2696
Mar-18	805	962	22		12.5296	90.2693
Apr-18	414	805	11		7.0020	90.2691
May-18	164	414	5		3.3177	90.2690
Jun-18	30	164	1		1.3220	90.2690
Jui-18	16	30	0		1 0/23	90.2090
Sep-18	83	16	2	FY 18	1.9838	90.2690
Oct-18	350	83	10		5.7376	90.2688
Nov-18	672	350	19		10.3606	90.2685
Dec-18	952	672	27		14.4271	90.2682
Jan-19	1,120	952	32		16.9118	90.2677
Feb-19 Mor-10	962	1,120	27		14.7977	90.2673
Apr-19	414	902 805	12		7 0019	90.2668
May-19	164	414	5		3.3176	90.2667
Jun-19	30	164	1		1.3220	90.2667
Jul-19	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2667
Aug-19	16	0	0		1.0423	90.2667
Sep-19	83	16	2	FY 19	1.9838	90.2667
UCT-19	350	83	10		5./3/4	90.2665
Dec-19	072	30U 672	20		14 4267	90.2003 90.2659
Jan-20	1.120	952	33		16.9113	90.2654
Feb-20	962	1,120	28		14.7973	90.2650
Mar-20	805	962	24		12.5289	90.2647
Apr-20	414	805	12		7.0017	90.2645
May-20	164	414	5		3.3176	90.2645
Jun-20	30	164	1		1.3220	90.2645

0.819457 Constant
0.000517 HDD-1
0.013939 HDD
-0.00034 Trend

		Normal Degree					
	Normal Degree	Days for Prior	HDD Weighted		1 Month	12 Months	
	Davs (HDD)	Month (HDD-1)	Trend		UPC	Ended UPC	
Jul-20	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2645	
Aug-20	16	0	0		1.0423	90.2644	
Sep-20	83	16	3	FY 20	1.9838	90.2644	
Oct-20	350	83	11		5.7373	90.2643	
Nov-20	672	350	20		10.3601	90.2640	
Dec-20	952	672	29		14.4263	90,2636	
Jan-21	1,120	952	34		16.9109	90,2632	
Feb-21	962	1,120	30		14.7969	90.2628	
Mar-21	805	962	25		12.5286	90.2624	
Apr-21	414	805	13		7.0015	90.2623	
May-21	164	414	5		3.3175	90.2622	
Jun-21	30	164	1		1.3220	90.2622	
Jul-21	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2622	
Aug-21	16	0	1		1.0423	90.2622	
Sep-21	83	16	3	FY 21	1.9837	90.2621	
Oct-21	350	83	11		5.7371	90.2620	
Nov-21	672	350	21		10.3598	90.2617	
Dec-21	952	672	30		14.4259	90.2613	
Jan-22	1,120	952	36		16.9104	90.2609	
Feb-22	962	1,120	31		14.7966	90.2605	
Mar-22	805	962	26		12.5282	90.2602	Historic Test Year Annualized FY 21
Apr-22	414	805	13		7.0014	90.2600	
May-22	164	414	5		3.3174	90.2599	
Jun-22	30	164	1		1.3220	90.2599	
Jul-22	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2599	
Aug-22	16	0	1		1.0423	90.2599	
Sep-22	83	16	3	FY 22	1.9837	90.2599	
Oct-22	350	83	11		5.7370	90.2597	
Nov-22	672	350	22		10.3596	90.2595	
Dec-22	952	672	31		14.4256	90.2591	
Jan-23	1,120	952	37		16.9100	90.2586	
Feb-23	962	1,120	32		14.7962	90.2582	
Mar-23	805	962	27		12.5279	90.2579	Future Test Year Annualized FY 22
Apr-23	414	805	14		7.0012	90.2577	
May-23	164	414	5		3.3174	90.2576	
Jun-23	30	164	1		1.3220	90.2576	
Jul-23	0	30	0		0.8350	90.2576	
Aug-23	16	0	1		1.0423	90.2576	
Sep-23	83	16	3	FY 23	1.9837	90.2576	Fully Projected Future Test Year FY 23
Oct-23	350	83	12		5.7368	90.2575	
Nov-23	672	350	23		10.3593	90.2572	
Dec-23	952	672	33		14.4252	90.2568	
Jan-24	1,120	952	38		16.9095	90.2563	
Feb-24	962	1,120	33		14.7958	90.2559	
Mar-24	805	962	28		12.5276	90.2556	Fully Projected Future Test Year Annualized FY 23

Pro Forma

Line			Consumption							Ā	oposed	P	roposed	
Ň.	Description	Number of Bills	Mcf	0	urrent Rate	Curr	ent Revenue	Propo	sed Rate	æ	evenue	Rever	nue Change	% Change
		(A)	(B)		(C)		(D)		(E)		(F)		(G)	
-	Non-Heating Customer Charge	272,784		ŝ	14.60	ŝ	3,982,646	ŝ	19.95	ŝ	5,442,041	ŝ	1,459,394	
7	Non Heating Distribution Charges		435,108	Ŷ	4.1104	Ŷ	1,788,468	Ŷ	4.9996	Ŷ	2,175,366	Ŷ	386,898	
ŝ	Heating Customer Charge	7,120,800		Ŷ	14.60	Ş	103,963,680	Ŷ	19.95	Ş 1	42,059,960	\$	38,096,280	
4	GET Gas Customer Charge	5,988		Ŷ	28.25	Ŷ	169,164	Ş	28.25	Ŷ	169,164	Ŷ	·	
S	Heating Distribution Charges		51,571,875	Ŷ	4.1104	ŝ	211,981,035	Ŷ	4.9996	\$ 2	57,838,746	Ş	45,857,711	
ú	Inrease in Ileans nor Customor - Doct EDETV	Average	1 110 867	v	V 110A	v	5 077 520	v	1 0006	v	7 202 758			
7 C	find case in usage per customer - rost rrrit Commany Claim	021979 021979	L,440,007 E1 E71 87E	γv	4,1104	ς. τυ	211 021 025	γv		r v	967,602,7			
~ ∞	Company canno Total Heating	90.2576	53,012,742	ጉጭ	4.1104	ς γς	217,903,574	ጉጭ	4.9996	γ. γ. γ.	65,042,505			
1														
ი	State Tax Adjustment Surcharge (STAS) - Rider A				0.00%	ŝ			00.00%	ŝ		ŝ		
10	Increase in Usage per Customer - Post FPFTY		1,231,480	Ŷ	6.2767	Ŷ	7,729,631	Ŷ	6.2767	Ŷ	7,729,631			
11 12	Purchased Gas Costs (PGC) - Rider B	0.85468	45,375,042 46,606,522	ŝ	6.2767	\$	284,805,526 292,535,158	ŝ	6.2767	\$ \$ 5	84,805,526 92,535,158	ŝ	,	
13	Merchant Function Charge (MFC) - Rider D Admistment		45,375,042 1 231 480		2.17%	Ŷ	6,180,280 167 733		2.27%	Ş	6,465,085 175 463	Ŷ	284,806	
15	I&E MFC		46,606,522		2.17%	Ŷ	6,348,013		2.27%	Ŷ	6,640,548			
16	Gas Procurement Charge (GPC) - Rider E		45.375.042	С	0.0660	ŝ	2.994.753	÷.	0.0660	Ś	2.994.753	Ś	,	
17	Adjustment		1.231.480	ŀ		ŀ	81.278	ŀ		F	81.278	ŀ		
18	I&É GPC		46,606,522	Ŷ	0.0660	Ŷ	3,076,030	Ş	0.0660	Ŷ	3,076,030			
01	nivorod Convico Drogram (CD Didor E	96760 0	000 220 00	÷	0 256.0	v	17 526 000	÷	0 2567	÷	17 536 000	v		
	universari service ruggi ann (oor) - nuaer i Adiustment	00170.0	337,108	Դ	70000	ጉ	118.297	Դ	20000	ጉ	118,297	ጉ	I	
21	I&E USP		49,565,398	Ŷ	0.3562	Ŷ	17,655,195	Ŷ	0.3562	Ŷ	17,655,195			
22	Energy Efficiency & Conservation Rider (EEC) - Rider G		52,006,983	Ŷ	0.2077	Ŷ	10,801,850	Ŷ	0.2077	ŝ	10,801,850	Ŷ		
23	Adjustment		1,440,867				299,268				299,268			
24	I&E EEC		53,447,850	Ŷ	0.2077	Ŷ	11,101,118	Ŷ	0.2077	Ŷ	11,101,118			
25	Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC) - Rider I				5.00%	Ŷ	17,969,939		0.00%	Ŷ		\$ \$	17,969,939)	
26	Adjustment						329,456				·			
27	I&E DSIC				5.00%	ŝ	18,299,394		0.00%	ہ ہ	-	s S	18,299,394)	
20	Company Claim 18.5 Adiinthmont	1,393,584	52,006,983 1 AAD 967			~ v	662,1/4,239 14 648 203			~ v	30,289,390 15 607 605			
67 08	rec Aujustment Total - Rates R/RT	7 393 584	1,440,007 53 447 850			n v	14,046,202 676 877 441			r v	45 897 085	v	69 074 643	10.2%
De	IDLAI - NALES NY NI	+0C'CCC'1	000'/##'00			ĥ	144,220,010			ĥ	con' /co'c+	r 1	C+0'+/0'c0	707
31	Purchased Gas Costs					\$ (5	284,805,526)			\$ (2	84,805,526)			
32	Total Distribution Costs					\$ \$	392,016,915			\$ 4	61,091,558			

UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division Docket No. R-2021-3030218 UGI Gas 2022 Base Rate Case Responses to I&E (RS-24 thru 27) Delivered on March 28, 2022

<u>I&E-RS-27</u>

Request:

Reference the \$1,998,000 of other miscellaneous revenue shown on UGI Gas Book 9, Schedule E, page 4.

- A. Provide the top five sources of miscellaneous revenue.
- B. Describe how this \$1,998,000 was determined and provide the supporting documents and rationale for projecting \$1,998,000.
- C. In the last base rate case at Docket R-2019-3015162, the Company projected \$47,000 of other miscellaneous revenue. Provide the rationale for the large increase since the last case.
- D. Provide the monthly amount of other miscellaneous revenue received each month from October 2018 through February 2022.

Response:

- A. In the FPFTY, the top sources are:
 - 1. Reconnect fees \$580,000
 - 2. Returned check fees \$338,000
 - 3. POR Admin Fee \$72,000
 - 4. Other \$4,000
 - 5. Turn-on charges \$1,000

The other miscellaneous revenue inadvertently included the company share portion of off-system sales that should be reflected below the line for ratemaking purposes in an amount of \$1,003,000. Accordingly, the \$1,998,000 other miscellaneous revenue will be adjusted downward by \$1,003,000 to \$995,000 at an appropriate time during this proceeding.

B. The miscellaneous revenue was budgeted using a monthly three-year average. Please see Attachment I&E-RS-27(B).

UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division Docket No. R-2021-3030218 UGI Gas 2022 Base Rate Case Responses to I&E (RS-24 thru 27) Delivered on March 28, 2022

I&E-RS-27 (Continued)

- C. The adjusted miscellaneous revenue of \$995,000 in the request includes revenue from accounts 488 and 495, which totaled \$971,000 in the company's last base rate case at Docket No. R-2019-3015162.
- D. Please see Attachment I&E-RS-27(D).

Prepared by or under the supervision of: Tracy A. Hazenstab

Attachment I&E-RS-27(B) T. A. Hazenstab Page 1 of 1

UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division Other Miscellaneous Revenue - Budget Support (\$ in thousands)

	<u>FY18</u>	<u>FY19</u>	<u>FY20</u>	FY21	<u></u>	Y23 - Budget*	<u>Notes</u>
October	\$ 34	\$ 235	\$ 204	\$ 29	\$	156	Average FY19, 20, 21
November	44	141	133	29	\$	101	Average FY19, 20, 21
December	28	44	57	45	\$	49	Average FY19, 20, 21
January	34	51	60	47	\$	53	Average FY19, 20, 21
February	33	45	54	51	\$	50	Average FY19, 20, 21
March	36	48	49	51	\$	49	Average FY19, 20, 21
April	98	193	34	59	\$	95	Average FY19, 20, 21
May	141	143	27	205	\$	125	Average FY19, 20, 21
June	114	67	24	246	\$	112	Average FY19, 20, 21
July	82	52	24	N/A	\$	53	Average FY18, 19, 20
August	110	89	22	N/A	\$	73	Average FY18, 19, 20
September	130	79	29	N/A	\$	79	Average FY18, 19, 20
Total	\$ 884	\$ 1,186	\$ 715	\$ 763	\$	995	-

*Calculated using a monthly 3-year average.

**July - September 2021 data was not used in the budgeting process as it was not available at the time of calculation.

Attachment I&E-RS-27(D) T. A. Hazenstab Page 1 of 1

UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division Actual Other Miscellaneous Revenue (\$ in thousands)

	<u>FY19</u>	<u>FY20</u>	FY21	E	- <u>Y22</u>
October	\$ 235	\$ 204	\$ 29	\$	236
November	141	133	29		235
December	44	57	45		67
January	51	60	47		64
February	45	54	51		64
March	48	49	51		
April	193	34	59		
May	143	27	205		
June	67	24	246		
July	52	24	185		
August	89	22	174		
September	79	29	228		
Total	\$ 1,186	\$ 715	\$ 1,350	\$	666

*Includes returned check fees, turn on charges, reconnect fees and other fees

		SUUC		IRCHASE	00 S S S S S	ST RATES				
			PERC	ENTAGE I	NCREASE	S				
		CALCL	JLATED PE	ER THE OF	FICE OF 1	RIAL STAF	Ŀ			
	T.W. PHILLIPS	NFG	PGW	COLUMBIA	PEOPLES	EQUITABLE	UGICP	ngi	UGI PENN	PECO
	(Mcf)	(Mcf)	(Mcf)	(Mcf)	(Mcf)	(Mcf)	(Dth)	(Mcf)	(Mcf)	(Mcf)
	Residential		(1)					PGC-1		
PGC 2008 1307-f Rates										
PGC Rate In Effect Prior To Ann	ual Review									
Approved rate	\$ 11.1773	\$ 10.8642	\$ 13.0236	\$ 15.9395	\$ 15.8944	\$ 16.46	\$ 12.7949	\$ 13.2610	\$ 11.6820	\$ 13.1553
Rates per Annual Review + 4th C	Quarterly PGC	2008								
Date rates effective	Aug 1, 2008	Aug 1, 2008	Sep 1, 2008	Oct 1, 2008	Oct 1, 2008	Oct 1, 2008	Dec 1, 2008	Dec 1, 2008	Dec 1, 2008	Dec 1, 2008
Approved rate	\$ 12.8933	\$ 15.6622	\$ 12.6527	\$ 13.1362	\$ 11.8010	\$ 14.45	\$ 11.6268	\$ 10.8186	\$ 11.1873	\$ 10.1340
Rate increase/(decrease)	\$ 1.7160	\$ 4.7980	\$ (0.3709)	\$ (2.8033)	\$ (4.0934)	\$ (2.01)	\$ (1.1681)	\$ (2.4424)	\$ (0.4947)	\$ (3.0213)
Percentage Increase/(decrease)	15.4	44.2	(2.8)	(17.6)	(25.8)	(12.2)	(9.1)	(18.4)	(4.2)	(23.0)
1st Quarterly										
Date rates effective	Nov 1, 2008	Nov 1, 2008	Jan 1, 2009	Jan 1, 2009	Jan 1, 2009	Jan 1, 2009	Mar 1, 2009	Mar 1, 2009	Mar 1, 2009	Mar 1, 2009
Approved rate	\$ 11.5724	\$ 11.8311	\$ 10.7007	\$ 11.5744	\$ 10.6628	\$ 13.07	\$ 9.6198	\$ 9.8844	\$ 10.3977	\$ 8.5973
Rate increase/(decrease)	\$ (1.3209)	\$ (3.8311)	\$ (1.9520)	\$ (1.5618)	\$ (1.1382)	\$ (1.38)	\$ (2.0070)	\$ (0.9342)	\$ (0.7896)	\$ (1.5367)
Percentage Increase/(decrease)	(10.2)	(24.5)	(15.4)	(11.9)	(9.6)	(9.6)	(17.3)	(8.6)	(7.1)	(15.2)
2nd Quarterly										
Date rates effective	Feb 1, 2009	Feb 1, 2009	Mar 1. 2009	Apr 1, 2009	Apr 1, 2009	Apr 1, 2009	June 1, 2009	June 1, 2009	June 1, 2009	June 1, 2009
Approved rate	\$ 9.5232	\$ 10.5313	\$ 8.4192	\$ 7.6561	\$ 8.8739	\$ 9.51	\$ 8.2398	\$ 9.8844	\$ 10.3977	\$ 7.0864
Rate increase/(decrease)	\$ (2.0492)	\$ (1.2998)	\$ (2.2815)	\$ (3.9183)	\$ (1.7889)	\$ (3.56)	\$ (1.3800)	ج	۰ ډ	\$ (1.5109)
Percentage Increase/(decrease)	(17.7)	(11.0)	(21.3)	(33.9)	(16.8)	(27.2)	(14.4)	0.0	0.0	(17.6)
3rd Quarterly										
Date rates effective	May 1, 2009	May 1, 2009	June 1, 2009	July 1, 2009	July 1, 2009	July 1, 2009	Sep 1, 2009	Sep 1, 2009	Sep 1, 2009	Sep 1, 2009
Approved rate	\$ 7.1266	\$ 9.3880	\$ 7.1815	\$ 5.7345	\$ 7.0040	9.51	\$ 6.8720	\$ 9.8844	\$ 10.3977	\$ 7.0864
Rate increase/(decrease)	\$ (2.3966)	\$ (1.1433)	\$ (1.2377)	\$ (1.9216)	\$ (1.8699)		\$ (1.3678)	- \$	- \$	- \$
Percentage Increase/(decrease)	(25.2)	(10.9)	(14.7)	(25.1)	(21.1)	0.0	(16.6)	0.0	0.0	0.0
Quarterly										
Data rates effective										
Approved rate										
Rate increase/(decrease)										
Percentage Increase/(decrease)										

I&E Exhibit No. 4 Schedule 6 Page 1 of 2

		2007	2008 PU	RCHASED	GAS COS	T RATES				
			PERC	ENTAGE II	NCREASE	0				
		CALCU	LATED PE	R THE OF	FICE OF T	RIAL STAI	Ľ.			
	T.W. PHILLIPS	NFG	PGW	COLUMBIA	PEOPLES	EQUITABLE	PPL	NGI	UGI PENN	PECO
	(Mcf) Decidential	(Mcf)	(Mcf)	(Mcf)	(Mcf)	(Mcf)	(Dth)	(Mcf)	(Mcf)	(Mcf)
PGC 2007 1307-f Rates	Residential							->>		
PGC Rate In Effect Prior To Annu	ual Review									
Approved rate	\$ 8.6918	\$ 9.5156	\$ 10.7251	\$ 9.6377	\$ 9.8564	\$ 11.27	\$ 10.1196	\$ 11.4847	\$ 10.3757	\$ 10.5897
Rates per Annual Review + 4th Q	uarterly PGC	2006								
Date rates effective	Aug 1, 2007	Aug 1, 2007	Sep 1, 2007	Oct 1, 2007	Oct 1, 2007	Oct 1, 2007	Dec 1, 2007	Dec 1, 2007	Dec 1, 2007	Dec 1, 2007
Approved rate	\$ 8.6576	\$ 10.7211	\$ 10.1108	\$ 10.2488	\$ 9.6720	\$ 11.81	\$ 9.2574	\$ 11.2370	\$ 10.2420	\$ 10.0462
Rate increase/(decrease)	\$ (0.0342)	\$ 1.2055	\$ (0.6143)	\$ 0.6111	\$ (0.1844)	\$ 0.54	\$ (0.8622)	\$ (0.25)	\$ (0.13)	\$ (0.5435)
Percentage Increase/(decrease)	(0.4)	12.7	(5.7)	6.3	(1.9)	4.8	(8.5)	(2.2)	(1.3)	(5.1)
1st Quarterly										
Date rates effective	Nov 1, 2007	Nov 1, 2007	Dec 1, 2007	Jan 1, 2008	Jan 1, 2008	Jan 1, 2008	Mar 1, 2008	Mar 1, 2008	Mar 1, 2008	Mar 1, 2008
Approved rate	\$ 8.9469	\$ 10.3375	\$ 10.5779	\$ 10.2488	\$ 9.5314	\$ 11.81	\$ 9.9747	\$ 11.7870	\$ 10.6620	\$ 11.1009
Rate increase/(decrease)	\$ 0.2893	\$ (0.3836)	\$ 0.4671	\$	\$ (0.1406)	ۍ ه	\$ 0.7173	0.55	0.42	\$ 1.0547
Percentage Increase/(decrease)	3.3	(3.6)	4.6	0.0	(1.5)	0.0	7.8	4.9	4.1	10.5
Sad Ottorio										
	- - -	- -							-	
Date rates effective	Feb 1, 2008	Feb 1, 2008	Mar 1, 2008	Apr 1, 2008	Apr 1, 2008	Apr 1, 2008	June 1, 2008	June 1, 2008	June 1, 2008	June 1, 2008
Approved rate	\$ 9.5364	\$ 10.0774	\$ 10.7226	\$ 11.6959	\$ 12.4390	\$ 13.97	\$ 11.0103	\$ 13.2610	\$ 11.6820	\$ 14.0615
Rate increase/(decrease)	\$ 0.5895	\$ (0.2601)	\$ 0.1447	\$ 1.4471	\$ 2.9076	\$ 2.16	\$ 1.0356	\$ 1.47	\$ 1.02	\$ 2.9606
Percentage Increase/(decrease)	6.6	(2.5)	1.4	14.1	30.5	18.3	10.4	12.5	9.6	26.7
3rd Quarterly										
Date rates effective	Mav 1. 2008	Mav 1. 2008	June 1. 2008	Julv 1. 2008	Julv 1. 2008	Julv 1. 2008	Sep 1. 2008	Sep 1. 2008	Sep 1. 2008	Sep 1. 2008
Approved rate	\$ 11.1773	\$ 10.8642	\$ 13.0236	\$ 15.9395	\$ 15.8944	16.46	\$ 12.7949	\$ 13.2610	\$ 11.6820	\$ 13.1553
Rate increase/(decrease)	\$ 1.6409	\$ 0.7868	\$ 2.3010	\$ 4.2436	\$ 3.4554	2.49	1.78			(0.91)
Percentage Increase/(decrease)	17.2	7.8	21.5	36.3	27.8	17.8	16.2	0.0	0.0	(6.4)
Quarterly										
Date rates effective										
Approved rate										
Rate increase/(decrease)										
Percentage Increase/(decrease)										

I&E Exhibit No. 4 Schedule 6 Page 2 of 2

2021 - 2022 Purchased Gas Cost Rates Percentage Increase/Decrease Compiled by the Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement

		NEC			ć	umbia Gae		nloe Gae Co	Pe	oples Natural	Ċ	Gae Division	– é	PECO Gas
		(Mcf)		(Mcf)	8	(Dth)		(Mcf)		(Mcf)	B	(Mcf)		(Mcf)
PGC 1307(f) Rates							-							
PGC Rate In Effect Prior To Ann Approved rate	ual Re	eview 3.8520	ф	3.5700	ф	3.8512	ф	4.0174	\$	3.9015	ф	5.1283	ф	4.0245
Rates per Annual Review + 4th (Quarte	erly PGC 202	0											
Date rates effective		Aug 1, 2021		Sep 1, 2021		Oct 1, 2021		Oct 1, 2021		Oct 1, 2021		Dec 1, 2021		Dec 1, 2021
Approved rate	θ	5.0214	θ	4.8745	ω	5.7280	ഗ	4.8841	θ	5.6401	θ	6.2767	ф	6.2265
Rate increase/(decrease)	θ	1.1694	θ	1.3045	θ	1.8768	θ	0.8667	θ	1.7386	ω	1.1484	θ	2.2020
Percentage Increase/(decrease)		30.4%		36.5%		48.7%		21.6%		44.6%		22.4%		54.7%
1st Quarterly														
Date rates effective		Nov 1, 2021		Dec 1, 2021		Jan 1, 2022		Jan 1, 2022		Jan 1, 2022		Mar 1, 2022		Mar 1, 2022
Approved rate	θ	6.3617	θ	6.0100	ω	5.4943	ഗ	4.7820	θ	5.2882	θ	6.2767	ф	5.8156
Rate increase/(decrease)	θ	1.3403	ω	1.1355	θ	(0.2337)	θ	(0.1021)	θ	(0.3519)	ω	·	θ	(0.4109)
Percentage Increase/(decrease)		26.7%		23.3%		-4.1%		-2.1%		-6.2%		%0.0		-6.6%
2nd Quarterly														
Date rates effective		Feb 1, 2022		Mar 1, 2022		Apr 1, 2022		Apr 1, 2022		Apr 1, 2022		June 1, 2022		June 1, 2022
Approved rate	ф	6.0807	ю	5.6123	θ	5.6572	ф	5.2937	ф	5.4084				
Rate increase/(decrease)	θ	(0.2810)	θ	(0.3977)	θ	0.1629	θ	0.5117	θ	0.1202				
Percentage Increase/(decrease)		-4.42%		-6.62%		2.96%		10.70%		2.27%				
3rd Quarterly														
Date rates effective		May 1, 2022		June 1, 2022		July 1, 2022		July 1, 2022		July 1, 2022		Sep 1, 2022		Sep 1, 2022
Approved rate Rate increase/(decrease)														

Quarterly

Percentage Increase/(decrease)

Date rates effective Approved rate Rate increase/(decrease) Percentage Increase/(decrease)

COMPILED BY THE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION & ENFORCEMENT 2020 - 2021 PURCHASED GAS COST RATES PERCENTAGE INCREASE/DECREASE

3.7356 (0.7018) -15.8% 6.5% (0.2962) -7.45% 9.33% Dec 1, 2020 3.9773 3.6811 4.0245 0.3434 4.4374 Mar 1, 2021 0.2417 June 1, 2021 Sep 1, 2021 (Rates GR/CAP) **PECO Gas** (Mcf) ഗ θ ŝ θ ω θ ഗ რ ო **UGI Gas Division** -2.8% 0.0% 5.11% 15.00% Dec 1, 2020 (0.1205) 5.1283 0.6689 June 1, 2021 4 4594 0.2168 4.2426 Mar 1, 2021 4.2426 Sep 1, 2021 4.3631 (Mcf) PGC-1 ഗ რო რო s s s s s s 16.34% 35.6% (0.4595) Gas Co. (Peoples 2.4178 3.2784 0.8606 2.8189 -14.0% 3.3535 0.5346 18.96% 3.9015 Oct 1, 2020 July 1, 2021 0.5480 Jan 1, 2021 Apr 1, 2021 Peoples Natural & Equitable) (Mcf) ഗ ფ ფ ഗഗ რ ო ფ ფ 24.7% 33.44% -16.6% 0.1435 5.00% 0.6803 2.7595 Oct 1, 2020 3.4398 Jan 1, 2021 2.8672 (0.5726) Apr 1, 2021 July 1, 2021 1.0067 Peoples Gas Co. 4.0174 3.0107 Residential (TWP) (Mcf) ю რო რო θ ÷ ი ი 4.4% 13.3% 0.00% 0.00% Oct 1, 2020 0.1442 3.8512 3.8512 July 1, 2021 3.8512 3.4004 0.4508 Apr 1, 2021 3.2562 Jan 1, 2021 **Columbia Gas** (Dth) ഗ θ ю ഗ ഗ ഗ ഗ မ ю (0.2017) -5.6% 12.8% 2.92% Sep 1, 2020 Dec 1, 2020 (0.3797) 9.87% 0.1013 3.6124 3.4107 0.4377 3.5700 3.8484 Mar 1, 2021 June 1, 2021 3.4687 PGV (Mcf) ω რ რ რ ო რ ო ŝ ¢, Rates per Annual Review + 4th Quarterly PGC 2020 Aug 1, 2020 3.6% 8.5% 4 02% 0.00% 3.6981 4.0135 (0.1615) 3.8520 3.5685 0.1296 Nov 1, 2020 0.3154 Feb 1, 2021 3.8520 May 1, 2021 NFG (Mcf) PGC Rate In Effect Prior To Annual Review θ ഗ ფ ფ რ ო ഗഗ Percentage Increase/(decrease) Percentage Increase/(decrease) Percentage Increase/(decrease) Percentage Increase/(decrease) Rate increase/(decrease) Rate increase/(decrease) Rate increase/(decrease) Rate increase/(decrease) PGC 1307(f) Rates Date rates effective Date rates effective Date rates effective Date rates effective Approved rate **2nd Quarterly** Approved rate Approved rate Approved rate Approved rate **3rd Quarterly 1st Quarterly**

Quarterly

Date rates effective Approved rate Rate increase/(decrease) Percentage Increase/(decrease)

I&E Exhibit No. 4 Schedule 7 Page 2 of 2

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Direct Testimony

of

Esyan A. Sakaya

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

Rate Base Utility Plant in Service Annual Depreciation Accumulated Depreciation Expense Reporting Requirements

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
RATE BASE	2
UTILITY PLANT-IN-SERVICE	4
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION	14
ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE	15
FTY AND FPFTY REPORTING	17

1 INTRODUCTION

2	Q.	WOULD YOU PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS?
3	А.	My name is Esyan A. Sakaya. My business address is 400 North Street, Harrisburg,
4		PA 17120.
5		
6	Q.	BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?
7	А.	I am employed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission ("Commission") in
8		the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement ("I&E") as a Fixed Utility Valuation
9		Engineer.
10		
11	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL AND PROFESSIONAL BACKGROUND?
12	А.	My education and professional background are set forth in Appendix A, which is
13		attached.
14		
15	Q.	PLEASE DESCRIBE THE ROLE OF I&E IN RATE PROCEEDINGS.
16	A.	I&E is responsible for protecting the public interest in proceedings before the
17		Commission. The I&E analysis in this proceeding is based on its responsibility to
18		represent the public interest. This responsibility requires the balancing of the interests
19		of ratepayers, the regulated utility, and the regulated community as a whole.
20	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
21	A.	The purpose of my testimony is to evaluate UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division's
22		("UGI" or "Company") request for an annual increase in operating revenue of
23		approximately \$82,700,000 using the Fully Projected Future Test Year ("FPFTY")

1		ending September 30, 2023 (UGI Gas Book No. 1, p. 6). My testimony will address
2		issues related to plant in service, proposed rate base, annual depreciation expense,
3		accumulated depreciation, and reporting requirements.
4		
5	Q.	DOES YOUR TESTIMONY INCLUDE AN EXHIBIT?
6	A.	Yes. I&E Exhibit No. 5 contains schedules relating to my testimony.
7		
8	<u>RAT</u>	E BASE
9	Q.	WHAT IS RATE BASE?
10	A.	Rate base is the depreciated original cost of a utility's investment in plant a utility has
11		in place to serve customers plus other additions and deductions that the Commission
12		determines to be necessary in order to keep the utility operating and providing safe
13		and reliable service to its customers.
14		
15	Q.	HOW IS THE DEPRECIATED ORIGINAL COST OF PLANT-IN-SERVICE
16		AT THE END OF THE TEST YEAR DETERMINED?
17	A.	The depreciated original cost is equal to the original cost of the utility plant-in-service
18		that is projected to be used and useful in the provision of service to the customers,
19		less the depreciation reserve as adjusted by other items such as salvage value and
20		removal costs. The FPFTY depreciated original cost claimed by the Company in this
21		proceeding for UGI is \$3,723,465,000 (UGI Book V, Ex. A - Fully Projected, Sch. C-
22		1, ln.3). The \$3,723,465,000 is based upon \$5,042,025,000 of original cost less

1		\$1,318,560,000 of accumulated depreciation (UGI Book V, Ex. A - Fully Projected,
2		Sch. C-1, ln. 1-2 and I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 1, column B, p 1 lines 1, 2 and 4.
3		
4	Q.	WHAT OTHER ADDITIONS AND DEDUCTIONS TO THE DEPRECIATED
5		ORIGINAL COST OF UTILITY PLANT ARE ALLOWED?
6	A.	Some of the additions to the depreciated original cost of a company's investment in
7		utility include materials and supplies, gas inventory, and cash working capital. Some
8		of the deductions include deferred income taxes and customer deposits.
9		The claimed additions to the Company's depreciated original cost are as follows:
10		1. Materials and Supplies;
11		2. Working Capital;
12		3. Gas Inventory;
13		The deductions to the depreciated original cost are:
14		1. ADIT;
15		2. Customer Deposits.
16		
17	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM FOR RATE BASE FOR THE FPFTY?
18	A.	The Company claims a FPFTY rate base, identified as Total Measure of Value, of
19		\$3,169,023,000 (UGI Book V, Ex. A - Fully Projected, Sch. C-1, ln. 9 and I&E Ex.
20		No. 5, Sch. 1, column B, p. 1, line 12).
21		
22	Q.	WHAT RATE BASE DO YOU RECOMMEND IN THIS PROCEEDING?
23	A.	I recommend that rate base be reduced by \$145,872,000 to \$3,023,151 as a result of

1 my recommended changes to the utility plant-in-service and the accumulated 2 depreciation described below (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 1, column C, p. 1, line 12). 3 4 **UTILITY PLANT-IN-SERVICE** 5 **Q**. WHAT IS UTILITY PLANT-IN-SERVICE? 6 A. Utility plant-in-service comprises all the utility's assets, including both intangible and 7 tangible assets. For example, intangible assets include organization costs, franchise 8 and consents costs, and land and land rights costs. Tangible assets include facilities 9 and equipment. Utility plant-in-service reflects the original cost of the utility's assets 10 before depreciation. UGI also includes a portion of shared corporate costs in its total 11 utility plant in service claim (UGI Book 6, p. II-5). 12

13 Q. WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIMED UTILITY PLANT-IN-SERVICE AT

14 THE END OF EACH TEST YEAR AND HOW MUCH NET PLANT IS

15 **PROJECTED TO BE ADDED IN THE FUTURE TEST YEAR AND FULLY**

16 **PROJECTED FUTURE TEST YEAR?**

17 A. The Company's utility plant-in-service claim for the FTY ending September 30, 2022

- 18 is \$4,597,404,000 (UGI Ex. A Future, Sch. C-1, ln. 1). The Company's utility plant-
- 19 in-service claim for the FPFTY ending September 30, 2023 is \$5,042,025,000 (UGI
- Ex. A Fully Projected, Sch. C-1, ln. 1). The difference in these two amounts is the
 total net plant additions from the FTY to the FPFTY, of \$444,621,000
- 22 (\$5,042,025,000 \$4,597,404,000) (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 2, column B, line 13 and
- column F line 13). The Company's utility plant in service claim for the HTY ending

1		September 30, 2021 was \$4,247,028,000 (UGI Ex A – HTY, Sch. C-1, line 1). The
2		difference between the HTY and the FTY, is \$350,376,000 (\$4,597,404,000 -
3		\$4,247,028,000) (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 2, column B, line 13 and I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch.
4		4, column D, line 17).
5		
6	Q.	WHAT DO YOU RECOMMEND REGARDING UTILITY PLANT-IN-
7		SERVICE IN THIS PROCEEDING?
8	A.	I recommend that the Company's FPFTY projected plant be reduced by \$137,649,000
9		(I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 2, column G, line 13).
10		
11	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR \$137,649,000 REDUCTION TO PLANT IN
12		SERVICE?
13	A.	I determined that over the last two base rate cases at Dockets R-2018-3006814 and R-
14		2019-3015162, the Company failed to place into service all the plant projected in
15		those cases. Since rates in those cases were based upon the plant at the end of the
16		FPFTY, this allowed the Company to receive a return on plant not placed into service
17		that established rates in those cases.
18		
19	Q.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$137,649,000 REDUCTION TO PLANT
20		IN SERVICE IN THIS CASE?
21	A.	As described below, the \$137,649,000 was determined by calculating the average
22		percentage of gas plant and common plant projected to be placed into service in the
23		last two base rate cases, then applying those percentage to the corresponding gas and
1		common plant projected to be placed into service in this case. This methodology
----	----	---
2		assumes the Company will only complete a percentage of plant projected to be
3		completed in this case.
4		
5	Q.	WHAT AMOUNT OF FPFTY PLANT WAS PROJECTED TO BE PLACED
6		INTO SERVICE IN THE 2018 CASE?
7	A.	In the 2018 base rate case, the Company projected that it would have \$3,950,991,000
8		of total plant in service by the end of the FPFTY in that case, which was September
9		30, 2020. ¹ This \$3,950,991,000 is comprised of \$3,726,871,000 of gas plant in
10		service and \$224,120,000 of UGI's share of common plant (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 4, p.
11		1, column B, lines 7 and 14).
12		
13	Q.	WHAT AMOUNT OF FPFTY PLANT WAS ACTUALLY PLACED INTO
14		SERVICE AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND WHAT WAS THE
15		DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THAT AMOUNT AND THE AMOUNT
16		PROJECTED TO BE PLACED INTO SERVICE?
17	A.	The total plant in service as of September 30, 2020 was \$3,891,210,000 comprised of
18		\$3,665,076,000 of gas plant and \$226,134,000 of the gas division's share of common
19		plant (I&E Ex. No. 5 Sch 4, p. 1, column D, lines 7 and 14). The difference between
20		the FPFTY projected plant in service in the 2018 case to the actual amount of plant in
21		service shows that UGI placed \$59,781,000 less plant into service than it projected

¹ UGI Gas Book 6, p. II-6, column 4 at Docket R-2018-3006814.

1		(\$3,950,991,000 – \$3,891,210,000) (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 4, p. 1, column C, line 17).
2		Accordingly, the Company only completed 82.0% (I&E Ex No. 5, Sch 4, p. 1 column
3		C, lines 18-20) of projected FPFTY total plant.
4		
5	Q.	DID YOU DETERMINE THE PERCENTAGE OF GAS PLANT ACTUALLY
6		PLACED INTO SERVICE COMPARED TO GAS PLANT PROJECTED TO
7		BE PLACED INTO SERVICE IN THE 2018 CASE?
8	A.	Yes. In the 2018 rate case, the Company projected it would have \$3,726,871,339 of
9		gas plant in service as of September 30, 2020. However, the Company's actual gas
10		plant in service was only \$3,665,076,106 as of that date. This is a difference of
11		\$61,795,233 (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 4, p. 1, column C, line 7). In the 2018 case, the
12		Company projected it would add \$317,833,525 of gas plant in the FPFTY (I&E Ex.
13		No. 5, Sch. 4, p. 1, column B, line 8). Comparing these two amounts indicates that
14		the Company only completed 80.56% ((\$317,833,525 - \$61,795,233) / \$317,833,525)
15		of projected FPFTY gas plant (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 4, p. 1, column C, lines 8-9).
16		
17	Q.	DID YOU DETERMINE THE PERCENTAGE OF COMMON PLANT
18		ACTUALLY PLACED INTO SERVICE COMPARED TO COMMON PLANT
19		PROJECTED TO BE PLACED INTO SERVICE IN THE 2018 CASE?
20	A.	Yes. The Company projected it would have \$224,119,817 of common plant in
21		service as of September 30, 2020, in the 2018 base rate case. However, the
22		Company's actual common plant in service was \$226,134,102. This is a difference of
23		\$2,014,284 (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 4, p. 1, column C, line 14). In the 2018 case, the

1		Company projected it would install \$15,075,391 of common plant in the FPFTY (I&E
2		Ex. No. 5, Sch. 4, p. 1, column C, line 15). Comparing these two amounts indicates
3		that the Company completed 113.36% ((\$2,014,284 + \$15,075,391) / \$15,075,391) of
4		projected common FPFTY plant (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 4, p. 1, column C, lines 15-16).
5		
6	Q.	WHAT AMOUNT OF TOTAL PLANT WAS PROJECTED TO BE PLACED
7		INTO SERVICE IN THE FPFTY IN THE 2019 BASE RATE CASE?
8	A.	In the 2019 base rate case, the Company projected that it would have \$4,324,364,000
9		of total plant in service in the FPFTY ending September 30, 2021. ² This
10		\$4,324,364,000 is comprised of \$4,051,159,000 of gas plant in service and
11		\$273,205,000 of the gas division's share of common plant (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 4, p.
12		2, column B, lines 7 and 14).
13		
14	Q.	WHAT AMOUNT OF TOTAL PLANT WAS ACTUALLY PLACED INTO
15		SERVICE IN THE FPFTY AND WHAT WAS THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN
16		THESE AMOUNTS?
17	A.	The total plant in service as of September 30, 2021 was \$4,247,028,000 comprised of
18		\$4,007,295,000 of gas plant and \$239,733,000 of the gas division's share of common
19		plant (I&E Ex. No. 5 Sch 4, p. 2, column D, lines 7 and 14). Accordingly, UGI
20		placed \$77,336,000 (\$4,324,364,000 - \$4,247,028,000) less plant in service than

² UGI Gas Book 6, p. II-5, column 4 at Docket R-2019-3015162.

projected in the 2019 base rate case (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 4, p. 2, columns B to D, line
 17).

3

4 Q. BREAKING THAT TOTAL PLANT DOWN EVEN FURTHER, WHAT 5 AMOUNT OF GAS PLANT AND COMMON PLANT PROJECTED IN THE 6 2019 RATE CASE WAS ACTUALLY PLACED INTO SERVICE?

7 A. Comparing the gas plant projected to be placed into service for the FPFTY in the

8 2019 case with the actual gas plant placed into service indicates that the Company

- 9 only completed 86.83% of projected FPFTY gas plant (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 4, p. 2,
- 10 column B, lines 7-9). Comparing the common plant projected to be placed into
- 11 service with the actual common plant placed into service indicated that the Company

12 completed 21.98% of projected common FPFTY plant (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 4, p. 2,

13 column C, lines 15-16).

14

15 Q. WHAT IS THE AVERAGE PERCENT OF PLANT COMPLETED IN THE 16 LAST TWO BASE RATE CASES?

A. The average percent of gas plant completed in the last two base rate cases was
approximately 83.69% and the average common plant completed in the last two base
rate cases was approximately 67.67% (I&E Ex No. 5, Sch. 3, column B, lines 3 and

20

6).

1	Q.	IN THE CURRENT RATE CASE, HOW MUCH GAS AND COMMON
2		PLANT DOES THE COMPANY PROJECT IT WILL ADD IN THE FTY?
3	А.	The Company is projecting it will add \$382,709,152 of gas plant in the FTY and have
4		\$27,393,337 of corresponding retirements (UGI Gas Book 7, p. V-10). The Company
5		also projects it will add \$15,694,645 of common plant in the FTY and have
6		\$20,634,175 of corresponding retirements (UGI Gas Book 7, p. V-11).
7		
8	Q.	HOW MUCH OF THE PROJECTED FTY GAS AND COMMON PLANT
9		ADDITIONS DO YOU RECOMMEND BE ALLOWED?
10	А.	Given that the Company's average gas plant completed in the last two base rate cases
11		was approximately 83.69% and the average common plant completed in the last two
12		base rate cases was approximately 67.67%, I recommend that those percentages be
13		applied to the Company's plant addition claims in this proceeding.
14		
15		This recommendation results in an allowance of \$320,305,000 (\$382,709,152 X
16		0.83694) of FTY gas plant. I also applied the approximately 83.69% factor to the gas
17		plant retirements to recommend that only \$22,927,000 (\$27,393,337, X 0.83694) of
18		retirements be reflected. Similarly, applying the 67.67% to FTY common plant,
19		results in an allowance of \$10,620,000 (\$15,694,645 X 0.67669). I also applied the
20		approximately 67.67% factor to the retirements to recommend that only \$13,963,000
21		(\$20,634,175 X 0.67669) of retirements be reflected (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch 3, column
22		B, lines 3 and 6).

1	Q.	BASED ON YOUR RECOMMENDATION ABOVE, WHAT TOTAL
2		ADJUSTMENT DO YOU RECOMMEND FOR THE PROJECTED FTY GAS
3		AND COMMON PLANT ADDITIONS?
4	A.	This recommendation reduced projected FTY total plant in service by \$56,343,000
5		(I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 2, column C, line 13).
6		
7	Q.	HOW MUCH GAS AND COMMON PLANT DOES THE COMPANY
8		PROJECT IT WILL ADD IN THE FPFTY?
9	А.	The Company is projecting it will add \$413,027,000 of gas plant in the FPFTY and
10		have \$23,722,000 of corresponding retirements (UGI Gas Book 6, p. II-9). The
11		Company also projects it will add \$63,400,000 of common plant in the FPFTY and
12		have \$8,240,000 of corresponding retirements (UGI Gas Book 6, p. II-10).
13		
14	Q.	HOW MUCH OF THE PROJECTED FPFTY GAS AND COMMON PLANT
15		ADDITIONS DO YOU RECOMMEND BE ALLOWED?
16	A.	I recommend that only approximately 83.69% of projected FPFTY gas plant be
17		included in plant in service or \$345,679,000 (\$413,026,743 X 0.83694). I also
18		applied the 83.69% factor to the gas plant retirements to recommend that only
19		\$19,896,000 (\$23,771,977, X 0.83694) of retirements be reflected. I also recommend
20		that only approximately 67.67% of projected FPFTY common plant be included in
21		plant in service or \$42,902,000 (\$63,400,078 X 0.67669). I also applied the
22		approximately 67.67% factor to the retirements to recommend that only \$5,576,000
23		(\$8,239,512 X 0.67669) of retirements be reflected.

1	Q.	BASED ON YOUR RECOMMENDATION ABOVE, WHAT TOTAL
2		ADJUSTMENT DO YOU RECOMMEND FOR THE PROJECTED FPFTY
3		GAS AND COMMON PLANT ADDITIONS?
4	A.	After considering additions, and retirements for gas and common plant, I recommend
5		projected FPFTY total plant in service be reduced by \$81,305,845 (I&E Ex. No. 5,
6		Sch. 2, p. 2, column D, line 6).
7		
8	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR TOTAL ADJUSTMENT TO PLANT IN SERVICE FOR
9		BOTH THE FTY AND FPFTY?
10	A.	The total adjustment to plant in service is \$137,649,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 1, p. 1,
11		column C, line 1).
12		
13	Q.	WHAT DID THE COMPANY CLAIM CONCERNING THE AMOUNT OF
14		PLANT COMPLETED OVER THE PAST FIVE YEARS?
15	A.	The Company claims that it completed 98.0% of plant budgeted over the past 5 years
16		(UGI Book 3, Exhibit VAS-2).
17		
18	Q.	DO THE COMPANY'S BUDGETED AMOUNTS ON EXHIBIT VAS-2
19		CORRELATE WITH WHAT THE COMPANY CLAIMED IN THE RECENT
20		BASE RATE CASE?
21	A.	No. In the 2019 case, the Company projected it would add \$405,430,000 in 2021. ³

³ UGI Book 6 page II-10, Docket R-2019-3015162

1		However, as shown on VAS-2 the "budgeted" additions for 2021 are only
2		\$389,008,000. Furthermore, even UGI's response in standard data requirements for
3		budget to actual capital expenditures reflect 93% actual completion in 2019, 85%
4		actual completion in 2020, and 89% actual completion in 2021. ⁴ It is unclear how
5		UGI reports a 98% completion of plant budgeted with this response in the standard
6		data requirements.
7		
8	Q.	IS COMPARING THE COMPANY'S PERCENT OF BUDGETED PLANT
9		COMPLETED A VALID COMPARISON?
10	A.	No. As described above, the Commission should only consider the actual plant in
11		service compared to the amount of plant claimed in the prior rate cases. The
12		Company's "budgeted" plant amounts can be adjusted over time and may not reflect
13		what was claimed in past cases. On the other hand, the Company's FPFTY plant
14		amounts cannot be changed which is why that should be used for comparison.
15		Moreover, the FPFTY amounts from the prior two cases are what the Company
16		actually sought to recover from ratepayers and are a more accurate comparison to
17		what it is seeking to recover in this proceeding.

⁴ UGI Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-15

1	Q.	ARE YOU CONCERNED THAT UTILIZING THE 2020 AND 2021
2		PANDEMIC ERA DATA IN PERFORMING YOUR ANALYSIS WILL
3		UNDERSTATE THE COMPANY'S COMPLETION RATE IN THIS FTY AND
4		FPFTY?
5	А.	No. I anticipate that supply chain difficulties, hiring difficulties, and availability of
6		outside contractors that have been an outcome of the Covid-19 pandemic will persist
7		through the FTY and FPFTY. My average completion rate for gas plant additions of
8		83.69% in this proceeding reflects my expectation of ongoing construction issues
9		related to the pandemic.
10		
11	<u>ACC</u>	UMULATED DEPRECIATION
12	Q.	WHAT IS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION?
13	A.	Accumulated depreciation is the total of all prior depreciation expense plus other
14		adjustments such as cost of removal and salvage. Accumulated depreciation reduces
15		the value of the original cost of the plant placed into service and thus reduces rate
16		base.
17		
18	Q.	IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR ADJUSTMENTS TO PLANT IN
19		SERVICE SHOULD ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ALSO BE
20		ADJUSTED?
21	А.	Yes. As described below, reducing plant in service in the FTY and FPFTY reduces
22		the accumulated depreciation that would be associated with these plant additions and
23		reduced retirements of existing plant.

1	Q.	WHAT ADJUSTMENT TO ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION DO YOU
2		RECOMMEND IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR ADJUSTMENTS
3		TO PLANT IN SERVICE?
4	A.	Accumulated depreciation should be increased from \$1,315,560,000 by \$8,223,000 to
5		\$1,326,783,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 1, p. 1, columns C and D, line 2). The
6		accumulated depreciation by account is shown on I&E Ex. No. 5. Sch. 5, pp. 1-2,
7		column F, lines 1-134).
8		
9	Q.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$1,326,783,000 ACCUMULATED
10		DEPRECIATION FOR THE FPFTY?
11	A.	After reducing the plant in service in the FTY as described above I recalculated the
12		annual depreciation expense for the FTY. The recalculated annual depreciation
13		expense was then brought forward to determine the accumulated depreciation at the
14		beginning of the FPFTY. Then I continued the same adjustments in the FPFTY to
15		calculate the accumulated depreciation in the FPFTY to arrive at the \$1,326,783,000
16		(I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 5, p. 2, column F, line 134).
17		
18	ANN	UAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
19	Q.	WHAT IS ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE?
20	A.	Depreciation is the loss of value of a utility's assets used and useful in the provision
21		of utility service due to usage, passage of time, etc. The National Association of
22		Regulatory Utility Commissioners defines annual depreciation expense as the annual
23		cost associated with the diminution in the usefulness of an asset over time.

1		Depreciation expense is the way the return of a utility's investment is captured in
2		rates and is generally computed by dividing the original cost of an asset by its
3		expected useful life or by multiplying the original cost by the annual accrual rate.
4		
5	Q.	WHAT IS UGI'S CLAIMED ANNUAL DEPRECIATION AND
6		AMORTIZATION EXPENSE FOR THE FTY?
7	A.	UGI's claimed annual depreciation expense for the FPFTY ending September 30,
8		2023 is \$114,735,000 (\$106,728,000 + \$8,007,000) (UGI Book V – Combined FTY,
9		Sch. D-1, line 15). The Company determined its annual depreciation expense claim
10		for the FTY by taking the calculated annual depreciation expense plus the
11		amortization of net salvage and subtracted an amount charged to clearing accounts as
12		shown on UGI Book V – Combined FTY, Sch. D-21, lines 64-66.
13		
14	Q.	WHAT IS UGI'S CLAIMED ANNUAL DEPRECIATION AND
15		AMORTIZATION EXPENSE FOR THE FPFTY?
16	A.	UGI's claimed annual depreciation expense for the FPFTY ending September 30,
17		2023 is \$133,908,000 (\$127,824,000 + \$6,084,000) (UGI Book V - Combined
18		FPFTY, Sch. D-1, line 15) and (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 1, p. 2, column B, line 1). The
19		Company determined its annual depreciation expense claim for the FPFTY by taking
20		the calculated annual depreciation expense plus the amortization of net salvage as
21		shown on UGI Book V – Combined FPFTY, Sch. D-21, lines 64-66.

1	Q.	WHAT ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE DO YOU RECOMMEND FOR
2		THE FPFTY?
3	A.	I recommend that the \$133,908,000 of annual depreciation expense be reduced by
4		\$3,666,000 to \$130,242,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 1, p. 2, column C and D, line 1).
5		
6	Q.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$130,242,000 OF ANNUAL
7		DEPRECIATION EXPENSE FOR THE FPFTY?
8	A.	The \$130,242,000 is based on my recommendation to reduce FTY and FPFTY gas
9		and common plant additions as described above for the FPFTY, the determination of
10		the \$130,242,000 of annual depreciation expense is shown on I&E Ex. No 5, Sch. 5,
11		p. 2, column I, line 134.
12		
13	Q.	DID YOU APPLY THE SAME DEPRECIATION RATE BY ACCOUNT THE
14		COMPANY DID TO PROJECT THE ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
15		BY ACCOUNT IN THE FPFTY?
16	A.	Yes. The annual depreciation rates on I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 5, columns H that I used
17		to calculate the \$130,242,000 depreciation expense are the same annual depreciation
18		rates used by the Company in the original filing (UGI Volume 6, p. II-3 to 5).
19		
20	<u>FTY</u>	AND FPFTY REPORTING
21	Q.	WHAT AMOUNT OF ADDITIONAL NET PLANT WILL BE ASSOCIATED
22		WITH THE INCLUSION OF THE FTY ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 FOR
23		UGI?
24	A.	The Company's projected addition net plant for the FTY ending September 30, 2022
25		is \$398,404,000 (UGI Book V, FTY Sch. C-2, line 64).

1	Q.	WHAT AMOUNT OF ADDITIONAL NET PLANT WILL BE ASSOCIATED
2		WITH THE INCLUSION OF THE FPFTY ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
3		FOR UGI?
4	А.	The Company's projected plant additions for the FPFTY ending September 30, 2023
5		is \$476,632,000 (UGI Book V, FPFTY Sch. C-2, line 64).
6		
7	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING PLANT
8		ADDITIONS THAT UGI PROJECTS TO BE IN SERVICE DURING THE
9		FTY ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND THE FPFTY ENDING
10		SEPTEMBER 30, 2023?
11	A.	Yes. I recommend that the Company provide the Commission's Bureau of
12		Investigation and Enforcement and the Office of Consumer Advocate with an update
13		to UGI Book 5 - Sch. C-2, no later than January 2, 2023, which should include actual
14		capital expenditures, plant additions, and retirements by month from October 1, 2021
15		through September 30, 2022, and which should be filed under this docket number. I
16		also recommend that the Company provide a similar update for actuals capital
17		expenditures, plant additions, and retirements by month from October 1, 2022 through
18		September 30, 2023, no later than January 2, 2024.
19		
20	Q.	WHY DO YOU RECOMMEND THAT UGI PROVIDE THESE UPDATES?
21	A.	I&E believes that there is value in determining how accurately UGI projects
22		investments in future facilities compared to the monthly actual investments and
23		retirements that are made by the end of the FTY and FPFTY. With the use of the

8	Q.	DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
7		
6		rate cases.
5		Commission to evaluate the Company's projections used to determine rates in future
4		compared to the projections used in setting rates using the FPFTY will enable the
3		Company to provide updates of the "actual" investment and retirements by month
2		proposes will be completed and placed into service. Therefore, requiring the
1		FTY and FPFTY, UGI is not able to guarantee any of the projected plant additions it

9 A. Yes.

ESYAN A. SAKAYA PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE AND EDUCATION

EDUCATION:

National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners, Clearwater, FL Utility Rate School; Utility Rate Making Basics, October 2019

Society of Depreciation Professionals, Philadelphia, PA Introduction to Depreciation; Depreciation Fundamentals, September 2019

Temple University, Philadelphia, PA Bachelor of Science; Major in Engineering Technology, 2015

Community College of Philadelphia, Philadelphia, PA Associate of Applied Science; Major in Construction Management Technology, 2011

Island School of Building Arts, Gabriola Island, BC-Canada Certificate Graduate: Heavy Timber Construction Aug 2002-Nov 2002

Solar Energy International, Carbondale, CO Certificate Graduate: Basic and Advanced Photovoltaic Design, April 2002-May 2002

EXPERIENCE:

12/2018-Present

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission-Harrisburg, PA

<u>Fixed Utility Valuation Engineer-</u>Assist in engineering related studies related to valuation, depreciation, cost of service, quality of service as they apply to regulated utilities. Contribute in evaluating, contrasting and conducting performance analyses in distinctive sections of valuation engineering and rate structure involving valuation concepts, original cost, rate base, fixed capital costs, inventory processing, excess capacity, cost of service, and rate design. Provide expert testimony in rate related utility cases.

4/2018-12/2018

Pennsylvania Department of Transportation-Harrisburg, PA

<u>Photogrammetry Technician I</u>- Created three-dimensional mapping layouts of natural and manmade features from stereoscopic images on a computer workstation. Assisted in the field placement of ground based surveyed control-points prior to aerial photography acquisition. Provided field support in the use of laser scans for comprehensive digital surveying data. Operated global positioning satellite surveying equipment to obtain accurate geodetic coordinates of pre-established benchmarks.

8/2017-4/2018

Pennoni and Associates. Consulting Engineers-King of Prussia, PA

<u>Construction Inspector</u>-Provided quality assurance in the onsite material testing of concrete, soils, and asphalt. Read and interpreted construction drawings and specifications of materials and components. Completed daily reports regarding project progress to engineers, project managers/superintendents, contractors and clients.

TESTIMONY SUBMITTED:

I have assisted and/or submitted testimony in the following proceedings:

<u>No.</u> <u>Case</u>

- 1. UGI Gas Utilities Gas Division, Docket Number: R-2018-3006814
- 2. Newtown Artesian Water Company, Docket Number: R-2018-3006904
- 3. Pittsburgh Wastewater, Docket Number: M-2018-2640803
- 4. PAWC Purchase of Steelton, Docket Number: A-2019-3006814
- 5. Philadelphia Gas Works, Docket Number: R-2019-3009016 3007636
- 6. Community Utilities Water, Docket Number: R-2019-3008947
- 7. Aqua Purchase of Cheltenham, Docket Number: A-2019-3008491
- 8. UGI NORTH, Docket Number: R-2019-3009647
- 9. UGI CENTRAL, Docket Number: R-2019-3009647
- 10. UGI SOUTH, Docket Number: R-2019-3009647
- 11. Twin Lakes Utilities, Docket Number: R-2019-3010958
- 12. Penn Power Company, Docket: P-2019-3012628
- 13. UGI Gas Utilities, Docket Number: R-2019-3015162
- 14. National Fuel and Gas Distribution, Docket Number: R-2020-3015251
- 15. Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Docket: R-2020-3018993 -3018835
- 16. Duquesne Light Company, Docket Number: P-2020-3019522
- 17. PA American Water Company, Docket R-2020-3019369 310937
- 18. Bethlehem Water Company, Docket R-2020-3020256
- 19. Audubon Water Company, Docket: R-2020-3020919
- 20. Twin Lakes Utilities, Docket: P-2020-3020914
- 21. Pike County Light and Power-Gas, Docket: R-2020-3022134
- 22. Pike County Light and Power-Electric, Docket: R-2020-3022135
- 23. Duquesne Light Company, Docket Number: R-2021-3024750
- 24. Community Utilities Water, Docket Number: R-2021-3025206
- 25. Community Utilities Wastewater, Docket Number: R-2021-3025206
- 26. Hanover Municipal Water Works, Docket Number: R-2021-3026116
- 27. Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc, Docket R-2021-3027385 3027386
- 28. Aqua Purchase of Willistown, Docket Number: A-2021-3027268
- 29. National Fuel and Gas Distribution, Docket Number: R-2022-3030235

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Exhibits to Accompany the Direct Testimony

of

Esyan A. Sakaya

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

Rate Base Utility Plant in Service Annual Depreciation Accumulated Depreciation Expense Reporting Requirements

UGI Utilities Inc. - Gas Division Docket No. R-2021-3030218 RATE BASE (\$1000)

Twelve Months Ending September 30, 2023

Line				
No.	Description	Company	Adjustments	I&E
	(A)	(B)	(C)	(D)
1	Plant	\$5,042,025	-\$137,649	\$4,904,376
2	Accumulated Depreciation	-\$1,318,560	-\$8,223	-\$1,326,783
3				
4	Net Plant In Service	\$3,723,465	-\$145,872	\$3,577,593
	Additions			
5	Working Capital	62,148	\$0	\$62,148
6	Gas Inventory	\$17,813	\$0	\$17,813
7	Materials And Supplies	\$15,707	\$0	\$15,707
8	Total Additions	\$95,668	\$0	\$95,668
	Deductions			
9	ADIC	\$628,510	\$0	\$628,510
10	Customer Deposits	\$21,600	\$0	\$21,600
11	Total Deductions	\$650,110	\$0	\$650,110
12	Total Rate Base	\$3,169,023	-\$145,872	\$3,023,151

 $\overline{}$

UGI Utilities Inc. - Gas Division Docket No. R-2021-3030218 Annual Depreciation Expense (\$1000)

Twelve Months Ending September 30, 2023

Line No	Description	Company	Adjustment	L&F
110.	(A)	(B)	(C)	(D)
1	Depreciation Expense	\$133,908	-\$3,666	\$130,242

	I&E 2023 Recommended (H)	\$1,183,155 \$0	\$50,093,995 \$4,327,945,187 \$231,612,177 \$19,619,037	\$4,630,453,551	\$41,877,446.8 \$206,038,105.1 \$27,864,086.0 -\$1,857,129.1	\$273,922,509 \$4,904,376,059
as Division 3030218 tt In Service ember 30, 2023	Difference (G)	0\$ \$0	\$0 -\$113,700,884 -\$7,711,413 \$0	-\$121,412,297	-\$597,466 -\$2,346,533 -\$12,946 \$19,980	-\$16,236,964 -\$137,649,262
UGI Utilities Inc Gá Docket No. R-2021- Comparison of 2023 Plan velve Months Ending Septe	2023 Projection (F)	\$1,183,155 \$0	\$50,093,995 \$4,441,646,071 \$239,323,590 \$19,619,037	\$4,751,865,848	\$42,474,912 \$208,384,638 \$41,177,032 \$1,877,110	\$290,159,473 \$5,042,025,321
É	Description (E)	<u>Gas Plant</u> Production Plant Storage Plant	Transmission Plant Distribution Plant General Plant Non Depreciable Plant	Total Gas Plant	<u>Other Utility Plant</u> Common Information Service Computer System - Unite Less - Empire Yard	Total Other Utility Plant Total Rate Base
	Line No.	- 6	© 4 10 9	7	8 9 01 10	12 13
	I&E 2022 Recommended (D)	\$1,183,155 \$0	\$50,093,995 \$4,028,289,687 \$205,484,794 \$19,619,037	\$4,304,670,668	\$41.874.645 \$196.557.199 -\$206.048 -\$1,835.940	\$236,389,857 \$4,541,060,525
s Division 3030218 t In Service ember 30, 2022	Difference (C)	\$0 \$0	\$0 \$55,319,367 -\$2,621,047 \$0	57,940,414	-\$596,127 \$2,183,269 \$9,856	31,596,998 6,343,415
				şè		
GI Utilities Inc G Docket No. R-2021 omparison of 2022 Plan ² e Months Ending Sept	2022 Projection [B]	\$1,183,155 \$0	\$50,093,995 \$4,083,609,054 \$208,105,841 \$19,619,037	\$4,362,611,082 -\$	\$42,470,773 \$194.373,930 -\$206.048 -\$1,845,796	\$234.792.858 \$
UGI Utilities Inc Ga Docket No. R-2021- Comparison of 2022 Plan Twelve Months Ending Sept	Description 2022 Projection (A) (B)	Gas Plant Production Plant \$1,183,155 Storage Plant \$0	Transmission Plant \$50,093,995 Distribution Plant \$4,083,009,054 General Plant \$208,105,841 Non Depreciable Plant \$19,619,037	Total Gas Plant \$4,362,611,082\$	Other Utility Plant \$42,470,773 Common \$42,470,773 Information Service \$194,373,930 Less - Reading Service Center -\$1,845,796 Less - Empire Y ard -\$1,845,796	Total Other Utility Plant \$234,792,858 8 Total Plant In Service \$4,597,403,940 -85

I&E Exhibit No. 5 Schedule 2 23 nded I&E Exhibit No. 5 Schedule 2 Page 1 of 2

UGI Utilities Inc. - Gas Division Docket No. R-2021-3030218 Comparison of 2023 Plant ADDITIONS

Twelve Months Ending September 30, 2023

		Plant	Retirements	Net Plant
	(A)	(B)	(C)	(D)
1	Company Gas Plant Additions	\$413,026,749	-\$23,771,977	\$389,254,772
2	Company Common Plant Additions	\$63,400,078	-\$8,239,512	\$55,160,566
3	Company Net Plant	\$476,426,827	-\$32,011,489	\$444,415,338
4	I&E Gas Plant Adjustment	\$67,348,141	-\$3,876,259	63,471,883
5	I&E Common Plant Adjustment	20,497,879	-\$2,663,917	\$17,833,962
6	I&E Net Adjustment	\$87,846,021	-\$6,540,175	\$81,305,845
7	I&E Gas Plant Additions	\$345,678,608	-\$19,895,718	325,782,889
8	I&E Common Plant Additions	\$42,902,199	-\$5,575,595	37,326,604
9	I&E Net Plant	\$388,580,806	-\$25,471,314	\$363,109,493

UGI Utilities Inc. - Gas Division Docket No. R-2021-3030218 Average Gas and Common Plant Completed

Twelve Months Ending September 30, 2020 and 2021

	Description	Percentages
	(A)	(B)
1	2020 'Percent Gas Plant Placed Into Service	80.557%
2	2021 'Percent Gas Plant Placed Into Service	86.832%
3	Average Percentatge Gas Plant Placed Into Service	83.694%
4	2020 Percent Common Gas Plant Placed Into Service	113.361%
5	2021 Percent Common Gas Plant Placed Into Service	21.976%
6	Average Percentatge Common Plant Placed Into Service	67.669%

I&E Exhibit No. 5 Schedule 4 Page 1 of 2

UGI Utilities Inc. - Gas Division Docket No. R-2021-3030218 Comparison of 2020 Plant In Service

Twelve Months Ending September 30, 2020

Line		2020 Projection		
No.	Description	in 2018 Case	Difference	2020 Actual
	(A)	(B)	(C)	(D)
	<u>Gas Plant</u>			
1	Production Plant	1,183,155	\$0	\$1,183,155
2	Storage Plant	\$0	\$0	\$0
3	Transmission Plant	\$49,522,043	\$204,187	\$49,726,230
4	Distribution Plant	\$3,468,356,838	-\$22,159,870	\$3,446,196,968
5	General Plant	$$196,\!178,\!952$	-\$44,546,812	\$151,632,140
6	Non Depreciable Plant	\$11,630,351	\$4,707,262	\$16,337,613
7	Total Gas Plant	\$3,726,871,339	-\$61,795,233	\$3,665,076,106
8	Net Gas Plant Additions projecte	d in last FPFTY	\$317,833,525	
9	Percent Gas Plant Placed Into Serv	vice	80.56%	
	<u>Other Utility Plant</u>			
10	Common	\$39,443,505	\$991,279	\$40,434,784
11	Information Service	184,875,292	\$1,027,644	\$185,902,936
12	Less - Reading Service Center	-\$198,980	-\$4,639	-\$203,619
13	Less - Empire Yard	\$0	\$0	\$0
14	Total Other Utility Plant	\$224,119,817	\$2,014,284	\$226,134,102
15	Net Common Plant Additions pro	jected in last FPFTY	\$15,075,391	
16	Percent Common Gas Plant Placed	l Into Service	113.36%	
17	Total Plant In Service	\$3,950,991,156	-\$59,780,948	\$3,891,210,208
18	Claimed Net Total Plant Addition	15	\$332,909,007	
19	Amount Completed		\$273,128,059	
20	Percent Completed		82.0%	

UGI Utilities Inc. - Gas Division Docket No. R-2021-3030218 Comparison of 2021 Plant In Service

Twelve Months Ending September 30, 2021

Line		2021 Projection		
No.	Description	in 2019 Case	Difference	2021 Actual
	(A)	(B)	(C)	(D)
	<u>Gas Plant</u>			
1	Production Plant	\$1,183,155	\$0	\$1,183,155
2	Storage Plant	\$0	\$0	\$0
3	Transmission Plant	\$49,641,201	\$452,794	\$50,093,995
4	Distribution Plant	\$3,774,952,348	-\$30,601,016	\$3,744,351,332
5	General Plant	\$213,069,763	-\$21,022,015	\$192,047,748
6	Non Depreciable Plant	\$12,312,173	\$7,306,864	\$19,619,037
7	Total Gas Plant	\$4,051,158,640	-\$43,863,373	\$4,007,295,267
8	Net Gas Plant Additions projected i	n last FPFTY	\$333,095,498	
9	Percent Gas Plant Placed Into Servic	e	86.83%	
	Other Utility Plant			
10	Common	\$33,827,540	\$6,799,406	\$40,626,946
11	Information Service	241,477,301	-\$40,350,502	201,126,799
12	Less - Reading Service Center	-\$192,696	-\$13,352	-\$206,048
13	Less - Empire Yard	-\$1,906,934	\$91,624	-\$1,815,310
14	Total Other Utility Plant	\$273,205,211	-\$33,472,824	\$239,732,387
15	Net Common Plant Additions projec	cted in last FPFTY	\$42,900,534	
16	Percent Common Gas Plant Placed In	nto Service	21.98%	
17	Total Plant In Service	\$4,324,363,851	-\$77,336,197	\$4,247,027,654

UGI UTILITIES, INC. - GAS DIVISION

TABLE 1. ESTIMATED SURVIVOR CURVES, ORIGINAL COST, BOOK RESERVE AND

CALCULATED ANNUAL DEPRECIATION ACCRUALS RELATED TO GAS PLANT AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Lat D		TUDODA	Percent Gas	PROBABLE RETIREMENT YEAR	SURVIVOR CURVE		ORIGINAL COST	BOOK RESERVE	FUTURE BOOK ACCRUALS	CALCULATED ACCRUAL RATE	AMOUNT
International and the second second second second second second second second and second se	PLANT	(y)	(B)	9	ê		(E)	£	(0)	(H)	€
3.1 FPROCONCLUENCIA 1.0 9.1.3 0.0000 0.000	PROD 305	UCTION PLANT MANUFACTURED GAS PLANT SITE REMEDIATION		FUL	LY ACCRU	ED*	80	\$69,118	-\$69,118	0.000	80
0.00 0.00 <th< td=""><td>325.2</td><td>PRODUCING LEASEHOLDS</td><td></td><td></td><td>55</td><td>- S0.5</td><td>\$163,100</td><td>\$162,135</td><td>\$965</td><td>0.0202</td><td>\$33</td></th<>	325.2	PRODUCING LEASEHOLDS			55	- S0.5	\$163,100	\$162,135	\$965	0.0202	\$33
	325.4	RIGHTS-OF-WAY FIELD MEASURING AND REGILLATING STATION STRUCTURES		F	60 LY ACCR1	- RI	\$30,277 \$1.263	\$29,717 \$1.263	\$560 \$0	0.0595	\$18 \$0
30 FUND CONCRETE	329	OTHER STRUCTURES			LY ACCRU	ED	\$44,785	\$44,783	83 83	000070	80
International sector of the sector	330	PRODUCING GAS WELLS - WELL CONSTRUCTION		Ч	LY ACCRU	IED	\$18,209	\$18,209	80	0.0000	\$0
	331	PRODUCING GAS WELLS - WELL EQUIPMENT		1	LY ACCRU	IED	\$24,441	\$24,441	\$0 500 002	0000.0	\$0 50
International control of contro of control of control of control of contro of control o	332	FIELD LINES FIEL DARE ASTRENC AND PECTIFATING STATION FOLIDMENT			14	5 F0	\$750,689	\$726,792	\$23,897	0.1263	\$948 e 202
International and the second	335	DRILLING AND CLEANING EQUIPMENT			5 8	- S0.5	\$49,604	\$49,503	\$101	0.0323	816
Introductor Introductor Introductor Introductor Introductor Introductor State Will construction Will construction Will construction Will construction Will construction Distance Will construction Will constru	337	OTHER EQUIPMENT		T	LY ACCR1	JED	\$11,062	\$11,062	\$0	0000.0	\$0
Introduct ALM Introduc	TOTA	, PRODUCTION PLANT					\$1,183,155	\$1,222,396	-\$39,241		\$1,398
Interstant Interst	STOR. 352.01	GE PLANT WELL CONSTRUCTION		FUL	LY ACCRU	ED*	08	-\$35,934	\$35,934	0.000.0	\$0
TANDRAFT 0<	TOTA	L STORAGE PLANT					08	-\$35,934	\$35,934		\$0
0.1 0.1103 0.101 0.101 0.101 0.1111 0.111 0.111 <td< td=""><td>TRAN</td><td>SMISSION PLANT</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	TRAN	SMISSION PLANT									
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	365.2	RIGHTS-OF-WAY			0,	- R4	\$868,160	\$548,463	\$319,697	1.3211	\$11,469
0 0	366	STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS			88	- E	\$162,216 \$20.074.407	\$147,551	\$14,665 e16 700 700	71690	\$1,122
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	369	MEASURING AND REGULATING STATION EQUIPMENT			e 6	22 - 22 -	\$6,152,338	\$4,059,205	\$2,093,133	1.4635	\$90,040
III THIN ROUTHANT S. R.	370	COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT			23	- R0.5	\$3,486,136	\$2,244,418	\$1,241,718	2.8049	\$97,784
TILI TESTING OF INTERFORMENT 9.001 9.010 9.010 9.010 9.010 9.010 9.010 9.010 TULT TESTING OF UTATIA TULT TESTING OF UTATIA 9.0100 9.0100	371	OTHER EQUIPMENT			35	- R2.5	\$140,637	\$130,718	\$9,919	0.7637	\$1,074
Notice Notice Solution Notice Solution	371.1 TOTA1	TESTING EQUIPMENT TRANSMISSION PLANT			20	- R3	\$210,011 \$50.003.005	\$157,623 \$90.632.687	\$52,388 ©0.460.308	2.3399	\$4,914 \$658 505
0.11 INTERFERIA 0.2430 0.543400 0.5434000 0.54	DISTR 374.9	IBUTION PLANT RIGHTS-OF-WAY			£	. R3	83 544 560	81 497 055	\$2,117,514	1 9013	845 770
	375	STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS			2.05	- S0.5	\$5,554,376	\$3,342,999	\$2,211,377	1.5283	\$84,890
75.2 MANS: - LASTION 0.0230 $51.031.33.80$ $51.03.13.33.80$ $51.03.13.33.80$ $52.33.25$ $50.011.33.26$ $52.33.25$ $50.011.33.26$ $52.33.25$ $50.011.33.26$ $52.33.25$ $50.011.33.26$ $52.33.25$ $50.011.33.26$ $52.33.25$ $50.011.33.26$ $52.33.25$ $50.011.33.26$ $50.33.13.36$ $50.31.33.26$ $50.33.25$ $50.011.33.26$ $50.33.13.36$ $50.31.33.26$ $50.33.13.36$ $50.31.33.26$ $50.33.13.36$ $50.31.33.26$ $50.33.13.36$ $50.31.33.26$ $50.33.13.36$ $50.31.33.26$ $50.33.13.36$ $50.31.33.26$ $50.33.13.36$ $50.31.33.26$ $50.33.13.36$ $50.31.33.36$ <	376.1	MAINS - PRIMARILY STEEL			13	- R2.5	\$644,569,968	\$196,493,533	\$448,076,435	1.5101	\$9,733,889
	376.2	MAINS - CAST IRON MAINS - DI ASTIC		09-2027	8 6	- R1	\$1,577,960 \$1.671.473.955	-\$102,300 \$200 210 279	\$1,680,260 e1 369 153 993	29.7332	\$469,177 \$37 833 470
	376.5	MAINS - PRIMARILY WROUGHT IRON		09-2041	5 8	8	\$279,892	\$220,085	\$59,807	2.2458	\$6,286
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	376.7	REG AFUDC			ŝ	- so	\$1,322,088	\$662,477	\$659,611	19.9566	\$263,844
30 REVICES Condition Condit	378	MEASURING AND REGULATING STATION EQUIPMENT - GENERAL			5	- S0	\$177,861,470	\$29,000,750	\$148,860,720	3.0327	\$5,393,962
81 METRE 813,143.74 813,143.74 813,043.74 31193 8103,033 31193 8103,033 31193 8103,033 31193 8103,033 31131 813,033 31131 813,033 31131 813,033 31131 813,033 31131 813,033 813,033 813,033 813,033 814,033 </td <td>380</td> <td>MEASURING AND REGULATING STATION EQUIPMENT - GITY GATE SERVICES</td> <td>-1</td> <td></td> <td>3 4</td> <td>- K2</td> <td>\$25,035,909 \$1 430 996 244</td> <td>\$9,033,448 \$425.613.438</td> <td>\$10,002,401 \$1.005.382.806</td> <td>2.3385</td> <td>\$004,015 \$35 506 439</td>	380	MEASURING AND REGULATING STATION EQUIPMENT - GITY GATE SERVICES	-1		3 4	- K2	\$25,035,909 \$1 430 996 244	\$9,033,448 \$425.613.438	\$10,002,401 \$1.005.382.806	2.3385	\$004,015 \$35 506 439
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	381	METERS			28	- R2	\$158,148,754	\$58,762,220	\$99,386,534	3.1193	\$4,933,183
382 MUTER INSTALLATIONS 6 51 80.662079 858.35.14 868.34.123 2.3765 8.16.381 383 MOURE RECULATIONS 6 51 810.50070 811.3477 81.33.25 13.306 81.45.3 384 MOURE RECULATIONS 6 51 81.87.946 81.33.25 13.306 81.45.3 385 NUURER INDUCTIONS 5 12 81.87.946 81.33.27 13.306 81.43.33 386.0 OTHER PROPERTY ON CUCTORERS PEANERS 5.5.4.16477 85.3.4.03 82.4.165 89.318 83.3.3.3 81.3.3.37 13.3.06 81.3.3.3.7 83.1.3.3 89.1.2 386.0 OTHER PROPERTY ON CUCTORERS PEANERS 5.5.5.1.64778 81.3.3.37 83.3.3.7 83.1.3.3 89.1.3 386.1 OTHER ROUTHWEY 5 5 83.3.1.3 83.3.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1.3.3 83.1	381.1	METERS - ERTS			17	- S3	\$23,249,327	\$19,970,658	\$3,278,669	2.1988	\$511,217
38. HOUSE REJUTIVOR 51. SULVADOR 541.100	382	METER INSTALLATIONS HOUSE DECIT ATODS			9	- 51	\$106,829,279 e10.706.000	\$38,295,147	\$68,534,132 e2 503 531	2.3765	\$2,538,841
35. INDUCTRIAL MALNUTACE STATION EQLIPMENT 5 12. 89,007,000 97,0000 20,000 </td <td>000 1915</td> <td>HUUSE REGULATORS HOISE RECHTATOR INSTALLATIONS</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>ę 4</td> <td>16.</td> <td>810,000,005 818 870 888</td> <td>\$0,110,407 \$0.353.969</td> <td>\$0,392,321 \$0 596 696</td> <td>1 0890</td> <td>\$140,021</td>	000 1915	HUUSE REGULATORS HOISE RECHTATOR INSTALLATIONS			ę 4	16.	810,000,005 818 870 888	\$0,110,407 \$0.353.969	\$0,392,321 \$0 596 696	1 0890	\$140,021
	385	INDUSTRIAL MEASURING AND REGULATING STATION EQUIPMEN	L		4	- R3	\$39,907,546	\$18,366,646	\$21.540,900	2.0478	\$817,227
	386.0	OTHER PROPERTY ON CUSTOMERS PREMISES			46	- S1	\$68,824	-\$84,503	\$153,327	13.5403	\$9,319
	386.1	OTHER PROPERTY ON CUSTOMERS PREMISES - FARM TAPS			45	- R2	\$953,218	\$678,603	\$274,615	1.5061	\$14,356
387.1 OTHER ROUTWENT, CRAPHIC DATA BASE 5.9 9.43.1.2.45 8.43.0.1.2.45 8.43.0.00 2.4411 9.4.4.2 387.1 OTHER ROUTWENT, CRAPHIC DATA BASE 5.9 9.4.3.1.4.96, 7.27 8.1.3.0.00 2.4411 9.4.4.2 707.1. DISTRIBUTION PLANT 6.2.0.0 14.0.0.0 8.1.4.3.0.2 8.1.3.0.00 2.4411 9.4.4.2 707.1. DISTRIBUTION PLANT 8.1.3.0.0 8.1.4.0.0.0 8.1.4.3.0.2 8.1.3.0.00 2.4411 9.4.4.3 30.1 STRUCTURES AND IMPROVALYTS 8.1.3.0.06, 74 8.1.3.0.06, 74 8.0.4.5.0 2.9.4.1.1 9.4.7.7 8.3.9.5.9.4.6.0 2.4411 9.4.7.3 8.4.7.7 8.9.4.3.0.0 2.4411 9.4.7.2.9.5 8.4.7.7.9.5 8.9.4.6.0 2.4.4.1.0 8.4.7.2.9.5 8.4.7.7 8.9.4.3.0.0 2.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 8.4.7.2.9 8.4.7.7.2.9 8.9.4.7.2.9 8.4.7.7.2 8.9.4.7.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9 9.4.4.6.9	386.2	OTHER PROPERTY ON CUSTOMERS PREMISES - GAS LIGHTS			52	- B3	\$24,705	\$24,705	\$0 51 005 200	0.0000	80° 300
TOTAL DISTRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENT 84.327,945,167 81.13,996,77 85.19,5746,459 85.47,6301 OTAL DISTRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS 390.1 STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS 94.327,945,167 81.13,1996,777 85.19,5746,597 85.105,704,557 85.105,704,557 85.105,704,557 85.105,704,557 85.105,704,557 85.106,704 85.10,504,704 85.10,506,704 35.04,506 85.10,506,704 35.10,203 85.10,506 85.10,506,704 35.10,203 35.10,	387	OTHER EQUIPMENT - CRAPHIC DATA RASE			8 8	- 50 S	\$4,871,243 \$1.400.664	\$3,034,514 \$1,473,079	\$1,630,009 \$17 50?	2.0411	\$4,425 \$4,177
CENEMA PLAT 30.1 STRUCTURES AND INFOVEMENTS RB-10 30.1 TRUCTURES AND INFOVEMENTS RB-10 READING SERVICE BULDING 06-300 00 III.3 \$\$3,51,310 \$\$3,51,310 \$\$3,571,320 314,036 \$\$74,207 READING SERVICE BULDING 06-300 00 III.3 \$\$10,400,41 \$\$2,500,710 314,036 \$\$71,527 \$\$90,130 \$\$71,500 \$\$10,500,120 310,503 \$\$57,030 \$\$50,017,49 \$\$50,007 \$\$57,030 \$\$50,017,49 \$\$50,007,40 \$\$50,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$50,017,49 \$\$50,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$50,017,49 \$\$50,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$57,030 \$\$50,017,19 \$\$57,030	TOTAL	DISTRIBUTION PLANT			ì	2	\$4,327,945,187	\$1,131,998,727	\$3,195,946,459		\$89,470,811
IANGENTE RENTICE BULDING 06-200 00 11.5 55.254.319 53.771.842 85.0007.49 13.016 8704.307 READING SERVICE BULDING 06-200 00 R1.5 81.9.15.05 81.9.15.06 71.03 85.33.042 31.803 89.1866 86.53.042 31.803 89.1866 86.53.042 31.803 89.1866 86.53.042 31.803 89.1866 86.53.042 31.833 87.3.242 31.813 87.3.292 31.813 87.3.292 31.813 87.3.292 31.813 87.3.292 87.3.297 8807.322 87.3.297 87.3.267 87.3.297 87.3.29	390.1	STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS						RB-40			
RTALIVE BULLING 09-200 00 11.3 512,12,003 512,002,95 50,003 59,1030 597,040 501,033 597,040 501,033 597,040 501,033 597,040 501,033 597,040 501,033 597,040 501,033 597,040 501,033 597,040 501,033 597,040 501,033 597,040 501,033 597,040 501,033 597,040 501,033 597,042 501,033 597,042 501,033 597,042 501,033 597,042 501,033 507,043 501,031 507,042 501,031 507,043 501,033 507,043 501,031 507,043 501,031 507,043 501,033 507,043 501,031 507,043 501,031 507,043 501,033 507,043 501,031 507,043 501,031 507,043 501,031 507,043 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,031 501,040		LANCASTER SERVICE BUILDING		06-2026	88	- R1.5 B1.5	\$5,254,319	\$3,571,842	\$2,060,749	13.4036	\$704,267
LEBANON SERVICE BUILDING 06-3027 80 R1.5 82.074,577 81.382.154 82.36900 3.2.487 86.307 TOVE RIDES ESTIVCE BUILDING 06-309 80 R1.5 85.315.309 81.03130 84.013.164 2.5661 810.303 STOVE RIDES ESTIVCE BUILDING 06-309 80 R1.5 85.315.309 81.031.309 8.401.3164 2.5661 810.303 GAS TRAINING ENTER 09-3071 80 R1.5 85.315.309 81.031.309 8.401.3164 2.5661 810.30.33 GAS TRAINING ENTRUCE BUILDING 09-3071 80 R1.5 85.315.309 81.401.3169 8.204.310 2.2661 810.30.33 GAS TRAINING ENTRUCE BUILDING 09-317 80 R1.5 81.205.318 8.5.401.109 2.2671 867.30.30 EMPIRE YARD-MINOR STRUCTURES 12-3047 80 R1.5 82.219.511 80 90 90.00 80.701 EMPIRE YARD-MINOR STRUCTURES 12-365 81.366.338 82.219.511 80 90 90.00 80.60		READING SERVICE BUILDING BETHLEHEM SERVICE BUILDING		00-2050 03-2050	88	- RL5 - BL5	\$19,125,095 \$19,494,034	\$12,000,794 \$2.586.057	\$0,033,042 \$18,970.342	3.9515	\$991,880 \$770.299
STONE REDCE BUILDING 06-309 80 RL3 85,515,49 81,50,160 84,015,164 2.561 81,03,03 GAS TRANING ENTRE 09-301 0 RL5 83,0305,088 81,96,601 2.261 807,915 GAS TRANING ENTRE 09-301 0 RL5 83,0305,088 81,96,601 2.261 807,915 ENPIRE VARD ACAVIER 12-301 0 RL5 83,0305,088 85,940,109 2.2271 807,715 ENPIRE VARD MINORSTRUCTURES 12-302 80 RL5 82,219,511 80 0000 80 ARGHRAID MINORSTRUCTURES 12-302 80 RL5 82,219,511 83,949,671 2.261 807,913 ARGHRAID MINORSTRUCTURES 12-302 80 RL5 82,219,511 80 0000 80 RACHRAID MINORSTRUCTURES 12-302 80 RL5 83,94,947 2.1363 81,93,93 RACHRAID 12-305 81,37,395 \$41,94,92 \$32,93 81,93,93 2.1033 81,		LEBANON SERVICE BUILDING		06-2027	8	- R1.5	\$2,074,577	\$1,832,154	\$250,900	3.2487	\$67,397
CANTAINAL ALPUER 09-201 80 H.1.5 \$50,005,008 \$51,96,001 2.027 \$80,795 EAPTREYADD EAPTREYADD S1,96,003 \$5,90,109 2.2271 \$80,795 EAPTREYADD S1,80,053 \$5,90,109 2.2271 \$80,795 \$6,80,795 EAPTREYADD MORSTRUCTURES 12,907 80 11.5 \$2,205,511 \$5,90,109 2.2271 \$80,795 EAPTREYADD MINORSTRUCTURES 02,902 80 11.5 \$2,205,511 \$5,90,109 2.2743 \$80,630 ARCHEALD 12,202 80 11.5 \$2,205,511 \$2,30,406 \$2,334,967 \$0 \$0,000 \$80,93 ARCHEALD 12,202 90 11.5 \$2,30,541 \$2,334,967 \$2,4363 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$1,93,503 \$2,93,503 \$2,93,503 \$2,94,93,503		STONE RIDGE SERVICE BUILDING		06-2059	80	- R1.5	\$5,515,549	\$1,591,809	\$4,015,164	2.3661	\$130,503
EMPIRE TARD- EACOTO TRUCTURES 00 - R1.2 012-001 00000 00010 00000 00010 00000 00010 00000 00010 00000 00010 0000 00010 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 0000		GAS TRAINING CENTER EMPIDE VADDAMA TOD STIDTERIDES		09-2071	88	- R1.5 D1 5	\$30,805,088 e19.065.250	\$1,886,603 e4 202 251	\$29,496,801 ec 040.100	2.6227	\$807,915
ARCHBALD 12-2052 80 - R1.5 \$6,136,509 \$2,221,455 \$3,949.687 2,4363 \$149,503 BLOOMSBURG 12-2059 80 - R1.5 \$1,378,395 \$449,492 \$928,903 2,1693 \$29,901		EMPIRE TARD - MAJON STRUCTURES EMPIRE YARD - MINOR STRUCTURES		03-2022	8 8	- B15	\$2.219.511	\$2.219.511	801,040,005	0.0000	\$200, (13 \$0
BLOOMSBURG 12-2059 80 - R1.5 81.378.395 8449.492 8928.903 22.1693 829.901		ARCHBALD		12-2052	80	- R1.5	\$6,136,509	\$2,321,455	\$3,934,987	2.4363	\$149,503
		BLOOMSBURG		12-2059	8	- R1.5	\$1,378,395	\$449,492	\$928,903	2.1693	\$29,901

I&E Exhibit No. 5 Schedule 5 Page 1 of 2

63 64 65	PORT ALLEGANY OPERATIONS CENTER POTTSVLLA BRETER SHOP LEHICHTON OPERATIONS CENTER	06-2042 06-2049 08-2073	888	- R1.5 - R1.5 - R1.5	\$2,104,562 \$976,282 \$1,912,687	\$1,096,404 \$513,077 \$45,714	\$1,094,736 \$463,205 \$2,239,619	2.9002 2.0241 2.9591	\$61,036 \$19,761 \$56,598
66 67 3	OTHER STRUCTURES 90.1 STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS	Λ	40 ARIOUS*	- R2	\$17,763,804 \$127,621,222	\$6,548,244 \$44,037,136	\$11,616,625 \$87,940,526	2.5648	\$455,605 \$4,544,268
86 86	91.1 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - FURNITURE 91.2 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - EQUIPMENT		10 20	os so	\$4,956,507 \$193,318	\$1,241,216 \$66,837	\$3,715,291 \$126,481	5.7319 9.8773	\$284,103 \$19,095
5 E	91.3 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 91.4 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - SOFTWARE		с С	<u>д</u> г.	\$239,478 \$713,925	\$104,547 \$671,739	\$74,931 \$42,186	0.0000	\$114,585 \$0
72 73 3	92.1 TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT - SEDANS AND SUVS 92.2 TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT - SMALL PICK-UPS AND CARGO VANS		∞ 9	- L2.5 - L2.5	\$4,173,940 \$32,201,329	\$1,315,381 \$9,324,009	\$2,858,559 \$22,877,320	14.2580 11.6490	\$595,122 \$3,751,146
74 3 75 3	22.3 TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT - LARGE PICK-UPS AND UTILITY VEHICLES 22.4 TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT - LARGE TRUCKS AND DUMP TRUCKS		12	- L3 - L3	\$3,712,512 \$5,734,131	\$1,184,630 \$1.796,682	\$2,527,882 \$3,937,449	8.9376 8.9076	\$331,809 \$510.776
76 3	92.5 TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT - TRAILERS		15	- E2	\$2,631,546	\$776,926	\$1,854,620	7.6273	\$200,715
72 3 3 3	93 STORES EQUIPMENT 94 TOOLS, SHOP AND GARAGE EQUIPMENT		2 2	os - 50	\$17,607 \$39,138,142	\$7,199 \$14,249,079	\$10,408 \$24,889,063	4.7368 5.1748	\$834 \$2,025,311
79 3	95 LABORATORY EQUIPMENT		20	os -	\$437,779	\$134,257	\$303,522	5.0475	\$22,097
9 8 8 9 8	90 FOWER OFERALED EQUIPMENT 97 COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT		9 9	- SQ	\$9.5,676	\$495,444	\$4.30,232 \$4.30,232	0.8020	\$109,136
82	98 MISCELLANEOUS EQUIPMENT OTAT CENERAL PLANT		15	- so	\$2,344,454 \$331,619,177	\$1,210,508 \$70 563 485	\$1,133,946 \$156.405.129	7.9097	\$185,440
- F					61 610 024 514	096 606 616 13	60 2 000 626 69		P00 626 6013
. 8					1.1.012.0010.1012.0		ar of oco far in fost		roote refoord
78 78 88	ONDEPRECIABLE PLANT OTAL NONDEPRECIABLE PLANT				\$19,619,037				
89 90 TOTAL GA					\$4,630,453,551				
91									
92 OTHER U	ILITY PLANT								
27 07	OMMON PLANT								
95 3	01 ORGANIZATION (NONDEPRECIABLE)				\$138,964				
96	89.1 LAND AND LAND RIGHTS - LAND (NONDEPRECIABLE)		i	i	\$6,947,108				
2 26 26 26	90.1 STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS 00.9 STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS - I FASED DROBEPTY	01-2069	02	- KI	\$34,121,694 so	\$3,940,817 e.0	\$30,180,877 so	2.7720	\$945,838 \$0
96 97	91 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - FURNITURE		20	- so	\$4,362,964	\$1,240,166	\$3,122,798	5.3252	\$232,336
100 3	91.1 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - EQUIPMENT		5	- so	\$1,398,843	\$755,741	\$643,102	20.1552	\$281,939
101 3	92.1 TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT - CARS 08 MISCELLA NEORIS EQUIPMENT		t- 9	- L2.5	\$71,637 \$27.067	\$71,637 \$7.001	\$0 \$90.876	11.4850	\$0 \$3.21.7
103 I	OTAL COMMON PLANT		2	2	\$47,069,177	\$6,015,452	\$33,967,653	ACOLUTY	\$1,463,324
104 105 T	0141. COMMON PLANT ALL OCATED TO GAS DIVISION - 28,97%				S41 877 447	\$5.351.948	\$30.825.846		\$1 301 990
106									
107 1	NFORMATION SERVICES (IS) 00.1 septementees and indedatements new beading date contred	00.9079	00	10	190 200 00	000	69 T01 E61	21705	P10 209
109 3	91 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - FURNITURE	C107-60	8 8	- 80	\$16,957	88,740	88,217 88,217	8.6473	\$1,466
110 3	91.1 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - EQUIPMENT		ŝ	- s0	\$15,197,288	\$11,037,936	\$4,159,352	17.4673	\$2,654,555
111 3	91.2 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - SOFTWARE				\$0				\$0
112	SUCCESS FACTORS UNTER FRP	09-2024 09-2034	SQUARE		\$2,803,866 \$10,605,816	\$2,076,802 \$9 350 189	\$727,064 \$8 336.634	25.9308	\$727,064 \$757 876
114 3	91.2 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - SOFTWARE		SOUARE		\$13,499,682	\$4,435,984	\$9,063,698	-	\$1,484,940
115 3	91.3 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - SYSTEM DEV. COSTS - 10 YEARS		10	ds -	\$59,757,267	\$19,521,425	\$40,235,842	10.3329	\$6,174,649
116 5 117 T	91.4 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - SYSTEM DEV. COSTS - 15 YEARS OTAL INFORMATION SPEVICES		15	- so	\$133,558,198 \$994.726.152	\$50,293,216 \$85 309 501	\$83,264,982 \$1 20 423 659	6.7390	\$9,000,539 \$19.401 966
118						Tooleon	Toplant Conth		and traction to
F 611	0TAL INFORMATION SERVICES ALLOCATED TO GAS DIVISION - 91.68% 91.68%				\$206,038,105	\$78,205,333	\$127,832,772		\$17,787,723
121 3	91.4 OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - SYSTEM DEV. COSTS - 15 YEARS - UNITE	ADC	15	- so	\$27,864,086	\$1,945,443	\$25,918,643	6.5707	\$1,830,870
122									
123 I	MPIRE YARD BUILDING 90.1 STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS	12-2047	80	- R1.5	\$14,209,098	\$8,429,910	\$5,779,188	1.8830	\$267,551
125									
126 1 127 1	ESS EMPIRE BUILDING ALLOCATED TO ELECTRIC DIVISION - 13.07% 13.07%				\$1,857,129	\$1,101,789	\$755,340		\$34,969
128 TOTAL 01	HER UTILITY PLANT ALLOCATED TO ALL GAS DIVISIONS				\$273,922,509	\$84,400,934	\$183,821,921	ļ	\$20,885,543
129 130 TOTAL PL	ANTIN SERVICE				\$4,904,376,059	\$1,326,783,295	\$3,556,630,513		\$124,157,627
131 132 AMORTIZ	ATION OF NEGATIVE NET SALVAGE								\$6,083,750
133 134 CD 130 D					0100101000	100 007 700 De	611 062 JTT 66		776 116 06 L4
T THEY SET					\$4,704,010,000	\$T,020,100,409	erc/nen/nee/ed		110'T47'00T2
I.									

* AGOUVTS 305 AND 332.01 HAVE NO REMAINING DEPRECIATION AGCRUALS. THE FUTURE AGCRUALS SHOWN ARE RELATED TO THE AMORTIZATION OF NEGATIVE NET SALVAGE. ** SURVIVOR GURVES FOR AGGOUNT 30.0.1 ARE INTERIM SURVIVOR GURVIES.INDIVIDUAL BUILDINGS ARE LIFE SPANNED.

I&E Exhibit No. 5 Schedule 5 Page 2 of 2

I&E Statement No. 6 Witness: Jessalynn Heydenreich NON-PROPRIETARY

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Direct Testimony

of

Jessalynn Heydenreich

Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement

Concerning:

PIPELINE REPLACEMENT COSTS SYSTEM LEAK REDUCTION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
RESTORATION COSTS	7
LEAK IDENTIFICATION	

1 **INTRODUCTION**

PA 17120.

Q. PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, OCCUPATION, AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

A. My name is Jessalynn Heydenreich. I am a Fixed Utility Valuation Engineer in
the Pipeline Safety Division of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission's
(Commission) Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement (I&E). My business
address is Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg,

9

8

10 Q. WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL AND EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE?

11 A. I attended the Pennsylvania State University and earned a Bachelor of Science

12 Degree in Mechanical Engineering in 2003. I joined the Pennsylvania Public

13 Utility Commission's Pipeline Safety Division in October 2015.

14

15 Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

16 A. The purpose of my testimony is to address UGI Utilities, Inc. - Gas Division's

17 (UGI or Company) pipeline replacement costs, particularly restoration costs,

18 associated with the replacement of mains.

19

20 Q. DOES YOUR TESTIMONY INCLUDE AN EXHIBIT?

A. Yes. I&E Exhibit No. 6 contains schedules relating to my testimony.

1	Q.	PLEASE DESCRIBE THE ROLE OF I&E IN RATE PROCEEDINGS.
2	A.	I&E is responsible for protecting the public interest in proceedings before the
3		Commission. The I&E analysis in proceeding is based on its responsibility to
4		represent the public interest. This responsibility requires the balancing of the
5		interests of ratepayers, the regulated utility, and the regulated community as a
6		whole.
7		
8	Q.	HAVE YOU REVIEWED THE DIRECT TESTIMONY OF UGI WITNESS
9		MR. ANGSTADT AS IT RELATES TO UGI'S PLAN TO REPLACE CAST
10		IRON AND BARE STEEL PIPELINES?
11	A.	Yes. I have reviewed Mr. Angstadt's direct testimony as it relates to UGI's plan
12		to replace cast iron and bare steel pipelines. ¹ Replacement and betterment
13		infrastructure projects are chosen for inclusion in the capital budget using a risk-
14		based prioritization process. ² Mr. Angstadt summarizes UGI's risk-based
15		prioritization process used to evaluate the replacement of cast iron and bare steel
16		pipelines. Mr. Angstadt states that UGI's cast iron and bare steel mains are more
17		susceptible to failure than other pipe materials. Mr. Angstadt also references
18		UGI's Long Term Infrastructure Improvement Plan (LTIIP) to prioritize projects
19		for its' capital budget. UGI uses a risk-based prioritization process Distribution

UGI Statement No. 9, pp. 10, ln 8-15. UGI Statement No. 9, p. 9-10.

1		Integrity Management Program (DIMP) to determine which pipelines should be						
2		replaced.						
3								
4	Q.	WHAT FEDERAL AND STATE REGULATIONS CONTROL UGI'S						
5		PIPELINE REPLACEMENT?						
6	A.	UGI is mandated to implement a DIMP under Chapter 49 CFR 192 Subpart P –						
7		Gas Distribution Pipeline Integrity Management (IM) of the Code of Federal						
8		Regulations. Additionally, utilities, like UGI, which are seeking to continue a						
9		previously-approved DSIC mechanism, are required to submit an LTIIP pursuant						
10		to 52 Pa Code §121.1 and §121.3.						
11								
12	Q.	WHY MUST A NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION COMPANY COMPLY						
13		WITH THE DIMP REGULATIONS?						
14	A.	The Pipeline and Hazardous Material Safety Administration (PHMSA) created						
15		DIMP regulations to reduce the number of U.S. Department of Transportation						
16		(U.S. DOT) Reportable Incidents. ³ DIMP is a performance based regulatory						
17		program required of gas distribution operators and is driven by risk management.						

³ A PHMSA Reportable Incident is defined by the following events: (1) An event that involves a release of gas from a pipeline, or of liquefied natural gas, liquefied petroleum gas, refrigerant gas, or gas from an LNG facility, and that results in one or more of the following consequences:(i) A death, or personal injury necessitating in-patient hospitalization;(ii) Estimated property damage of \$50,000 or more, including loss to the operator and others, or both, but excluding cost of gas lost;(iii) Unintentional estimated gas loss of three million cubic feet or more;(2) An event that results in an emergency shutdown of an LNG facility. Activation of an emergency shutdown system for reasons other than an actual emergency does not constitute an incident;.(3) An event that is significant in the judgment of the operator, even though it did not meet the criteria of paragraphs (1) or (2) of this definition.

Q. WHY MUST A NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION COMPANY FILE AN LTIIP?

3	A.	A natural gas distribution company must submit an LTIIP for Commission				
4		approval to be eligible to recover the reasonable and prudently incurred costs				
5		regarding the repair, improvement, and replacement of eligible property from the				
6		Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC). The LTIIP must show the				
7		acceleration of the replacement of aging infrastructure by the utility and be				
8		sufficient to ensure and maintain adequate, efficient, safe, reliable, and reasonable				
9		service to customers. ⁴				
10						
11	Q.	WHAT ARE THE REQUIREMENTS OF A DIMP?				
12	A.	DIMP requires gas distribution pipeline operators to:				
13		1. Demonstrate knowledge of the gas distribution system;				
14						
		2. Identify threats;				
15		 Identify threats; Evaluate and rank risks; 				
15 16		 Identify threats; Evaluate and rank risks; Identify and implement measures to address risk; 				
15 16 17		 Identify threats; Evaluate and rank risks; Identify and implement measures to address risk; Measure performance, monitor results and evaluate effectiveness; 				
15 16 17 18		 Identify threats; Evaluate and rank risks; Identify and implement measures to address risk; Measure performance, monitor results and evaluate effectiveness; Evaluate and improve the DIMP; 				

⁴ See 52 Pa. Code § 121.1.

1		DIMP requirements include the identification of threats to pipeline facilities and					
2		the requirement for operators to create plans to mitigate and reduce the risks					
3		caused by those threats. UGI uses a risk-based prioritization process to select					
4		pipelines for replacement. UGI determines pipeline replacements by managing					
5		the risk ranking of the different aspects of the pipeline and then replacing the pipe					
6		based on the highest risk ranking.					
7							
8	Q.	WHAT ARE THE REQUIREMENTS OF AN LTIIP?					
9	A.	The LTIIP must include the following elements:					
10		1. Identification of types and age of eligible property owned and operated by the					
11		utility for which it is seeking DSIC recovery.					
12		2. An initial schedule for planned repair and replacement of eligible property.					
13		3. A general description of location of eligible property.					
14		4. A reasonable estimate of quantity of eligible property to be improved or					
15		repaired.					
16		5. Projected annual expenditures and means to finance the expenditures.					
17		6. A description of the manner in which infrastructure replacement will be					
18		accelerated and how repair, improvement, or replacement will ensure and					
19		maintain adequate, efficient, safe, reliable, and reasonable service to					
20		customers.					

1		7. A workforce management and training program designed to ensure that the
2		utility will have access to a qualified workforce to perform work in a cost-
3		effective, safe, and reliable manner.
4		8. A description of a utility's outreach and coordination activities with other
5		utilities, Department of Transportation and local governments regarding the
6		planned maintenance/construction projects and roadways that may be
7		impacted by the LTIIP.
8		The LTIIP must address only the specific property eligible for DSIC
9		recovery. ⁵
10		
11	Ο	
	Q٠	WHAT ARE THE COMMON MITIGATION MEASURES FOR HIGH
12	Q.	WHAT ARE THE COMMON MITIGATION MEASURES FOR HIGH RISK PIPELINE SEGMENTS?
12 13	Q. A.	WHAT ARE THE COMMON MITIGATION MEASURES FOR HIGHRISK PIPELINE SEGMENTS?The industry's common mitigation measure to reduce pipeline risk is to replace the
12 13 14	Q.	WHAT ARE THE COMMON MITIGATION MEASURES FOR HIGHRISK PIPELINE SEGMENTS?The industry's common mitigation measure to reduce pipeline risk is to replace thehighest risk pipelines first. As a company replaces the pipelines calculated to be at
12 13 14 15	Q.	 WHAT ARE THE COMMON MITIGATION MEASURES FOR HIGH RISK PIPELINE SEGMENTS? The industry's common mitigation measure to reduce pipeline risk is to replace the highest risk pipelines first. As a company replaces the pipelines calculated to be at the highest risk, the total system risk should be reduced. The overall risk of the
12 13 14 15 16	Q.	 WHAT ARE THE COMMON MITIGATION MEASURES FOR HIGH RISK PIPELINE SEGMENTS? The industry's common mitigation measure to reduce pipeline risk is to replace the highest risk pipelines first. As a company replaces the pipelines calculated to be at the highest risk, the total system risk should be reduced. The overall risk of the asset group will reduce as the riskiest pipeline is replaced, if enough pipe is
12 13 14 15 16 17	Q .	 WHAT ARE THE COMMON MITIGATION MEASURES FOR HIGH RISK PIPELINE SEGMENTS? The industry's common mitigation measure to reduce pipeline risk is to replace the highest risk pipelines first. As a company replaces the pipelines calculated to be at the highest risk, the total system risk should be reduced. The overall risk of the asset group will reduce as the riskiest pipeline is replaced, if enough pipe is replaced in that asset group annually to overcome the increasing risks on other

⁵ See 52 Pa. Code § 121.3.

1	Q.	SHOULD PIPELINE REPLACEMENT MITIGATION MEASURES BE
2		BASED ON LTHP OR DIMP?
3	A.	Pipeline replacement, which includes high risk cast iron and bare steel should be
4		based on DIMP. The LTIIP is a forward-looking plan for the replacement of
5		DSIC eligible assets. Overall, pipeline replacement should be risk based and, thus,
6		driven by DIMP.
7		
8	<u>RES</u>	TORATION COSTS
9	Q.	WHAT IS INCLUDED IN UGI'S PIPELINE REPLACEMENT COSTS?
10	A.	UGI's capital costs include Contractor, Material, Other, Restoration, Labor,
11		Equipment, and Overhead.
12		
13	Q.	ARE THE PIPELINE REPLACEMENT COSTS INCREASING?
14	A.	Yes. UGI's pipeline replacement costs are increasing. {BEGIN
15		PROPRIETARY}
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		

1			

5 {END PROPRIETARY}

- Q. DOES THE TOTAL COST FOR PIPELINE REPLACEMENT INCLUDE
 THE COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT?
- 9 A. No. {BEGIN PROPRIETARY}

- **PROPRIETARY**}

{END
1	Q.	WHAT PORTION OF UGI'S PIPELINE REPLACEMENT COSTS ARE
2		INCREASING AT THE GREATEST RATE PER MILE?
3	A.	The largest increase in pipeline replacement is associated with the restoration costs
4		per mile. {BEGIN PROPRIETARY}
5		{END
6		PROPRIETARY}
7		
8	Q.	WHAT ARE UGI'S FORECASTED PIPELINE REPLACEMENT GOALS?
9	А.	Pipeline replacement goals for 2022, 2023 and 2024 ⁸ are known to be at least 70
10		miles per year, which is representative of the actual pipeline replacement rate of
11		76 miles in fiscal year 2021. Beyond Fiscal Year 2024, UGI's pipeline
12		replacement goals will be determined in a new LTIIP filed with the Commission.
13		
14	Q.	HAS THE COMPANY COMMENTED ON THE INCREASING
15		RESTORATION COSTS?
16	А.	Yes. UGI indicated in the response to I&E-PS-29, that it is continuing efforts to
17		lower restoration costs with a strategy focused on three main areas: municipal
18		outreach, project aggregation, and installation technology.

⁸ See UGI Statement No. 9, p 10, ln 8-15.

1	Q.	IN YOUR OPINION, WILL UGI'S RESTORATION COSTS PER MILE
2		INCREASE IN 2022 AND THROUGH 2024?
3	А.	Yes. {BEGIN PROPRIETARY}
4		
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		

See Exhibit No. 6, Schedule No. 2. See Exhibit No. 6, Schedule No. 1.

1		
2		
3		
4		{END
5		PROPRIETARY}
6		
7	Q.	DO INCREASING RESTORATION COSTS NEGATIVELY IMPACT
8		UGI'S CAPITAL SPENDING ON PIPELINE REPLACEMENT
9		PROJECTS?
10	A.	Yes. {BEGIN PROPRIETARY}
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		{END PROPRIETARY}

- 12

1	Q.	WHEN CAPITAL IS UTILIZED FOR MORE ANCILLARY SPENDING
2		SUCH AS RESTORATION COSTS, DO THOSE ADDED COSTS REDUCE
3		THE FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR PIPELINE REPLACEMENT?
4	A.	Yes. The increasing restoration costs divert funds from UGI's pipeline
5		replacement projects. The fewer projects UGI can complete in a year equates to
6		less risky pipe being replaced, which slows the desired reduction in total pipeline
7		risk. The less money UGI spends on restoration costs, the more funds it has for
8		pipeline replacement.
9		
10	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING
11		RESTORATION COSTS?
11 12	A.	RESTORATION COSTS? Yes. I recommend that UGI continue to take affirmative steps to reduce
11 12 13	A.	RESTORATION COSTS? Yes. I recommend that UGI continue to take affirmative steps to reduce restoration costs through efforts including, but not limited to, coordinating pipe
11 12 13 14	A.	RESTORATION COSTS? Yes. I recommend that UGI continue to take affirmative steps to reduce restoration costs through efforts including, but not limited to, coordinating pipe replacement projects with other street projects and replacing pipe using trenchless
11 12 13 14 15	A.	RESTORATION COSTS? Yes. I recommend that UGI continue to take affirmative steps to reduce restoration costs through efforts including, but not limited to, coordinating pipe replacement projects with other street projects and replacing pipe using trenchless construction techniques where technically and economically feasible. I also
 11 12 13 14 15 16 	A.	RESTORATION COSTS?Yes. I recommend that UGI continue to take affirmative steps to reducerestoration costs through efforts including, but not limited to, coordinating pipereplacement projects with other street projects and replacing pipe using trenchlessconstruction techniques where technically and economically feasible. I alsorecommend UGI produce by March 2023 for FY 2022 pipeline replacements and
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 	A.	RESTORATION COSTS?Yes. I recommend that UGI continue to take affirmative steps to reducerestoration costs through efforts including, but not limited to, coordinating pipereplacement projects with other street projects and replacing pipe using trenchlessconstruction techniques where technically and economically feasible. I alsorecommend UGI produce by March 2023 for FY 2022 pipeline replacements andannually thereafter for subsequent years and discuss the results of the audits of the
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 	A.	RESTORATION COSTS? Yes. I recommend that UGI continue to take affirmative steps to reduce restoration costs through efforts including, but not limited to, coordinating pipe replacement projects with other street projects and replacing pipe using trenchless construction techniques where technically and economically feasible. I also recommend UGI produce by March 2023 for FY 2022 pipeline replacements and annually thereafter for subsequent years and discuss the results of the audits of the restoration costs for its 10 largest projects in the prior three years, identifying costs
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 	A.	RESTORATION COSTS? Yes. I recommend that UGI continue to take affirmative steps to reduce restoration costs through efforts including, but not limited to, coordinating pipe replacement projects with other street projects and replacing pipe using trenchless construction techniques where technically and economically feasible. I also recommend UGI produce by March 2023 for FY 2022 pipeline replacements and annually thereafter for subsequent years and discuss the results of the audits of the restoration costs for its 10 largest projects in the prior three years, identifying costs incurred in excess of the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation restoration

LEAK IDENTIFICATION

2	Q.	PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW UGI CLASSIFIES LEAKS ON ITS SYSTEM?
3	A.	UGI assigns grades to leaks on its system according to the severity of the leaks.
4		These assignments include Class 'A', 'B', and 'C'. Class 'C' leaks are deemed
5		hazardous and repaired immediately. Class 'B' leaks may become hazardous if
6		otherwise not repaired and are scheduled for repair within twelve (12) months, not
7		to exceed fifteen (15) months. Class 'A' are deemed non-hazardous leaks.
8		
9	Q.	HOW HAVE UGI'S LEAKS TRENDED FROM 2017 TO 2021?
10	A.	In response to I&E-PS-15, the Company provided historic leak information.
11		{BEGIN PROPRIETARY}
12		
13		
14		
15		{END PROPRIETARY}
16		
17	Q.	DO YOU HAVE A RECOMMENDATION REGARDING UGI'S LEAKS?
18	A.	Yes. I recommend UGI perform a root cause analysis to determine why the
19		increase in total number of leaks found in 2021 does not correlate with removing
20		60 miles of risky pipeline in 2020. Further, I recommend UGI present the findings

1		of said analysis to I&E Pipeline Safety, including any corrective actions the
2		Company takes, no later than September 30, 2022.
3		
4	Q.	WHY DO YOU RECOMMEND UGI COMPLETE A ROOT CAUSE
5		ANALYSIS REGARDING THE UPWARD TREND OF LEAKS ON ITS
6		SYSTEM?
7	A.	The increase of UGI's leaks in the last year is concerning given the amount of
8		priority pipe the Company has been replacing. ¹⁴ Theoretically, as risky pipes are
9		replaced, the number of leaks should go down, which is not the case here. A root
10		cause analysis would be a good investment of ratepayers' money given the threats
11		leaks pose to life and property.
12		
13	Q.	DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

14 A. Yes

¹⁴ See Exhibit No. 6, Schedule No. 3 (Proprietary).

I&E Exhibit No. 6 Witness: Jessalynn Heydenreich NON-PROPRIETARY

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Exhibits to Accompany

the

Direct Testimony

of

Jessalynn Heydenreich

Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement

Concerning:

PIPELINE REPLACEMENT COSTS SYSTEM LEAK REDUCTION

I&E Exhibit No. 6 Schedule No. 1 Witness: Jessalynn Heydenreich PROPRIETARY

I&E Exhibit No. 6 Schedule No. 2 Witness: Jessalynn Heydenreich PROPRIETARY

I&E Exhibit No. 6 Schedule No. 3 Witness: Jessalynn Heydenreich PROPRIETARY

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

V.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Rebuttal Testimony

of

Zachari Walker

Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement

Concerning:

LOW-INCOME USAGE REDUCTION PROGRAM

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION OF WITNESS	1
RESPONSE TO OCA WITNESS ROGER D. COLTON	2
RESPONSE TO CAUSE-PA WITNESS HARRY GELLER	3
RESPONSE TO CEO WITNESS EUGENE BRADY	6
RECENT COMMISSION ORDERS	8

1 INTRODUCTION OF WITNESS

2	Q.	PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
3	А.	My name is Zachari Walker, and my business address is Pennsylvania Public Utility
4		Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120.
5		
6	Q.	BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?
7	А.	I am employed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) in the
8		Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement (I&E) as a Fixed Utility Financial Analyst.
9		
10	Q.	ARE YOU THE SAME ZACHARI WALKER WHO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR
11		THE DIRECT TESTIMONY CONTAINED IN I&E STATEMENT NO. 1 AND
12		THE SCHEDULES IN I&E EXHIBIT NO. 1?
13	А.	Yes.
14		
15	Q.	DOES YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY INCLUDE AN ACCOMPANYING
16		EXHIBIT?
17	А.	Yes. I&E Exhibit No. 1-R contains schedules that support my rebuttal testimony.
18		
19	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
20	А.	The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to address the direct testimony of
21		(1) Office of Consumer Advocate (OCA) witness Roger D. Colton ¹ concerning his
22		recommended increase to UGI Utilities, Inc. – Gas Division's (UGI or Company)

¹ OCA Statement No. 4 (Corrected), pp. 4-43.

1		Low Income Usage Reduction Program (LIURP) budget by \$524,450; ² (2) Coalition
2		for Affordable Utility Services and Energy Efficiency in Pennsylvania (CAUSE-PA)
3		witness Harry S. Geller ³ concerning his recommended \$352,008 increase to the
4		Company's LIURP budget; ⁴ and (3) the Commission on Economic Opportunity
5		(CEO) witness Eugene M. Brady ⁵ concerning his recommended \$750,000 increase to
6		the Company's LIURP budget. ⁶
7		
8	<u>RES</u>	PONSE TO OCA WITNESS ROGER D. COLTON
9	Q.	SUMMARIZE OCA WITNESS ROGER D. COLTON'S TESTIMONY
10		REGARDING UGI'S LIURP BUDGET.
11	A.	Mr. Colton recommended the Company's LIURP include a new incremental
12		component to provide investments to confirmed low-income customers as part of the
13		process of converting those customers to natural gas and resulting in an increase of
14		\$524,450 to the Company's LIURP budget. ⁷
15		
16	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. COLTON'S RECOMMENDATION?
17	A.	Mr. Colton opines that if UGI redirected a portion of its existing LIURP budget to
18		serving gas conversion customers it would result in no net gain. ⁸ He calculates his
19		recommended addition to the Company's LIURP budget using the 85 confirmed low-
20		income gas conversions in 2021 and the calculated 2019 average UGI LIURP cost per

OCA Statement No. 4 (Corrected), p. 21. CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, pp. 26-35.

CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, p. 29.

CEO Statement No. 1, p. 29. CEO Statement No. 1, p. 7-12. CEO Statement No. 1, p. 8. OCA Statement No. 4 (Corrected), p. 21. OCA Statement No. 4 (Corrected), p. 21.

1		job of \$6,170 ⁹ producing his recommended increase of \$524,450 to the Company's
2		current LIURP budget.
3		
4	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. COLTON'S RECOMMENDATION?
5	A.	No. While Mr. Colton's recommendation is well-intentioned, it is inappropriate to
6		consider such a significant increase in the LIURP budget in this base rate case
7		proceeding.
8		
9	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
10	A.	I recommend that no increase to the budgeted LIURP amount be allowed.
11		
12	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
13	A.	In response to CAUSE-PA-I-14, UGI has shown it was unable to exhaust its LIURP
14		budget in the four most recent historic years other than exhausting it one time for the
15		North District in 2018. ¹⁰ Additionally, Mr. Colton does not provide adequate support
16		for how this incremental component ensures UGI will exhaust its existing LIURP
17		budgeted funds.
18		
19	<u>RES</u>	PONSE TO CAUSE-PA WITNESS HARRY GELLER
20	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. GELLER'S TESTIMONY CONCERNING UGI'S LIURP
21		BUDGET.
22	A.	First, Mr. Geller asserts that UGI's LIURP is not operating at a rate sufficient to

⁹ OCA Statement No. 4 (Corrected), pp. 20-21. I&E Exhibit No. 1-R, Schedule 1.

¹⁰

1		fulfill the estimated need for comprehensive usage reduction services within a
2		reasonable amount of time, citing UGI's most recent LIURP needs assessment results
3		of 25 years to serve estimated need in UGI's former South District and 40 years to
4		serve estimated need in UGI's former North District. ¹¹ Additionally, he
5		acknowledges UGI has failed to exhaust its existing LIURP budget. ¹² In response to
6		the aforementioned issues, he recommends UGI reduce its LIURP minimum usage
7		threshold for households at or below 150% federal poverty level ¹³ and he
8		recommends UGI increase its annual LIURP budget by a percentage equal to or
9		greater than the average residential bill impact of any approved residential rate
10		increase. ¹⁴ His recommendation results in an increase of \$352,008 to the Company's
11		current total LIURP budget of \$3,705,350. ¹⁵
12		
13	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. GELLER THAT THE COMPANY SHOULD
14		INCREASE ITS LIURP BUDGET BY \$352,008 IN THIS PROCEEDING?
15	A.	No, in part. First, I accept Mr. Geller's recommendation that UGI should continue its
16		2020 LIURP program year modification which lowered its LIURP minimum usage
17		threshold to reflect the average usage of residential customers for customers at or
18		below 150% of the Federal Poverty Level ¹⁶ to provide increased opportunity for UGI
19		to exhaust its LIURP budgeted funds. Secondly, there is an error in Mr. Geller's
20		calculation of the proposed LIURP budget increase which I will address next.

CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, p. 26.

CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, p. 27.

CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, p. 27. CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, p. 27. CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, p. 27. CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, p. 29. CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, p. 28.

1		Finally, while his recommendation is well-intentioned, it is inappropriate to consider
2		such an increase in the LIURP budget in this base rate proceeding.
3		
4	Q.	PLEASE ADDRESS MR. GELLER'S CALCULATION ERROR RELATED
5		TO THE COMPANY'S LIURP BUDGET.
6	А.	Mr. Geller cites UGI's response to CAUSE-PA IV-3 as the source of the Company's
7		current total LIURP budget, stating a total of \$3,705,350. ¹⁷ However, the resulting
8		sum of the three district values provided in response to CAUSE-PA IV-3 is correctly
9		calculated as $3,714,350$ ($1,641,100 + 1,363,050 + 710,200$). ¹⁸ Based on this
10		correction, Mr. Geller's resulting recommended LIURP budget increase based on the
11		residential rate increase percentage of $9.5\%^{19}$ would be \$352,863 (\$3,714,350 x
12		0.095).
13		
14	Q.	WHAT DO YOU RECOMMEND?
15	А.	Even with the corrected calculation, Mr. Geller's recommendation should be denied
16		and no change to the budget amount be allowed. As mentioned above, I accept Mr.
17		Geller's suggestion that UGI should continue its 2020 LIURP program year
18		modification which lowered its LIURP minimum usage threshold to reflect the
19		average usage for residential customers at or below 150% of the Federal Poverty

20 Level potentially providing increased opportunities for LIURP funds to be utilized.

¹⁷ CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, p. 29.

¹⁸ I&E Exhibit No. 1-R, Schedule 2.

¹⁹ CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, p. 29, line 11.

1 Q. WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION?

2 A. Mr. Geller admits that UGI has historically underspent its LIURP budget in each of 3 the aforementioned former districts as evidenced by over \$1 million unspent LIURP funds in 2021.²⁰ In essence he acknowledges UGI has failed to exhaust its existing 4 5 LIURP budget.²¹ This is visible by UGI's unused LIURP budgeted funds totaling 497,576 (530,531 - 32,955)²² in 2018; 891,529 (53,712 + 137,547)²³ in 2019; 6 7 $(1,497,368 + 884,099 + 355,399)^{24}$ in 2020; and $(1,010,389)^{354,796}$ + \$490,140 + \$165,453) in 2021.²⁵ Given that UGI has not historically spent is 8 9 LIURP funds and that Mr. Geller provides no support that UGI would be able to 10 exhaust an increased LIURP budget, his recommendation should be denied. 11 12 **RESPONSE TO CEO WITNESS EUGENE BRADY** 13 Q. SUMMARIZE MR. BRADY'S TESTIMONY CONCERNING UGI'S LIURP 14 BUDGET. 15 A. Mr. Brady states the Company estimates at the current funding level it would take 25 16 years to meet the LIURP need of the South District and 40 years to meet the LIURP 17 need of the North District. In response, he recommends the annual funding for LIURP be increased by \$750,000.²⁶ 18

²⁰ I&E Exhibit No. 1-R, Schedule 1.

²¹ CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1, p. 27.

²² I&E Exhibit No. 1-R, Schedule 1.

²³ I&E Exhibit No. 1-R, Schedule 1.

²⁴ I&E Exhibit No. 1-R, Schedule 1.

²⁵ I&E Exhibit No. 1-R, Schedule 1.

²⁶ CEO Statement No. 1, p. 8.

1	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR MR. BRADY'S RECOMMENDATION?
2	A.	Mr. Brady refers to the Company's needs assessment stating there are approximately
3		10,000 low-income customers in need for LIURP services in two of the three prior
4		UGI gas districts. Next, he states the Company's plan is to complete 481 LIURP jobs
5		per year across its service territory and opines a good target would be complete an
6		additional 100 jobs per year across the Company's service territory. Using a rounded
7		LIURP job cost of \$7,500 per job, the result would be an overall increase of \$750,000
8		in additional funding required to complete the additional 100 LIURP jobs.
9		
10	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. BRADY'S RECOMMENDATION?
11	A.	No.
12		
13	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDED DISALLOWANCE OF
14		MR. BRADY'S PROPOSAL?
15	A.	While Mr. Brady's recommendation is well-intentioned, it is inappropriate to consider
16		increasing the LIURP budget in the instant proceeding. The Company has shown that
17		it is unable to exhaust the existing budget, ²⁷ and Mr. Brady has not provided support
18		indicating that the Company would be able to utilize the increased amount.
19		
20	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY ADDITIONAL OVERALL COMMENTS REGARDING
21		YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO DENY THESE PROGRAM INCREASES
22		IN THIS PROCEEDING?
23	A.	Yes. While my positions to the three witnesses above have specifically related to the

²⁷ I&E Exhibit No. 1-R, Schedule 1.

1 witnesses' failure to provide support for UGI's ability to utilize the additional 2 funding, it is important to note that these program costs are directly assessed to other 3 ratepayers. In the current economic climate with natural gas commodity costs 4 climbing and overall inflation costing consumers substantially more in day-to-day 5 necessities, implementing increases to these programs with no certainty of the 6 Company's ability to utilize these additional funds is unreasonable. Furthermore, the 7 ongoing supply chain and workforce issues may impede the Company's ability to 8 utilize even the currently designated LIURP budget. From both perspectives, I find it 9 unreasonable to impose additional costs to other ratepayers for this program in this 10 proceeding. 11 12 **RECENT COMMISSION ORDERS** 13 ARE THERE ANY RECENT COMMISSION DECISIONS THAT SUPPORT **Q**. 14 YOUR RECOMMENDATIONS AS EXPLAINED ABOVE? 15 In the recent PECO Energy Company – Gas Division proceeding the Commission did A. 16 not consider CAUSE-PA's proposals relating to CAP and other universal service 17 program issues within the context of the base rate proceeding because they would be

- 18 more properly considered in its USECP proceeding.²⁸ The Commission referenced
- 19 last year's Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc. (Columbia Gas) proceeding²⁹ in which
- 20 it concluded, "that energy burdens should not be considered separately from other
- 21 parts of the Company's CAP and universal service programs but should be considered

²⁸ PA PUC v. PECO Energy Company – Gas Division, Docket No. R-2020-3018929, pp. 195-196 (Order Entered June 22, 2021).

²⁹ PA PUC v. Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket No. R-2020-3018835 (Order Entered February 19, 2021).

8	Q.	DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
7		
6		the pilot program until its effectiveness can be evaluated. ³²
5		with the Administrative Law Judge's recommended decision denying any change to
4		Safety Pilot Program from CAUSE-PA. ³¹ In that proceeding the Commission agreed
3		proceeding the Commission rejected a similar proposal related to the Health and
2		and associated costs." ³⁰ It should be noted that in last year's Columbia Gas
1		as part of the Company's entire universal service plan, including the need for changes

9 A. Yes.

³⁰ *PA PUC v. PECO Energy Company – Gas Division*, Docket No. R-2020-3018929, p. 195 (Order Entered June 22, 2021).

³¹ *PA PUC v. Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc.*, Docket No. R-2020-3018835, pp. 160-161 and 173-174 (Order Entered February 19, 2021).

³² PA. PUC v. Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket No. R-2020-3018835, p. 174 (Order Entered February 19, 2021).

I&E Exhibit No. 1-R Witness: Zachari Walker

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

V.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Exhibit to Accompany

the

Rebuttal Testimony

of

Zachari Walker

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

LOW-INCOME USAGE REDUCTION PROGRAM

CAUSE-PA-I-14

Request:

Please indicate for each year for the past three years, whether:

- a. UGI Gas exhausted its LIURP budget;
- b. If such budget was not exhausted, indicate the number of dollars not spent;
- c. UGI's three gas divisions exhausted its LIURP budget;
- d. If such budget was not exhausted, indicate the number of dollars not spent;
- e. If UGI's LIURP budget was exhausted, indicate the number of LIURP applicants that did not receive LIURP services despite having been found to be LIURP eligible;

Response:

a. UGI Gas only exhausted its LIURP budget in 2018 for the North District.

b.		2018	2019	2020	2021
	South	\$530,531	\$753,712	\$1,497,368	\$354,796
	North	\$(32,955)	\$137,547	\$884,099	\$490,140
	Central	\$- 0	\$- 0	\$355,399	\$165,453

- c. d. See the response to CAUSE-PA-I-14-b.
- e. Not Applicable.

Prepared by or under the supervision of: Daniel V. Adamo

CAUSE-PA IV-3

Request:

What is UGI's currently projected annual LIURP budget for 2022-2025?

Response:

2022 - 2025 LIURP Budget by Geographic Territory:

SOUTH - \$1,641,100 NORTH - \$1,363,050 CENTRAL - \$710,200

Prepared by or under the supervision of: Daniel V. Adamo

I&E Statement No. 1-SR Witness: Zachari Walker

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Surrebuttal Testimony

of

Zachari Walker

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

TAXES

LOW-INCOME USAGE REDUCTION PROGRAM

CASH WORKING CAPITAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS	2
SUMMARY OF I&E OVERALL UPDATED POSITION	3
EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY COSTS	5
COVID-19 RELATED UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS EXPENSE	7
ADVERTISING EXPENSE	
MEMBERSHIP DUES	
INTEREST ON CUSTOMER DEPOSITS	
PAYROLL EXPENSE	
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS	
PAYROLL TAXES	
PROPOSED ADDITIONAL PAYROLL EXPENSE	
CASH WORKING CAPITAL	
LOW INCOME USAGE REDUCTION PROGRAM (LIURP)	

INTRODUCTION

2	Q.	PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
3	A.	My name is Zachari Walker, and my business address is Pennsylvania Public
4		Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA 17120.
5		
6	Q.	BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?
7	А.	I am employed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) in
8		the Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement (I&E) as a Fixed Utility Financial
9		Analyst.
10		
11	Q.	ARE YOU THE SAME ZACHARI WALKER WHO SUBMITTED I&E
12		STATEMENT NO. 1, I&E EXHIBIT NO. 1, I&E STATEMENT NO. 1-R,
13		AND I&E EXHIBIT NO. 1-R?
14	А.	Yes.
15		
16	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
17	А.	The purpose of my surrebuttal testimony is to respond to the rebuttal testimony of
18		UGI Utilities, Inc. – Gas Division (UGI Gas or Company) witnesses Christopher
19		R. Brown (UGI Gas Statement No. 1-R), Tracy A. Hazenstab (UGI Gas Statement
20		No. 2-R), Vivian K. Ressler (UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, and Daniel V. Adamo
21		(UGI Gas Statement No. 12-R). Additionally, I respond to the rebuttal testimony
22		of the Coalition for Affordable Utility Services and Energy Efficiency in

1		Pennsylvania (CAUSE-PA) witness Harry Geller (CAUSE-PA Statement No.
2		1-R).
3		
4	Q.	DOES YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY INCLUDE AN
5		ACCOMPANYING EXHIBIT?
6	А.	Yes. I&E Exhibit No. 1-SR contains schedules that support my surrebuttal
7		testimony. Additionally, I refer to my direct testimony and its accompanying
8		exhibit (I&E Statement No. 1 and I&E Exhibit No. 1) and my rebuttal testimony
9		(I&E Statement No. 1-R) in this surrebuttal testimony.
10		
11	<u>OPE</u>	RATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS
12	Q.	PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE COMPANY'S REQUESTED REVENUE
13		INCREASE.
14	А.	In rebuttal testimony, UGI Gas explained that it believed it could now justify an
15		increase of \$87,619,000 ¹ for the Fully Projected Future Test Year (FPFTY) ending
16		September 30, 2023. However, because the notice to customers indicated UGI
17		Gas was requesting an increase of \$82.7 million, it would not be possible for the
18		Company's revenue increase to exceed this amount. Therefore, the UGI Gas
19		actual requested increase remains \$82.7 million.

¹ UGI Gas Exhibit A – FFPTY REBUTTAL, Schedule D-2.

1 Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR ADJUSTMENTS AS CONTAINED IN

2 THIS SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY.

3 A. The following table summarizes my recommended adjustments to the Company's

4 rebuttal position:

		I&E	
	UGI Gas	Recommended	I&E
	<u>Claim</u>	Allowance	<u>Adjustment</u>
O&M Expenses:			
Employee Activity Costs	\$588,226	\$217,935	(\$370,291)
Advertising Expense	\$1,901,541	\$1,016,363	(\$885,178)
Membership Dues	\$1,115,404	\$930,926	(\$184,478)
Payroll Expense	\$82,237,000	\$80,929,432	(\$1,307,568)
Employee Benefits Expense	\$22,021,935	\$21,671,786	<u>(\$350,149)</u>
Total O&M Adjustments			<u>(\$3,097,664)</u>
Taxes:			
Payroll Taxes	\$6,870,000	\$6,760,818	<u>(\$109,182)</u>
Total Tax Adjustments			<u>(\$109,182)</u>
Rate Base:			
Cash Working Capital	\$61,697,000	\$60,684,000	(\$1,060,000)
Total Rate Base Adjustments			<u>(\$1,060,000)</u>

- 5
- 6

7 <u>SUMMARY OF I&E OVERALL UPDATED POSITION</u>

8 Q. WHAT IS I&E'S TOTAL UPDATED RECOMMENDED REVENUE

9 **REQUIREMENT?**

10 A. I&E's total recommended revenue requirement for UGI Gas is \$1,101,304,000.²

11 This recommended revenue requirement represents an increase of \$25,923,000 to

12 the I&E-adjusted present rate revenues of \$1,075,381,000. This total

² This amount includes base customer charges, gas cost revenue and other operating revenues like the Company's filing format shown on UGI Gas Schedule A-1.

1	recommended allowance incorporates my adjustments made in this testimony to
2	O&M expenses, taxes, and cash working capital (CWC), and those recommended
3	adjustments made in the surrebuttal testimony of I&E witnesses Anthony
4	Spadaccio, ³ Brian LaTorre, ⁴ Ethan Cline, ⁵ and Esyan Sakaya. ⁶
5	An updated calculation of I&E's recommended revenue requirement is
6	shown below:

shown below:

UGI UTILITIES INC GA	AS DIVISION	TABLE I			
R-2021-3030218 INCOME SUMMARY		SUMMARY			
(\$ in Thousands)					
	9/30/23		INVESTIGATION	& ENFORCEMENT	
	Proforma	[]
	Present Rates	Adjustments	Present Rates	Allowances	Proposed
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Operating Revenue	1,061,721	13,660	1,075,381	25,923	1,101,304
Deductions:					
O&M Expenses	689,057	2,750	691,807	427	692,234
Depreciation	124,782	-3,494	121,288		121,288
Taxes, Other	13,524	-109	13,415	0	13,415
Income Taxes:					
Current State	3,844	1,748	5,592	2,547	8,139
Current Federal	14,080	3,308	17,388	4,819	22,207
Deferred Taxes	20,732	0	20,732		20,732
ITC	-324	0	-324		-324
Total Deductions	865,695	4,203	869,898	7,793	877,691
Income Available	196,026	9,457	205,483	18,130	223,613
Measure of Value	3,176,596	-154,799	3,021,797	0	3,021,797
Rate of Return	6.17%		6.80%		7.40%

³ I&E Statement No. 2-SR.

⁴ I&E Statement No. 3-SR.

⁵ I&E Statement No. 4-SR.

⁶ I&E Statement No. 5-SR.

1 <u>EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY COSTS</u>

Q. SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN DIRECT TESTIMONY FOR EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY COSTS.

- 4 A. I recommended an allowance of \$217,935 or a reduction of \$370,291 (\$588,226 -
- 5 \$217,935) to the Company's claim.⁷ This recommendation is based on the historic
- 6 year 2019 level expense inflated to the FPFTY equivalent due to the 2019 data
- 7 representing the most recent known and measurable data prior to the effects of the
- 8 pandemic. Given that we are still in the midst of the pandemic, it is not possible to
- 9 know how many employees would be willing to gather at an optional Company
- 10 picnic; therefore, the Company's claim is not prudent.
- 11

12

Q. DID ANY WITNESS RESPOND TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?

- 13 A. Yes. UGI Gas witness Vivian Ressler disagrees with my recommendation.
- 14

15 Q. SUMMARIZE MS. RESSLER'S RESPONSE.

16 A. Ms. Ressler cites UGI Gas witness Christopher R. Brown's direct testimony which

17 states the Company has experienced an increase in voluntary turnover. She states

- 18 that the labor market is tight, and the Company believes spending a modest
- 19 amount of money on activities can increase employee job satisfaction and therein

⁷ I&E Statement No. 1, pp. 5-7.

1		employee retention. Finally, she opines the investment is insignificant compared
2		to the cost of recruiting and training replacement employees. ⁸
3		
4	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MS. RESSLER'S ASSERTIONS?
5	A.	No.
6		
7	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE?
8	A.	Ms. Ressler did not cite data to support her claim of cost savings, nor the
9		Company's position on employee job satisfaction and employee retention deriving
10		from Company-sponsored activities. Additionally, she did not provide data to
11		support that at least a majority of UGI Gas employees would be willing to attend
12		an optional Company picnic.
13		
14	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR
15		EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY COSTS?
16	A.	No. The Company has the burden of proof to provide adequate support that the
17		expenses claimed are incurred for the provision of safe and reliable gas service. It
18		is my opinion that adequate support was not provided regarding the cost of
19		employee activity costs claimed. Therefore, I have no changes to my

⁸ UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, pp. 40-41.

1

2

recommended allowance of \$217,935 or a reduction of \$370,291 (\$588,226 - \$217,935) to the Company's claim.

3

4 <u>COVID-19 RELATED UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS EXPENSE</u>

5 Q. SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN DIRECT TESTIMONY

6 FOR COVID-19 RELATED UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS EXPENSE.

7 A. I accepted UGI Gas' total deferral claim of \$1,503,000 for the 2020 and 2021

8 excess COVID-19 related uncollectible accounts, as well as the 10-year

9 amortization period as approved by the Commission as part of the settlement in

10 the UGI Gas 2020 base rate proceeding. However, I recommended that the

11 Company should not be allowed to continue recording a regulatory asset for

12 ongoing COVID-19 related incremental uncollectible costs after the effective date

13 of new rates for the instant proceeding. This recommendation is based on

14 COVID-19 related uncollectible accounts expenses being included in the forward-

- 15 looking routine uncollectible accounts expense. As a result, allowing the
- 16 Company to continue deferring these costs past the effective date of new rates in
- 17 this proceeding would allow for redundant recovery of the COVID-19 related
- 18 uncollectible accounts since they are already built into the routine uncollectible
- 19 accounts percentage for the FPFTY calculation.⁹

⁹ I&E Statement No. 1, pp. 10-11.

1		Additionally, in the 2020 Joint Petition for Unopposed Settlement – UGI
2		Gas et al., page 21, item 49, the Company agreed not to continue accumulating
3		COVID-19 related costs beyond the effective date of new rates for the instant
4		proceeding.
5		
6	Q.	DID ANY WITNESS RESPOND TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
7	A.	Yes. UGI Gas witness Vivian Ressler disagrees with my recommendation.
8		
9	Q.	SUMMARIZE MS. RESSLER'S RESPONSE.
10	A.	Ms. Ressler states the Company would not continue to recover incremental
11		uncollectible expense above the existing \$12.81 million cap after the
12		implementation of new rates for the instant proceeding, but would defer, for future
13		recovery, costs in excess of the uncollectible accounts amount included in the new
14		rates of the instant proceeding. She contests the Company did not relinquish its
15		right to request an extension to the period of time to continue accumulating and
16		deferring costs above the normalized level until the effective date of the
17		Company's next base rate filing. Additionally, she states the Company has
18		continued to experience higher than normal delinquency rates on COVID-related
19		payment arrangements citing customers on these arrangements continue to carry
20		balances that are higher than they were prior to the Commission's March 13, 2020
21		Emergency Order. Next, she cites inflationary factors causing the commodity cost
22		of gas to increase opining this will likely cause the Company to incur additional

1		incremental expenses above those embedded in rates. Then, she explains the
2		Company's plan to defer and amortize incremental uncollectible costs in detail
3		which includes deferral of costs in excess of an updated uncollectible accounts
4		expense amount of \$18.0 million until the next base rate filing. Finally, she
5		proposes the Company be allowed to recover for ratemaking purposes the
6		previously mentioned excess costs over a three-year amortization period, without
7		interest. ¹⁰
8		
9	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MS. RESSLER'S ASSERTIONS?
10	A.	In the current COVID-19 climate higher uncollectible accounts expense is the new
11		normal and will be so for an undetermined amount of time moving forward. Thus,
12		it is important to reflect the higher percentage in routine uncollectible accounts (as
13		the Company has done) and cease the continued deferral of the excess
14		uncollectible accounts expense past the effective date of new rates in the instant
15		proceeding. It should be noted that in future base rate cases, the routine
16		uncollectible percentage will be developed based on an average of three years of
17		historic data which ensures the Company will recover higher amounts on an
18		ongoing basis if this trend for higher uncollectible accounts expense continues.
19		Thus, there is no need for a continued deferral of differences.

¹⁰ UGI Gas Statement No.3-R, p. 59.

1	The statement in the previous base rate case Settlement Agreement as stated
2	in my direct testimony ¹¹ most assuredly does not include verbiage that allows the
3	Company to continue to accumulate COVID-19 related costs beyond the effective
4	date of new rates for the instant proceeding. In summary, the continued
5	accumulation, deferral, and ultimately amortization of COVID-19 related costs
6	should not continue past the effective date of new rates in the instant proceeding.
7	Furthermore, Ms. Ressler's reference to ongoing inflationary factors
8	potentially causing future increased uncollectible accounts is outside of the scope
9	of the COVID-19 permitted deferrals originally authorized by the Commission.
10	There is no basis to allow the Company to accrue increases in uncollectible
11	expenses resulting from ongoing economic conditions unrelated to the pandemic
12	in a regulatory asset account as changes in the economy and customer reaction to
13	those changes are part of the normal cost of doing business. As I mentioned
14	previously, these transient changes will be covered in the changing uncollectible
15	percentage embedded in rates in future base rate filings and, at some point, it is
16	likely that the embedded rate may even exceed the uncollectible percentage the
17	Company would experience in a subsequent rate year.

¹¹ I&E Statement No. 1, pp. 11-12.
Q. IF THE COMMISSION DECIDES TO ALLOW CONTINUED DEFERRAL OF COVID-19 RELATED UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS, IN THIS INSTANCE IN EXCESS OF THE \$18 MILLION PER YEAR CLAIM, SHOULD THE REQUESTED THREE-YEAR AMORTIZATION PERIOD (WITHOUT INTEREST) BE GRANTED?

6 No. It is inappropriate to grant an amortization period for an unknown amount to A. 7 begin amortization in a future proceeding for COVID-19 related uncollectible 8 accounts in excess of the claimed \$18 million amount. I agree, if the Commission 9 approves the Company's request, the amortization should occur without interest; 10 however, until the actual amount would become known and be verifiable, it is not 11 appropriate to assign a recovery period. An immaterial amount may allow for a 12 shorter recovery period, and to the contrast, a very large deferral might require a 13 longer recovery period.

- 14

15 Q. DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR 16 COVID-19 RELATED UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS EXPENSE?

A. No. I continue to recommend that the deferral of COVID-19 related uncollectible
accounts expense be disallowed upon the effective date of new rates in the instant
proceeding. I further clarify my position to include a recommended denial for the
deferral of any increase in uncollectible expense that may occur unrelated to the
COVID-19 pandemic, which it appears that the Company now wants to recover as
well.

1 ADVERTISING EXPENSE

2	Q.	SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN DIRECT TESTIMONY
3		FOR ADVERTISING EXPENSE.
4	A.	I recommended an allowance of \$1,016,363 or a reduction of \$885,178
5		(\$1,901,541 - \$1,016,363) to the Company's advertising expense claim. This
6		recommendation was based on images provided that merely promote the
7		Company's image without promoting the benefits of domestic natural gas.
8		Consequently, I recommended the other advertising programs in the amount of
9		\$885,178 be disallowed for ratemaking purposes as these programs are not
10		necessary to ensure safe and reliable gas service. ¹²
11		
12	Q.	DID ANY WITNESS RESPOND TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
13	A.	Yes. UGI Gas witness Vivian Ressler disagrees with my recommendation.
14		
15	Q.	SUMMARIZE MS. RESSLER'S RESPONSE.
16	A.	Ms. Ressler states the images which solely depict the image of the Company's
17		logo are not able to visually show the opportunities afforded to Company
18		personnel as a benefit of the Company's sponsorships. She further states these
19		opportunities allow Company personnel to raise awareness of natural gas as an
20		option by developing relationships and discussing the benefits of natural gas with

¹² I&E Statement No. 1, p. 13.

1		non-affiliated attendees. Finally, she opines that these sponsorships are key to
2		attracting additional customers which reduces the overall revenue requirement that
3		is borne by each individual customer. ¹³
4		
5	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MS. RESSLER'S ASSERTIONS?
6	A.	No.
7		
8	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE?
9	А.	Ms. Ressler did not provide data supporting her assertion that additional customers
10		would be obtained this way and would reduce the overall cost per customer, nor
11		did she provide data showing how many additional customers are directly gained
12		from these sponsorships.
13		
14	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR
15		ADVERTISING EXPENSE?
16	A.	No. The Company has the burden of proof to provide adequate support that the
17		expenses claimed are incurred for the provision of safe and reliable gas service.
18		As to the matter of advertising expense, the support is not adequate and thus I
19		continue to recommend an allowance of \$1,016,363 or a reduction of \$885,178
20		(\$1,901,541 - \$1,016,363) to the Company's FPFTY advertising expense claim.

¹³ UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, pp. 44-45.

1 **MEMBERSHIP DUES**

2	Q.	SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN DIRECT TESTIMONY
3		FOR MEMBERSHIP DUES.
4	A.	I recommended the disallowance of claims for numerous organizations where the
5		Company has not provided adequate support for the necessity of ensuring safe and
6		reliable gas service resulting in a decrease of \$153,998 to the Company's
7		membership dues claim, or an allowance of \$961,406 (\$1,115,404 - \$153,998). ¹⁴
8		
9	Q.	DID ANY WITNESS RESPOND TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
10	A.	Yes. UGI Gas witness Vivian Ressler disagrees with my recommendation.
11		
12	Q.	SUMMARIZE MS. RESSLER'S RESPONSE.
13	А.	First, Ms. Ressler stated that the Company misidentified the organization that uses
14		the acronym "CREDC." Due to the nature of the organizations for which I
15		recommended to disallowance in my direct testimony, she includes the additional
16		\$30,480 with my adjustment. She states she will address my proposed adjustment
17		as if it were a total of \$184,478 (\$153,998 + \$30,480). ¹⁵

 ¹⁴ I&E Statement No. 1, pp. 14-15.
 ¹⁵ UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, pp. 49-50.

1 **Q**. DO YOU HAVE ANY CONCERNS WITH MS. RESSLER'S ASSUMPTION 2 **REGARDING YOUR PROPOSED ADJUSTMENT?**

3 A. No. If the organization was properly identified, I agree that I would have included 4 it in my recommended adjustment.

5

6 Q PLEASE CONTINUE SUMMARIZING MS. RESSLER'S RESPONSE.

7 A. Ms. Ressler states the membership in economic development corporations like the 8 PA Chamber of Business & Industry and the PA Economy League allow the 9 Company to grow its customer base. She explains these organizations work with 10 large commercial companies who are making site selections and by being a 11 member of these organizations, the Company can proactively work with these 12 potential customers to promote the benefits of natural gas for their energy needs. 13 She opines this can also lead to opportunities for the Company to encourage new 14 industrial and commercial customers to select sites that are near existing gas 15 mains. Finally, she opines without membership and active involvement in these 16 organizations, the Company would miss out on potential commercial customer growth which would result in higher costs passed along to residential customers.¹⁶ 17 18

19 WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MS. RESSLER'S ASSERTION? **Q**.

Ms. Ressler did not provide data to support the claim that additional industrial and A.

¹⁶ UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, p. 51.

1		commercial customers would result in a reduction of costs passed along to
2		residential customers. Furthermore, the Company has not adequately supported
3		this expense's necessity to ensure safe and reliable gas service to its existing
4		customers. Therefore, expenses associated with the organizations mentioned in
5		my direct testimony ¹⁷ and the Capital Region Economic Development Company
6		(\$30,480) should be disallowed.
7		
8	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR
9		MEMBERSHIP DUES?
10	A.	Yes. As corrected in the Company's rebuttal testimony, ¹⁸ I recommend the
11		disallowance of an additional \$30,480 from the Company's claim, which is
12		directly attributed to the previously misidentified organization, Capital Region
13		Economic Development Company. This misidentification resulted in a
14		misinterpretation of the organization's necessity to ensure safe and reliable gas
15		service. My updated recommendation is an allowance of \$930,926 (\$1,115,404 -
16		\$184,478), or a decrease of \$184,478 (\$153,998 + \$30,480) to the Company's
17		FPFTY membership dues claim.

I&E Statement No. 1, pp. 14-15. UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, p. 49.

INTEREST ON CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

2	Q.	SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN DIRECT TESTIMONY
3		FOR INTEREST ON CUSTOMER DEPOSITS.
4	A.	I recommended an allowance of \$648,000, or a reduction of \$324,000 (\$972,000 -
5		\$648,000) to the Company's claim. ¹⁹ My recommendation was based on the
6		current interest rate for Title 72 taxes of 3% for 2021 and 2022 and thus resulted in
7		my recommended allowance of \$648,000 (\$21,600,000 ²⁰ x 3.00%).
8		
9	Q.	DID ANY WITNESS RESPOND TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
10	A.	Yes. UGI Gas witness Tracy Hazenstab accepts my recommendation to use the
11		current interest rate of 3.00% for Title 72 taxes to calculate the FPFTY expense
12		claim for interest on customer deposits. ²¹
13		
14	Q.	DID THE COMPANY MAKE ANY CHANGES TO ITS CLAIM FOR
15		CUSTOMER DEPOSITS?
16	A.	Yes. Per UGI Gas Exhibit A – FPFTY REBUTTAL, Schedule C-7, the Company's
17		updated claim based on a 13-month period ended April 2022 results in an updated
18		claim of \$21,434,000 for customer deposits.

I&E Statement No. 1, p. 16. UGI Gas Statement No. 2, p. 21. UGI Gas Statement No. 2-R, p. 12.

1	Q.	DID THE COMPANY CARRY THIS THROUGH IN ITS CALCULATION
2		FOR THE UPDATED CLAIM FOR INTEREST ON CUSTOMER
3		DEPOSITS?
4	А.	No. However, the difference would be immaterial (approximately \$5,000), and I
5		am not arguing this point for that reason.
6		
7	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S UPDATED CLAIM?
8	А.	The Company's updated claim is \$648,000 (\$21,600,000 ²² x 3.00%) ²³ based on the
9		original claim for customer deposits multiplied by my recommended 3.00% rate.
10		
11	<u>PAY</u>	ROLL EXPENSE
12	Q.	SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN DIRECT TESTIMONY
13		FOR PAYROLL EXPENSE.
14	А.	I recommended an allowance of \$80,677,324, or a reduction of \$2,251,676
15		(\$82,929.000 - \$80,677,324) to the Company's FPFTY payroll expense claim.
16		This recommendation was based on an employee vacancy adjustment, produced
17		by averaging fiscal year 2019, 2020, and 2021 historic vacancy rates, for unfilled
18		positions included in the Company's claim using a vacancy rate of 2.74% to
19		determine 47 vacant positions based on the average. ²⁴ Finally, I multiplied the

UGI Gas Statement No. 2, p. 21. UGI Gas Exhibit A – FPFTY REBUTTAL, Schedule D-15. I&E Statement No. 1, pp. 18-20.

average annual payroll of \$47,908 to determine my recommended adjustment of
 \$2,251,676.²⁵

3		This was necessary because it is unreasonable to assume that 100% full
4		staffing of all budgeted positions during the FPFTY. ²⁶ Additionally, I noted that
5		due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company may continue to face challenges
6		keeping all positions filled and that there will always be a certain number of
7		normal vacancies due to retirements, resignations, transfers, etc., on a day-to-day
8		operating basis and that there will always be search and placement time in filling
9		such vacancies. ²⁷ Removing this savings from base rates is appropriate to avoid
10		an unreasonable impact to ratepayers.
11		
12	Q.	DID THE COMPANY MAKE ANY CHANGES TO ITS CLAIM?
13	A.	Yes. The Company updated its claim in rebuttal testimony.
14		

- 15 Q. WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S UPDATED CLAIM?
- 16 A. UGI Gas updated its FPFTY payroll expense claim from \$82,929,000 to

17 \$82,237,000.28

²⁵ I&E Statement No. 1, p. 19.

²⁶ I&E Statement No. 1, p. 19.

²⁷ I&E Statement No. 1, p. 20.

²⁸ UGI Gas Exhibit A – FPFTY REBUTTAL, Sch. D-7, p. 1.

1	Q.	WHAT WAS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPANY'S UPDATED CLAIM?
2	A.	Ms. Hazenstab states the Company accepts OCA witness Mugrace's adjustment of
3		\$779,368 to reduce payroll expense for 17 speculative positions that are not yet
4		filled. ²⁹
5		
6	Q.	DID ANY WITNESS RESPOND TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
7	A.	Yes. UGI Gas witness Tracy Hazenstab disagrees with my recommendation.
8		
9	Q.	SUMMARIZE MS. HAZENSTAB'S RESPONSE.
10	A.	Ms. Hazenstab criticizes my adjustment opining it is biased due to COVID-19
11		impacting the Company's ability to hire new employees in fiscal year 2020
12		(FY20). Finally, she suggests removing FY20 which would lower the vacancy
13		rate down to 1.59%. ³⁰
14		
15	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MS. HAZENSTAB'S ASSERTION?
16	A.	I am willing to accept Ms. Hazenstab's assertion that 2020 did heavily weight the
17		average vacancy rate; however, upon further review it appears the reason is due to
18		the unordinary increase in budgeted positions beginning in January 2020. ³¹ Due to
19		the anomaly of budgeted positions in fiscal year 2020 and the extraordinary hiring
20		circumstances as evidenced in the actual employees the Company held during this

UGI Gas Statement No. 2-R, p. 13. UGI Gas Statement No. 2-R, pp. 13-14. I&E Exhibit No. 1, Schedule 11, p. 3.

1		period, I will accept the suggestion to lower the vacancy rate to 1.59% by
2		removing the inconsistent data.
3		
4	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR
5		PAYROLL EXPENSE?
6	A.	Yes. I agree with the Company's acceptance of OCA's recommendation to
7		eliminate 17 unfilled, speculative positions from the FPFTY; however, I continue
8		to recommend a modified vacancy adjustment to the Company's updated claim. I
9		am updating my recommendation with the FY20 data removed resulting in an
10		average employee vacancy rate of 1.59% [$(2.63\% + 0.54\%) \div 2$]. My updated
11		recommendation reflects a reduction of \$1,307,568 (\$82,237,000 x 1.59%) to the
12		Company's updated FPFTY payroll expense claim, or an allowance of
13		\$80,929,432 (\$82,237,000 - \$1,307,568).
14		This adjustment continues to be necessary given there will still be a routine
15		level of ongoing vacancies to the adjusted payroll claim as discussed above and in
16		my direct testimony even after the removal of 17 speculative FPFTY positions.
17		
18	EMI	PLOYEE BENEFITS
19	Q.	SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN DIRECT TESTIMONY
20		FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS.
21	А.	I recommended an allowance of \$21,510,994, or a reduction of \$606,000 to the
22		Company's FPFTY employee benefits claim based on an employee vacancy

1		adjustment to payroll expense of 2.74%. The 2.74% vacancy rate was applied to
2		the Company's employee benefits claim. ³²
3		
4	Q.	DID THE COMPANY MAKE ANY CHANGES TO ITS CLAIM?
5	A.	Yes.
6		
7	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S UPDATED CLAIM?
8	A.	As calculated based on the response to I&E-RE-32, ³³ the Company's updated
9		claim is \$22,021,935 (\$22,117,000 - \$95,065 ³⁴) when accounting for the
10		acceptance of OCA witness Mr. Mugrace's adjustment.
11		
12	Q.	DID ANY WITNESSES ADDRESS YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
13	А.	Yes. UGI Gas witness Tracy Hazenstab disagrees with my recommendation and
14		UGI Gas witness Vivian Ressler addresses an update to the Company's claim.
15		
16	Q.	SUMMARIZE MS. HAZENSTAB'S RESPONSE.
17	A.	Ms. Hazenstab states the Company disagrees with my recommendation as it is
18		derivative of my proposed adjustment to the projected FPFTY employee
19		headcount. Additionally, she points to Ms. Ressler's testimony which addresses a

I&E Statement No. 1, pp. 21-22. I&E Exhibit No. 1, Sch. 13, p. 2. UGI Gas Statement No. 2-R, p. 14.

1		related three-year normalization recommendation made by OCA witness Mr.
2		Mugrace. ³⁵
3		
4	Q.	SUMMARIZE MS. RESSLER'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING
5		EMPLOYEE BENEFITS.
6	А.	Ms. Ressler addresses OCA witness Mr. Mugrace's recommendation to normalize
7		medical and dental costs over a three-year period from 2021-2023. She asserts his
8		reasons do not support that his adjustment is reasonable or appropriate; however,
9		she cites his overall headcount reduction and states the Company has reflected the
10		reduction in its adjustment to employee benefits expense – medical and dental
11		costs. The adjustment results in a reduction of \$95,065 to the Company's pre-
12		rebuttal FPFTY employee benefits claim. ³⁶
13		
14	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
15	A.	Yes. I am updating my recommendation to reflect my updated payroll vacancy
16		adjustment by applying the 1.59% vacancy rate to the Company's updated claim
17		for employee benefits. This results in a reduction of \$350,149 (\$22,021,935 x
18		1.59%) to the Company's updated claim or an allowance of \$21,671,786
19		(\$22,021,935 - \$350,149).

 ³⁵ UGI Gas Statement No. 2-R, p. 14 and UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, pp. 37-39.
 ³⁶ UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, pp. 37-39.

PAYROLL TAXES 1

2	Q.	SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN DIRECT TESTIMONY
3		FOR PAYROLL TAXES.
4	A.	I recommended an allowance of \$6,738,985, or a reduction of \$188,015
5		(\$6,927,000 - \$6,738,985) to the Company's FPFTY claim based on the total
6		payroll expense adjustment of \$2,251,676 and calculated by applying the
7		Company's payroll tax rate of 8.35%. ³⁷
8		
9	Q.	DID THE COMPANY UPDATE ITS CLAIM?
10	A.	Yes.
11		
12	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S UPDATED CLAIM?
13	A.	The Company's updated claim for payroll tax expense is \$6,870,000. This is due
14		to the Company's acceptance of OCA witness Mr. Mugrace's proposed elimination
15		of 17 speculative FPFTY positions, which produces a corresponding payroll tax
16		expense reduction of \$57,000. ³⁸
17		
18	Q.	DID ANY WITNESS RESPOND TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?

19 No. However, since UGI Gas witness Tracy Hazenstab disagrees with my payroll A.

 ³⁷ I&E Statement No. 1, pp. 22-23.
 ³⁸ UGI Gas Statement No. 2-R, p. 15.

1		expense recommendation, it is safe to assume she disagrees with my payroll tax
2		expense recommendation.
3		
4	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
5	А.	Yes. My updated recommendation for payroll tax expense is calculated by
6		applying the Company's payroll tax rate of 8.35% to my updated payroll expense
7		adjustment of \$1,307,568. This produces an updated recommended reduction of
8		\$109,182 (\$1,307,568 x 0.0835) to the Company's updated claim of \$6,870,000,
9		or an updated allowance of \$6,760,818 (\$6,870,000 - \$109,182).
10		
11	<u>PRO</u>	POSED ADDITIONAL PAYROLL EXPENSE
11 12	<u>PRO</u> Q.	<u>POSED ADDITIONAL PAYROLL EXPENSE</u> DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS ADDITIONAL EXPENSES RELATED TO
11 12 13	<u>PRO</u> Q.	POSED ADDITIONAL PAYROLL EXPENSE DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS ADDITIONAL EXPENSES RELATED TO PAYROLL COSTS?
11 12 13 14	<u>PRO</u> Q. A.	POSED ADDITIONAL PAYROLL EXPENSE DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS ADDITIONAL EXPENSES RELATED TO PAYROLL COSTS? Yes. UGI Gas witness Christopher R. Brown mentioned that since the original
 11 12 13 14 15 	<u>PRO</u> Q. A.	POSED ADDITIONAL PAYROLL EXPENSE DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS ADDITIONAL EXPENSES RELATED TO PAYROLL COSTS? Yes. UGI Gas witness Christopher R. Brown mentioned that since the original base rate filing was assembled the Company has decided to prepare an enhanced
 11 12 13 14 15 16 	<u>PRO</u> Q. A.	DPOSED ADDITIONAL PAYROLL EXPENSE DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS ADDITIONAL EXPENSES RELATED TO PAYROLL COSTS? Yes. UGI Gas witness Christopher R. Brown mentioned that since the original base rate filing was assembled the Company has decided to prepare an enhanced merit program to be rolled out later this year in response to increased turnover and
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 	<u>PRO</u> Q. A.	POSED ADDITIONAL PAYROLL EXPENSE DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS ADDITIONAL EXPENSES RELATED TO PAYROLL COSTS? Yes. UGI Gas witness Christopher R. Brown mentioned that since the original base rate filing was assembled the Company has decided to prepare an enhanced merit program to be rolled out later this year in response to increased turnover and increased inflation. ³⁹
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 	<u>PRO</u> Q. A.	POSED ADDITIONAL PAYROLL EXPENSE DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS ADDITIONAL EXPENSES RELATED TO PAYROLL COSTS? Yes. UGI Gas witness Christopher R. Brown mentioned that since the original base rate filing was assembled the Company has decided to prepare an enhanced merit program to be rolled out later this year in response to increased turnover and increased inflation. ³⁹
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 	<u>РКО</u> Q. А.	POSED ADDITIONAL PAYROLL EXPENSE DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS ADDITIONAL EXPENSES RELATED TO PAYROLL COSTS? Yes. UGI Gas witness Christopher R. Brown mentioned that since the original base rate filing was assembled the Company has decided to prepare an enhanced merit program to be rolled out later this year in response to increased turnover and increased inflation. ³⁹ WHAT IS THE PROJECTED COST OF THIS PROGRAM?

³⁹ UGI Gas Statement No. 1-R, pp. 4-5.

1		union personnel would result in an additional \$960,000 in FPFTY operating
2		expense after the Company's acceptance of OCA's adjustment for the removal of
3		17 positions. ⁴⁰
4		
5	Q.	IS THE COMPANY CLAIMING AN ADDITIONAL \$960,000 IN ITS FPFTY
6		PAYROLL CLAIM?
7	A.	No. However, the Company is asking the Commission to consider adding an
8		additional \$960,000 for merit increases to offset any further downward
9		adjustments to payroll in this proceeding. ⁴¹
10		
11	Q.	DO YOU AGREE THAT THE COMPANY SHOULD BE ALLOWED TO
12		INTRODUCE A NEW PAYROLL PROPOSAL IN REBUTTAL
13		TESTIMONY?
14	A.	No. In its filing, the Company already made a claim for a compensation
15		benchmarking adjustment relying on data provided by the American Gas
16		Association. ⁴² Those planned adjustments increased the Company's FPFTY claim
17		by \$1.2 million, ⁴³ and I did not argue against that claim. I disagree that it should
18		be necessary to increase merit pay increases from three percent to five percent in
19		the FPFTY given that salaries are already being adjusted in response to this

⁴⁰ UGI Gas Statement No. 1-R, p. 5.
⁴¹ UGI Gas Statement No. 1-R, pp. 5-6.
⁴² UGI Gas Statement No. 1, p. 27.
⁴³ UGI Gas Exhibit A – Fully Projected, Schedule D-9.

1		industry study. To do both would be imprudent and burdensome to ratepayers.
2		Thus, I disagree with Mr. Brown that the Commission should consider tacking on
3		additional non-union pay increases to offset any further downward adjustments in
4		this proceeding. Awarding extra pay increases to non-union workers on top of
5		adjusted salaries would be very inappropriate given that UGI Gas plans to make
6		base rate filings on a regular frequency and has not even allowed itself to view the
7		impact of the upward pay adjustments already claimed.
8		
9	<u>CAS</u>	H WORKING CAPITAL
10	Q.	SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN DIRECT TESTIMONY
11		FOR CWC.
12	А.	I recommended an allowance of \$61,313,000, or a reduction of \$835,000
13		(\$62,148,000 - \$61,313,000) to the Company's claim. ⁴⁴ My recommendation
14		includes modification of the Company's claim based on my recommended
15		adjustments to O&M expenses as discussed in I&E's direct testimony.
16		
17	Q.	DID ANY WITNESS RESPOND TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
18	A.	Yes. UGI Gas witness Tracy Hazenstab disagrees with my CWC recommendation
10	11,	
19		based on the Company's disagreement with my recommended adjustments to

⁴⁴ I&E Statement No. 1, p. 24.

1	Q.	WHAT IS THE COMPANY'S UPDATED CWC CLAIM?
2	A.	UGI Gas updated its FPFTY CWC claim from \$62,148,000 to \$61,697,000.45
3		
4	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S CLAIM?
5	A.	No. However, I have an update to my recommendation for CWC. As stated in my
6		direct testimony, all O&M expense adjustments that are cash-based expense claims
7		are included when determining the Company's overall CWC requirement.
8		Therefore, CWC was adjusted to reflect these recommended adjustments. To
9		reflect the I&E recommended adjustments, I modified the Company's electronic
10		CWC file as shown on UGI Gas Book V, Schedule C-4, pp. 1, 2, 3, and 7, for each
11		recommended adjustment.
12		
13	Q.	SUMMARIZE WHERE EACH OF THE I&E RECOMMENDED O&M
14		EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS ARE REFLECTED IN THE CWC
15		COMPUTATION.
16	A.	Expense Lag Days - Payroll:
17		I recommended a payroll expense adjustment of (\$1,307,568) in the Expense Lag -
18		Payroll, which is reflected as reduction to line 3 of the Company's Exhibit A –
19		Fully Projected, Schedule C-4, p. 2 as shown in I&E modified Schedule C-4.46

⁴⁵ UGI Gas Statement No. 2-R, p. 16.
⁴⁶ I&E Exhibit No. 1-SR, Schedule 1, p. 2, line 3.

Expense Lag Days – Purchased Gas Costs:
 Mr. Cline recommended a purchased gas expense increase of \$7,221,028, which is
 reflected as an addition in the FPFTY purchased gas costs of \$404,384,000
 (\$397,163,000 + \$7,221,028) in the Purchased Gas Costs Expense Lag Days

5 calculation.⁴⁷

6 <u>Expense Lag Days – Other Expenses</u>:

- 7 Mr. LaTorre and I recommended the following expense adjustments in the
- 8 Expense Lag Days Other Expenses as an overall decrease of \$3,273,252 of the
- 9 Company's Exhibit A Fully Projected, Schedule C-4, p. 2 as shown in I&E

10 modified Schedule C-4:⁴⁸

Other Expenses	Reduction
Employee Activity Costs	\$370,291
Advertising Expense	\$885,178
Membership Dues	\$184,478
Rate Case Expense	\$422,000
Environmental Remediation Expense	\$930,800
OSHA/Emergency Temporary Standard Compliance Costs	\$21,174
Employee Benefits Expense	\$350,149
Payroll Taxes	\$109,182
Total	<u>\$3,273,252</u>

⁴⁷ I&E Exhibit No. 1-SR, Schedule 1, p. 2, line 4.

⁴⁸ I&E Exhibit No. 1-SR, Schedule 1, p. 2, line 5.

1		Revenue Lag Calculations:
2		Mr. Cline recommended an adjustment to increase present rate revenue by
3		\$13,659,652 and is reflected as an addition in the total account receivable amount
4		of \$1,304,898,652 (\$1,327,239,000 + \$13,659,652) and in the total sales revenue
5		of \$857,931,652 (\$844,272,000 + \$13,659,652) in the Revenue Lag calculation. ⁴⁹
6		Interest Payment Lag Calculations:
7		Mr. Sakaya recommended an adjustment to rate base of \$153,739,000
8		(\$137,539,000 + \$16,200,000), which is reflected as a reduction to rate base
9		resulting in an updated total of \$3,022,857,000 (\$3,176,596,000 - \$153,739,000)
10		in the Interest Payments Lag calculation. ⁵⁰
11		
12	Q.	BASED ON THE ABOVE TESTIMONY, WHAT IS YOUR UPDATED
13		RECOMMENDED ALLOWANCE FOR CWC?
14	A.	Based on reflecting all of I&E's recommended adjustments as discussed above,
15		my updated recommendation for CWC is an allowance of \$60,637,000, or a
16		reduction of \$1,060,000 (\$61,697,000 - \$60,637,000) to the Company's updated
17		claim. ⁵¹

I&E Exhibit No. 1-SR, Schedule 1, p. 3, lines 15 and 18. I&E Exhibit No. 1-SR, Schedule 1, p. 4, line 1. I&E Exhibit No. 1-SR, Schedule 1, p. 1, line 5.

1Q.DOES YOUR RECOMMENDED ALLOWANCE REPRESENT A FINAL2RECOMMENDED ALLOWANCE FOR CWC?

3	А.	No. All adjustments to the Company's claims for revenues, expenses, taxes, and
4		rate base must be consistently brought together in the Administrative Law Judge's
5		Recommended Decision and again in the Commission's Final Order. This
6		process, which is known as iteration, effectively prevents the determination of a
7		precise calculation until such time as all adjustments have been made to the
8		Company's claim.
9		
10	LOV	V INCOME USAGE REDUCTION PROGRAM (LIURP)
11	Q.	SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN REBUTTAL TESTIMONY
12		
12		FOR LIURP.
12	A.	FOR LIURP. In my rebuttal testimony, I stated the recommendations of CAUSE-PA witness
13 14	A.	FOR LIURP.In my rebuttal testimony, I stated the recommendations of CAUSE-PA witnessHarry S. Geller, OCA witness Roger D. Colton, and CEO witness Eugene M.
12 13 14 15	A.	 FOR LIURP. In my rebuttal testimony, I stated the recommendations of CAUSE-PA witness Harry S. Geller, OCA witness Roger D. Colton, and CEO witness Eugene M. Brady which advocated to increase the Company's LIURP budget should be
12 13 14 15 16	A.	 FOR LIURP. In my rebuttal testimony, I stated the recommendations of CAUSE-PA witness Harry S. Geller, OCA witness Roger D. Colton, and CEO witness Eugene M. Brady which advocated to increase the Company's LIURP budget should be denied because the Company has been unable to exhaust its budget as it stands,

18 additional funding.⁵²

⁵² I&E Statement No. 1-R.

1	Q.	DID ANY WITNESSES' REBUTTAL TESTIMONY CONFLICT WITH
2		YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
3	А.	Yes. CAUSE-PA witness Harry S Geller's rebuttal testimony conflicts with my
4		recommendation.
5		
6	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. GELLER'S RESPONSE.
7	A.	Mr. Geller states the Company's LIURP budget should be increased in line with
8		OCA witness Mr. Colton's recommendation which would expand UGI Gas'
9		LIURP budget by \$1.425 million and include incremental LIURP investments of
10		\$524,450. ⁵³
11		
12	Q.	DID ANY WITNESS' RECOMMENDATION ALIGN WITH YOUR
13		REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
14	А.	Yes. UGI Gas witness Daniel V. Adamo puts forth rebuttal testimony in line with
15		mine on this topic.
16		
17	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. ADAMO'S RESPONSE AS IT RELATES TO YOUR
18		RECOMMENDATION.
19	А.	Mr. Adamo states that the LIURP budget should be addressed in the Company's
20		next universal service proceeding where a needs assessment would be completed

⁵³ CAUSE-PA Statement No. 1-R, pp. 6-7.

1		to help determine the appropriate budget level, and he states that Mr. Colton is
2		making a recommendation on an annual LIURP spending level of \$2.1 million but
3		the Company already has an approved budget of approximately \$3.7 million. ⁵⁴
4		Similarly, he disagrees with Mr. Geller's and Mr. Brady's recommendations for
5		LIURP. ⁵⁵
6		
7	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR
8		UGI GAS' LIURP BUDGET?
9	A.	No. I continue to recommend any increase to the annual funding for LIURP be
10		disallowed.
11		
12	Q.	DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
13	А.	Yes.

 ⁵⁴ UGI Gas Statement No. 12-R, p. 30.
 ⁵⁵ UGI Gas Statement No. 12-R, pp. 31-32.

I&E Exhibit No. 1-SR Witness: Zachari Walker

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Exhibit to Accompany

the

Surrebuttal Testimony

of

Zachari Walker

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

TAXES

LOW-INCOME USAGE REDUCTION PROGRAM

CASH WORKING CAPITAL

B Fully Proje	UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division efore the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commiss ected Future Period - 12 Months Ended Septem (\$ in Thousands)	ion 1ber 30, 2	2023	C-4 V. K. Ressler 1 of 9	
	Working Capital	*I&E Modified			
			[1]	[2]	
Line No	Description	Fully FT	/ Projected Y 9-30-23	Reference	
1	Working Capital for O & M Expense	\$	51,091	C-4, Page 2	
2	Interest Payments		(4,853)	C-4, Page 7	
3	Tax Payment Lag Calculations		4,351	C-4, Page 8	
4	Prepaid Expenses		10,047	C-4, Page 9	
5	Total Cash Working Capital Requirements	\$	60,637		

	Before th Fully Projected Fu	ision ty Comn ded Sep	nission tember 30, 20 <u>23</u>	Schedule Witness: Page	C-4 V. K 2 of 9	. Ressler		
		(\$ in Thousands)			*I&E I			
		Summary of Working Ca _l [1]	pital	[2]	[3]	[4]		[5]
Line #	Description	Reference	Т Е	est Year xpenses	Factor	Number of (Lead) / Lag Days		Totals
WORKING CAPITAL REQUIREMENT						[2]^[3]		
1	REVENUE LAG DAYS	Page 3						60.91
2 3	EXPENSE LAG DAYS Payroll	Page 4 Sch D-7	\$	80,929 *	12.00	\$ 971,147		
4 5	Purchased Gas Costs Other Expenses	Sch D-6 L 19 - L 2 to L 4		404,384 * 182,568	39.85 27.08	16,116,522 4,943,935		
6	Total	Sum (L 3 to L 5)	\$	667,881		\$ 22,031,604		
7	O & M Expense Lag Days	L6, C 4 / C 2						32.99
8	Net (Lead) Lag Days	L 1 - L 7						27.92
9	Operating Expenses Per Day	L 6, C 2 / 365					\$	1,830
10	Working Capital for O & M Expense	L 8 * L 9					\$	51,091
11	Interest Payments	Page 7						(4,853)
12	Tax Payment Lag Calculations	Page 8						4,351
13	Prepaid Expenses	Page 9						10,047
14	Total Working Capital Requirement	Sum (L 10 to L 13)					\$	60,637
15	Pro Forma O & M Expense		\$	684,476 *				
16	Less: Uncollectible Expense		. <u> </u>	16,595				
17	Sub-Total			16,595				
18	Pro Forma Cash O&M Expense		\$	667,881				

	Before Fully Projected	UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division Before the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Fully Projected Future Period - 12 Months Ended September 30, 202					Schedule Witness: Page	C-4 V. K. Ressler 3 of 9		
		(\$ in Thousands)					*I&E Modified			
		Revenue Lag								
		[1]		[2] Accounts		[3]	[4]	[5]	
Line	Description	Reference Or Fostor	Receivable Balance			Total Monthly		VR novor	Days	
<u> </u>	Description	Factor				Page 2	[3]	/[2]	365 / [4]	
1	Annual Number of Days								365	
2 3 4	September, 2020 October November		\$ \$ \$	52,950 61,679 72,123	\$ \$	41,665 55,297				
5 6 7	December, 2020 January, 2021 February		\$ \$ \$	106,368 140,439 164,061	\$ \$ \$	100,676 126,612 130,900				
8 9 10 11	March April May		\$ \$ \$	153,427 133,479 116,982 100,284	\$ \$ \$	128,921 74,513 48,952 39,572				
12 13 14	July August September, 2021		\$ \$ \$	87,161 76,062 62,224	\$ \$ \$	31,323 33,489 32,352				
15	Total	Sum L 2 to L 14	\$	1,340,899	*					
16	Number of Months	13								
17	Average Acct Rec Balance	L 15 / L 16		\$103,146	=					
18	Total Sales for Year	Sum L 2 to L 14			\$	857,932	*			
19	Acct Rec Turnover Ratio	L 18 / L 17						8.32		
20	Collection Lag Day Factor	L 1 / L 19							43.87	
21	Meter Read Lag Factor								1.83	
22	Midpoint Lag Factor			365	1	12	1	2 =	15.21	
23	Total Revenue Lag Days	Sum L 20 to L 22							60.91	

	Fully Projected Future	Period - 12 Months Ende	ed September 30, 2023	Page	v. K. 7 of 9	Ressier
		Interest Payments		*I&E Mo	odifie	d
		[1]	[2]	[3]		[4]
Line No.	Description	Reference Or Factor	# of Days	# of Days		Total
1	Measure of Value at September 30, 2023	Sch C-1			* \$	3,022,857
2	Long-term Debt Ratio	Sch B-6				44.91%
3	Embedded Cost of Long-term Debt	Sch B-6				4.30%
4	Pro forma Interest Expense	L1*L2*L3			\$	58,375
5	Daily Amount	L 4 / L 5 [2]	365		\$	160
6	Days to mid-point of interest payments			91.25		
7	Less: Revenue Lag Days	Page 3		60.91		
8	Interest Payment lag days	L7-L6	_			(30.3)
9	Total Interest for Working Capital	L 5 * L 8			\$	(4,853)

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Surrebuttal Testimony

of

Anthony Spadaccio, CRRA

Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement

Concerning:

Rate of Return

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION OF WITNESS	1
SUMMARY OF MR. GARRETT'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY	3
SUMMARY OF MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY	6
PROXY GROUP	7
DISCOUNTED CASH FLOW	8
EXCLUSIVE USE OF THE DCF	9
DSIC RATES	11
EVALUATING THE DCF BASED ON INDIVIDUAL RESULTS	14
GROWTH RATE	15
LEVERAGE ADJUSTMENT	16
INFLATION	22
CAPITAL ASSET PRICING MODEL	23
RISK-FREE RATE	23
LEVERAGED ADJUSTED BETAS	26
SIZE ADJUSTMENT	26
INFLATION	31
RISK PREMIUM	31
COMPARABLE EARNINGS	33
MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE POINTS	34
OVERALL RATE OF RETURN	

1 INTRODUCTION OF WITNESS

2	Q.	PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
3	A.	My name is Anthony Spadaccio. My business address is Pennsylvania Public
4		Utility Commission, Commonwealth Keystone Building, 400 North Street,
5		Harrisburg, PA 17120.
6		
7	Q.	BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?
8	A.	I am employed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) in
9		the Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement (I&E) as a Fixed Utility Financial
10		Analyst.
11		
12	Q.	ARE YOU THE SAME ANTHONY SPADACCIO WHO IS RESPONSIBLE
13		FOR THE DIRECT TESTIMONY CONTAINED IN I&E STATEMENT
14		NO. 2 AND THE SCHEDULES IN I&E EXHIBIT NO. 2?
15	А.	Yes.
16		
17	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
18	А.	The purpose of my surrebuttal testimony is to address statements made in the
19		rebuttal testimonies of UGI Utilities, Inc. – Gas Division (UGI Gas or Company)
20		witnesses Christopher R. Brown (UGI Gas Statement No. 1) and Paul R. Moul
21		(UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R) and the Pennsylvania Office of Consumer Advocate
22		(OCA) witness David J. Garrett (OCA Statement 2R) regarding rate of return

1		topics including the cost of common equity and the overall fair rate of return,
2		which will be applied to the Company's rate base.
3		
4	Q.	DID THE COMPANY PROVIDE AN UPDATE TO ITS RATE OF
5		RETURN?
6	A.	Yes. The Company provided an update to its cost of long-term debt. The
7		Company is now requesting a cost of long-term debt of 4.30% to reflect the cost of
8		new issues of senior notes in May, July, and October 2022. The Company's
9		update to its cost of long-term debt is an increase of 0.32% (4.30% - 3.98%) to its
10		initial claim of 3.98%. ¹ This results in an increase to the Company's overall
11		requested rate of return from 7.96% to 8.10%. Below is the Company's updated
12		rate of return claim:

UGI UTILITIES, INC GAS DIVISION Summary of Cost of Capital			
Type of Capital	Ratio	Cost Rate	Weighted Cost
	UGI Utilities, Inc.	- Gas Division	
Long-Term Debt	44.88%	4.30%	1.93%
Common Equity	55.12%	11.20%	6.17%
Total	100.00%		8.10%

¹ UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 13, lines 1-10.

1	<u>SUM</u>	MARY OF MR. GARRETT'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY
2	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. GARRETT'S RESPONSE IN REBUTTAL
3		TESTIMONY TO YOUR RECOMMENDATIONS MADE IN DIRECT
4		TESTIMONY.
5	A.	Mr. Garrett takes issue with the growth rates I employ in my Discounted Cash
6		Flow (DCF) analysis as well as the Equity Risk Premium (ERP) used in my
7		Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM) analysis. ²
8		
9	Q.	WHAT IS MR. GARRETT'S SPECIFIC CRITICISM REGARDING YOUR
10		DCF ANALYSIS?
11	A.	Mr. Garrett opines that the results of my DCF analysis are unreasonably high
12		caused by the growth rate inputs I use. He claims that I rely on short-term growth
13		
		rates as opposed to long-term growth rates resulting in unsustainable growth rate
14		rates as opposed to long-term growth rates resulting in unsustainable growth rate estimates. Mr. Garrett further reasons that it is near impossible to increase
14 15		rates as opposed to long-term growth rates resulting in unsustainable growth rate estimates. Mr. Garrett further reasons that it is near impossible to increase earnings by 10% year after year for decades. Finally, he argues that U.S. GDP
14 15 16		rates as opposed to long-term growth rates resulting in unsustainable growth rate estimates. Mr. Garrett further reasons that it is near impossible to increase earnings by 10% year after year for decades. Finally, he argues that U.S. GDP growth should be viewed as a limiting factor on long-term growth for individual
14 15 16 17		rates as opposed to long-term growth rates resulting in unsustainable growth rate estimates. Mr. Garrett further reasons that it is near impossible to increase earnings by 10% year after year for decades. Finally, he argues that U.S. GDP growth should be viewed as a limiting factor on long-term growth for individual companies as it avoids the circular reference problem of short-term analysts'

OCA Statement 2R, p. 1, lines 17-19. OCA Statement 2R, p. 2, ln. 8 through p. 3, ln. 21.

Q. HOW DO YOU RESPOND TO MR. GARRETT'S CRITICISMS OF YOUR DCF ANALYSIS?

3 A. First, it should be noted, in the context of recommending an appropriate return on 4 equity and overall rate of return, I&E's role is to perform an unbiased analysis 5 using current and reputable sources. In determining an appropriate growth rate for 6 my DCF analysis, I relied upon the forecasted earnings estimates from Value Line, Yahoo! Finance, Zacks, and Morningstar.⁴ These resources are trusted and used 7 8 industry wide, including by most Company, advocate, and Commission witnesses 9 who submit rate of return testimony. Other than Mr. Garrett, I do not recall 10 another witness that does not give at least some consideration or weighting to 11 these forecasted growth estimates.

Next, the estimates I use from the sources listed above are five-year growth
forecasts which are not short-term, nor are they intended to be viewed as
sustainable for decades. This time period is reasonable as it covers the Fully
Projected Future Test Year (FPFTY) and rate case filing frequency of many
utilities.

Additionally, using U.S. GDP growth as Mr. Garrett suggests ignores the strength of the DCF, which is its company and/or industry specific inputs. Also, it does not combat the circularity issue he mentions. With regulation in general, and specifically the use of proxy groups of similarly situated companies, and use of

⁴ I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 5.

1		generally accepted cost of equity models, there will always be some degree of
2		circularity.
3		Finally, the Commission has repeatedly confirmed I&E's DCF
4		methodology for determining a fair return on common equity. Specifically, in the
5		2020 Columbia Gas rate case, the Commission agreed with the ALJ's
6		recommendation to use I&E's cost of equity methodology, which included using
7		five-year growth estimates in the DCF analysis. ⁵
8		
9	Q.	WHAT IS MR. GARRETT'S SPECIFIC CRITICISM REGARDING YOUR
10		CAPM ANALYSIS?
11	A.	Mr. Garrett notes that the result of my CAPM analysis is considerably higher than
12		his own. He opines that the reason my CAPM result is overestimated is due to the
13		ERP, which he argues is the single most important metric used to assess market
14		risk and the cost of equity. ⁶
15		
16	Q.	HOW DO YOU RESPOND TO MR. GARRETT'S CRITICISMS OF YOUR
17		CAPM ANALYSIS?
18	A.	To an extent, I agree with Mr. Garrett. I believe the differences in our applications
19		of the CAPM illustrate just how subjective the inputs of this cost of equity model
20		can be. For example, I agree with Mr. Moul that Mr. Garrett's implied total

Pa. PUC v. Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc.; Docket No. R-2020-3018835 (Order Entered February 19, 2021). *See generally* Disposition of Cost of Common Equity. OCA Statement No. 6R, p. 4, ln. 1through p. 6, ln. 2.

1		market return of 7.90% is nowhere near actual market returns of the past few
2		years. ⁷ Additionally, like Mr. Moul, I question the sources he uses to determine
3		the ERP, which include "expert surveys" from IESE Business School. When
4		determining the overall market return and ERP, I am hesitant to set aside analysis
5		from well-known and reputable financial institutions such as Morningstar,
6		Barron's, and Value Line in favor of more obscure sources, for instance, school
7		surveys.
8		In direct testimony, I thoroughly discuss the disadvantages of the CAPM
9		and explain why the DCF is the superior model. ⁸ In the end, as I explain below, I
10		do not base my recommendation on the CAPM, I simply provide the results as a
11		comparison.
12		
13	<u>SUN</u>	IMARY OF MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY
14	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S RESPONSE IN REBUTTAL TESTIMONY
15		TO YOUR RECOMMENDATIONS MADE IN DIRECT TESTIMONY.
16	A.	Mr. Moul disputes my recommendations regarding an appropriate proxy group,
17		my reliance on and application of the DCF method, the DCF growth rate, and
18		disallowance of his leverage adjustments to the DCF and beta of his CAPM.
19		Further, Mr. Moul disagrees with the appropriate risk-free rate to use and my
20		exclusion of a size adjustment in my CAPM analysis, my disagreement with his

UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 28, lines 1-4. I&E Statement No. 2, p. 17, ln. 5 through p. 18, ln. 13.
1		use of the Risk Premium (RP) and Comparable Earnings (CE) methods, and my
2		recommended disallowance of additional basis points for management
3		performance. Finally, Mr. Moul opines that the Commission-determined
4		Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC) rates should serve as the bare
5		minimum cost of equity in this proceeding.
6		
7	<u>PRC</u>	DXY GROUP
8	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING
9		YOUR PROXY GROUP.
10	A.	Mr. Moul simply claims that I erroneously omitted New Jersey Resources Corp.
11		and Southwest Gas Holdings, Inc. from my proxy group. He offers no further
12		discussion refuting my reasoning to omit these two companies. ⁹
13		
14	Q.	PLEASE REITERATE WHY YOU ELIMINATED NEW JERSEY
15		RESOURCES CORP. AND SOUTHWEST GAS HOLDINGS, INC. FROM
16		YOUR PROXY GROUP.
17	A.	As explained in my direct testimony, both companies, New Jersey Resources
18		Corp. and Southwest Gas Holdings, Inc. were excluded for not meeting my
19		criterion that 50% or more of revenues must be generated from regulated gas
20		utility operations. Again, this criterion is important because revenues represent
21		the percentage of cash flow a company receives from each business line related to

⁹ UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 2, lines 11-13.

1		providing a good or service. If less than 50% of revenues come from the gas
2		distribution sector, the companies are not comparable to the subject utility as they
3		do not provide a similar level of regulated business. ¹⁰
4		
5	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR PROXY GROUP?
6	A.	No. For the reasons discussed above, the percentage of revenue is an appropriate
7		criterion. As New Jersey Resources Corp. and Southwest Gas Holdings, Inc.
8		include an insufficient percentage of regulated gas revenues, they should not be
9		included in the proxy group and compared to UGI Gas.
10		
11	DISC	COUNTED CASH FLOW
12	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING
13		YOUR DCF ANALYSIS.
14	A.	Mr. Moul agrees that results of a DCF analysis should be given weight, but he
15		asserts that use of multiple methods provides a superior foundation to determine
16		the cost of equity. He compares the DSIC rate determined by the Commission in
17		the Quarterly Earnings Summary Reports to the rates calculated using market data.
18		He further disagrees with my results based on the outcomes of certain individual
19		companies and disputes my growth rate analysis. Finally, Mr. Moul disagrees
20		with my recommendation to reject his leverage adjustment. ¹¹

¹⁰ 11

I&E Statement No. 2, p. 9, lines 1-12. UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 13, ln. 11 through p. 23, ln. 6.

1 <u>EXCLUSIVE USE OF THE DCF</u>

Q. SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING YOUR USE OF THE DCF.

A. Mr. Moul asserts that the use of more than one method provides a superior
foundation for the cost of equity determination. He claims that the use of more
than one method will capture the multiplicity of factors that motivate investors to
commit their capital to a particular enterprise.¹²

8

9 Q. WERE ANY METHODS OTHER THAN THE DCF EMPLOYED IN YOUR 10 ANALYSIS?

11 A. Yes. Although my recommendation was based on the results of my DCF analysis, I also employed the CAPM as a comparison. For the reasons discussed in my 12 direct testimony, the DCF method is the most reliable.¹³ Although no one method 13 14 can capture every factor that influences an investor, including the results of 15 methods less reliable than the DCF does not make the end result more reliable or more accurate. In direct testimony, I cited several cases that illustrate the 16 17 methodology I employed is consistent with the methodology historically used by 18 the Commission in base rate proceedings as recently as 2017, 2018, 2020, and

19 2021.¹⁴

¹² UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 13, lines 15-20.

¹³ I&E Statement No. 2, p. 16, ln. 1 through p. 17, ln. 3.

¹⁴ I&E Statement No. 2, p. 15, lines 11-17.

Q. ARE THERE ANY RECENT COMMISSION ORDERS THAT DEVIATE FROM THIS PRACTICE?

3	A.	Yes. The Commission recently indicated in the 2022 Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc.
4		(Aqua) rate case order that its method "for determining Aqua's ROE shall utilize
5		both I&E's DCF and CAPM methodologies" ¹⁵ and that "I&E's DCF and CAPM
6		produce a range of reasonableness for the ROE" ¹⁶ , thus deviating from prior
7		Commission practice.
8		
9	Q.	SHOULD THE COMMISSION'S USE OF THE CAPM AS A CEILING
10		FOR A "RANGE OF REASONABLENESS" APPLY IN THIS INSTANT
10 11		FOR A "RANGE OF REASONABLENESS" APPLY IN THIS INSTANT PROCEEDING?
10 11 12	A.	FOR A "RANGE OF REASONABLENESS" APPLY IN THIS INSTANT PROCEEDING? No. In my direct testimony I explain more fully why the CAPM should not be
10 11 12 13	A.	FOR A "RANGE OF REASONABLENESS" APPLY IN THIS INSTANT PROCEEDING? No. In my direct testimony I explain more fully why the CAPM should not be used as a primary method and continue to express those concerns in this
 10 11 12 13 14 	A.	FOR A "RANGE OF REASONABLENESS" APPLY IN THIS INSTANT PROCEEDING? No. In my direct testimony I explain more fully why the CAPM should not be used as a primary method and continue to express those concerns in this proceeding as to why it should only be used as a comparison to, not a check of the
 10 11 12 13 14 15 	A.	FOR A "RANGE OF REASONABLENESS" APPLY IN THIS INSTANT PROCEEDING? No. In my direct testimony I explain more fully why the CAPM should not be used as a primary method and continue to express those concerns in this proceeding as to why it should only be used as a comparison to, not a check of the DCF. Thus, I disagree with a method that provides the CAPM comparable weight

¹⁵ Pa. PUC v. Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket Nos. R-2021-3027385 & R-2021-3027386, pp. 154 (Order entered May 16, 2022).

¹⁶ Pa. PUC v. Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket Nos. R-2021-3027385 & R-2021-3027386, pp. 178 (Order entered May 16, 2022).

¹⁷ I&E Statement No. 2, p. 17, ln. 5 through p. 18, ln. 13.

1 **DSIC RATES**

2 Q. SHOULD THE COMMISSION CONSIDER THE AUTHORIZED DSIC 3 RATE ESTABLISHED IN THE QUARTERLY EARNINGS SUMMARY 4 REPORTS AS AN APPROPRIATE MEASURE TO DETERMINE THE 5 COST OF EQUITY IN THIS PROCEEDING?

6 A. No. Mr. Moul's comparison between the I&E recommended return on equity in 7 this proceeding and the Company's DSIC rate is misguided. My understanding is 8 that the DSIC rate is designed to encourage its use and to incentivize accelerated 9 pipeline replacement and infrastructure upgrades to bring aging infrastructure 10 closer to meeting safety and reliability requirements in between base rate filings. 11 To suggest the cost of equity must be at or above the DSIC rate in this base rate 12 proceeding is inappropriate and not in the public interest. Additionally, the DSIC 13 rate establishes a benchmark above which a utility company is considered 14 "overearning" for use of the DSIC mechanism. As such, the DSIC rate should not 15 serve as a proper measurement of a subject utility's cost of equity in a base rate 16 proceeding since the DSIC rate is routinely higher than any return on equity 17 approved in such base rate proceedings. In fact, 66 Pa. C.S. § 1358(b)(3) states 18 the following: 19 The distribution system improvement charge shall be reset at 20 zero if, in any quarter, data filed with the commission in the 21 utility's most recent annual or quarterly earnings report show

that the utility will earn a rate of return that would exceed the
allowable rate of return used to calculate its fixed costs under
the distribution system improvement charge.

1		Finally, the DSIC mechanism serves to lower a utility's risk because it
2		reduces the lag time in the recovery of a company's capital outlays. DSIC
3		spending requires preapproval of eligible plant via a Long-Term Infrastructure
4		Improvement Plan so there is little question as to the prudence of those
5		expenditures.
6		
7	Q.	ARE THERE ANY INSTANCES YOU ARE AWARE OF WHERE THE
8		COMMISSION GRANTED A RETURN ON EQUITY THAT WAS
9		HIGHER THAN THE MOST RECENTLY PUBLISHED DSIC RATE?
10	A.	Yes. In the recent Aqua base rate case the Commission awarded that company a
11		return on equity of 10.00%, ¹⁸ which was higher than the most recently published
12		DSIC rate for water and wastewater utilities of 9.80%. ¹⁹ While this report is based
13		on a period ended September 30, 2021, this DSIC rate is still in effect as the
14		Commission has published no DSIC rates since this report was made public in
15		January 2022.

¹⁸ Pa. PUC v. Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket Nos. R-2021-3027385 & R-2021-3027386, pp. 178 (Order entered May 16, 2022).

¹⁹ PA Public Utility Commission, Bureau of Technical Utility Services Report on the Quarterly Earnings of Jurisdictional Utilities for the Year Ended September 30, 2021, approved at Public Meeting on January 13, 2022 at Docket No. M-2021-3030045.

Q. ARE THERE ANY POTENTIAL PROBLEMS WITH AWARDING A RETURN ON EQUITY THAT IS EQUAL TO OR HIGHER THAN THE DSIC RATE?

A. Yes. First off, it removes incentive for utilities to use the DSIC mechanism
between rate filings and may encourage the more frequent filing of base rate cases.
Secondly, it may encourage litigation as opposed to settlement of cases, since
companies may improperly believe this is the new norm. And finally, it may set
companies up to quickly land in an over-earnings status and preclude them from
being able to utilize the DSIC mechanism at all.

10 Therefore, in my opinion, the DSIC rate should generally be an incentive 11 rate that is higher than a return on equity percentage granted in a rate proceeding, 12 and I am anticipating that the recent Commission decision is not indicative of "the 13 new normal."

14

Q. WERE THERE ANY SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES THAT CAUSED THE COMMISSION'S GRANTED RETURN ON EQUITY TO EXCEED THAT OF THE MOST RECENTLY AVAILABLE DSIC RATE FOR AQUA?

- 18 A. Yes. The Commission granted 25 basis points for management effectiveness,²⁰
- 19 which caused the return on equity of 9.75% to go up to 10.00% thereby exceeding

²⁰ Pa. PUC v. Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket Nos. R-2021-3027385 & R-2021-3027386, pp. 178 (Order entered May 16, 2022).

1		the currently effective DSIC rate of 9.80% for water and wastewater. I will
2		address management performance is a separate section of testimony below.
3		
4		EVALUATING THE DCF BASED ON INDIVIDUAL RESULTS
5	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S RESPONSE IN REBUTTAL TESTIMONY
6		REGARDING THE RESULTS OF YOUR DCF.
7	A.	Mr. Moul explains that when some results are unreasonable on their face, the
8		reliability of or the witness' application of that method must be questioned. He
9		points to the results of two companies in my proxy group and claims that they fall
10		into the category of unreasonableness. Mr. Moul attempts to support his theory by
11		arguing that the spread between the cost of debt and the cost of equity is 6.75% . ²¹
12		
13	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MR. MOUL'S ATTEMPT TO
14		DISAGGREGATE YOUR RESULTS?
15	A.	Mr. Moul derives his suggested 6.75% spread from his RP analysis. ²² However, I
16		have refuted the use of the RP method both in my direct testimony, ²³ and later in
17		this testimony, as it is an inferior method for calculating the cost of common
18		equity. Further, the 9.92% result of my DCF analysis offers a 5.62% margin over
19		the undisputed 4.30% updated cost of debt (9.92% - $4.30\% = 5.62\%$). My
20		recommended cost of equity is more than double, or 231% higher that the

UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 15, ln. 16 through p. 16, ln. 7. UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 41, lines 10-12. I&E Statement No. 2, p. 13, ln. 7 through p. 19, ln. 6.

1		Company's cost of debt, which I certainly believe satisfies Mr. Moul's statement
2		that, "It is a fundamental tenet of finance that the cost of equity must be higher
3		than the cost of debt by a meaningful margin to compensate for the higher risk
4		associated with a common equity investment."24
5		
6		GROWTH RATE
7	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING
8		YOUR GROWTH RATES.
9	A.	Mr. Moul argues that I should have removed the "unduly low" growth rate of One
10		Gas Inc. from my proxy group average. He suggests that had I done this and
11		excluded One Gas Inc.'s accompanying dividend yield from my analysis, my DCF
12		result would have increased from 9.92% to 10.23% (3.39% dividend yield +
13		6.84% growth rate). ²⁵
14		
15	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. MOUL'S RECALCULATION OF YOUR
16		DCF RESULTS BASED ON THE REMOVAL OF ONE GAS INC. DUE TO
17		WHAT HE DEEMS TO BE AN UNREASONABLY LOW GROWTH
18		RATE?
19	A.	No. Mr. Moul removes this company from my analysis simply because he
20		believes its growth rate and corresponding DCF result are too low. His

25 UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 15, ln. 22 through p. 16, ln. 2. UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 17, lines. 5-15.

1		recalculation results in a DCF that is 31 basis points (10.23% - 9.92%) higher than
2		my recommendation, yet still 97 basis points (11.20% - 10.23%) below his cost of
3		equity recommendation.
4		Mr. Moul's decision to remove One Gas Inc. only serves to inflate the DCF
5		result as his argument lacks objective rationale and defeats the purpose of using a
6		proxy group. Mr. Moul himself states, "The principal purpose of assembling a
7		barometer group is to avoid relying on data for a single company that may not be
8		representative and to thereby smooth out any abnormalities". ²⁶ This
9		acknowledgement is counterintuitive to his suggestion to remove One Gas Inc.
10		from my analysis. Ironically, and worth noting, Mr. Moul employs One Gas Inc.
11		in his own proxy group and analysis.
12		
13		LEVERAGE ADJUSTMENT
14	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING
15		HIS LEVERAGE ADJUSTMENT.
16	A.	First, Mr. Moul states that credit rating agencies do not measure the market-
17		required cost of equity for a company, nor are they concerned with how it is
18		applied in the rate-setting context. Rather, the credit rating agencies are only
19		concerned with the interests of lenders and the timely payment of principal and
20		interest by companies. Then, Mr. Moul questions my references to prior

²⁶ UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 15, lines 16-18.

2		base their decisions on the book value of a company's debt and equity. ²⁷
3		
4	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL
5		TESTIMONY CONCERNING CREDIT RATING AGENCIES?
6	A.	Mr. Moul has actually supported my argument that his proposed leverage
7		adjustment is not needed by stating that the credit rating agencies are only
8		concerned with the timely payment of principal and interest by utilities.
9		Mr. Moul's stated need for the leverage adjustment is based on his assertion that
10		the difference between the book value capital structure and his market value
11		capital structure poses a financial risk difference. ²⁸
12		Financial risk does relate to the capital structure of a company, but it is
13		created by the financing decisions (the use of debt or equity) and the amount of
14		leverage or debt with which a company chooses to finance its assets. Financial
15		risk and the book value capital structure of a company are represented in the
16		financial statements, which are part of what is evaluated by rating agencies. Mr.
17		Moul agrees with me that credit rating agencies use a company's booked debt

Commission orders. Finally, Mr. Moul disagrees with my claim that investors

18

19

1

risk and determine creditworthiness.²⁹

obligations, found in the financial statements, in their analysis to assess financial

²⁷ UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 20, ln. 16 through p. 22, ln. 19.

²⁸ UGI Gas Statement No. 6, p. 33, lines 3-10.

²⁹ UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 20, lines 17-20.

2

Q. SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY ON YOUR REFERENCE TO PRIOR COMMISSION ORDERS.

3 A. Mr. Moul refers to the discussion in my direct testimony about five recent cases 4 where the Commission has rejected a "leverage adjustment." He explains that 5 even though the Commission declined to make a "leverage adjustment" in a prior 6 Aqua Pennsylvania case, it does not invalidate its use. Further, he states, 7 "Notably, the Commission did not repudiate the leverage adjustment in the Aqua 8 case, but instead arrived at an 11.00% return on equity for Aqua by including a separate return increment for management performance."³⁰ Next, Mr. Moul 9 10 claims that the adjustment proposed in the City of Lancaster case was much 11 different than what he proposes in this case. Then, regarding UGI Electric, Mr. 12 Moul acknowledges the Commission granted a "management performance 13 increment," not a leverage adjustment when arriving at the allowed equity return. 14 As for the Columbia Gas case, Mr. Moul concedes that the Company accepted 15 I&E's return on equity recommendation which did not include a leverage 16 adjustment or addition of points for management performance. Finally regarding the PECO Gas case, he argues that the Commission arrived at an equity return on 17 18 the higher side without a leverage adjustment, therefore no adjustment was 19 warranted.³¹

³⁰ UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 21, lines 6-8.

³¹ UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 21, lines 1-26.

Q. WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MR. MOUL REGARDING THE REFERENCED PRIOR COMMISSION ORDERS IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

4 In this proceeding, Mr. Moul is recommending a 95-basis point "leverage A. 5 adjustment." To be clear, the Commission did in fact refuse to accept the leverage adjustment in the Aqua case by stating "...we reject the ALJ's recommendation to 6 allow a 65 basis point leverage adjustment."³² The management performance 7 8 points awarded to Aqua were case-specific and in no way related to the proposed 9 leverage adjustment. Regarding the City of Lancaster case, the Commission did 10 not reject the leverage adjustment based on the manner in which it was calculated, 11 but rather, the Commission stated, "...the ALJ's recommendation is in error as any 12 adjustment to the results of the market based DCF as we have previously adopted are unnecessary and will harm ratepayers."³³ Regarding the UGI Electric case, the 13 14 Commission concluded that "...an artificial adjustment in this proceeding is 15 unnecessary and contrary to the public interest. Accordingly, we decline to include a leverage adjustment in our calculation of the DCF cost of equity."³⁴ 16 17 Regarding the most recent Columbia Gas case, the Commission stated, 18 ... we have adopted the ALJ's recommendation to use I&E's 19 DCF methodology utilizing I&E's dividend yield of 3.34% and 20 growth rate of 6.52%. As noted above, the ALJ did not specify a recommended cost of equity for Columbia in their 21

³² Pa. PUC v. Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket No. R-00072711, pp. 38-39 (Order entered July 31, 2008).

³³ *Pa. PUC v. City of Lancaster – Bureau of Water*; Docket No. R-2010-2179103, p. 101 (Order entered July 14, 2011).

³⁴ Pa. PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc. – Electric Division; Docket No. R-2017-2640058, pp. 93-94 (Order entered October 25, 2018).

1 2	Recommended Decision. However, we note that I&E's methodology results in an ROE of 9.86%. ³⁵
3	The ALJ's Recommended Decision stated the following:
4	The ALJ agrees with BIE's reasoning that Columbia Gas'
5	calculated return on equity was flawed for five reasons: (1) the
6	weights given to the results of the Company's CAPM, RP, and
7	CE analyses; (2) certain aspects of Columbia's discussion of
8	risk; (3) Columbia Gas' application of the DCF including the
9	forecasted growth rate and leverage adjustment used;
10	(4) Columbia's inclusion of a size adjustment, reliance on the
11	30-year Treasury Bond for the risk- free rate, and the use of a
12	double-adjusted beta in the CAPM analysis; and (5) the
13	Company's request for an additional 20 basis points for "strong
14	management performance" is unjustified. ³⁶
15	While the Company accepted I&E's DCF return without regard to the leverage
16	adjustment or management performance in the last base rate case, in the
17	Recommended Decision, the ALJ clearly rejected the Company's proposed
18	leverage adjustment and the Commission agreed with the ALJ's Recommended
19	Decision.
20	Finally, in the PECO Energy – Gas Division case, the Commission stated,
21	we have adopted the ALJ's recommendation to use I&E's
22	DCF methodology and to use I&E's CAPM calculation as a
23	check on the reasonableness of the DCF determined cost of
24	equity. Therefore, we shall adopt the ALJ's recommended
25	10.24% cost of equity. In our view, this is an appropriate cost
26	of equity for PECO given the record developed in this
27	proceeding. ³⁷

³⁵ *Pa. PUC v. Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania*; Inc. Docket No. R-2020-3018835, p. 141 (Order entered February 19, 2021).

³⁶ Pa. PUC v. Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania; Inc. Docket No. R-2020-3018835, Recommended Decision, pp. 184-185.

³⁷ Pa. PUC v. PECO Energy Company – Gas Division. Docket No. R-2020-3018929, p. 171 (Order entered June 22, 2021).

1

In the Recommended Decision, the ALJ agreed with I&E's recommended cost of equity which did not include a leverage adjustment.³⁸

3

4 Q. WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MR. MOUL'S ASSERTION THAT 5 INVESTORS DO NOT BASE THEIR DECISIONS ON BOOK VALUE, 6 BUT RATHER THE RETURN THEY EXPECT TO EARN ON THE 7 DOLLARS THEY INVEST?

8 A. Investors purchase securities such as stocks at market value as opposed to book 9 value. In doing so, they accept the returns and associated risks implied by market 10 prices. However, financial statements, which are based on book values, show the 11 entire true financial position of a company which provide the foundation for 12 investment and financing decisions. For example, financial institutions such as 13 banks lend money based on actual book values and not the current price of a stock. 14 Further, almost all financial ratios used in financial analysis utilize at least one 15 book value variable from either the income statement or the balance sheet. 16 Mr. Moul's assertion that investors are unconcerned with the book value debt or "some accounting value of little relevance to them"³⁹ of a utility is 17 18 unsupported. Clearly an investor takes the financial risk of the utility into 19 consideration when determining a required return. In addition, the market 20 capitalization information included in Value Line's reports and discussed by Mr.

 ³⁸ Pa. PUC v. PECO Energy Company – Gas Division. Docket No. R-2020-3018929, Recommended Decision, p. 215.

³⁹ UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 22, lines 11-13.

1		Moul is not the same as market value capital structure. Market capitalization
2		refers to the number of shares outstanding multiplied by the current price. A
3		market value capital structure refers to the ratio of market debt to market equity,
4		which, to my knowledge, is not included in Value Line's reports. Therefore,
5		Mr. Moul's contention that Value Line includes market capitalization data does
6		not offer any support for his leverage adjustment.
7		
8	Q.	HAS YOUR RECOMMENDATION CHANGED FROM DIRECT
9		TESTIMONY REGARDING MR. MOUL'S LEVERAGE ADJUSTMENT?
10	A.	No. For the reasons discussed above, I continue to recommend that Mr. Moul's
11		95-basis point leverage adjustment be rejected.
12		
13		INFLATION
14	Q.	DOES THE DCF ADEQUATELY FACTOR IN RECENT INFLATIONARY
15		TRENDS?
16	A.	Yes. My DCF calculation includes a spot stock price when determining the
17		dividend yield and analysts who generate forecasted earnings growth rates almost
18		certainly take inflation into consideration as well, therefore, it contains the most
19		up-to-date projected information of any model. Therefore, Mr. Brown's assertion
20		that "the Commission should consider the overall economic climate and these
21		inflationary pressureswhen deciding the merits of the Company's requested

1		base rate increase,"40 are adequately covered by use of the DCF as a primary
2		model for determining an appropriate return on equity.
3		
4	CAP	PITAL ASSET PRICING MODEL
5	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING
6		YOUR APPLICATION OF THE CAPM.
7	А.	Mr. Moul opines that my CAPM analysis understates the cost of equity for a few
8		reasons, including my use of the yield on 10-year Treasury Notes for my risk-free
9		rate, failure to use leverage adjusted betas, and rejection of his size adjustment. ⁴¹
10		Each of these topics are discussed in more detail below.
11		
12		RISK-FREE RATE
13	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING
14		YOUR USE OF THE YIELD ON THE 10-YEAR U.S. TREASURY NOTE.
15	А.	Mr. Moul claims that by using the 10-year Treasury Note, I introduced a
16		systematic understatement of CAPM returns that can be traced to extraordinary
17		monetary policy actions to deal with the recession created by the pandemic. He
18		opines that his use of the yield on a 30-year U.S. Treasury Bond is more
19		appropriate than my use of the yield on a 10-year Treasury Note because 30-year

⁴⁰

UGI Gas Statement No. 1-R, p. 6. UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 23, lines 10-12. 41

- bonds are "more a reflection of investor sentiment of their required returns..." and
 are also less susceptible to Federal policy actions.⁴²
- 3

Q. DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. MOUL THAT USING THE YIELD OF A 30YEAR U.S. TREASURY BOND IS MORE APPROPRIATE DUE TO A LONGER-TERM BOND BEING LESS SUSCEPTIBLE TO FEDERAL POLICY ACTIONS?

No. As explained in my direct testimony,⁴³ I chose the 10-year Treasury Note as it 8 A. 9 balances the short-comings of the short-term T-Bill and the 30-year Treasury 10 Bond. Although long-term Treasury Bonds have less risk of being influenced by 11 federal policies, they have substantial maturity risk associated with the market 12 risk. In addition, long-term treasury bonds bear the risk of unexpected inflation. As such, my choice of a 10-year Treasury Note is more appropriate. Additionally, 13 14 as mentioned in my direct testimony, the Commission has recently agreed with 15 I&E and recognized the 10-year Treasury Note as the superior measure of the riskfree rate of return.44 16

⁴² UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 23, ln. 24 through p. 24, ln. 10.

⁴³ I&E Statement No. 2, p. 23, ln. 12 through p. 24, ln. 2.

⁴⁴ Pa. PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc. – Electric Division, Docket No. R-2017-2640058, p. 99 (Order entered October 25, 2018).

1	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING
2		YOUR CALCULATION OF THE RISK-FREE RATE USED IN THE
3		CAPM FORMULA.
4	A.	Mr. Moul opines that I have incorrectly given the same weight to the yield on the
5		10-year Treasury Note for the second quarter of 2022 as I do for the entire five-
6		year period encompassing 2023 to 2027. He then recalculates the risk-free rate by
7		averaging the 10-year Treasury yield forecasts by year from 2022 through 2027 to
8		increase my calculated risk-free rate of 2.35% to 2.80%. ⁴⁵
9		
10	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. MOUL'S ANALYSIS OF YOUR RISK-FREE
11		RATE?
12	A.	No. Mr. Moul's new calculation proposes to give equal weight to each separate
13		year from 2022 to 2027. The flaw with this approach is that the further out into
14		the future one forecasts, the less reliable and more speculative the estimates
15		become; therefore, to give the less reliable estimates equal weight would not be
16		sensible. It is more appropriate to weight the quarters and years as I have done in
17		my direct testimony. ⁴⁶ My calculation provides a more accurate estimation of the
18		risk-free rate during the FPFTY, as the further out one forecasts, the less reliable
10		the information becomes

UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 24, ln. 11 through p. 25, ln. 1. I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 8.

1		LEVERAGED ADJUSTED BETAS
2	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING
3		THE USE OF LEVERAGED ADJUSTED BETAS.
4	A.	Mr. Moul simply claims that I failed to use leveraged adjusted betas. ⁴⁷ He does
5		not offer an explanation beyond what he argued in his direct testimony.
6		
7	Q.	IS THE USE OF "LEVERAGED ADJUSTED BETAS" IN CAPM
8		ANALYSIS APPROPRIATE?
9	A.	No. Mr. Moul's adjustment only serves to inflate the result of his CAPM analysis
10		which I have discussed in greater detail in my direct testimony. ⁴⁸ <u>Value Line</u> is a
11		well-known and trusted source that both investors and the Commission rely upon,
12		therefore, it is not necessary to make any type of adjustment to the Value Line
13		betas.
14		
15		SIZE ADJUSTMENT
16	Q.	SUMMARIZE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY REGARDING A SIZE
17		ADJUSTMENT.
18	A.	In direct testimony, I stated that Mr. Moul's 102-basis point CAPM size
19		adjustment is unnecessary because none of the technical literature he cited in his

direct testimony supporting investment adjustments related to the size of a 20

⁴⁷

UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 23, lines 11-12. I&E Statement No. 2, p. 43, ln. 23 through p. 44, ln. 16. 48

1		company is specific to the utility industry. In addition, I presented an article by
2		Dr. Annie Wong that demonstrates there is no need to make an adjustment for the
3		size of a company in utility rate regulation. Further, I noted that the Commission
4		has recently rejected the application of a size adjustment to the CAPM cost of
5		equity calculation where it agreed that the same literature the Company cites is not
6		specific to the utility industry. ⁴⁹
7		
8	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S RESPONSE IN REBUTTAL TESTIMONY
9		REGARDING A SIZE ADJUSTMENT.
10	A.	Mr. Moul states that enormous changes have occurred in the industry since the
11		article "Utility Stocks and the Size Effect: An Empirical Analysis" by Dr. Annie
12		Wong was published. He also references the Fama/French study, "The Cross-
13		Section of Expected Stock Returns," to illustrate that his size adjustment is a
14		separate factor from beta that helps explain systematic risk and returns.
15		Additionally, Mr. Moul opines that external factors, such as loss of larger
16		customers and unexpected changes in expenses, can affect the financial
17		performance of a small company. Finally, he acknowledges that in the 2020
18		PECO Energy – Gas Division rate case (at Docket No. R-2020-3018929), both the
19		ALJs and the Commission determined that an adjustment for size was not
20		necessary in utility rate regulation. ⁵⁰

I&E Statement No. 2, p. 45, ln. 5 through p. 46, ln. 3. UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 25, ln. 6 through p. 27, ln. 3.

2

Q. DOES THE TIME WHICH HAS ELAPSED SINCE AN ARTICLE WAS WRITTEN NECESSARILY INVALIDATE ITS RESULTS?

A. No. Although Mr. Moul states that enormous changes have occurred in the
industry since the 1960s, he presents no evidence that these "changes" have
caused the need for a size adjustment. To the contrary, Dr. Wong's study
demonstrated that one does *not* need to be made in the regulated utility industry.
As stated in my direct testimony, absent any credible article to refute Dr. Wong's
findings, Mr. Moul's size adjustment to his CAPM results should be rejected.

9

10 Q. DOES THE FAMA/FRENCH STUDY REFUTE DR. WONG'S ARTICLE?

11 A. No. As stated in my direct testimony, Dr. Wong's article presents evidence that

12 although a size effect may exist for industrial stocks, it does not exist for utility

13 stocks. As the Fama/French study is not specific to utility stocks, it does not

14 demonstrate that a size effect exists in the utility industry. In addition, the size

15 effect that exists for industrial stocks varies to such an extent that it is difficult to

- 16 predict. The difficulty in predicting the effect of size is demonstrated in the
- 17 variance from year to year of the measurement of difference between the annual
- 18 returns on the large and small-capitalization stocks of the
- 19 NYSE/AMEX/NASDAQ in the Ibbotson *Stocks, Bonds, Bills & Inflation: 2015*
- 20 *Yearbook.* As stated on page 100 of the SBBI Yearbook,
- While the largest stocks actually declined in 2001, the smallest
 stocks rose more than 30%. A more extreme case occurred in
 the depression-recovery year of 1933, when the difference
 between the first and 10th decile returns was far more

1 2 3 4 5		substantial. The divergence in the performance of small- and large- cap stocks is evident. In 30 of the 89 years since 1926, the difference between the total returns of the largest stocks (decile 1) and the smallest stocks (decile 10) has been greater than 25 percentage points.
6		Page 109 states,
7 8 9 10 11 12		In four of the last 10 years, large-capitalization stocks (deciles 1-2 of NYSE/AMEX/NASDAQ) have outperformed small-capitalization stocks (deciles 9-10). This has led some market observers to speculate that there is no size premium. But statistical evidence suggests that periods of underperformance should be expected.
13		Page 112 states,
14 15 16 17		Because investors cannot predict when small-cap returns will be higher than large-cap returns, it has been argued that they do not expect higher rates of return for small stocks.
18	Q.	ARE MR. MOUL'S CONCERNS REGARDING THE IMPACT OF
19		LOSING LARGE CUSTOMERS OR UNEXPECTED INCREASES IN
20		EXPENSES VALID?
21	А.	No. Regulated utility companies have the option to file a base rate case to address
22		declining revenues and to recover the increasing costs of doing business in
23		addition to emergency rate relief provisions for large unforeseen impacts. In
24		contrast, non-utility businesses that may be significantly impacted by events of
25		this nature due to small operating size do not have these opportunities. Further,
26		while a smaller utility may pay higher prices for services and materials just due to
27		volume buying power, the actual costs are part of the revenue requirement
28		presented by that company, so to increase the return to account for the potential

1		size disadvantage would only further unfairly burden ratepayers who are already
2		likely paying higher utility bills to recover the higher operating costs.
3		
4	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION REGARDING MR. MOUL'S
5		SIZE ADJUSTMENT?
6	A.	I continue to recommend that his use of the 1.02% size adjustment be disallowed
7		in calculating the CAPM.
8		
9	Q.	MR. MOUL HAS RECALCULATED YOUR CAPM RESULTS. ⁵¹ DO YOU
10		AGREE WITH HIS RECALCULATION?
11	A.	No. Mr. Moul's recalculation is incorrect for a couple of reasons. As stated in
12		both my direct testimony and above, he used an inaccurate risk-free rate and an
13		unnecessary size adjustment. Because of these factors, the recalculation of my
14		CAPM results as Mr. Moul illustrates is unreliable and unnecessary.
15		
16	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY ADDITIONAL COMMENTS REGARDING YOUR
17		CAPM ANALYSIS?
18	A.	Yes. My recommend cost of equity is primarily based upon my DCF analysis for
19		the reasons explain above and in my direct testimony. I present a CAPM analysis
20		to the Commission for comparison, not recommendation purposes as the inputs are
21		highly subjective, and other than beta, not company or industry specific. Again, it

⁵¹ UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 25, lines 2-5.

1		has traditionally been the preference of the Commission to view both the DCF and
2		CAPM analysis in base rate proceedings.
3		
4		INFLATION
5	Q.	IS IT NECESSARY TO EMPLOY THE CAPM WITH EQUAL WEIGHT
6		TO THE DCF WHEN DETERMINING A SPECIFIC RETURN ON
7		EQUITY DUE TO RECENT INFLATIONARY TRENDS?
8	А.	No. My use of the DCF as a primary method in determining an appropriate return
9		on equity sufficiently takes this into consideration. As mentioned above, the DCF
10		includes a spot stock price in the dividend yield calculation and analysts who
11		generate forecasted earnings growth almost certainly take inflation into
12		consideration as well, so it contains the most up-to-date projected information of
13		any model. In other words, the inputs of the DCF capture all known economic
14		factors, including inflation.
15		
16	<u>RISI</u>	<u>K PREMIUM</u>
17	Q.	SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING
18		THE RISK PREMIUM METHOD.
19	А.	Mr. Moul opines that the RP approach should be given serious consideration
20		because it is straight-forward, understandable, and uses a company's own
21		borrowing rate. He claims it provides a direct and complete reflection of a
22		utility's risk and return. Mr. Moul also states that I make an unfounded assertion

1		that the RP method does not measure the current cost of equity as directly as the
2		DCF. ⁵²
3		
4	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. MOUL THAT THE RP METHOD
5		PROVIDES A DIRECT AND COMPLETE REFLECTION OF A
6		UTILITY'S RISK AND RETURN?
7	A.	No. The RP method produces an indirect measure when compared to the DCF
8		method.
9		
10	Q.	PLEASE COMMENT ON THE INDIRECT MEASURE OF THE RP
11		METHOD VERSUS THE MORE DIRECT MEASURE OF THE DCF
12		METHOD.
13	A.	Mr. Moul claims my statement, that the Risk Premium method does not measure
14		the current cost of equity as directly as the DCF, is without foundation. In my
15		direct testimony, I have clearly illustrated how the two measures are different. ⁵³
16		The main reason is that the RP method determines the rate of return on common
17		equity indirectly by observing the cost of debt and adding to it an equity risk
18		premium. The DCF measures equity more directly through the stock information
19		(using equity information), whereas the RP method measures equity indirectly
20		using debt information.

⁵² 53 UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 28, ln. 5 through p. 29, ln. 19. I&E Statement No. 2, p. 13, ln. 17 through p. 19, ln. 6.

1 <u>COMPARABLE EARNINGS</u>

2 Q. SUMMARIZE MR. MOUL'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY REGARDING 3 THE CE METHOD.

- A. Mr. Moul claims that using the CE method satisfies the comparability standard
 established in the *Hope* case. Additionally, he states, "the financial community
 has expressed the view that the regulatory process must consider the returns that
 are being achieved in the non-regulated sector to ensure that regulated companies
 can compete effectively in the capital markets."⁵⁴
- 9

10 Q. DO YOU BELIEVE THAT THE COMPANIES USED BY MR. MOUL IN

11 HIS CE METHOD ANALYSIS ARE COMPARABLE TO UGI GAS?

No. As explained in my direct testimony,⁵⁵ the companies in Mr. Moul's analysis 12 A. 13 are not utilities, and therefore, are too disparate to be used in a CE analysis. For 14 example, the criteria Mr. Moul uses to choose the companies in his CE group 15 results in the selection of companies such as Altria Group Inc. (Tobacco), Bio-16 Techne Corp. (Biotechnology), CVS Caremark Corp. (Retail/Pharmacy), Intuit 17 Inc, (Computer Software), Monster Beverage Corp. (Beverage), Quest Diagnostics 18 Inc. (Medical Services), Toro Co. (Machinery), and Western Union Co. (Financial Services) just to name few.⁵⁶ All these companies operate in industries very 19

20

different from a utility company and operate under varying degrees of regulation.

⁵⁴ UGI Statement No. 6-R, p. 30, lines 5-11.

⁵⁵ I&E Statement No. 2, p. 26, ln. 13 through p. 27, ln. 5.

⁵⁶ UGI Gas Exhibit B, Schedule 14.

1		Also, a large majority, if not all the companies Mr. Moul uses in his analysis, are
2		not monopolies as utilities largely are. This means that they have significantly
3		more competition and would require a higher return for the added risk. Further,
4		the CE method should be excluded because it is entirely subjective as to which
5		companies are comparable and it is debatable whether historical accounting
6		returns are representative of the future.
7		
8	MAN	NAGEMENT PERFORMANCE POINTS
9	Q.	SUMMARIZE THE COMPANY'S REBUTTAL TESTIMONY
10		REGARDING MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE POINTS.
11	А.	Mr. Moul continues to advocate for 20 additional basis points to the cost of equity
12		as he believes UGI Gas has performed in an exemplary manner. He points to Mr.
13		Brown's testimony ⁵⁷ for support.
14		Mr. Brown acknowledges my position that UGI Gas should not be
15		rewarded for doing what the Company is legally required to do, and that the
16		savings resulting from true management effectiveness are available to be passed
17		on to shareholders. He suggests that I disagree with Pennsylvania law, specifically
18		66 Pa. C.S. § 523 which gives the Commission the ability to consider management
19		performance. Additionally, he cites to UGI Electric's 2017 rate case where the
20		Commission granted additional basis points for management performance. Mr.

 $^{^{57}}$ $\,$ UGI Gas Statement No. 6-R, p. 30, ln. 12 through p. 31, ln. 1.

1		Brown argues that UGI Gas has similar types of programs to UGI Electric, and he
2		recaps the achievements discussed in his direct testimony.58
3		
4	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO THE COMPANY'S REBUTTAL
5		TESTIMONY REGARDING THE CONSIDERATION OF ADDITIONAL
6		BASIS POINTS FOR MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE?
7	A.	As discussed in greater detail in my direct testimony, ⁵⁹ I maintain that UGI Gas, or
8		any utility company for that matter, should not reap additional rewards for
9		programs funded by ratepayers or for meeting their obligations under 66 Pa C.S.A.
10		§1501.
11		Also, while I am aware that under 66 Pa C.S.A. §523 the Commission shall
12		consider a utility's performance, it is not mandatory that the Commission grant
13		additional points. Moreover, I continue to assert that for any company, true strong
14		management performance is earning a higher return through its efficient use of
15		resources and cost cutting measures. The greater net income resulting from cost
16		savings and true efficiency in management and operations is available to be passed
17		on to shareholders. Additionally, it is nonsensical to support the idea that since
18		ratepayers fund the initiatives and accomplishments Mr. Brown mentions,
19		ratepayers should then in turn fund a higher equity return for UGI Gas' investors.

⁵⁸ 59 UGI Gas Statement No. 1-R, p. 6, ln. 18 through p. 14, ln. 1. I&E Statement No. 2, p. 47, ln. 9 through p. 50, ln. 7.

1 Q. ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY OTHER COMPANIES THAT HAVE

2 **RECEIVED ADDITIONAL BASIS POINTS IN RECOGNITION OF**

3 MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE?

- 4 A. Yes. Most recently, the Commission awarded Aqua an addition of 25 basis points
- 5 for its management performance efforts.⁶⁰ However, it is important to recognize
- 6 that this addition was based specifically on Aqua rescuing troubled water and
- 7 wastewater systems at the Commission's request. In this proceeding, the
- 8 Commission stated the following: ⁶¹

9 We specifically recognize Aqua's efforts and willingness to quickly provide emergency aid to various water and 10 11 wastewater systems that needed substantial improvement. 12 Aqua has often provided this emergency aid on short notice 13 and at the request of the Commission or other parties to protect 14 the public from egregious health and safety threats and to 15 protect the Commonwealth's drinking water resources from 16 catastrophic damage.

17

18 Q. DOES THE COMMISSION'S PAST ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL

19 EQUITY POINTS TO RECOGNIZE MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE

20 MEAN THAT UGI GAS SHOULD ALSO RECEIVE AN ADJUSTED

- 21 **RETURN ON EQUITY?**
- 22 A. No. The issuance of equity points to recognize management performance must
- always be done on a case by case basis. The situation in the Aqua case as
- 24 discussed above was very specific to the Company rescuing troubled water and

⁶⁰ Pa. PUC v. Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket Nos. R-2021-3027385 & R-2021-3027386, pp. 168-173 (Order entered May 16, 2022).

⁶¹ Pa. PUC v. Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., Docket Nos. R-2021-3027385 & R-2021-3027386, p. 169 (Order entered May 16, 2022).

1 wastewater systems and preventing health and safety concerns regarding drinking 2 water. This scenario does not apply to UGI Gas. Further, the example Mr. Brown 3 provides, the 2017 UGI Electric rate case, is irrelevant to the determination of 4 whether UGI Gas should be granted additional basis points to its cost of equity for 5 management performance. Management performance is something that is very 6 specific to each individual utility. Therefore, what the Commission has 7 historically decided in this regard, and the management performance of other 8 utilities, has no bearing on whether UGI Gas should receive a higher return on 9 equity to recognize its management performance. Notably however, in the 2017 10 UGI Electric case, which was decided in a pre-pandemic climate when ratepavers 11 were not faced with the current levels of inflation, the Commission awarded the 12 Company a nominal five additional basis points for management effectiveness. 13 Additionally, since Mr. Brown makes the argument that the management 14 performance of UGI Gas is comparable to that of UGI Electric, the implication 15 that UGI Gas should receive much more than what UGI Electric was awarded is 16 unreasonable. 17 18 Q. **DO YOU HAVE ANY ADDITIONAL COMMENTS CONCERNING THE** 19 **COMPANY'S CLAIM REGARDING MANAGEMENT PEFORMANCE?**

A. Yes. While I am aware of the rising costs of capital due to the after-effects of the
pandemic and the increasing levels of inflation, I believe it is important not to over
burden ratepayers.

Notably, in recognition of recent inflation, I&E is not disputing the updated
 increase in the cost of long-term debt as presented above.

3	Further, my 9.92% recommended cost of equity based on the DCF model is
4	higher than the average Commission-granted return on equity for all natural gas
5	utilities across the country since 2012. ⁶² In addition, as mentioned in my direct
6	testimony, a report issued by <u>Regulatory Research Associates, a group within S&P</u>
7	Global Market Intelligence, 63 illustrates that UGI Gas' 11.20% requested return on
8	equity is 99 basis points higher (almost one full percentage point higher) than the
9	average return on equity request of 10.21% of all pending gas utility rate cases as
10	of March 10, 2022. So, as the economy is in decline, UGI Gas is requesting a
11	record return on equity to apply to its equity heavy capital structure. It should be
12	noted that strong stock market performance does not always equate to strong
13	economic performance.

Finally, and perhaps most importantly, most of the programs Mr. Brown discusses are ultimately *funded by ratepayers* and any savings resulting from cost cutting measures would likely be offset by the addition of basis points for management performance as ratepayers would have to fund those additional costs as well. This defeats the purpose of efforts to reduce costs to benefit ratepayers.

⁶² <u>https://www.capitaliq.spglobal.com/web/client?auth=inherit&overridecdc=1&#industry/statisticsAndGraphs</u> (Accessed May 24, 2022).

⁶³ Regulatory Research Associates, "Major energy utility cases in progress in the US, Quarterly update on pending rate cases," *S&P Global Market Intelligence*, March 16, 2022.

1	Q.	HAS YOUR RECOMMENDATION REGARDING THE COMPANY'S
2		REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL BASIS POINTS FOR MANAGEMENT
3		PERFORMANCE CHANGED?
4	A.	No. I continue to recommend that any additional basis points for management
5		performance be rejected.
6		
7	OVE	CRALL RATE OF RETURN
8	Q.	HAS YOUR OVERALL RATE OF RETURN RECOMMENDATION
9		CHANGED FROM YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
10	A.	Yes. While I continue to support my calculated 9.92% cost of common equity, I
11		have updated my overall rate of return recommendation to reflect the Company's
12		updated cost of long-term debt.
13		
14	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR OVERALL RATE OF RETURN RECOMMENDATION?

15 A. I recommend the following rate of return for UGI Gas:

I&E Summary of Cost of Capital					
Type of Capital	Ratio	Cost Rate	Weighted Cost		
	UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division				
Long-Term Debt	44.88%	4.30%	1.93%		
Common Equity	55.12%	9.92%	5.47%		
Total	100.00%		7.40%		

1 Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

2 A. Yes.

I&E Statement No. 3-SR Witness: Brian J. LaTorre

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Surrebuttal Testimony

of

Brian J. LaTorre

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ADJUSTMENTS	2
RATE CASE EXPENSE	2
UNRECOVERED ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION EXPENSE	6
OSHA/EMERGENCY TEMPORARY STANDARD (ETS) COMPLIANCE COSTS	10
1 INTRODUCTION

2	Q.	PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
3	А.	My name is Brian LaTorre. My business address is Pennsylvania Public Utility
4		Commission, Commonwealth Keystone Building, 400 North Street, Harrisburg,
5		PA 17120.
6		
7	Q.	BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?
8	А.	I am employed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) in
9		the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement (I&E) as a Fixed Utility Financial
10		Analyst.
11		
12	Q.	ARE YOU THE SAME BRIAN LATORRE WHO SUBMITTED
13		TESTIMONY IN I&E STATEMENT NO 3. AND I&E EXHIBIT NO. 3?
14	А.	Yes.
15		
16	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
17	А.	The purpose of my surrebuttal testimony is to respond to the rebuttal testimony of
18		UGI Utilities, Inc. – Gas Division (UGI Gas or Company) witnesses Tracy A.
19		Hazenstab (UGI Statement No. 2-R), and Vivian K. Ressler (UGI Statement No.
20		3-R).

1 Q. DOES YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY INCLUDE AN EXHIBIT?

- 2 A. No. However, I do refer to my direct testimony.¹
- 3

4 <u>SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ADJUSTMENTS</u>

5 Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDED ADJUSTMENTS AS

6 **EXPLAINED IN THIS SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY.**

- 7 A. The following table summarizes my updated recommended adjustments to the
- 8 O&M expense claims under my purview. These recommended adjustments are
- 9 reflected in the overall I&E recommended revenue requirement presented by I&E
- 10 witness Zachari Walker² in this proceeding.

	Updated Company <u>Claim</u>	Updated I&E Recommended <u>Allowance</u>	I&E <u>Adjustment</u>
O&M Expenses:			
Rate Case Expense	\$1,055,000	\$633,000	(\$422,000)
2020 and 2021 Environmental	\$2,327,000	\$1,396,200	(\$930,800)
Remediation Expense			
OSHA/Emergency Temporary Standard	\$52,934	\$31,760	(\$21,174)
Compliance Costs			
Total O&M Expense Adjustments			(\$1,373,974)

- 11
- 12

13 **<u>RATE CASE EXPENSE</u>**

14 Q. SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN DIRECT TESTIMONY

- 15 FOR RATE CASE EXPENSE.
- 16 A. I recommended that the Company's rate case expense be normalized over a period

¹ I&E Statement No. 3.

² I&E Statement No. 1-SR.

1		of 20 months, resulting in an annual expense of \$633,000 [(\$1,055,000 ÷ 20
2		months) x 12 months], or a reduction of \$422,000 (\$1,055,000 - \$633,000) to the
3		Company's claim. My recommendation was based on the Company's base rate
4		case filing history since 2017 ³ in contrast to the Company's claimed one-year
5		normalization period, which is based on when the Company expects to file its next
6		rate case. ⁴
7		
8	Q.	DID ANY COMPANY WITNESS RESPOND TO YOUR
9		RECOMMENDATION?
10	A.	Yes. Company witness Tracy A. Hazenstab ⁵ responded to my recommendation
11		for rate case expense.
12		
13	Q.	SUMMARIZE MS. HAZENSTAB'S RESPONSE.
14	A.	Ms. Hazenstab disagrees with using historical base rate case frequency as a
15		predictor of the frequency of future base rate cases. Ms. Hazenstab opines that the
16		Company's expectation that it will file another base rate case in a year is based
17		upon an assessment of future capital requirements and system improvements as
18		outlined in the Company's Long-Term Infrastructure Improvement Plan (LTIIP),
19		in addition to rising inflation, capital cost rates, and a higher risk associated with
20		the rate of return. Additionally, Ms. Hazenstab states that the Columbia Gas 2020

I&E Statement No. 3, pp. 4-5. UGI Gas Statement No. 1, pp. 9-10. UGI Gas Statement No. 2-R, p. 9.

1		and PECO Gas 2021 cases I cited in my direct testimony are distinguishable from
2		the instant case due to circumstances surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic. ⁶
3		Finally, Ms. Hazenstab refutes my calculation of the frequency of past base rate
4		cases, arguing that the Company's most recent base rate proceeding was subject to
5		a one-year settlement stay-out clause that prohibited the Company from making a
6		base rate filing until January 2, 2022, which added a year to the period the UGI
7		Gas could not make a filing.
8		
9	Q.	WHAT OTHER UTILITY DID MS. HAZENSTAB REFERENCE THAT
10		RECEIVED APPROVAL FOR A NORMALIZATION PERIOD BASED ON
11		SPECILATION OF A FUTURE FILING?
11		
12	A.	In her rebuttal testimony, Ms. Hazenstab states that I disregarded the fact that the
12 13	A.	In her rebuttal testimony, Ms. Hazenstab states that I disregarded the fact that the reliance upon historic rate case filing frequency was rejected by the Commission
12 13 14	A.	In her rebuttal testimony, Ms. Hazenstab states that I disregarded the fact that the reliance upon historic rate case filing frequency was rejected by the Commission in Pa. PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc. – Electric Division, Docket No. R-2017-2640058
112 123 131 1415	A.	In her rebuttal testimony, Ms. Hazenstab states that I disregarded the fact that the reliance upon historic rate case filing frequency was rejected by the Commission in Pa. PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc. – Electric Division, Docket No. R-2017-2640058 (Order entered Oct. 25, 2018) (UGI Electric 2018). In UGI Electric 2018, I&E
112 113 114 115 116	A.	In her rebuttal testimony, Ms. Hazenstab states that I disregarded the fact that the reliance upon historic rate case filing frequency was rejected by the Commission in Pa. PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc. – Electric Division, Docket No. R-2017-2640058 (Order entered Oct. 25, 2018) (UGI Electric 2018). In UGI Electric 2018, I&E recommended a five-year normalization period based on historic filing frequency
112 133 14 15 16 17	A.	In her rebuttal testimony, Ms. Hazenstab states that I disregarded the fact that the reliance upon historic rate case filing frequency was rejected by the Commission in Pa. PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc. – Electric Division, Docket No. R-2017-2640058 (Order entered Oct. 25, 2018) (UGI Electric 2018). In UGI Electric 2018, I&E recommended a five-year normalization period based on historic filing frequency as opposed to UGI Electric's three-year normalization period based on speculation
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 	A.	In her rebuttal testimony, Ms. Hazenstab states that I disregarded the fact that the reliance upon historic rate case filing frequency was rejected by the Commission in Pa. PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc. – Electric Division, Docket No. R-2017-2640058 (Order entered Oct. 25, 2018) (UGI Electric 2018). In UGI Electric 2018, I&E recommended a five-year normalization period based on historic filing frequency as opposed to UGI Electric's three-year normalization period based on speculation of a future base rate filing. In UGI Electric 2018, UGI Electric had last filed a rate

⁶ UGI Gas Statement No. 2-R, p. 9-11.

1		between the 1996 rate case and the 2018 rate case, which significantly increased
2		capital spending.
3		
4	Q.	HOW DOES THE UGI ELECTRIC 2018 FILING DIFFER FROM THE
5		INSTANT PROCEEDING?
6	A.	UGI Gas has a more frequent and recent filing history, which provides more
7		support for the use of historic filing frequency. Additionally, UGI Gas had
8		already been subject to its second LTIIP at the time of its last proceeding. ⁷ These
9		two factors distinguish UGI Electric 2018 from the instant case. Thus, I continue
10		to recommend use of a historic filing frequency to determine a normalization
11		period for UGI Gas.
12		
13	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MS. HAZENSTAB THAT BOTH COLUMBIA
14		GAS 2020 AND PECO GAS 2021 ARE DISTINGUISHIBLE FROM THE
15		INSTANT CASE?
16	A.	No. However, because this is a legal argument, it will be further addressed in the
17		I&E briefs by the I&E prosecutor.

⁷ Petition of UGI Utilities, Inc. – Gas Division for Approval of its Second Long Term Infrastructure Improvement Plan, Docket No. P-2019-3012337 (Opinion and Order entered Dec. 19, 2019).

1	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MS. HAZENSTAB THAT THE ONE-YEAR
2		STAY-OUT CLAUSE FROM THE PRIOR PROCEEDING SHOULD BE
3		FACTORED INTO THE CALCULATION OF FILING FREQUENCY?
4	A.	No. While it may be true that UGI Gas was subject to a one-year stay-out clause
5		in its prior proceeding ⁸ , this one-year period should not be excluded when
6		calculating UGI Gas's historic filing frequency of base rate cases. By agreeing to
7		the one-year stay-out clause, UGI Gas made an affirmative decision not to file a
8		rate case. It is appropriate to include the one-year period as part of the historic
9		filing frequency because UGI Gas was in control of the timeframe for when it
10		could file.
11		
12	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
13	A.	No. I continue to recommend an allowance of \$633,000, or a reduction of
14		\$422,000 (\$1,055,000 - \$633,000) to the Company's annual rate case expense
15		claim.
16		
17	<u>UNF</u>	RECOVERED ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION EXPENSE
18	Q.	SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATIONS IN DIRECT TESTIMONY
19		FOR UNRECOVERED ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION EXPENSE.
20	A.	In my direct testimony, I made two recommendations concerning unrecovered

⁸ *PA PUC v. UGI Utilities, Inc – Gas Division* Docket No. R-2019-3015162, Order Entered October 8, 2020; Paragraph 9.

1		environmental remediation expense. First, I recommended that the Company be
2		required to provide a full line-by-line account of the yearly amortizations of
3		unrecovered environmental remediation expense in the next base rate case.
4		Additionally, I recommended that unrecovered 2020 and 2021 environmental
5		remediation expense be amortized over a five-year period resulting in an
6		allowance of \$465,400 or a reduction of \$1,861,600 (\$2,327,000 - \$465,400) to
7		the Company's claim. The five-year amortization period is based on the
8		amortization period from the prior Opinion and Order as opposed to the
9		Company's proposed one-year amortization period to align with the rate case
10		amortization period. ⁹
11		
12	Q.	DID ANY COMPANY WITNESS RESPOND TO YOUR
13		RECOMMENDATIONS?
14	А.	Yes. UGI Gas witness Vivian K. Ressler ¹⁰ responded to my recommendations.
15		
16	Q.	SUMMARIZE MS. RESSLER'S RESPONSE TO YOUR
17		RECOMMENDATION THAT THE COMPANY BE REQUIRED TO
18		PROVIDE A LINE-BY-LINE ACCOUNT OF YEARLY AMORTIZATIONS
19		IN ITS NEXT RATE CASE.
20	A.	Ms. Ressler agrees with my recommendation that the Company be required to

⁹

I&E Statement No. 3, pp. 9-11. UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, p. 7. 10

1		provide a full line-by-line account of yearly amortizations of unrecovered
2		environmental remediation expenses in its next base rate proceeding. ¹¹
3		Additionally, Ms. Ressler prepared UGI Gas Exhibit VKR-2R to help explain how
4		the Company has amortized under-recovered environmental remediation expense
5		and agreed to provide a similar schedule in the next rate case filing.
6		
7	Q.	SUMMARIZE MS. RESSLER'S RESPONSE CONCERNING THE
8		UNRECOVERED 2020/2021 ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION
9		EXPENSE AMORTIZATION PERIOD.
10	А.	Ms. Ressler disagrees with my proposed five-year amortization period for
11		unrecovered 2020/2021 environmental remediation costs. The Company selected
12		a one-year amortization period because it anticipates that another rate case would
13		be filed within the next year. Ms. Ressler asserts that a five-year recovery period
14		represents a mismatch between the period in which costs are incurred and when
15		they would be allowed to be recovered and would unfairly frustrate the
16		Company's ability to timely recover the full amount of these expenses. Ms.
17		Ressler further states that my recommendation based on prior case settlement
18		should have no persuasive value in this proceeding. Ms. Ressler also opines that
19		the Company has spent more than it has recovered in rates for each year since
20		2019, thereby adding to its regulatory asset under-recovery each year. ¹²

UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, pp. 8-9. UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, pp. 9-13.

Q. WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MS. RESSLER?

2 A. Upon consideration of points made in her rebuttal testimony, I accept that the 3 amortization period for the unrecovered 2020/2021 expense should be tied to the 4 rate case normalization period, however as discussed above, I disagree with the 5 Company's one-year rate case normalization period. I find persuasive Ms. 6 Ressler's statement that a five-year amortization period for unrecovered 2020 and 7 2021 environmental remediation expenses would unfairly delay recovery of the 8 full amount of these expenses. The Company has incurred expenditures for 9 environmental remediation for each year since 2019, resulting in increases to its 10 regulatory asset each year. Furthermore, I agree with the company that the threeyear average of environmental expenditures of \$5.171 million should be used as 11 12 the budgeted amount in the FPFTY, and that differences between \$5.171 million 13 and actual expenditures should be deferred as a regulatory asset (where 14 expenditures are greater than \$5.171 million per year) or as a regulatory liability 15 (where expenditures are less than \$5.171 million per year). 16 17 **Q**. **DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?** 18 A. Yes. I have adjusted my recommended amortization period to align with my 19 recommended rate case expense normalization period of 20 months. This

21 months) x 12 months] or a reduction of \$930,800 (\$2,327,000 - \$1,396,200) to the

22 Company's claim.

20

9

adjustment results in an annual allowance of 1,396,200 [($2,327,000 \div 20$

1	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR UPDATED RECOMMENDATION?
2	A.	Upon reviewing the Company's rebuttal testimony, I accept that it would make
3		more sense to fully amortize this expense before the next base rate filing and have
4		updated my recommendation accordingly.
5		
6	<u>OSH</u>	A/EMERGENCY TEMPORARY STANDARD (ETS) COMPLIANCE COSTS
7	Q.	SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN DIRECT TESTIMONY
8		FOR OSHA/ETS COMPLIANCE COSTS.
9	A.	First, I recommended that \$1,830,066 be disallowed for OSHA/ETS compliance
10		costs because the Company withdrew a majority of its claim after the U.S.
11		Supreme Court overturned the Federal Mandate. Next, I recommended that the
12		remaining OSHA/ETS compliance costs of \$52,934 be amortized over a 20-month
13		period resulting in an annual allowance of \$31,760 [($$52,934 \div 20 \text{ months}$) x
14		12]. ¹³
15		
16	Q.	DID ANY COMPANY WITNESS RESPOND TO YOUR
17		RECOMMENDATION?
18	A.	Yes. UGI Gas witness Vivian K. Ressler ¹⁴ responded to my recommendation.

 ¹³ I&E Statement No. 3, pp. 14-15.
 ¹⁴ UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R, pp. 42-43.

1	Q.	SUMMARIZE MS. RESSLER'S RESPONSE IN REBUTTAL
2		TESTIMONY.
3	A.	Ms. Ressler accepts the disallowance of \$1,830,066 due to the Company's
4		withdrawal of a majority of its claim and recommends a one-year amortization
5		period based on UGI Gas witness Ms. Hazenstab's recommended one-year rate
6		case expense normalization period. ¹⁵
7		
8	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY CHANGES TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
9	A.	No. I continue to recommend an allowance of \$31,760, or a reduction of \$21,174
10		(\$52,934 - \$31,760) to the Company's OSHA/ETS compliance costs in line with
11		my recommended rate case expense normalization period.
12		
13	Q.	DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

14 A. Yes.

¹⁵ UGI Gas Statement No. 3-R pp. 42-43.

I&E Statement No. 4-SR Witness: Ethan H. Cline

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Surrebuttal Testimony

of

Ethan H. Cline

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

Test Year Present Rate Revenue Weather Normalization Adjustment Average Bill Comparison Scale Back of Rates

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT	2
PRESENT RATE REVENUE	5
R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER USAGE DECLINE	6
R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER POST FPFTY USAGE DECLINE	6
R/RT HEATING CUSTOMERS – REGRESSION ANALYSIS	13
AVERAGE BILL COMPARISON	
SCALE BACK OF RATES	

1 INTRODUCTION

2	Q.	WOULD YOU PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS
3		ADDRESS?
4	А.	My name is Ethan H. Cline. My business address is 400 North Street, Harrisburg,
5		PA 17120.
6		
7	Q.	BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?
8	А.	I am employed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) in
9		the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement (I&E) as a Fixed Utility Valuation
10		Engineer.
11		
12	Q.	ARE YOU THE SAME ETHAN H. CLINE THAT SUBMITTED DIRECT
13		TESTIMONY ON APRIL 20, 2022?
14	A.	Yes. I submitted I&E Statement No. 4 and I&E Exhibit No. 4 on April 20, 2022.
15		
16	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
17	A.	The purpose of my surrebuttal testimony is to make corrections to my direct
18		testimony and address the rebuttal testimony of UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division
19		("UGI" or "Company") witnesses Christopher R. Brown at UGI Statement No. 1-
20		R, Sherry A. Epler at UGI Statement No. 8-R, and John D. Taylor at UGI
21		Statement No. 11-R. I will also address the rebuttal testimony of Office of

1		Consumer Advocate ("OCA") witness Jerome D. Mierzwa at OCA Statement No.
2		3R.
3		
4	Q.	DOES YOUR TESTIMONY INCLUDE AN EXHIBIT?
5	A.	Yes. I&E Exhibit No. 4-SR contains schedules relating to my testimony.
6		
7	WE A	ATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT
8	Q.	WHAT DID YOU RECOMMEND REGARDING UGI'S PROPOSED
9		WNA?
10	A.	I recommended that UGI's WNA be approved on the condition that a 3%
11		deadband is included. My recommendation maintains consistency with the
12		Commission's previous ruling and with Columbia's existing WNA (I&E St. No. 4,
13		p. 5).
14		
15	Q.	DID THE COMPANY AGREE WITH YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
16	A.	No. The Company disagreed with my recommendation to apply a 3% deadband to
17		the WNA (UGI St. No. 11-R, p. 3).
18		
19	Q.	WHAT REASON DID THE COMPANY PROVIDE FOR NOT AGREEING
20		WITH YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
21	A.	The Company claimed that my recommendation to include a 3% deadband is
22		misplaced and not fully supported with evidence. First, UGI witness Taylor

1		claimed that Commission's Order regarding Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania's
2		("Columbia") WNA, approving the WNA with a 3% deadband included, does not
3		apply to UGI's proposed WNA. Second, he claimed that customer rates could not
4		be subject to constant adjustment for normal weather variations in every billing
5		cycle because UGI's WNA only applies to the months October through May.
6		Third, Mr. Taylor stated that the primary intent of a WNA mechanism is to adjust
7		for differences measured against normal weather, and he claimed that a deadband
8		should not be included so that the WNA will be easier for customers to understand
9		(UGI St. No. 11-R, pp. 2-3).
10		
11	0.	DO YOU AGREE THAT SINCE UGI'S PROPOSED WNA IS ADJUSTED
	×.	
12	C.	ON A MONTHLY BASIS RATHER THAN DAY-TO-DAY BASIS, THE
12 13	L.	ON A MONTHLY BASIS RATHER THAN DAY-TO-DAY BASIS, THE COMMISSION'S RULING DOES NOT APPLY TO UGI'S WNA?
12 13 14	A.	ON A MONTHLY BASIS RATHER THAN DAY-TO-DAY BASIS, THE COMMISSION'S RULING DOES NOT APPLY TO UGI'S WNA? Not at all. Whether the adjustment is being made on a day-to-day basis or a
12 13 14 15	A.	ON A MONTHLY BASIS RATHER THAN DAY-TO-DAY BASIS, THE COMMISSION'S RULING DOES NOT APPLY TO UGI'S WNA? Not at all. Whether the adjustment is being made on a day-to-day basis or a monthly basis, the WNA is designed to adjust for variations in temperature and, as
12 13 14 15 16	A.	ON A MONTHLY BASIS RATHER THAN DAY-TO-DAY BASIS, THE COMMISSION'S RULING DOES NOT APPLY TO UGI'S WNA? Not at all. Whether the adjustment is being made on a day-to-day basis or a monthly basis, the WNA is designed to adjust for variations in temperature and, as I stated on page 4 of I&E Statement No. 4, the Commission was clear in stating
12 13 14 15 16 17	A.	ON A MONTHLY BASIS RATHER THAN DAY-TO-DAY BASIS, THE COMMISSION'S RULING DOES NOT APPLY TO UGI'S WNA? Not at all. Whether the adjustment is being made on a day-to-day basis or a monthly basis, the WNA is designed to adjust for variations in temperature and, as I stated on page 4 of I&E Statement No. 4, the Commission was clear in stating that there is no need to reconcile temperature variations that are part of normal
12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A.	ON A MONTHLY BASIS RATHER THAN DAY-TO-DAY BASIS, THE COMMISSION'S RULING DOES NOT APPLY TO UGI'S WNA? Not at all. Whether the adjustment is being made on a day-to-day basis or a monthly basis, the WNA is designed to adjust for variations in temperature and, as I stated on page 4 of I&E Statement No. 4, the Commission was clear in stating that there is no need to reconcile temperature variations that are part of normal business. Specifically, in the same Order (Docket No. R-2020-3018835, Order
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	A.	ON A MONTHLY BASIS RATHER THAN DAY-TO-DAY BASIS, THE COMMISSION'S RULING DOES NOT APPLY TO UGI'S WNA? Not at all. Whether the adjustment is being made on a day-to-day basis or a monthly basis, the WNA is designed to adjust for variations in temperature and, as I stated on page 4 of I&E Statement No. 4, the Commission was clear in stating that there is no need to reconcile temperature variations that are part of normal business. Specifically, in the same Order (Docket No. R-2020-3018835, Order entered February 19, 2021, pp. 264-265), the Commission determined that the
 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 	A.	ON A MONTHLY BASIS RATHER THAN DAY-TO-DAY BASIS, THE COMMISSION'S RULING DOES NOT APPLY TO UGI'S WNA? Not at all. Whether the adjustment is being made on a day-to-day basis or a monthly basis, the WNA is designed to adjust for variations in temperature and, as I stated on page 4 of I&E Statement No. 4, the Commission was clear in stating that there is no need to reconcile temperature variations that are part of normal business. Specifically, in the same Order (Docket No. R-2020-3018835, Order entered February 19, 2021, pp. 264-265), the Commission determined that the deadband was a reasonable provision because it allows for a range of what is

rates would be applied without adjustment. In my opinion, this statement applies
 regardless of whether an adjustment is applied on a daily or monthly basis.

3

4

Q. PLEASE RESPOND TO THE COMPANY'S POSITION THAT

5 CUSTOMERS CANNOT BE SUBJECT TO CONSTANT ADJUSTMENT 6 BECAUSE THE PROPOSED WNA MECHANISM ONLY ADJUSTS BILLS 7 ACROSS THE BILLING CYCLE DURING THE MONTHS OF OCTOBER 8 THROUGH MAY.

9 A. Mr. Taylor appears to be playing semantics with this position. Natural gas heating 10 customers, who would be subject to a WNA, would not have adjustments occur 11 outside of the heating season of October through May because customers 12 generally don't heat their homes or businesses outside of those months. As 13 described in my direct testimony, without a deadband, customers would be subject 14 to constant adjustment for normal weather variations is to illustrate that 15 temperature naturally has variations and that "normal" weather should be a range 16 rather than a single temperature point. As discussed above, the Commission 17 determined a 3% deadband was reasonable in its Columbia Order.

18

19 Q. DO YOU AGREE THAT A DEADBAND ADDS AN ADDITIONAL LEVEL

20 OF COMPLEXITY THAT CUSTOMERS WOULD NOT UNDERSTAND?

A. No. As has been established, both Columbia and Philadelphia Gas Works have
established a WNA with a deadband and I am unaware of any problems regarding

1		customers being able to understand their billing as a result of the WNA with a
2		deadband. Additionally, Mr. Taylor did not provide any evidence that customers
3		who pay bills under the deadbanded WNA have had problems understanding their
4		bills. Therefore, this claim should be disregarded.
5		
6	Q.	DO YOU WISH TO CHANGE YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
7	A.	No. For the reasons discussed above, I continue to recommend the proposed
8		WNA be approved on the condition that a 3% deadband is included.
9		
10	<u>PRE</u>	SENT RATE REVENUE
11	Q.	WHAT AMOUNT PRESENT RATE REVENUE IS THE COMPANY
12		REFLECTING FOR THE FPFTY ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023?
		UCL is reflecting annoximately \$1,062,721,000 of present rate revenue in eluding
13	A.	UGI is reflecting approximately \$1,002,721,000 of present rate revenue including
13 14	А.	gas costs, surcharges, and other operating revenues (UGI Ex. A FPFTY Rebuttal,
13 14 15	А.	gas costs, surcharges, and other operating revenues (UGI Ex. A FPFTY Rebuttal, Sch. D-1).
 13 14 15 16 	А.	gas costs, surcharges, and other operating revenues (UGI Ex. A FPFTY Rebuttal, Sch. D-1).
 13 14 15 16 17 	А. Q .	 both is reflecting approximately \$1,002,721,000 of present rate revenue including gas costs, surcharges, and other operating revenues (UGI Ex. A FPFTY Rebuttal, Sch. D-1). DO YOU AGREE WITH THE CLAIMED \$1,062,721,000 OF PRESENT
 13 14 15 16 17 18 	А. Q .	 both is reflecting approximately \$1,002,721,000 of present rate revenue including gas costs, surcharges, and other operating revenues (UGI Ex. A FPFTY Rebuttal, Sch. D-1). DO YOU AGREE WITH THE CLAIMED \$1,062,721,000 OF PRESENT RATE REVENUE FOR THE FPFTY?
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 	А. Q. А.	 GGI IS Fellecting approximately \$1,062,721,000 of present rate revenue including gas costs, surcharges, and other operating revenues (UGI Ex. A FPFTY Rebuttal, Sch. D-1). DO YOU AGREE WITH THE CLAIMED \$1,062,721,000 OF PRESENT RATE REVENUE FOR THE FPFTY? No. As described below, I have determined that UGI has understated its present
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 	А. Q. А.	 GGI IS Fellecting approximately \$1,002,721,000 of present rate revenue including gas costs, surcharges, and other operating revenues (UGI Ex. A FPFTY Rebuttal, Sch. D-1). DO YOU AGREE WITH THE CLAIMED \$1,062,721,000 OF PRESENT RATE REVENUE FOR THE FPFTY? No. As described below, I have determined that UGI has understated its present rate revenue in the FPFTY and I am recommending a revised increase of
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 	А. Q. А.	 bor is relecting approximately \$1,062,721,000 of present rate revenue including gas costs, surcharges, and other operating revenues (UGI Ex. A FPFTY Rebuttal, Sch. D-1). DO YOU AGREE WITH THE CLAIMED \$1,062,721,000 OF PRESENT RATE REVENUE FOR THE FPFTY? No. As described below, I have determined that UGI has understated its present rate revenue in the FPFTY and I am recommending a revised increase of approximately \$13,660,000 from \$1,062,721,000 to \$1,076,381,000. My

1		present rate revenue (not including gas costs) in the FPFTY and a correction to my
2		15-year regression analysis as discussed below.
3		
4	Q.	WHAT IS THE BASIS OF YOUR TWO ADJUSTMENTS TO UGI'S
5		PRESENT RATE REVENUE CLAIM IN THE FPFTY?
6	А.	First, I will address the rate class R/RT heating customer usage decline reflected in
7		the FPFTY that was projected beyond the end of the FPFTY. Second, I will
8		address the overall regression analysis performed by UGI to project usage per
9		R/RT heating customer to determine sales volumes.
10		
11		R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER USAGE DECLINE
12	Q.	DID YOU AGREE WITH THE CLAIMED \$1,062,724,000 OF PRESENT
		DATE DEVENUE FOD THE FRETV IN VOUD DIDECT TESTIMONV9
13		KATE KEVENUE FOR THE FFFTY IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
13 14	A.	No. As described in my direct testimony and below, I recommended two
13 14 15	A.	No. As described in my direct testimony and below, I recommended two adjustments to UGI's claimed \$1,062,724,000 of present rate revenue (I&E St. No.
 13 14 15 16 	A.	 No. As described in my direct testimony and below, I recommended two adjustments to UGI's claimed \$1,062,724,000 of present rate revenue (I&E St. No. 4, pp. 6-22).
 13 14 15 16 17 	A.	No. As described in my direct testimony and below, I recommended two adjustments to UGI's claimed \$1,062,724,000 of present rate revenue (I&E St. No. 4, pp. 6-22).
 13 14 15 16 17 18 	А. <u>R/R1</u>	 No. As described in my direct testimony and below, I recommended two adjustments to UGI's claimed \$1,062,724,000 of present rate revenue (I&E St. No. 4, pp. 6-22).
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 	А. <u>R/R1</u> Q.	 KATE REVENCE FOR THE FFFTY IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY? No. As described in my direct testimony and below, I recommended two adjustments to UGI's claimed \$1,062,724,000 of present rate revenue (I&E St. No. 4, pp. 6-22). CHEATING CUSTOMER POST FPFTY USAGE DECLINE HOW DID THE COMPANY PROJECT USAGE DECLINE IN THIS
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 	А. <u>R/R1</u> Q.	 KATE REVENUE FOR THE FFFTY IN YOOR DIRECT TESTIMONY? No. As described in my direct testimony and below, I recommended two adjustments to UGI's claimed \$1,062,724,000 of present rate revenue (I&E St. No. 4, pp. 6-22). <u>CHEATING CUSTOMER POST FPFTY USAGE DECLINE</u> HOW DID THE COMPANY PROJECT USAGE DECLINE IN THIS CASE?
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 	А. <u>R/R1</u> Q. А.	 No. As described in my direct testimony and below, I recommended two adjustments to UGI's claimed \$1,062,724,000 of present rate revenue (I&E St. No. 4, pp. 6-22). THEATING CUSTOMER POST FPFTY USAGE DECLINE HOW DID THE COMPANY PROJECT USAGE DECLINE IN THIS CASE? The Company projected the usage per customer decline six months beyond the end

1		lower average usage per residential heating customer during the FPFTY in the
2		proof of revenue.
3		
4	Q.	PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR CONCLUSIONS CONCERNING THE
5		COMPANY'S "ANNUALIZATION" OF POST FPFTY USAGE
6		DECLINES?
7	A.	I recommended that the usage decline beyond the end of the FPFTY be rejected.
8		There is no justification for allowing the level of usage projected at the end of the
9		FPFTY to be "annualized" by projecting usage out to March 2024. The inclusion
10		of such an "annualization" will benefit the Company to the detriment of customers
11		(I&E St. No. 4, p. 12).
12		
13	Q.	WHAT AVERAGE USAGE PER R/RT CUSTOMER DID YOU
14		RECOMMEND SO THAT THE POST FPFTY DECLINE IS
15		ELIMINATED?
16	A.	I recommended that the average usage per R/RT customer be increased by 0.1307
17		Mcf per customer per year (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2, line 5). This 0.1307 Mcf per
18		customer per year was determined by subtracting the 87.9625 Mcf per customer at
19		the end of the FPFTY from the 87.8318 Mcf per customer as of March 2024 as
20		shown on UGI Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-11(a), page 9. (I&E St. No. 4, p.
21		12).

1	Q.	HOW MUCH DID GAS VOLUMES INCREASE IF THE AVERAGE
2		USAGE PER R/RT CUSTOMER IS INCREASED BY 0.1307 PER
3		CUSTOMER PER YEAR?
4	A.	As described in I&E St. No. 4, pp. 13, gas volumes increase by 77,061 Mcf
5		(589,601 x 0.1307). This 142,926 Mcf of gas was determined by multiplying the
6		0.1307 per customer per year times 589,601 R/RT heating customers shown on
7		UGI Book III, Exhibit SAE-7(a).
8		
9	Q.	WHAT INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE USAGE REVENUE DID YOU
10		RECOMMEND IF THE AVERAGE USAGE PER R/RT HEATING
11		CUSTOMER IS INCREASED BY 0.1307 MCF PER CUSTOMER PER
12		YEAR?
13	A.	As described in I&E St. No. 4, p. 13, present rate usage revenue increases by
14		\$316,752 (I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2, line 6).
15		
16	Q.	IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO
17		REJECT THE POST FPFTY USAGE DECLINE, DID YOU ALSO
18		RECOMMEND COMMENSURATE ADJUSTMENTS TO GAS COSTS
19		AND SURCHARGES?
20	A.	Yes. These adjustments are described on I&E St. No. 4, pp. 13-14.

1	Q.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE IF
2		THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO
3		INCREASE R/RT PRESENT USAGE RATE DISTRIBUTION VOLUME
4		BY 77,061 MCF?
5	A.	As stated on I&E St. No. 4, pp. 14-15, present rate revenue increases \$427,964
6		(I&E Ex. No. 4, Sch. 2, line 29).
7		
8	Q.	DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO
9		REMOVE THE PROJECTED POST-FPFTY USAGE DECLINE FOR THE
10		R/RT HEATING CLASS?
11	А.	Yes. The Company believes that my recommendation should be rejected (UGI St.
12		No. 8-R, p. 4-5).
13		
14	Q.	WHAT REASONS DOES THE COMPANY PROVIDE TO REJECT YOUR
15		RECOMMENDATION TO REMOVE THE PROJECTED POST-FPFTY
16		DECLINE?
17	A.	The Company provided several reasons to reject my recommendation. First, the
18		Company claims that its analysis does not incorporate post-FPFTY usage decline.
19		Second, the Company argues that it is proper to incorporate post-FPFTY to
20		annualize usage for the FPFTY using the annual period ending March 30, 2024.
21		Third, the Company claims that its methodology incorporates usage reductions
22		already in place at the end of the FPFTY and annualizes that impact. Finally, the

1		Company provided what it believes to be justification for projecting usage decline
2		six months beyond the end of the FPFTY by attempting to capture customer
3		heating equipment upgrades that occur in the FPFTY but prior to the next heating
4		season.
5		
6	Q.	IS THE COMPANY'S TESTIMONY IN UGI STATEMENT NO. 8-R
7		CONTRADICTORY REGARDING POST-FPFTY USAGE DECLINE?
8	А.	Yes. On UGI Statement No. 8-R, page 3, lines 11-12, the Company indicates that
9		it does not incorporate post-FPFTY usage decline; however, on line 21 of the same
10		page, the Company stated that it "must project monthly use through the end of
11		March 31, 2024 to develop an annualized value for us per customer." This is the
12		exact opposite of the Company's statement that it does not incorporate post-
13		FPFTY usage decline.
14		
15	Q.	IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM THAT POST-FPFTY DECLINES SHOULD
16		BE INCLUDED AS A NORMAL FPFTY RATEMAKING ADJUSTMENT
17		VALID?
18	А.	No. Post-FPFTY usage declines occur after the end of the FPFTY, not during the
19		FPFTY; therefore, there is no sound ratemaking reason that data outside the test
20		year data should be considered in a base rate proceeding.

1	Q.	IS THE COMPANY'S CLAIM THAT REACHING BEYOND THE END OF
2		THE FPFTY IS NECESSARY TO ANNUALIZE THE USAGE FOR
3		CUSTOMERS AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 VALID?
4	А.	No. The Company's claim is baseless. The Company's own analysis contradicts
5		this unfounded claim. As shown on UGI Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-11(a),
6		each monthly usage projection is a rolling average of the previous twelve months.
7		Therefore, the Company's usage projection of 87.9625 Mcf per R/RT heating
8		customer per year as of September 30, 2023 already includes the usage declines
9		for each previous month of the FPFTY, including the FPFTY winter heating
10		season. As such, the projected 87.8138 Mcf per R/RT heating customer as of
11		March 31, 2024 should not be used to establish rates in this proceeding.
12		
13	Q.	DOES THIS CLEARLY SHOW HOW THE COMPANY'S EXAMPLE
14		UNDERSTATES REVENUE IN THE FPFTY?
15	A.	Yes. As shown on UGI Book II, Attachment SDR-RR-11(a), the Company's own
16		usage projections in the FPFTY range from 88.1221 Mcf to 87.9625 Mcf per
17		R/RT heating customer per year, which on average would be approximately 88.04
18		(88.1221 + 87.9625)/2)) Mcf in the FPFTY. Yet the Company erroneously
19		believes that the usage per customer in the FPFTY should be annualized all the
20		way down to 87.8138 Mcf per R/RT heating customer per year. If the Company's
21		proposal is accepted, it will be permitted to base rates on a projected usage that is
22		lower than its own projected usage and allow UGI to collect a revenue windfall.

Q. DOES THE EXAMPLE PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY IN WHICH A CUSTOMER INSTALLS A NEW FURNACE ACTUALLY SUPPORT YOUR RECOMMENDATION INSTEAD?

- 4 Yes, it does. The Company provided an example in which a customer installs a A. 5 new furnace prior to the end of the FPFTY that are in place but not yet measured 6 via observed and billed usage (UGI St. No. 8-R, p. 4). In this example, the 7 Company believes the customer's usage must be annualized to capture the usage 8 after September 30, 2023, beyond the end of the FPFTY. Under this scenario, the 9 Company would bill that customer for 87.8138 Mcf of usage during the twelve 10 months of the FPFTY. Thus, charging customers rates that anticipate expected 11 post-FPFTY heating season conservation measures has the effect of penalizing 12 customers for conservation efforts before those efforts are even undertaken.
- 13

14 Q. DID THE COMPANY PROVIDE ANY SUPPORT FOR ITS POSITION

15 THAT WOULD CAUSE YOU TO CHANGE YOUR

16 **RECOMMENDATION?**

17 A. No. I continue to believe that including post-FPFTY usage projections to

18 determine use per customer is improper. Therefore, I continue to recommend that

the inclusion of post-FPFTY projections in the usage per customer analysis bedenied.

1	Q.	DID THE COMPANY PROVIDE ANY VALID REASONS FOR
2		INCLUDING POST FPFTY USAGE DECLINES WHEN DETERMINING
3		THE USAGE AT THE END OF THE FPFTY?
4	A.	No. Therefore, present rate revenue should be increased \$427,964 from
5		\$662,174,239 to \$662,602,203 (I&E St No. 4, p. 14).
6		
7		<u>R/RT HEATING CUSTOMERS – REGRESSION ANALYSIS</u>
8	Q.	WHAT IS THE SECOND ADJUSTMENT YOU RECOMMENDED TO
9		THE COMPANY'S PROJECTED USAGE FOR R/RT HEATING
10		CUSTOMERS?
11	A.	As described on pages 14-22 of I&E Statement No. 4, my second recommendation
12		addresses the use of 18 years of data to project usage per customer that is used to
13		project the 87.8 Mcf per year of usage for the R/RT heating customer claimed by
14		the Company.
15		
16	Q.	WHAT TIME PERIOD OF DATA DID YOU RECOMMEND IN THIS
17		CASE TO PROJECT THE AVERAGE USAGE PER R/RT CUSTOMER?
18	A.	I recommended the most recent 15-years of data as proposed in UGI's previous
19		base rate case to project the average use per R/RT heating customer in this case.
20		(I&E St. No. 4, p. 16).

1	Q.	WHY DID YOU RECOMMEND THE USE OF 15 YEARS TO PROJECT
2		THE AVERAGE USAGE PER R/RT CUSTOMER FOR THE FPFTY?
3	А.	I recommended the use of 15-years of data for several reasons. First, a fifteen-
4		year time period is consistent with the reasons UGI described for utilizing a multi-
5		year regression period. Second, the 15-year time period is consistent with the time
6		period used for the Company's weather normalization adjustment. Third, the
7		Company has supported the use of 15-year time period for its regression analysis
8		in its previous cases. Finally, I stated that I believed that usage and temperature
9		data older than 15 years is not representative of recent usage trends on which to
10		base the usage projection (I&E St. No. 4. pp. 16).
11		
12	Q.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE YOU
12 13	Q.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE YOU RECOMMENDED AS A RESULT OF YOUR 15-YEAR REGRESSION
12 13 14	Q.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE YOU RECOMMENDED AS A RESULT OF YOUR 15-YEAR REGRESSION ANALYSIS, INCLUDING ASSOCAITED CHANGES TO PURHCASED
12 13 14 15	Q.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE YOU RECOMMENDED AS A RESULT OF YOUR 15-YEAR REGRESSION ANALYSIS, INCLUDING ASSOCAITED CHANGES TO PURHCASED GAS AND OTHER SURCHARGES
 12 13 14 15 16 	Q. A.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE YOURECOMMENDED AS A RESULT OF YOUR 15-YEAR REGRESSIONANALYSIS, INCLUDING ASSOCAITED CHANGES TO PURHCASEDGAS AND OTHER SURCHARGESI recommended present rate revenue increase by \$14,648,202 from \$662,174,239
 12 13 14 15 16 17 	Q. A.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE YOURECOMMENDED AS A RESULT OF YOUR 15-YEAR REGRESSIONANALYSIS, INCLUDING ASSOCAITED CHANGES TO PURHCASEDGAS AND OTHER SURCHARGESI recommended present rate revenue increase by \$14,648,202 from \$662,174,239to \$676,822,441 (I&E Ex. No. 4, p. 21).
 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 	Q. A.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE YOU RECOMMENDED AS A RESULT OF YOUR 15-YEAR REGRESSION ANALYSIS, INCLUDING ASSOCAITED CHANGES TO PURHCASED GAS AND OTHER SURCHARGES I recommended present rate revenue increase by \$14,648,202 from \$662,174,239 to \$676,822,441 (I&E Ex. No. 4, p. 21).
 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 	Q. A. Q.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE YOURECOMMENDED AS A RESULT OF YOUR 15-YEAR REGRESSIONANALYSIS, INCLUDING ASSOCAITED CHANGES TO PURHCASEDGAS AND OTHER SURCHARGESI recommended present rate revenue increase by \$14,648,202 from \$662,174,239to \$676,822,441 (I&E Ex. No. 4, p. 21).DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO USE A
 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 	Q. A. Q.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE YOURECOMMENDED AS A RESULT OF YOUR 15-YEAR REGRESSIONANALYSIS, INCLUDING ASSOCAITED CHANGES TO PURHCASEDGAS AND OTHER SURCHARGESI recommended present rate revenue increase by \$14,648,202 from \$662,174,239to \$676,822,441 (I&E Ex. No. 4, p. 21).DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO USE A15-YEAR PERIOD TO PROJECT R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER USAGE?
 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 	Q. A. Q.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE YOURECOMMENDED AS A RESULT OF YOUR 15-YEAR REGRESSIONANALYSIS, INCLUDING ASSOCAITED CHANGES TO PURHCASEDGAS AND OTHER SURCHARGESI recommended present rate revenue increase by \$14,648,202 from \$662,174,239to \$676,822,441 (I&E Ex. No. 4, p. 21).DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO USEAI s-YEAR PERIOD TO PROJECT R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER USAGE?Yes. The Company stated that it does not agree with my proposed adjustment

1	Q.	DID THE COMPANY AGREE THAT YOUR ANALYSIS IS CONSISTENT
2		WITH THE COMPANY'S REASONS FOR UTILIZING A MULTI-
3		PERIOD REGRESSION ANALYSIS?
4	А.	Yes. However, the Company did not agree with the rest of my rationale for using
5		a 15-year regression period. (UGI St. No. 8-R, p. 6).
6		
7	Q.	WHAT RATIONALE DID THE COMPANY PROVIDE FOR REJECTING
8		YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO UTILIZE 15 YEARS OF DATA TO
9		PROJECT R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER USAGE?
10	А.	First, the Company opposed the comparison of the time periods to determine
11		weather normalization and use per customer (UGI St. No. 8-R, p. 6). Second, the
12		Company disagreed with my assessment that the Company supported the use of
13		15-years for its regression analysis in its previous cases. Third, the Company
14		stated that it is not aware of a regulatory "stale" standard that is appropriate for
15		ratemaking and thus does not agree with my assertion that the fifteen-year period
16		does not include data that is no longer representative of more recent trends UGI St.
17		No. 8-R, p. 9).
18		
19	Q.	WHY DID THE COMPANY OPPOSE THE COMPARISON OF
20		WEATHER NORMALIZATION AND USE PER CUSTOMER?
21	А.	The Company opposed the comparison of weather normalization and use per
22		customer because "the two factors require independent assessment which can then

1		be utilized to support proper ratemaking design, claims and conclusion." (UGI St.
2		No. 8-R, p. 7).
3		
4	Q.	DID YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT WEATHER NORMALIZATION AND
5		USE PER CUSTOMER ARE DIFFERENT TYPES OF ANALYSES IN
6		YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
7	A.	Yes. I stated on page 17 of I&E Statement No. 4 that the analyses performed to
8		determine normalized temperatures and use per customer are different types of
9		analyses.
10		
11	Q.	DOES ACKNOWLEDGING THAT WEATHER NORMALIZATION AND
12		USE PER CUSTOMER ARE SEPARATE FACTORS NEGATE YOUR
13		
		COMPARISON OF THE ASSESSMENT TIME PERIODS BETWEEN THE
14		COMPARISON OF THE ASSESSMENT TIME PERIODS BETWEEN THE TWO FACTORS?
14 15	А.	COMPARISON OF THE ASSESSMENT TIME PERIODS BETWEEN THE TWO FACTORS? No. This acknowledgement does not erase the fact that the two factors are similar
14 15 16	A.	COMPARISON OF THE ASSESSMENT TIME PERIODS BETWEEN THE TWO FACTORS? No. This acknowledgement does not erase the fact that the two factors are similar in that they each are based on highly variable sets of data analyzed over an
14 15 16 17	A.	COMPARISON OF THE ASSESSMENT TIME PERIODS BETWEEN THE TWO FACTORS? No. This acknowledgement does not erase the fact that the two factors are similar in that they each are based on highly variable sets of data analyzed over an extended period of time. That the Company uses a fifteen-year time period, rather
 14 15 16 17 18 	A.	COMPARISON OF THE ASSESSMENT TIME PERIODS BETWEEN THE TWO FACTORS? No. This acknowledgement does not erase the fact that the two factors are similar in that they each are based on highly variable sets of data analyzed over an extended period of time. That the Company uses a fifteen-year time period, rather than longer periods of 20- or 30-years, to normalize data as highly variable as
 14 15 16 17 18 19 	A.	COMPARISON OF THE ASSESSMENT TIME PERIODS BETWEEN THE TWO FACTORS? No. This acknowledgement does not erase the fact that the two factors are similar in that they each are based on highly variable sets of data analyzed over an extended period of time. That the Company uses a fifteen-year time period, rather than longer periods of 20- or 30-years, to normalize data as highly variable as weather shows that it is not necessary to use "all available data" to provide an

1	Q.	WHY DID THE COMPANY DISAGREE WITH YOUR ASSESSMENT
2		THAT THE COMPANY SUPPORTED THE USE OF 15-YEARS FOR ITS
3		REGRESSION ANALYSIS IN ITS PREVIOUS CASES?
4	A.	The Company referred to the two cases following the 2019 UGI Gas merger case
5		in which it used "all available common years" which amounted to 16 and 18 years
6		of data. It further stated that this approach is used in an effort to smooth out
7		transient aberrations that may occur year-to-year for various reasons and best
8		capture long-term trends influencing use per customer. (UGI St. No. 8-R, pp. 7-8).
9		
10	Q.	DID THE COMPANY PROVIDE ANY EXPLANATION WHY
11		CONTINUALLY ADDING YEARS TO ITS ANALYSIS IN SUBSEQUENT
12		BASE RATE CASES IS NEEDED TO SMOOTH OUT "TRANSIENT
13		YEAR-TO-YEAR ABERRATIONS AND CAPTURE LONG-TERM
14		TRENDS"?
15	A.	No. In its 2019 case, the use of 15-years was a sufficient data set to smooth out
16		the transient year-to-year aberrations and capture long-term trends. The Company
17		failed to provide any explanation or rationale for why the existence of additional
18		data suddenly means that 15-years is no longer enough data to smooth out any
19		aberrations or capture long-term trends.

1	Q.	IS IT REASONABLE TO UTILIZE ALL AVAILABLE DATA TO
2		PROJECT THE AVERAGE USAGE PER R/RT HEATING CUSTOMERS?
3	A.	No. As I stated above, in the 2019 base rate case, the Company believed that
4		using 15 years of data was "statistically valid." As described above, now the
5		Company believed that using 16 years of data is "statistically valid." Furthermore,
6		as I stated on page 18 of I&E Statement No. 4, the Company, in its 2019 case, also
7		supported utilizing 15 years of data because the use of 15 years of data is
8		recommended by the American Gas Association and the US Energy Information
9		Association.
10		
11	Q.	DID THE COMPANY PROVIDE ANY SUPPORT FROM THE
12		AMERICAN GAS (AGA) ASSOCIATION OR THE US ENERGY
13		INFORMATION ASSOCIATION (US-EIA) TO SUPPORT USING 18
14		YEARS OF DATA?
15	A.	No. The Company made no mention of the AGA or the US-EIA to support its
16		current proposed used of 18-years in its direct or rebuttal testimony.
17		
18	Q.	DID THE COMPANY EXPLAIN WHY CONTINUALLY ADDING USAGE
19		DATA TO ITS ANALYSIS IN EACH SUBSEQUENT BASE RATE CASE IS
20		REASONABLE?
21	A.	Yes. The Company stated that it is not aware of a regulatory "stale" standard that
22		is appropriate for ratemaking and thus does not agree with my assertion that data

older than 15-years is not representative of recent usage trends and is therefore stale. (UGI St. No. 8-R, p. 9).

3

2

4 Q. IS THE COMPANY'S REFERENCE TO A REGULATORY "STALE" 5 STANDARD DISINGENUOUS?

6 A. Yes. While there is no written standard regarding the concept of stale data, in 7 practice, the idea of not using data because it is stale is common in base rate cases. 8 The Company does not use "all data available" when determining ratemaking 9 items including, but not limited to, materials and supplies (determined using 13-10 months of data), forfeited discounts (determined using a three-year average of 11 data), and weather normalization (determined using 15-years of data), because the 12 data outside of the respective time periods is not indicative of current trends. As 13 an example, if there were data from 30 years ago, I would assume that the 14 Company would consider all of that data valid and useful for usage trend analysis.¹ 15 This is simply inaccurate as 30 years of data would encompass large gains in 16 efficiency developments for appliances and home heating technology and even 17 changes in the heating quality of the gas with the introduction of shale gas inside 18 that time period. These type of large magnitude changes impacting gas usage 19 simply cannot be expected to recur going forward, so including the many years of

¹ This assumption is supported by the Company's reference to UGI Gas (former South Rate District) 2016 base rate case in which the Rate R/RT residential use per customer regression was based on a period of nearly 21 years of data. The use of 21 years of data was also opposed by I&E.

1		data that reduced customer usage due to significant changes should ultimately
2		drop out of the trend analysis to assure that usage projection declines are not
3		overstated going forward. Therefore, there is no justification for adding data
4		simply because its available.
5		
6	Q.	WHAT DID THE COMPANY STATE REGARDING THE INTENT OF
7		YOUR ANALYSIS?
8	А.	On page 9 of UGI Statement No. 8-R, the Company stated that my approach
9		"appears only intended to establish a result which would increase Rate R/RT
10		residential heating use per customer and should be rejected." It supported this
11		accusation by claiming that the data I referred to as stale is related to a downward
12		trend in usage and that the several trends that were upwards in magnitude (2010-
13		2011, 2012-2013, and 2016-2018, specifically) were not excluded.
14		
15	Q.	PLEASE RESPOND.
16	А.	The Company's accusation is false and without merit. While the Company is
17		correct that I could have recommended a five-year period to determine use per
18		customer, I did not do this because, as I stated on I&E Statement No. 4, p. 17, "[a]
19		fifteen-year period remains long enough to smooth out short-term variations and
20		capture the underlying long-term use per customer trends while having the added
21		benefit of not including data that is no longer representative of more recent
22		trends." This statement is consistent with the Company's stated goal of "transient

1		year-to-year aberrations and capture long-term trends" as discussed above. The
2		Company's reference to upward trends in usage in 2010-2011, 2012-2013, and
3		2016-2018 are also false because, as UGI files additional rate cases over the years,
4		those time periods will eventually no longer be included as they fall out of the data
5		range that should be considered recent. It appears that the Company came to this
6		conclusion and calls into question whether the reason the Company wants to
7		include "all available data" is to smooth out aberrations, as it claims, or to ensure
8		the higher usage in October 2003 is always included so that the use per customer
9		trend decreases more and, thus, increases customer rates.
10		
11	Q.	WHAT DID THE COMPANY STATE REGARDING I&E'S USE PER
12		CUSTOMER RECOMMENDATIONS IN PRIOR CASES?
13	A.	Ms. Epler claimed that I&E's methodology for determining use per customer has
13 14	A.	Ms. Epler claimed that I&E's methodology for determining use per customer has varied in UGI Gas's most recent cases, claiming that I used a 5-year and 1-month
13 14 15	A.	Ms. Epler claimed that I&E's methodology for determining use per customer has varied in UGI Gas's most recent cases, claiming that I used a 5-year and 1-month period in the current case, a 15-year period in the 2020 UGI base rate case, and a
 13 14 15 16 	А.	Ms. Epler claimed that I&E's methodology for determining use per customer has varied in UGI Gas's most recent cases, claiming that I used a 5-year and 1-month period in the current case, a 15-year period in the 2020 UGI base rate case, and a 10-year regression period during the Company's 2019 base rate case. (UGI St.
 13 14 15 16 17 	А.	 Ms. Epler claimed that I&E's methodology for determining use per customer has varied in UGI Gas's most recent cases, claiming that I used a 5-year and 1-month period in the current case, a 15-year period in the 2020 UGI base rate case, and a 10-year regression period during the Company's 2019 base rate case. (UGI St. No. 8-R, p. 12).
 13 14 15 16 17 18 	А.	Ms. Epler claimed that I&E's methodology for determining use per customer has varied in UGI Gas's most recent cases, claiming that I used a 5-year and 1-month period in the current case, a 15-year period in the 2020 UGI base rate case, and a 10-year regression period during the Company's 2019 base rate case. (UGI St. No. 8-R, p. 12).
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 	А. Q.	Ms. Epler claimed that I&E's methodology for determining use per customer has varied in UGI Gas's most recent cases, claiming that I used a 5-year and 1-month period in the current case, a 15-year period in the 2020 UGI base rate case, and a 10-year regression period during the Company's 2019 base rate case. (UGI St. No. 8-R, p. 12). IS THE COMPANY'S DESCRIPTION OF I&E'S PRIOR
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 	А. Q.	Ms. Epler claimed that I&E's methodology for determining use per customer has varied in UGI Gas's most recent cases, claiming that I used a 5-year and 1-month period in the current case, a 15-year period in the 2020 UGI base rate case, and a 10-year regression period during the Company's 2019 base rate case. (UGI St. No. 8-R, p. 12). IS THE COMPANY'S DESCRIPTION OF I&E'S PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS ACCURATE?
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 	А. Q. А.	Ms. Epler claimed that I&E's methodology for determining use per customer has varied in UGI Gas's most recent cases, claiming that I used a 5-year and 1-month period in the current case, a 15-year period in the 2020 UGI base rate case, and a 10-year regression period during the Company's 2019 base rate case. (UGI St. No. 8-R, p. 12). IS THE COMPANY'S DESCRIPTION OF I&E'S PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS ACCURATE? No. As I discuss below, the 5-year and 1-month analysis was provided in error

1		for the 2019 base rate case, I am aware that I&E proposed using a 10-year
2		regression period in that case.
3		
4	Q.	IS THE COMPANY'S CRITICISM OF I&E'S PRIOR
5		RECOMMENDATIONS VALID?
6	A.	No. The time periods selected by I&E were based upon the specific circumstances
7		of each case.
8		
9	Q.	DID THE COMPANY INTRODUCE ANY OTHER ISSUES WITH YOUR
10		ANALYSIS?
11	А.	Yes. On page 10 of UGI Statement No. 8-R, UGI witness Epler correctly
12		indicated that the support for my analysis was based upon 61 months (or 5 years
13		and one month) instead of 180 months (or 15-years) as I described in my direct
14		testimony and above. Pages 11-12 of UGI Statement No. 8-R were dedicated to a
15		discussion of the statistical analysis and P-values of the previous, incorrect,
16		analysis. My intention in Direct Testimony was to use 15-years; however, UGI is
17		correct that I utilized the incorrect time period in my analysis. As such, I would
18		like to correct my recommendation so that it is based on a 15-year data set instead
19		of 5-years and 1 month as I discuss below. For ease of reference, I will discuss
20		this adjustment based on the Company's recommendation.

2

Q. WHAT IS THE UPDATED USAGE PER R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER THAT YOU ARE RECOMMENDING?

3 A. I recommend a projected average use per customer for the FPFTY ending 4 September 30, 2023 of approximately 90.0968 Mcf per year (I&E Ex. No. 4-SR, 5 Sch. 1, p. 4). As shown on I&E Exhibit No. 4-SR, Schedule 1, this use per 6 customer is based on a regression analysis of 180 months, or 15-years. The 7 regression results are shown on I&E Exhibit No. 4-SR, Schedule 2. This results in 8 an increase of 2.283 (90.0968-87.8138) Mcf per R/RT customer per year. 9 10 **Q**. HOW MUCH DO GAS VOLUMES INCREASE IF THE AVERAGE 11 **USAGE PER R/RT CUSTOMER IS INCREASED BY 2.283 MCF PER** 12 **CUSTOMER PER YEAR?** 13 A. Gas volumes increase by 1,346,059 Mcf (589,601 X 2.283). This 1,346,059 Mcf 14 of gas was determined by multiplying the 2.283 Mcf per customer per year times 15 589,601 R/RT heating customers shown on UGI Book III, Exhibit SAE-7(a). 16 17 **O**. HOW MUCH DOES PRESENT RATE USAGE REVENUE INCREASE IF 18 THE AVERAGE USAGE PER R/RT HEATING CUSTOMER IS 19 **INCREASED BY 2.283 MCF PER CUSTOMER PER YEAR?** 20 If my recommendation to use the FPFTY average usage is approved, present rate A. 21 usage revenue increases by \$5,532,841 (I&E Ex. No. 4-SR, Sch. 3, line 6). This 22 \$5,532,841 of present rate R/RT revenue was determined by multiplying the
1		1,346,059 Mcf of gas described above times the present usage rate of \$4.1104 per
2		Mcf shown on UGI Book V, Exhibit E, p. 2. The result would be to increase the
3		Company's claimed present rate revenue for residential customers by \$5,532,841
4		from \$662,174,239 to \$667,707,080.
5		
6	Q.	IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO
7		INCREASE R/RT PRESENT USAGE RATE REVENUE BY \$5,532,841 TO
8		\$667,707,080 SHOULD THERE BE A CORRESPONDING INCREASE IN
9		PURCHASED GAS REVENUE AND EXPENSES?
10	A.	Yes. Under present rates, the PGC volumes equal approximately 85.47% of total
11		usage volumes (I&E Ex. No. 4-SR, Sch. 3, line 11, col. A). Therefore, increasing
12		total R/RT sales volumes by 1,346,059 Mcf increases the PGC by 1,150,450 Mcf
13		(1,346,059 Mcf X 0.8547) (I&E Ex. No. 4-SR, Sch. 3, line 10 col. B). This results
14		in an increase in PGC revenue and expenses of \$7,721,028 (1,150,450 Mcf X the
15		\$6.2767 per Mcf PGC rate) (I&E Ex. No. 4-SR, Sch. 3, line 10, col. D).
16		
17	Q.	IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO
18		INCREASE R/RT PRESENT USAGE RATE REVENUE BY \$5,532,841 TO
19		\$667,707,080 SHOULD THERE BE A CORRESPONDING INCREASE IN
20		OTHER SURCHARGES?
21	А.	Yes. Since the following surcharges are based upon volumes or revenue, they
22		would each increase if the Commission accepts my recommendation to eliminate

1		the post FPFTY usage decline and 15-year regression analysis. Under present
2		rates, the Merchant Function Charge will increase by \$156,696 to \$6,348,013
3		(I&E Ex. No. 4-SR, Sch. 3, line 14, col. 14). The Gas Procurement Charge will
4		increase by \$75,930 to \$3,070,682 (I&E Ex. No. 4-SR, Sch. 3, line 17, col. D).
5		The Universal Service Program rider will increase by \$86,979 to \$17,623,877
6		(I&E Ex. No. 4-SR, Sch. 3, line 20, col. D). The Energy and Conservation
7		Efficiency Rider will increase by \$279,576 to \$11,081,427 (I&E Ex. No. 4-SR,
8		Sch. 3, line 23, col. D).
9		
10	Q.	DOES YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO INCREASE USAGE PER R/RT
11		HEATING CUSTOMER INCLUDE THE VOLUMES AND DOLLARS OF
12		YOUR FIRST RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING POST FPFTY R/RT
13		HEATING USAGES?
14	A.	Yes. As I stated on page 21 of I&E Statement No. 4, the adjustments in my
15		second recommendation are inclusive of the adjustment I described regarding the
16		inclusion of post FPFTY usage data.
17		
18	Q.	DID YOUR UPDATED ANALYSIS PRODUCE A NEW SET OF P-
19		VALUES?
20	A.	Yes. As shown on I&E Exhibit No. 4-SR, Schedule 2, all of the P-values, except
21		for X Variable 3 are below the 0.05 threshold.

2

Q. ACCORDING TO THE COMPANY, IS YOUR ANALYSIS "STATISTICALLY SIGNIFICANT"?

3	A.	No. However, "statistical significance" should not be the only factor in
4		determining whether a use per customer adjustment is reasonable. As I stated
5		above, conditions that determine use per customer change over time and should no
6		longer be considered representative of current trends. A 50-year regression
7		analysis would likely produce a result that is "statistically significant," but it is not
8		reasonable to assume that data and usage trends from the 1960's, 1970's, and
9		1980's is indicative of customer usage patterns in 2022 and 2023.
10		
11	Q.	WHAT IS THE TOTAL INCREASE IN PRESENT RATE REVENUE IF
12		THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO
13		INCREASE R/RT PRESENT USAGE RATE DISTRIBUTION VOLUME
14		BY 1,346,059 MCF?
15	А.	Present rate revenue increases by \$13,659,652 from \$662,174,239 to
16		\$675,833,892 (I&E Ex. No. 4-SR, Sch. 3, line 29, col. D). This represents a
17		decrease of \$988,550 from the \$676,822,441 present rate revenue recommendation
18		shown on I&E Statement No. 4, p. 21 to \$675,833,892. As stated above, including
19		gas costs, this represents a revised increase of approximately \$13,660,000 from

20 \$1,062,721,000 to \$1,076,381,000.

1 AVERAGE BILL COMPARISON

2	Q.	DID THE COMPANY MAKE ANY CLAIMS IN ITS DIRECT
3		TESTIMONY REGARDING THE COMPARISON OF CURRENT
4		RESIDENTIAL RATES TO HISTORIC RESIDENTIAL RATES?
5	A.	Yes. On page 7 of UGI Statement No. 1, the Company claimed that "the
6		Company's average customer bills are less than they were in 2008."
7		
8	Q.	IS THIS ARGUMENT PERSUASIVE?
9	А.	No. As I stated in my Direct Testimony, his claim should be disregarded because
10		it is unsupported and misleading because the comparison is driven largely by the
11		Gas Cost Rate, which is outside of UGI's control (I&E St. No. 4, pp. 24-25).
12		
13	Q.	DID THE COMPANY RESPOND TO YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
14	А.	Yes. The Company disagreed that the Gas Cost Rate should not be considered in
15		the comparison of average bills in the context of a base rate case. The Company
16		also disagreed with my statement that UGI has no control over the gas costs paid
17		by UGI customers (UGI St. No. 1-R, pp. 14-15).
18		
19	Q.	WHY DOES UGI BELIEVE GAS COSTS SHOULD BE INCLUDED IN
20		THE COMPARISON OF AVERAGE BILLS?
21	A.	UGI witness Brown stated that the average bill comparison was focused on
22		customer affordability, and, from that perspective, it is not logical to do a partial

1		bill comparison because that is not how customers experience a gas bill. He
2		further stated that this analysis shows a "data point showing that the customer's
3		bill as a result of this case will still be within the range of their historic
4		experience." (UGI St. No. 1-R, p. 14).
5		
6	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE STATEMENT THAT THE CUSTOMER'S
7		BILL AS A RESULT OF THIS CASE WILL STILL BE WITHIN THE
8		RANGE OF THE CUSTOMER'S HISTORIC EXPERIENCE?
9	A.	No. This statement will only be accurate if the cost of gas does not increase, and
10		gas costs to customers have increased substantially over just the past year.
11		Furthermore, cherry picking the year 2008 when gas costs were at an all-time high
12		to indicate cost stability is not how a consumer evaluates their month-to-month
13		costs as monthly expenses from 14 years ago would be substantially different and
14		incomparable to current costs and income. It would be illogical to assume that
15		UGI bases its current budgets and cost expectations on conditions 14 years in the
16		past, and it is equally illogical to do so and make this comparison on the utility
17		customer's basis.
18		
19	Q.	HOW DOES MR. BROWN CLAIM THAT UGI IS ABLE TO CONTROL
20		THE COST OF GAS?
21	A.	On page 15 of UGI Statement No. 1-R, Mr. Brown lists a number of methods that
22		UGI uses to control the cost of gas, none of which are able to be assessed or

1		adjusted in the course of a base rate case. In fact, on March 1, 2021, the UGI gas
2		rate was \$4.2426 per Mcf, and as of March 1, 2022, the UGI gas rate is \$6.2767
3		per Mcf, an increase of 47.9% in one year (\$6.2767-\$4.2426/\$4.2426), which is
4		hardly indicative of controlled gas costs.
5		
6	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY THAT IT TAKES STEPS TO
7		REDUCE GAS COSTS FOR CUSTOMERS?
8	A.	Yes, but that is not the same thing as having control over the final cost of gas and
9		the total cost of gas on the customer's bill. It should also be noted that the
10		Company also takes steps to increase gas costs, such as including the cost of LNG
11		and additional cost of capacity to increase supplies and reliably.
12		
13	Q.	DO THE METHODS OF AFFECTING THE COST OF GAS IN THE
14		1307(F) PURCHASED GAS COST FILING LISTED BY MR. BROWN
15		GIVE UGI COMPLETE CONTROL OVER THE COST OF GAS?
16	A.	No. The despite UGI's methods to affect it, the cost of gas is still controlled by
17		the prices set by the natural gas suppliers, the natural gas market, and the need for
18		capacity to deliver the gas to UGI on peak days which are not under the control of
19		the Company.
20		
21	Q.	DO YOU WISH TO CHANGE YOUR RECOMMENDATION?
22	A.	No. Providing customers an average bill comparison in the context of a base rate

	case that includes the cost of gas without mentioning the cost of gas and its effects
	on the average bill is misleading and I continue to recommend it be disregarded.
<u>SCA</u>	LE BACK OF RATES
Q.	WHAT SCALE BACK METHODOLOGY DID YOU RECOMMEND FOR
	THE R/RT AND N/NT CLASSES?
A.	I recommended that both the customer charge and usage rates be scaled back such
	that increase for each customer class is scaled back proportionally to the increase
	originally proposed by UGI based on the cost of service study that is ultimately
	approved.
Q.	WHAT SCALE BACK METHODOLOGY DID YOU RECOMMEND FOR
	THE DS CLASS?
A.	The DS customer charge was not increased under proposed rates, so it should not
	be included in any scale back. I recommended that the usage rates be scaled back
	but no lower than the present North / Central division usage rate of \$2.930 per
	Mcf.
Q.	WHAT SCALE BACK METHODOLOGY DID YOU RECOMMEND FOR
	THE LFD CLASS?
	SCA Q. A. Q.

1		be included in any scale back. I recommended that the usage rates be scaled back
2		proportionally to reduce the revenue from this class.
3		
4	Q.	WHAT SCALE BACK METHODOLOGY DID YOU RECOMMEND FOR
5		THE XD AND INTERRUPTIBLE CLASSES?
6	A.	The customer charges and usage rates were not increased under proposed rate, so
7		they should not be included in any scale back. I recommended that only the
8		surcharges be for these competitive customers be adjusted.
9		
10	Q.	DID THE COMPANY ADDRESS YOUR RECOMMENDATIONS?
11	A.	Not directly. However, UGI witness Epler, on page 27 of UGI Statement No. 8-R,
12		stated that the increases by classes as proposed by the Company should be
13		adjusted proportionate across all classes and that the scale back should only apply
14		to the distribution charge portion of the Company's proposed rates, in
15		contradiction of my recommendation to also scale back the customer charge,
16		because it is supported by the customer cost analysis.
17		
18	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH THE COMPANY'S RECOMMENDATION?
19	A.	No. As I stated in direct testimony and above, the customer charge should be
20		included in the scale back of rates. Reducing the customer charge despite the
21		support is consistent with Commission precedent in the UGI Utilities, Inc. –
22		Electric base rate case at Docket No. R-2017-2640058 (I&E St. No. 4, pp.27-28).

1		The Company provided no evidence or rationale provided in this case for
2		reversing the Commission's prior decision concerning customer charges in that
3		case.
4		
5	Q.	DID ANY OTHER PARTIES ADDRESS YOUR SCALE BACK
6		RECOMMENDATION?
7	A.	Yes. OCA witness Mierzwa opposed my recommendation because it is based on
8		the Company's cost of service study which used the Average and Excess
9		methodology as opposed to the cost of service study he proposed which employs
10		the Peak and Average methodology (OCA St. No. 2R, p. 3).
11		
12	Q.	DO YOU OPPOSE THE OCA'S RECOMMENDED PEAK AND AVERAGE
13		COST OF SERVICE STUDY?
14	A.	I did not perform an analysis of the OCA's Peak and Average cost of service
15		study. However, in general, the Peak and Average methodology for performing a
16		cost of service study is also reasonable. Therefore, I neither support nor oppose
17		OCA's proposed cost of service study.
18		
19	Q.	DO YOU WISH TO CHANGE YOUR SCALE BACK
20		RECOMMENDATION?
21	A.	No. I continue to recommend that the customer charge and usage rates be scale
22		back only for those rate classes that have a proposed increase. I would like to add,

1		however, that this scale back should be based on whichever cost of service study
2		that the Commission deems most reasonable in this case.
3		
4	Q.	DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

5 A. Yes.

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Exhibit to Accompany

the

Surrebuttal Testimony

of

Ethan H. Cline

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

Test Year Present Rate Revenue Weather Normalization Adjustment Average Bill Comparison Scale Back of Rates

Regression Results:	0.824844 Constant
-	0.000543 HDD-1
	0.012899 HDD
	0.029024 Trend

	Normal Degree	Normal Degree Days for Prior	HDD Weighted		1 Month	12 Months
0 -+ 02	Days (HDD)	Month (HDD-1)	I rend		UPC 5 4900	Ended UPC
Nov-03	300	83 350	4		0.4602	
Dec-03	072	672	10		13 7513	
Jan-04	1 1 2 0	952	10		16 1232	
Feb-04	962	1 120	10		14 1319	
Mar-04	805	962	8		11 9760	
Apr-04	414	805	4		6 7292	
May-04	164	414	2		3.2159	
Jun-04	30	164	0		1.3102	
Jul-04	0	30	0		0.8411	
Aug-04	16	0	0		1.0363	
Sep-04	83	16	1	FY04	1.9309	86.4122
Oct-04	350	83	4		5.4983	86.4244
Nov-04	672	350	8		9.9034	86.4478
Dec-04	952	672	11		13.7844	86.4809
Jan-05	1,120	952	13		16.1623	86.5199
Feb-05	962	1,120	11		14.1654	86.5534
Mar-05	805	962	9		12.0040	86.5815
Mov 05	414	803 414	5		0.7437	86 6016
lun-05	30	414	2		3.2210	86 6027
Jul-05	0	30	0		0.8411	86 6027
Aug-05	16	0	0		1.0369	86.6032
Sep-05	83	16	1	FY05	1.9338	86.6061
Oct-05	350	83	4		5.5105	86.6183
Nov-05	672	350	8		9.9268	86.6417
Dec-05	952	672	12		13.8176	86.6749
Jan-06	1,120	952	14		16.2013	86.7139
Feb-06	962	1,120	12		14.1989	86.7474
Mar-06	805	962	10		12.0320	86.7754
Apr-06	414	805	5		6.7581	86.7898
May-06	164	414	2		3.2273	86.7955
Jun-06	30	164	0		1.3123	86.7966
	16	30	0		1.0275	86.7966
Aug-00	83	16	0	EV06	1.0373	86 8000
Oct-06	350	83	5	1100	5 5227	86 8122
Nov-06	672	350	9		9.9502	86.8356
Dec-06	952	672	13		13.8507	86.8688
Jan-07	1,120	952	16		16.2403	86.9078
Feb-07	962	1,120	13		14.2324	86.9413
Mar-07	805	962	11		12.0601	86.9693
Apr-07	414	805	6		6.7725	86.9838
May-07	164	414	2		3.2330	86.9895
Jun-07	30	164	0		1.3133	86.9905
Jui-07	0	30	0		0.8411	86.9905
Aug-07	83	16	0	EV 07	1,0300	86 99/0
Oct-07	350	83	5	1107	5 5349	87 0061
Nov-07	672	350	10		9 9736	87 0296
Dec-07	952	672	14		13.8839	87.0627
Jan-08	1,120	952	17		16.2793	87.1017
Feb-08	962	1,120	15		14.2659	87.1352
Mar-08	805	962	12		12.0881	87.1633
Apr-08	414	805	6		6.7869	87.1777
May-08	164	414	3		3.2387	87.1834
Jun-08	30	164	0		1.3144	87.1844
Jul-08	0	30	0		0.8411	87.1844
Aug-08	16	0	0		1.0386	87.1850
Sep-08	83	16	1	FIUO	1.9425	87.1879
Nove OP	350	83	5		0.04/1	87.2001 87.222F
Dec-08	952	672	15		13 9171	87 2566
Jan-09	1.120	952	13		16.3183	87.2956
Feb-09	962	1,120	16		14.2994	87.3292
Mar-09	805	962	13		12.1161	87.3572
Apr-09	414	805	7		6.8013	87.3716

Regression Results:	0.824844 Constant
-	0.000543 HDD-1
	0.012899 HDD
	0.029024 Trend

		Normal Degree				
	Normal Degree	Days for Prior	HDD Weighted		1 Month	12 Months
	Days (HDD)	Month (HDD-1)	Trend		UPC	Ended UPC
May-09	164	414	3		3.2444	87.3773
Jun-09	30	164	1		1.3154	87.3784
Jui-09 Aug-09	16	30	0		1 0391	87 3789
Sep-09	83	16	1	FY 09	1.9453	87.3818
Oct-09	350	83	6		5.5593	87.3940
Nov-09	672	350	12		10.0204	87.4174
Dec-09	952	672	17		13.9502	87.4506
Jan-10	1,120	952	20		16.3573	87.4896
Feb-10	962	1,120	17		14.3329	87.5231
Mar-10	805	962	14		12.1442	87.5511
May-10	164	414	3		3.2501	87.5712
Jun-10	30	164	1		1.3165	87.5723
Jul-10	0	30	0		0.8411	87.5723
Aug-10	16	0	0		1.0397	87.5729
Sep-10	83	16	2	FY 10	1.9482	87.5757
Oct-10	350	83	6		5.5715	87.5879
NOV-10	6/2	350	12		10.0438	87.6113
Jan-11	1 1 2 0	952	21		15.9634	87 6835
Feb-11	962	1.120	18		14.3664	87.7170
Mar-11	805	962	15		12.1722	87.7450
Apr-11	414	805	8		6.8302	87.7595
May-11	164	414	3		3.2559	87.7652
Jun-11	30	164	1		1.3175	87.7662
Jul-11	0	30	0		0.8411	87.7662
Aug-11 Sep-11	10	16	0	EV 11	1.0402	87 7697
Oct-11	350	83	2		5 5837	87 7819
Nov-11	672	350	13		10.0672	87.8053
Dec-11	952	672	19		14.0165	87.8384
Jan-12	1,120	952	22		16.4353	87.8774
Feb-12	962	1,120	19		14.3999	87.9109
Mar-12	805	962	16		12.2003	87.9390
Apr-12 May-12	414	805 /1/	8		3 2616	87.9534
Jun-12	30	164	1		1.3186	87.9602
Jul-12	0	30	0		0.8411	87.9602
Aug-12	16	0	0		1.0408	87.9607
Sep-12	83	16	2	FY 12	1.9540	87.9636
Oct-12	350	83	7		5.5959	87.9758
Nov-12	672	350	14		10.0906	87.9992
Jan-13	952	072	20		14.0497	88.0714
Feb-13	962	1.120	24		14.4335	88.1049
Mar-13	805	962	17		12.2283	88.1329
Apr-13	414	805	9		6.8590	88.1473
May-13	164	414	4		3.2673	88.1530
Jun-13	30	164	1		1.3196	88.1541
Jul-13	0	30	0		0.8411	88.1541
Sen-13	83	16	2	FY 13	1.0414	88 1575
Oct-13	350	83	8	1110	5.6081	88.1697
Nov-13	672	350	15		10.1140	88.1931
Dec-13	952	672	21		14.0828	88.2263
Jan-14	1,120	952	25		16.5133	88.2653
Feb-14	962	1,120	22		14.4670	88.2988
Iviar-14	805	962	18		12.2563	88.3268
Apr-14 May-14	414	005 /11/	9		0.0/34 3 2730	00.3413 88 3470
Jun-14	30	164			1.3207	88.3480
Jul-14	0	30	0		0.8411	88.3480
Aug-14	16	0	0		1.0419	88.3486
Sep-14	83	16	2	FY 14	1.9598	88.3515
Oct-14	350	83	8		5.6202	88.3636
Nov-14	672	350	16		10.1374	88.3871

Regression Results:	0.824844 Constant
-	0.000543 HDD-1
	0.012899 HDD
	0.029024 Trend

		Normal Degree				
	Normal Degree	Days for Prior	HDD Weighted		1 Month	12 Months
	Days (HDD)	Month (HDD-1)	Trend		UPC	Ended UPC
Dec-14	952	672	22		14.1160	88.4202
Jan-15 Feb-15	1,120	95Z 1 120	26		16.5523	88.4592
Mar-15	805	962	19		12.2844	88.5208
Apr-15	414	805	10		6.8879	88.5352
May-15	164	414	4		3.2787	88.5409
Jun-15	30	164	1		1.3217	88.5419
Jul-15	0	30	0		0.8411	88.5419
Sep-15	83	16	2	FY 15	1.0423	88 5454
Oct-15	350	83	9		5.6324	88.5576
Nov-15	672	350	16		10.1608	88.5810
Dec-15	952	672	23		14.1492	88.6141
Jan-16 Eob-16	1,120	952	28		16.5913	88.6531
Mar-16	902 805	962	24		12 3124	88 7147
Apr-16	414	805	10		6.9023	88.7291
May-16	164	414	4		3.2844	88.7348
Jun-16	30	164	1		1.3227	88.7359
Jul-16	0	30	0		0.8411	88.7359
Sep-16	83	16	2	FY 16	1.0430	88 7393
Oct-16	350	83	9		5.6446	88.7515
Nov-16	672	350	17		10.1842	88.7749
Dec-16	952	672	25		14.1823	88.8081
Jan-17 Fob 17	1,120	952	29		16.6304	88.8471
Mar-17	902 805	962	25		12 3404	88,9086
Apr-17	414	805	11		6.9167	88.9230
May-17	164	414	4		3.2901	88.9287
Jun-17	30	164	1		1.3238	88.9298
Jul-17	0	30	0		0.8411	88.9298
Sep-17	10	16	2	FY 17	1.0430	88 9332
Oct-17	350	83	9		5.6568	88.9454
Nov-17	672	350	18		10.2076	88.9688
Dec-17	952	672	26		14.2155	89.0020
Jan-18	1,120	952	30		16.6694	89.0410
Mar-18	962 805	1,120	20		12 3685	89.0745
Apr-18	414	805	11		6.9311	89.1170
May-18	164	414	5		3.2958	89.1227
Jun-18	30	164	1		1.3248	89.1237
Jul-18	0	30	0		0.8411	89.1237
Aug-18 Sep-18	16	16	0	EV 18	1.0441	89.1243
Oct-18	350	83	10	1110	5.6690	89.1394
Nov-18	672	350	19		10.2310	89.1628
Dec-18	952	672	27		14.2486	89.1959
Jan-19	1,120	952	32		16.7084	89.2349
Mar-19	962 805	962	21		12 3965	89.2084
Apr-19	414	805	12		6.9455	89.3109
May-19	164	414	5		3.3016	89.3166
Jun-19	30	164	1		1.3259	89.3176
Jul-19	0	30	0		0.8411	89.3176
Sep-19	10	16	2	FY 19	1.0447	89.3162
Oct-19	350	83	10		5.6812	89.3333
Nov-19	672	350	20		10.2544	89.3567
Dec-19	952	672	28		14.2818	89.3898
Jan-20	1,120	952	33		16.7474	89.4289
Mar-20	962	1,120	28		14.0000	09.4024 89.4004
Apr-20	414	805	12		6.9600	89.5048
May-20	164	414	5		3.3073	89.5105
Jun-20	30	164	1		1.3269	89.5116

Regression Results:	0.824844 Constant
-	0.000543 HDD-1
	0.012899 HDD
	0.029024 Trend

		Normal Degree					
	Normal Degree	Days for Prior	HDD Weighted		1 Month	12 Months	
	Days (HDD)	Month (HDD-1)	Trend		UPC	Ended UPC	
Jul-20	0	30	0		0.8411	89.5116	
Aug-20	16	0	0		1.0453	89.5121	
Sep-20	83	16	3	FY 20	1.9771	89.5150	
Oct-20	350	83	11		5.6934	89.5272	
Nov-20	672	350	20		10.2778	89.5506	
Dec-20	952	672	29		14.3149	89,5838	
Jan-21	1,120	952	34		16.7864	89.6228	
Feb-21	962	1,120	30		14.7015	89.6563	
Mar-21	805	962	25		12.4526	89.6843	
Apr-21	414	805	13		6.9744	89.6987	
Mav-21	164	414	5		3.3130	89,7045	
Jun-21	30	164	1		1.3280	89.7055	
Jul-21	0	30	0		0.8411	89,7055	
Aug-21	16	0	1		1.0458	89,7061	
Sep-21	83	16	3	FY 21	1.9800	89,7090	
Oct-21	350	83	11		5,7056	89,7211	
Nov-21	672	350	21		10.3013	89.7445	
Dec-21	952	672	30		14.3481	89.7777	
Jan-22	1,120	952	36		16.8254	89.8167	
Feb-22	962	1,120	31		14.7350	89.8502	
Mar-22	805	962	26		12.4806	89.8783	Historic Test Year Annualized FY 21
Apr-22	414	805	13		6.9888	89.8927	
May-22	164	414	5		3.3187	89.8984	
Jun-22	30	164	1		1.3290	89.8994	
Jul-22	0	30	0		0.8411	89.8994	
Aug-22	16	0	1		1.0464	89.9000	
Sep-22	83	16	3	FY 22	1.9829	89.9029	
Oct-22	350	83	11		5.7178	89.9151	
Nov-22	672	350	22		10.3247	89.9385	
Dec-22	952	672	31		14.3813	89.9716	
Jan-23	1,120	952	37		16.8644	90.0106	
Feb-23	962	1,120	32		14.7685	90.0441	
Mar-23	805	962	27		12.5087	90.0722	Future Test Year Annualized FY 22
Apr-23	414	805	14		7.0032	90.0866	
May-23	164	414	5		3.3244	90.0923	
Jun-23	30	164	1		1.3301	90.0934	
Jul-23	0	30	0		0.8411	90.0934	
Aug-23	16	0	1		1.0469	90.0939	
Sep-23	83	16	3	FY 23	1.9858	90.0968	Fully Projected Future Test Year FY 23
Oct-23	350	83	12		5.7300	90.1090	
Nov-23	672	350	23		10.3481	90.1324	
Dec-23	952	672	33		14.4144	90.1656	
Jan-24	1,120	952	38		16.9034	90.2046	
Feb-24	962	1,120	33		14.8020	90.2381	
Mar-24	805	962	28		12.5367	90.2661	Fully Projected Future Test Year Annualized FY 23

SUMMARY OUTPUT

on Statistics	0.992187643	0.984436318	0.984171028	0.724679355	180
Regressic	Multiple R	R Square	Adjusted R Square	Standard Error	Observations

ANOVA

	df	SS	SM	4	gnificance	Ц		
Regression	3	5846.282	1948.761	3710.793	8.5E-159			
Residual	176	92.42819	0.52516					
Total	179	5938.71						
	Coefficients	andard Err	t Stat	P-value 1	_ower 95%l	Jpper 95%	ower 95.0%	oper 95.0%
Intercept	0.824844221	0.083456	9.883613	1.33E-18	0.660141	0.989547	0.660141	0.989547
X Variable 1	0.000542608	0.000233	2.325247	0.021199	8.21E-05	0.001003	8.21E-05	0.001003
X Variable 2	0.01289912	0.000402	32.10534	1.72E-75	0.012106	0.013692	0.012106	0.013692
X Variable 3	0.029024231	0.015242	1.904178	0.058518	-0.00106	0.059106	-0.00106	0.059106

UGI Ut esidential S alculation o 12-Months

Description	Number of Bills	Pro Forma Consumption Mcf	5	irrent Rate	Current Revenue	Proposed Rate	Proposed Revenue	Proposed Revenue Change	% Change
	(A)	(B)	3	(C)	(D)	(E)	(F)	(6)	
Heating Customer Charge Jeating Distribution Charges	272,784	435.108	ላ ላ	14.60 4.1104	\$ 3,982,646 \$ 1.788.468	\$ 19.95 \$ 4.9996	\$ 5,442,041 \$ 2.175.366	\$ 1,459,394 \$ 386.898	
ng Customer Charge	7,120,800		ŝ	14.60	\$ 103,963,680	\$ 19.95	\$ 142,059,960	\$ 38,096,280	
ias Customer Charge	5,988		Ŷ	28.25	\$ 169,164	\$ 28.25	\$ 169,164	\$	
ng Distribution Charges		51,571,875	Ŷ	4.1104	\$ 211,981,035	\$ 4.9996	\$ 257,838,746	\$ 45,857,711	
	Average								
ise in Usage per Customer - Post FPFTY	2.283	1,346,059	ŝ	4.1104	\$ 5,532,841	\$ 4.9996	\$ 6,729,757		
any Claim	87.8138	51,571,875 52,617,624	м ч	4.1104	\$ 211,981,035 \$ 217,512,875	\$ 4.9996	\$ 257,838,746 \$ 264,565,503		
neaung	20.020	468,118,20	ሱ	4.1104	0/0'EIC'/IZ ¢	4.440	202,202,402 ¢		
Tax Adjustment Surcharge (STAS) - Rider A				0.00%	¢	0.00%	, \$,	\$ '	
ase in Usage per Customer - Post FPFTY		1,150,450	Ŷ	6.2767	\$ 7,221,028	\$ 6.2767	\$ 7,221,028		
iased Gas Costs (PGC) - Rider B	0.85468	45,375,042 46,525,492	Ŷ	6.2767	\$ 284,805,526 \$ 292,026,554	\$ 6.2767	\$ 284,805,526 \$ 292,026,554	۰ ب	
hant Function Charge (MFC) - Rider D		45,375,042		2.17%	\$ 6,180,280	2.279	6,465,085 ¢	\$ 284,806	
tment		1,150,450			156,696		163,917		
1FC		46,525,492		2.17%	\$ 6,336,976	2.279	6,629,003 ¢		
rocurement Charge (GPC) - Rider E		45,375,042	Ŷ	0.0660	\$ 2,994,753	\$ 0.0660	\$	ج	
tment		1,150,450			75,930		75,930		
PC		46,525,492	Ŷ	0.0660	\$ 3,070,682	\$ 0.0660	\$ 3,070,682		
sal Service Program (USP) - Rider F	0.92736	49,233,290	Ŷ	0.3562	\$ 17,536,898	\$ 0.3562	\$ 17,536,898	ج	
tment		244,187			86,979		86,979		
SP		49,477,477	Ŷ	0.3562	\$ 17,623,877	\$ 0.3562	\$ 17,623,877		
/ Efficiency & Conservation Rider (EEC) - Rider G		52,006,983	Ŷ	0.2077	\$ 10,801,850	\$ 0.2077	\$ 10,801,850	\$ '	
ment		1,346,059			279,576		279,576		
Q		53,353,042	Ŷ	0.2077	\$ 11,081,427	\$ 0.2077	\$ 11,081,427		
oution System Improvement Charge (DSIC) - Rider I				5.00%	\$ 17,969,939	0.00	, \$ °	\$ (17,969,939)	
tment		,			306,601				
sic		i		5.00%	\$ 18,276,540	0.00%	<u>,</u> \$ <u>,</u>	\$ (18,276,540)	
any Claim	7,393,584	52,006,983			\$ 662,174,239		\$ 730,289,390		
ljustment		1,346,059			\$ 13,659,652		\$ 14,557,188		
· Rates R/RT	7,393,584	53,353,042			\$ 675,833,892		\$ 744,846,578	\$ 69,012,686	10.2%
ased Gas Costs					\$ (284.805.526)		\$ (284.805.526		

\$ 460,041,052

\$ 391,028,365

32 Total Distribution Costs

I&E Statement No. 5-SR Witness: Esyan A. Sakaya

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Surrebuttal Testimony

of

Esyan A. Sakaya

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

RATE BASE UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE ANNUAL DEPRECIATION ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
RATE BASE – COMPANY REVISION	2
UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE – COMPANY REVISION	
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION – COMPANY REVISION	4
I&E RATE BASE RECOMMENDATION – REVISION	5
UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE – I&E REVISION	5
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION – I&E REVISION	
ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE – I&E REVISION	17

1 INTRODUCTION

2	Q.	WOULD YOU PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS?
3	А.	My name is Esyan A. Sakaya. My business address is 400 North Street, Harrisburg,
4		PA 17120.
5		
6	Q.	ARE YOU THE SAME ESYAN A. SAKAYA THAT SUBMITTED DIRECT
7		TESTIMONY ON APRIL 15, 2022?
8	A.	Yes. I submitted I&E Statement No. 5 and I&E Exhibit No. 5.
9		
10	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
11	А.	The purpose of my surrebuttal testimony is to update and correct the
12		recommendations and schedules contain in my direct testimony, address the rebuttal
13		testimonies and exhibits of Vivian K. Ressler (UGI St. No. 3-R) regarding rate base,
14		annual depreciation, and accumulated depreciation expense, and the rebuttal
15		testimony of Vicky Schappell (UGI St. No. 5-R) concerning utility plant in service in
16		relation to UGI Utilities, Inc Gas Division's ("UGI" or "Company") request for an
17		annual increase in operating revenue of approximately \$82,700,000 using the Fully
18		Projected Future Test Year ("FPFTY") ending September 30, 2023.
19		
20	Q.	DOES YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY INCLUDE AN EXHIBIT?
21	А.	Yes, I&E Exhibit 5-SR will accompany my surrebuttal testimony. However, some
22		exhibit references will be directed towards I&E Exhibit No. 5, which was the Exhibit
23		to accompany my Direct Testimony identified as I&E Statement No. 5.

<u>RATE BASE – COMPANY REVISION</u>

2	Q.	WHAT WAS THE COMPANY'S RATE BASE CLAIM IN THE INITIAL
3		FILING?
4	A.	The Company claimed a rate base of \$3,169,023,000 (UGI Book V, Ex. A - Fully
5		Projected, Sch. C-1, ln. 9 and I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 1, column B, p. 1, line 12).
6		
7	Q.	DID THE COMPANY REVISE ITS RATE BASE CLAIM IN REBUTTAL
8		TESTIMONY?
9	A.	Yes. The Company claimed a revised rate base of \$3,176,596,000 in its Rebuttal
10		Testimony, which is an increase of \$7,573,000 (\$3,176,596,000 -\$3,169,023,000)
11		over the claim in the original filing (UGI Gas - Exhibit A - FPFTY -Rebuttal,
12		Schedule A-1, column 3, line 9).
13		
14	Q.	WHAT WAS THE BASIS FOR UGI'S \$7,573,000 INCREASE IN RATE BASE?
15	А.	UGI's adjusted rate base claims shown in UGI Exhibit A – FPFTY, Schedule C-1
16		were additions and subtractions to plant in service, accumulated depreciation,
17		working capital, gas inventory, accumulated deferred income taxes, customer
18		deposits, and materials and supplies. I will address the plant in service and
19		accumulated depreciation below.

1 <u>UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE – COMPANY REVISION</u>

2	Q.	WHAT DID THE COMPANY INITIALLY CLAIM FOR UTILITY PLANT IN
3		SERVICE AT THE END OF EACH TEST YEAR AND HOW MUCH NET
4		PLANT WAS PROJECTED TO BE ADDED IN EACH TEST YEAR?
5	A.	The Company's initial utility plant in service claim for the FTY ending September 30,
6		2022 was \$4,597,404,000 (UGI Ex. A - Future, Sch. C-1, ln. 1). The Company's
7		utility plant in service claim for the FPFTY ending September 30, 2023 is
8		\$5,042,025,000 (UGI Ex. A - Fully Projected, Sch. C-1, In. 1). Accordingly, the total
9		net plant additions from the FTY to the FPFTY is \$444,621,000 (\$5,042,025,000 -
10		\$4,597,404,000) (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 2, column B, line 13 and column F line 13).
11		The Company's utility plant in service claim for the HTY ended September 30, 2021
12		was \$4,247,028,000 (UGI Ex A – HTY, Sch. C-1, line 1). Accordingly, the total net
13		plant additions from the HTY to the FTY is \$350,376,000 (\$4,597,404,000 -
14		\$4,247,028,000) (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 2, column B, line 13 and I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch.
15		4, column D, line 17).
16		
17	Q.	WHAT UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE DID THE COMPANY CLAIM IN
18		REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
19	A.	In rebuttal testimony, the Company claimed \$5,041,354,000 of total utility plant in
20		service for the FPFTY (UGI Gas Ex. A - FPFTY Rebuttal, Sch. C-1). This is a
21		reduction of \$671,000 (\$5,042,025,000 - \$5,041,354,000) and is shown on UGI Gas
22		Ex. A - Rebuttal, Sch. C-2, page 3, Column 3, line 8.

1	Q.	WHAT WAS THE BASIS FOR UGI'S \$671,000 REDUCTION TO PLANT IN
2		SERVICE?
3	A.	UGI reduced the projected level of Mains by approximately \$671,000 (UGI Gas
4		Exhibit A - Rebuttal Schedule C-2 Column 4, line 40, page 5). The Company
5		attributes this reduction in Mains to adjustments made in both the FTY and FPFTY to
6		three projects that are estimated to be completed after the end of the FPFTY (UGI
7		Gas Ex. VKR-1R).
8		
9	<u>ACC</u>	CUMULATED DEPRECIATION – COMPANY REVISION
10	Q.	WHAT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION DID THE COMPANY CLAIM IN
11		THE ORIGINAL FILING?
12	A.	In the original filing, the Company claimed \$1,318,560 of accumulated depreciation
13		as of September 30, 2023 (UGI Volume V, Sch. A-1, p. 1, line 2).
14		
15	Q.	WHAT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION DID THE COMPANY CLAIM IN
16		REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
17	A.	In its rebuttal testimony, the Company lowered the accumulated depreciation to
18		\$1,318,079 as of September 30, 2023 (UGI Ex. A – Rebuttal, Sch. A-1, p. 1, line 2).
19		This \$481,000 reduction (\$1,318,560 – \$1,318,079) is the result of changes to the
20		original cost of account 376 and 378 that impacted the annual depreciation expense,
21		corrections to a service life for Allowance for Funds Used for Construction
22		(AFUDC), and a re-allocation of depreciation expense to other UGI gas operations,
23		(UGI FPFTY Rebuttal Ex. A, Sch. C-3, p. 5, lines 40-41).

1 **I&E RATE BASE RECOMMENDATION – REVISION** 2 **Q**. WHAT DID YOU RECOMMEND IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY 3 **CONCERNING PLANT IN SERVICE?** 4 A. In direct testimony, I recommended that UGI's rate base be reduced from 5 \$3,169,023,000 to \$3,023,151,000, which was a reduction of \$145,872,000 (I&E Ex. 6 No. 5, Sch. 1, p. 1, line 12). 7 8 О. **DO YOU WISH TO REVISE YOUR RECOMMENDATION IN THIS** 9 SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY? 10 Yes. After submitting my direct testimony, I became aware of an error in my A. 11 calculation for the accumulated depreciation for 2023. Therefore, I recalculated the 12 accumulated depreciation for 2023 and incorporated this correction into my revised 13 recommendation described below. I have also incorporated the Company's revisions 14 to plant in service and accumulated depreciation described above in my revised 15 recommendation. My recommendation is to reduce the revised rate base of 16 \$3,176,596,000 to \$3,022,865,000, which is a reduction of \$153,740,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5-SR, Sch. 1, p. 1, columns D-F, line 12). 17 18 19 **UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE – I&E REVISION** 20 О. WHAT DID YOU RECOMMEND IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY 21 **CONCERNING PLANT IN SERVICE?** 22 A. In direct testimony, I recommended that UGI's \$5,042,025,000 of plant in service be 23 reduced to \$4,904,376,000, which was a reduction \$137,649,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 24 1, p. 1, line 1).

1 Q. WHAT REDUCTION TO PLANT IN SERVICE DO YOU NOW 2 **RECOMMEND?** 3 A. As a result of the Company revising its projected plant in service, I now 4 recommended that total plant in service be reduced by \$137,539,000. This 5 recommendation reduces the Company's rebuttal utility plant in service claim from 6 \$5,041,354,000 to \$4,903,815,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5, Schedule 1-SR, p. 1, line 1, 7 columns D-F). A breakdown of the adjustment for each plant category is shown on 8 I&E Ex. No. 5-SR, Sch. 2, page 1. On page 1, the 2022 plant additions and 9 adjustments are shown under columns A-D, and the plant additions and adjustments 10 for both 2022 and 2023 are shown under columns E-H. The FPFTY alone is shown 11 on I&E Ex. No. 5-SR, Sch. 2, page 2. 12 13 О. WHAT WAS THE BASIS FOR YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO REDUCE 14 **PLANT IN SERVICE?** 15 As stated in my direct testimony, in the last two rate cases the Company has a A. 16 demonstrated history of over projecting plant relative to what has actually been placed 17 in service (I&E St. No. 5, pp. 5-6). On average, during the 2018 and 2020 cases, the 18 Company only completed 83.694% of FPFTY gas plant and 67.669% of FPFTY 19 common plant (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 3, lines 3 and 6).

20

Q. DID THE COMPANY DISAGREE WITH YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO
 REDUCE FTY AND FPFTY PLANT IN SERVICE PROJECTIONS?

23 A. Yes, for several reasons. First, the Company claims that the proper comparison is to

1		budgeted plant additions and not plant projected in past rate cases and that I&E
2		disregarded UGI's budgeting process. Second, the Company claims that the
3		appropriate time to evaluate the proper comparison of plant placed into service is to
4		compare 3 to 5 years. Third, the Company attempts to dispute the use of a two-year
5		period during the Covid-19 pandemic. Fourth, the Company believes the
6		Commission should consider inflation in this case when evaluating past performance.
7		Fifth, the Company claims that my methodology does not take into considerations
8		adjustments made in settlements. Sixth, the Company believes that I did not properly
9		account for retirements. Seventh, the Company believes that I improperly separated
10		gas plant and common plant in my analysis. Finally, the Company disputes that it
11		earned a return on plant that it did not place into service (UGI St. No. 5-R, pp. 5-7).
12		
13	Q.	WHAT METHODOLOGY DID YOU USE IN YOUR FTY AND FPFTY
14		PLANT PROJECTIONS?
15	А.	The methodology I used is called "variance analysis." It is an accounting
16		methodology that compares predicted and actual outcomes. The details of this
17		analysis are described in my direct testimony and the results are summarized on I&E
18		Ex. No. 5, Sch. 1, pp 1-2.
19		
20	0	WHAT IS VARIANCE AND HOW DOES IT APPLY TO UTILITY
	Q.	
21	Q.	ACCOUNTING?
21 22	Q. A.	ACCOUNTING? Variance in accounting is the difference between a forecasted amount and the actual

1		Dockets R-2018-3006814 and R-2020-3015162, UGI did not meet or exceed its
2		initially forecast projections. The actuals for the past two rate cases were below
3		forecast. Because of these inaccurate forecasts, the Company can unfairly pass its
4		claimed plant additions to ratepayers through the established revenue requirement
5		without placing the claimed plant into service.
6		
7	Q.	WHAT DID THE COMPANY CLAIM CONCERNING THE AMOUNT OF
8		PLANT COMPLETED OVER THE PAST FIVE YEARS?
9	A.	The Company claims that it completed 98.0% of plant budgeted over the past five
10		years (UGI St. 5-R, p. 10 and Book 3, Exhibit VAS-2).
11		
12	Q.	SHOULD COMPANY "BUDGETED" AMOUNTS BE USED TO DETERMINE
13		
14		THE PERCENTAGE OF PLANT COMPLETED AS SUGGESTED BY THE
		THE PERCENTAGE OF PLANT COMPLETED AS SUGGESTED BY THE COMPANY?
15	A.	THE PERCENTAGE OF PLANT COMPLETED AS SUGGESTED BY THE COMPANY? No, for several reasons. First, rates are not based upon "budgeted" plant additions,
15 16	A.	THE PERCENTAGE OF PLANT COMPLETED AS SUGGESTED BY THE COMPANY? No, for several reasons. First, rates are not based upon "budgeted" plant additions, rates are based upon FTY and FPFTY plant claimed in base rate filings. They are two
15 16 17	A.	THE PERCENTAGE OF PLANT COMPLETED AS SUGGESTED BY THE COMPANY? No, for several reasons. First, rates are not based upon "budgeted" plant additions, rates are based upon FTY and FPFTY plant claimed in base rate filings. They are two different things. In the 2019 base rate case, the Company projected it would add
15 16 17 18	A.	THE PERCENTAGE OF PLANT COMPLETED AS SUGGESTED BY THE COMPANY? No, for several reasons. First, rates are not based upon "budgeted" plant additions, rates are based upon FTY and FPFTY plant claimed in base rate filings. They are two different things. In the 2019 base rate case, the Company projected it would add \$405,430,000 in 2021. ¹ However, as shown on UGI Ex. VAS-2 the "budgeted"
15 16 17 18 19	A.	THE PERCENTAGE OF PLANT COMPLETED AS SUGGESTED BY THE COMPANY? No, for several reasons. First, rates are not based upon "budgeted" plant additions, rates are based upon FTY and FPFTY plant claimed in base rate filings. They are two different things. In the 2019 base rate case, the Company projected it would add \$405,430,000 in 2021. ¹ However, as shown on UGI Ex. VAS-2 the "budgeted" additions for 2021 were only \$389,008,000. Therefore, the Company is claiming, and
 15 16 17 18 19 20 	A.	THE PERCENTAGE OF PLANT COMPLETED AS SUGGESTED BY THE COMPANY? No, for several reasons. First, rates are not based upon "budgeted" plant additions, rates are based upon FTY and FPFTY plant claimed in base rate filings. They are two different things. In the 2019 base rate case, the Company projected it would add \$405,430,000 in 2021. ¹ However, as shown on UGI Ex. VAS-2 the "budgeted" additions for 2021 were only \$389,008,000. Therefore, the Company is claiming, and potentially recovering, much more in base rate cases than what it is actually
15 16 17 18 19 20 21	A.	THE PERCENTAGE OF PLANT COMPLETED AS SUGGESTED BY THE COMPANY? No, for several reasons. First, rates are not based upon "budgeted" plant additions, rates are based upon FTY and FPFTY plant claimed in base rate filings. They are two different things. In the 2019 base rate case, the Company projected it would add \$405,430,000 in 2021. ¹ However, as shown on UGI Ex. VAS-2 the "budgeted" additions for 2021 were only \$389,008,000. Therefore, the Company is claiming, and potentially recovering, much more in base rate cases than what it is actually budgeting. Second, budgets can be adjusted as time progresses and there is no

¹ UGI Book 6, p. II-10, at Docket R-2019-3015162

1		adjusted. Finally, a review of a UGI's standard data requests for the last three rate
2		cases at Dockets R-2018-3006814, R-2019-3015162 and R-2021-3030218 reflects a
3		93% actual completion in September of 2019 at Docket R-2018-3006814 ² . When
4		comparing the plant claimed at Docket R-2018-3006814 to amount being claimed at
5		Docket R-2019-3015162 only 85% actual plant was completed in September of
6		2020 ³ . Finally, when comparing the actual plant placed into service from Docket R-
7		2019-3015162 into Docket R-2021-3030218 only of 89% actual plant was completed
8		in September of 2021. ⁴ Therefore, utilizing a variable changing "budget" amount for
9		comparison instead of a fixed rate base claim is not valid and should be discarded for
10		comparison purposes.
1 1		
11		
11	Q.	IS COMPARING THE COMPANY'S PERCENT OF BUDGETED PLANT
11 12 13	Q.	IS COMPARING THE COMPANY'S PERCENT OF BUDGETED PLANT COMPLETED A VALID COMPARISON?
11 12 13 14	Q. A.	IS COMPARING THE COMPANY'S PERCENT OF BUDGETED PLANT COMPLETED A VALID COMPARISON? No. As described above, and in my direct testimony, the Commission should only
11 12 13 14 15	Q. A.	IS COMPARING THE COMPANY'S PERCENT OF BUDGETED PLANT COMPLETED A VALID COMPARISON? No. As described above, and in my direct testimony, the Commission should only consider the actual plant in service compared to the amount of plant claimed in the
11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. A.	IS COMPARING THE COMPANY'S PERCENT OF BUDGETED PLANT COMPLETED A VALID COMPARISON? No. As described above, and in my direct testimony, the Commission should only consider the actual plant in service compared to the amount of plant claimed in the prior rate cases. The Company's "budgeted" plant amounts can be adjusted over time
11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. A.	IS COMPARING THE COMPANY'S PERCENT OF BUDGETED PLANT COMPLETED A VALID COMPARISON? No. As described above, and in my direct testimony, the Commission should only consider the actual plant in service compared to the amount of plant claimed in the prior rate cases. The Company's "budgeted" plant amounts can be adjusted over time and may not reflect what was claimed in past cases. On the other hand, the
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. A.	IS COMPARING THE COMPANY'S PERCENT OF BUDGETED PLANT COMPLETED A VALID COMPARISON? No. As described above, and in my direct testimony, the Commission should only consider the actual plant in service compared to the amount of plant claimed in the prior rate cases. The Company's "budgeted" plant amounts can be adjusted over time and may not reflect what was claimed in past cases. On the other hand, the Company's FPFTY plant projections amounts cannot be changed which is why that
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 	Q. A.	IS COMPARING THE COMPANY'S PERCENT OF BUDGETED PLANT COMPLETED A VALID COMPARISON? No. As described above, and in my direct testimony, the Commission should only consider the actual plant in service compared to the amount of plant claimed in the prior rate cases. The Company's "budgeted" plant amounts can be adjusted over time and may not reflect what was claimed in past cases. On the other hand, the Company's FPFTY plant projections amounts cannot be changed which is why that should be used for comparison. Moreover, the FPFTY amounts from the prior two
 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 	Q. A.	IS COMPARING THE COMPANY'S PERCENT OF BUDGETED PLANT COMPLETED A VALID COMPARISON? No. As described above, and in my direct testimony, the Commission should only consider the actual plant in service compared to the amount of plant claimed in the prior rate cases. The Company's "budgeted" plant amounts can be adjusted over time and may not reflect what was claimed in past cases. On the other hand, the Company's FPFTY plant projections amounts cannot be changed which is why that should be used for comparison. Moreover, the FPFTY amounts from the prior two cases are what the Company actually sought to recover from ratepayers and are a

UGI Book 2, SDR-RR-15, at Docket R-2018-3006814

UGI Book 2, SDR-RR-15, at Docket R-2019-3015162 UGI Book 2, SDR-RR-15, at Docket R-2021-3030128

1	Q.	WHAT DID THE COMPANY CLAIM CONCERNING THE TIME PERIODS
2		COVERED BY I&E'S ANALYSIS?
3	A.	The Company believes my two-year analysis is not long enough to make the plant
4		comparisons valid. In addition to this, UGI mentions past rate base cases of other
5		companies that made use of a regulatory requirement that required a longer time
6		period to justify plant additions (UGI St. No. 5-R, pp. 7-9).
7		
8	Q.	ARE THE COMPANY'S CONCERNS REGARDING THE SHORTER TIME
9		PERIOD VALID?
10	A.	No. I believe a two-year review is sufficient to evaluate the Company's success at
11		meeting FPFTY projections. I am not aware of any minimum review period for
12		comparing plant additions.
13		
14	Q.	DID THE COMPANY PROVIDE A LONGER COMPARISON OF FTY AND
15		FPFTY PLANT IN SERVICE THAT WOULD DEMONSTRATE YOUR
16		ANALYSIS IS UNRELIABLE?
17	A.	No. If the Company had evidence that over the last three or more years or cases, that
18		it actually installed all the projected FTY and FPFTY plant, it should have provided
19		this analysis to support its allegation. However, the Company failed to provide this
20		analysis, which leads me to believe that including more years would have produced
21		similar results.

1	Q.	WHAT ADDITIONAL TESTIMONY DOES THE COMPANY PROVIDE TO
2		ATTEMPT TO SUPPORT ITS CLAIM THAT THREE YEARS IS THE ONLY
3		VALID TIME PERIOD TO EVALUATE THE LEVEL OF PLANT
4		INSTALLED?
5	А.	The Company claims it is important that the 52 Pa Code 53.53 filing requirement
6		requires a utility to provide a three-to-five-year comparison of measure of value to
7		determine the reasonableness of the projected measure of value while making no
8		reference to a two-year period comparison (UGI St. 5-R, pp. 8-9).
9		
10	Q.	SHOULD THE COMMISSION BASE ITS DETERMINATION OF PLANT IN
11		SERVICE ON ONLY ONE FILING REQUIREMENT?
12	А.	No, for two reasons. First, filing requirements simply describe what a utility must
13		provide in a rate case. There is nothing in this filing requirement that limits, directs,
14		or instructs the Commission that it must makes its decision based solely on this filing
15		requirement. Second, as described above, if the Company had evidence to support its
16		claim that over the past 5 years, it completed more plant than projected in the FTY or
17		FPFTY, it should have provided it. Therefore, the claim that the Commission is
18		somehow limited to the data originally provided in 52 Pa Code 53.53 is incorrect.
19		
20	Q.	WHAT DOES THE COMPANY CLAIM CONCERNING PANDEMIC
21		DELAYS?
22	A.	The Company believes my recommendation should be rejected because the time-
23		period I evaluated includes time during the Covid-19 pandemic, and despite the

pandemic, it still completed 98% of budgeted plant additions over the past five years (UGI St. No. 5-R, p. 10).

3

2

4 Q. WHY IS THIS ARGUMENT INVALID?

5 Again, the Company erroneously believes the Commission should compare A. 6 "budgeted" plant additions to actual plant additions as opposed to those plant 7 additions claimed for rate recovery in base rate cases. As described above, this 8 comparison has no value and is substantially misleading relative to what the Company 9 requested for inclusion in rates. To further respond, a review of current events in the 10 news indicates that a continuation of supply chain difficulties, hiring difficulties, and 11 availability of outside contractors as the result of the Covid-19 pandemic will persist 12 through the FTY and FPFTY, which will continue to impact the Company's ability to 13 complete plant addition projections.

14

15

5 Q. WHAT DOES THE COMPANY CLAIM CONCERNING INFLATION?

A. The Company claims that inflation has not been a factor in contracts up to the early
part of 2022 but will be from now on. The Company states that the higher inflated
contract costs are not included in the FTY or FPFTY plant projections but are now
reasonably known and measurable (UGI St. No. 5-R, p. 11-12).

20

21 Q. DOES INFLATION OR THE POSSIBILITY OF INFLATION MATTER?

A. No. If inflation increases the unit cost of investments, UGI can still invest the
original "budgeted" dollar amount, but less physical plant will be installed since the

unit price will increase. Therefore, the Company's claim that somehow inflation
negates the fact that they failed to invest in the level of FPFTY described in past rate
cases is not valid. Since my analysis was based on dollars of plant claimed for
addition in a rate case to dollars of plant actually added, the Company's attempt to
relate the shortfall to inflation is without merit. In fact, the higher cost of materials
and labor would have caused the Company to exceed its rate case projection if it had
achieved the actual physical plant project completion it had claimed in its rate cases.

8

9 Q. WHAT DOES THE COMPANY CLAIM CONCERNING THE LEVEL OF

10 PLANT IN RECENT CASES?

A. The Company believes that my recommendation is flawed because I did not consider
that in both the 2019 and 2020 Gas Base Rate Cases, the Company reduced its
initially filed total plant in service claims for the FPFTY downward, thus making it
appear UGI was less successful in installing plant in service than it actually was (UGI
St. No. 5-R, pp. 16-17).

16

17 Q. IS IT VALID TO ARGUE THAT MY METHODOLOGY IS FLAWED

BECAUSE PLANT ACCOUNTS WERE ADJUSTED IN PAST CASES?

19 A. No. First, the Company made only de minimis charges to its plant addition

20 projections during the rebuttal phases of the past two cases. Second, my

- 21 recommendation was based upon the original filing because I could not anticipate
- 22 future plant changes agreed to or proposed by the Company after the initial case was
- 23 filed. In addition, as described above, I incorporated the most recent plant additions
- and plant in service claims to establish my revised surrebuttal recommendation.

1	Q.	WHAT DOES THE COMPANY CLAIM CONCERNING THE LEVEL OF
2		RETIREMENTS IN THE CALCULATION OF THE PLANT PROJECTIONS?
3	A.	The Company believes that my methodology failed to properly account for all the
4		projected retirements (UGI St. No. 5-R, pp. 18-19).
5		
6	Q.	IS THIS A VALID ARGUMENT?
7	A.	No. First, my recommendation has been revised to properly account for retirements,
8		cost of removal, and salvage. My response to UGI-II-1 indicated a correction was
9		required, which as described above, is incorporated in my revised recommendation.
10		Second, retirements were properly adjusted to account for the fact that if plant is not
11		placed into service, retirements will not occur.
12		
13	Q.	WHAT DOES THE COMPANY CLAIM CONCERNING THE LEVEL OF
14		GAS PLANT AND COMMON PLANT?
15	A.	The Company believes that my methodology is flawed because I analyzed gas plant
16		and common plant separately. The Company claims that my analysis is flawed
17		because it does not budget plant that way, and recommends my methodology be
18		changed to account for this (UGI St. No. 5-R, pp. 18-19).
19		
20	Q.	PLEASE EXPLAIN WHY YOU ANALYZED GAS PLANT AND COMMON
21		PLANT SEPARATELY.
22	A.	I analyzed gas plant and common plant separately because I determined the
23		percentages of completed plant were different for each type of plant. In addition to

1		this, the Company provided exhibits showing annual accumulated depreciation, along
2		with a set of associated spreadsheets that provided a separate breakdown of gas and
3		common plant. The fact that the Company doesn't "budget" plant additions this way
4		is irrelevant. As described above, the amounts and how they are presented in a base
5		rate case is what should be considered. Since the Company separates gas plant and
6		common plant in rate cases, it is reasonable to separate gas plant and common plant
7		when evaluating the percent completion rate for each type. Therefore, it is not
8		necessary to revise my methodology and recalculate my recommendation as
9		suggested by the Company (I&E Exhibit No. 5-SR, Sch. 2, p, 1).
10		
11	Q.	WHAT DOES THE COMPANY CLAIM CONCERNING RETURN ON
12		PLANT NOT PLACED INTO SERVICE?
13	A.	The Company believes that since the cases were "black box" settlements they did not
14		earn the return they requested in those cases. Therefore, the Company believes that it
15		is incorrect to assert that it earned a return based upon the projected additions in each
16		case (UGI St. No. 5-R, pp. 22-23).
17		
18	Q.	PLEASE ADDRESS THE COMPANY'S ASSERTION THAT SINCE THESE
19		CASES WERE SETTLED IT DID NOT EARN A RETURN BASED UPON
20		PROJECTED ADDITIONS IN EACH CASE?
21	A.	In a black box settlement, because it is unlikely that all parties could agree on the
22		specific adjustments, the adjustments each party used to reach the agreed upon
23		revenue requirement are not specified. Therefore, the FTY and FPFTY plant that was

1		claimed is assumed to be embedded in the settlement as plant additions relate to
2		provision of safe and reliable service, so even if the Company earned a lower rate of
3		return than desired or claimed, that plant, which was presumed to be installed during
4		the impending rate year, does earn a return. In fact, the DSIC implementation
5		paragraph included in most settlements uses the Company's claimed FPFTY rate base
6		as the DSIC trigger point, which reinforces my position that claimed plant remains
7		intact, even in black box settlements.
8		
9	ACC	UMULATED DEPRECIATION – I&E REVISION
10	Q.	WHAT DID YOU RECOMMEND IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY
11		CONCERNING ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION?
12	А.	I recommended that accumulated depreciation be increased from \$1,318,560,000 to
13		\$1,326,783,000, which is an increase of \$8,223,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 1, p. 1, line
14		2). The rational for increasing accumulated depreciation was provided on I&E St.
15		No. 5, p. 14.
16		
17	Q.	DUE TO COMPANY AND I&E REVISIONS TO PLANT IN SERVICE,
18		WHAT ADJUSTMENT TO ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION DO YOU
19		RECOMMEND IN SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
20	А.	As described above, after my direct testimony was filed, I discovered and error in my
21		calculation. Correcting this error together with incorporating the Company's
22		revisions described in its rebuttal testimony, results in me recommending that that the
23		Company's revised accumulated depreciation be increased from \$1,318,079,000 to

1		\$1,334,279,000 which is an increase of \$16,200,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5-SR, Sch. 1, p. 1,
2		columns D, E, and F, line 2). The accumulated depreciation by account is shown on
3		I&E Ex. No. 5-SR. Sch. 3, pp. 1-2 column F, lines 1-134).
4		
5	Q.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$1,334,279,000 ACCUMULATED
6		DEPRECIATION FOR THE FPFTY?
7	A.	After reducing the plant in service in the FTY as described above, I recalculated the
8		annual depreciation expense for the FTY. The recalculated annual depreciation
9		expense was then brought forward to determine the accumulated depreciation at the
10		beginning of the FPFTY. Then I continued the same adjustments in the FPFTY to
11		calculate the accumulated depreciation in the FPFTY to arrive at the \$1,334,279 000
12		(I&E Ex. No. 5-SR, Sch. 3, column F, line 134, p. 2).
13		
14	Q.	IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR ADJUSTMENTS TO PLANT IN
15		SERVICE, SHOULD ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ALSO BE
16		ADJUSTED?
17	А.	Yes. As described above, reducing plant in service in the FTY and FPFTY reduces
18		the accumulated depreciation that would be associated with these plant additions and
19		reduces retirements of existing plant.
20		
21	<u>ANN</u>	UAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE – I&E REVISION
22	Q.	WHAT DID YOU RECOMMEND IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY
23		CONCERNING ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE?
24	A.	I recommended that annual depreciation expense be reduced from \$133,908,000 to
1		\$130,242,000 which is a decrease of \$3,666,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5, Sch. 1, p. 2, line 1).
--	-----------------	---
2		The rational for decreasing annual depreciation expense was provided in I&E St. No.
3		5, p. 15.
4		
5	Q.	DUE TO COMPANY AND I&E REVISIONS TO PLANT IN SERVICE,
6		WHAT ADJUSTMENT TO ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE DO YOU
7		RECOMMEND IN SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
8	A.	I recommend that annual depreciation expense be decreased from \$133,134,000 to
9		\$129,641,000. This is a reduction of \$3,494,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5-SR, Sch. 1, p. 2,
10		columns B, C and D, line 1). The annual depreciation expense by account is shown
11		on I&E Ex. No. 5-SR. Sch. 3, p. 2, column D, line 1).
12		
13	Q.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$129,641,000 ANNUAL DEPRECIATION
13 14	Q.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$129,641,000 ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE FOR THE FPFTY?
13 14 15	Q. A.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$129,641,000 ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE FOR THE FPFTY? After adjusting the projected plant in service in the FTY and FPFTY as described
 13 14 15 16 	Q. A.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$129,641,000 ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE FOR THE FPFTY? After adjusting the projected plant in service in the FTY and FPFTY as described above, I recalculated the annual depreciation expense for the FPFTY based upon the
 13 14 15 16 17 	Q. A.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$129,641,000 ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE FOR THE FPFTY? After adjusting the projected plant in service in the FTY and FPFTY as described above, I recalculated the annual depreciation expense for the FPFTY based upon the same service lives the Company used for each plant account to arrive at the
 13 14 15 16 17 18 	Q. A.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$129,641,000 ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE FOR THE FPFTY? After adjusting the projected plant in service in the FTY and FPFTY as described above, I recalculated the annual depreciation expense for the FPFTY based upon the same service lives the Company used for each plant account to arrive at the \$129,641,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5-SR, Sch. 3, pp. 1-2, column I, lines 1-134).
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 	Q. A.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$129,641,000 ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE FOR THE FPFTY? After adjusting the projected plant in service in the FTY and FPFTY as described above, I recalculated the annual depreciation expense for the FPFTY based upon the same service lives the Company used for each plant account to arrive at the \$129,641,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5-SR, Sch. 3, pp. 1-2, column I, lines 1-134).
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 	Q. A. Q.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$129,641,000 ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE FOR THE FPFTY? After adjusting the projected plant in service in the FTY and FPFTY as described above, I recalculated the annual depreciation expense for the FPFTY based upon the same service lives the Company used for each plant account to arrive at the \$129,641,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5-SR, Sch. 3, pp. 1-2, column I, lines 1-134). IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR ADJUSTMENTS TO PLANT IN
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 	Q. A. Q.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$129,641,000 ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE FOR THE FPFTY? After adjusting the projected plant in service in the FTY and FPFTY as described above, I recalculated the annual depreciation expense for the FPFTY based upon the same service lives the Company used for each plant account to arrive at the \$129,641,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5-SR, Sch. 3, pp. 1-2, column I, lines 1-134). IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR ADJUSTMENTS TO PLANT IN SERVICE, SHOULD ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE ALSO BE
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 	Q. A. Q.	HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE \$129,641,000 ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE FOR THE FPFTY? After adjusting the projected plant in service in the FTY and FPFTY as described above, I recalculated the annual depreciation expense for the FPFTY based upon the same service lives the Company used for each plant account to arrive at the \$129,641,000 (I&E Ex. No. 5-SR, Sch. 3, pp. 1-2, column I, lines 1-134). IF THE COMMISSION ACCEPTS YOUR ADJUSTMENTS TO PLANT IN SERVICE, SHOULD ANNUAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE ALSO BE ADJUSTED?

- the annual depreciation expense that would be associated with these plant additions
 and reduced retirements of existing plant.
- 3

4 Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

5 A. Yes.

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Exhibits to Accompany the Surrebuttal Testimony

of

Esyan A. Sakaya

Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

Concerning:

RATE BASE UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE ANNUAL DEPRECIATION ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

		UGI Utili	ties Inc Gas Di	vision		
		Docket	No. R-2021-303(RATE BASE	0218		
			(\$1000)			
		Twelve Month	ıs Ending Septembe	ır 30, 2023		4
Line No.	Description	Company Original Filing	Rebuttal Adiustments	Company Rebutal	I&E Adiustments	1&F
	(Y)	(B)	(C)	(D)	(E)	(F)
1	Plant	\$5,042,025	-\$671	\$5,041,354	-\$137,539	\$4,903,815
0	Accumulated Depreciation	-\$1,318,560	\$481	-\$1,318,079	-\$16,200	-\$1,334,279
x 4	Net Plant In Service	\$3,723,465	-\$190	\$3,723,275	-\$153,740	\$3,569,535
	Additions					
5	Working Capital	\$62,148	-\$451	\$61,697	0\$	\$61,697
9	Gas Inventory	\$17,813	\$7,281	\$25,094	0\$	\$25,094
7	Materials And Supplies	\$15,707	\$852	\$16,559	\$0	\$16,559
œ	Total Additions	\$95,668	\$7,682	\$103,350	0\$	\$103,350
6	<u>Deductions</u> ADIC	\$628,510	\$ 85	\$628,595	0\$	\$628,595
10	Customer Deposits	\$21,600	-\$166	\$21,434	80	\$21,434
11	Total Deductions	\$650,110	-\$81	\$650,029	0\$	\$650,029
12	TOTAL RATE BASE	\$3,169,023	\$7,573	\$3,176,596	-\$153,740	\$3,022,856

I&E Exhibit SR-5 Schedule 1

I&E Exhibit No. 5-SR Schedule 1 Page 1 of 2

&E Exhibit No. 5-SR	chedule 1	age 2 of 2
I&	Sch	Pag

UGI Utilities Inc. - Gas Division Docket No. R-2021-3030218 Annual Depreciation Expense (\$1000) Twelve Months Ending September 30, 2023

I&E (D)	\$129,641
Adjustment (C)	-\$3,494
Company Rebutal (B)	\$133,135
Rebuttal Adjustments	-\$773
Company Original Filing	\$133,908
Description (A)	Depreciation Expense
Line No.	1

I&E Exhibit No. 5-SR Schedule 1 Page 2 of 2

						1&E Exhibit No. 5-SK Schedule 2 Page 1 of 2
as Division -3030218 nt In Service			-	UGI Utilities Inc Gas Docket No. R-2021-3 Comparison of 2023 Plant	Division 030218 In Service	
tember 30, 2022			Tw	elve Months Ending Septen	ıber 30, 2023	
Difference	I&E 2022 Recommended	Line No	Description	9033 Projection	Difference	I&E 2023 Recommended
(C)	(D)		(E)	(F)	(6)	(H)
			Gas Plant			
\$0	\$1,183,155	I	Production Plant	\$1,183,155	\$0	\$1,183,155
\$0	\$0	61	Storage Plant	80	\$0	\$0
\$0	\$50,093,995	ŝ	Transmission Plant	\$50,093,995	\$0	\$50,093,995
-\$55,205,249	\$4,027,703,955	4	Distribution Plant	\$4,440,975,186	-\$113,591,490	\$4,327,383,696
-\$2,621,048	205,484,794	ι¢	General Plant	\$239,323,590	-\$7,711,413	\$231,612,177
0\$	\$19,619,037	9	Non Depreciable Plant	\$19,619,037	\$0	\$19,619,037
-\$57,826,297	\$4,304,084,936	7	Total Gas Plant	\$4,751,194,963	-\$121,302,903	\$4,629,892,060
			Other Utility Plant			
-\$596,127	\$41,874,645	œ	Common	\$42,474,912	-\$597,466	\$41,877,446.8
2,183,269	\$196,557,199	6	Information Service	\$208, 384, 638	-\$2,346,533	206,038,105.1
\$0	-\$206,048	10	Computer System - Unite	\$41,177,032	-\$13,312,946	\$27,864,086.0
\$9,856	-\$1,835,940	Ξ	Less - Empire Yard	-\$1,877,110	\$19,980	-\$1,857,129.1
\$1,596,998	\$236,389,857	12	Total Other Utility Plant	\$290,159,473	-\$16,236,964	\$273,922,509

\$50,093,995 \$4,082,909,204 \$208,105,842 \$19,619,037

General Plant Non Depreciable Plant

Transmission Plant Distribution Plant

0 0 4 0 0 1

Storage Plant

\$1,183,155 \$0

<u>Gas Plant</u> Production Plant

\$4,361,911,233

1&F Evhibit No 5-SB

UGI Utilities Inc. - Gas Div Docket No. R-2021-3030 Comparison of 2022 Plant In Sc

Twelve Months Ending Septeml

2022 Projection

Description

Line No.

(¥

B

I&E Exhibit No. 5-SR Schedule 2 Page 1 of 2

\$4,903,814,568

-\$137, 539, 868

\$5,041,354,436

Total Rate Base

13

\$4,540,474,793

-\$56,229,298

\$4,596,704,091

\$42,470,773 \$194,373,930 -\$206,048 -\$1,845,796

Information Service Less - Reading Service Center Less - Empire Y ard

9 110 111

Other Utility Plant

Common

Total Gas Plant

ы

\$234,792,858

Total Other Utility Plant

1213

Total Plant In Service

Twelve Mo (A) Company Gas Plant Additions Company Common Plant Additions Company Net Plant Company Net Plant I&E Gas Plant Adjustment I&E Common Plant Adjustment I&E Net Adjustment	<pre>ison of 2023 Plant ADD onths Ending Septembe Plant (B) \$413,055,713 \$63,400,078 \$63,400,078 \$63,400,078 \$67,352,864 \$20,497,879 \$87,850,744</pre>	r 30, 2023 Retirements (C) -\$23,771,977 -\$32,011,489 -\$32,011,489 -\$3,876,259 -\$3,876,259 -\$2,663,917 -\$6,540,175	Net Plant (D) \$389,283,736 \$55,160,566 \$444,444,302 \$63,476,606 \$17,833,962 \$81,310,568
I&E Gas Plant Additions I&E Common Plant Additions	345,702,849	-\$19,895,718 - $\$5,575,595$	\$325,807,130 \$37.326.604
L&F. Net Plant	*12,02,177	-\$25.471.314	\$363 133 734

I&E Exhibit No. 5-SR Schedule 2 Page 2 of 2 I&E Exhibit No. 5-SR Schedule 2 Page 2 of 2 I&E Exhibit No. 5-SR Schedule 3

UGI UTHLITIES, INC. - GAS DIVISION

TABLE 1. ESTIMATED SURVIYOR CURVES, ORIGINAL COST, BOOK RESERVE AND

CALCULATED ANNUAL DEPRECIATION ACCRUALS RELATED TO GAS PLANT AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Discretizione TLL ACIUNC 0.011 <th>International and stational and and and and and and and and and and</th> <th></th> <th>Per ACCOUNT 6 (A) (1</th> <th>PROBABI reent RETIREMI las YEAR B) (C)</th> <th>ENT SURVIN (D) (D)</th> <th>VOR /E</th> <th>ORIGINAL COST (E)</th> <th>BOOK RESERVE (F)</th> <th>FUTURE BOOK ACCRUALS (G)</th> <th>CALCULATED ACCRUAL RATE (H)</th> <th>AMOUNT (I)</th>	International and stational and and and and and and and and and and		Per ACCOUNT 6 (A) (1	PROBABI reent RETIREMI las YEAR B) (C)	ENT SURVIN (D) (D)	VOR /E	ORIGINAL COST (E)	BOOK RESERVE (F)	FUTURE BOOK ACCRUALS (G)	CALCULATED ACCRUAL RATE (H)	AMOUNT (I)
CULTA NOTURE INTERPRETATION INTERPRETATION CULTA NOTURE INTERPRETATION CULTA NOTURE INTERPRETATION<	CALTA CATTAN (LANDA) TUAN CATTAN TUAN CATTAN </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>_</td> <td>ĺ)</td> <td>È</td> <td>ē</td> <td>Ì</td> <td>6</td>					_	ĺ)	È	ē	Ì	6
	District in the function 0.0 0.0 0.0	CTION PLANT MANUTE ACTURED			оу ат ша	antero.	Q e	011.020	011 020	000000	G
CAD IDENTITY LT ORTEN	C. OD ENTLY INVESTIGATION D. 0 0. 0. 0.00	PRODUCING LEAS	GAS FLANT STIE NEW EDIATION		55 55	- S0.5	au \$163,100	8162,135 \$162,135	\$965	0.0202	au 833
Construction L13 control R13 R	$ \begin{array}{c} CAMELIAMEST CONTRATIONAL INVECTIONAL INVECTI$	RIGHTS-OF-WAY			60	- R1	\$30,277	\$29,717	\$560	0.0595	\$18
		FIELD MEASURIN	(GAND REGULATING STATION STRUCTURES		TLY AC	CRUED	\$1,263	\$1,263	80	0.000	80
With Structures Distribution Distribution <thdistribution< th=""> Distributio</thdistribution<>	With a function Diversion Diversion <thdiversion< th=""> <</thdiversion<>	PRODUCTNG CAS	NES VELL CONSTRUCTION		DE LUY AC	CRUED	\$44,760 \$18 900	544,700 818 900	70	0.0000	00
	Interformation Interfo	PRODUCING GAS	WELLS - WELL FOURTPMENT		LLY AC	CRITED	824.441	824.441	8 S	0.000	s0
Distributions 21 0.0 <t< td=""><td>Distributions Distributions Distribu</td><td>FIELD LINES</td><td></td><td></td><td>47</td><td>- T0</td><td>\$750,689</td><td>\$726,792</td><td>\$23,897</td><td>0.1263</td><td>\$948</td></t<>	Distributions Distribu	FIELD LINES			47	- T0	\$750,689	\$726,792	\$23,897	0.1263	\$948
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Distribution Distribution<	FIELD MEASUR	ING AND REGULATING STATION EQUIPMENT		24	- 03	\$89,725	\$85,373	\$4,352	0.4269	\$383
	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	DRILLING AND	CLEANING EQUIPMENT		30	- S0.5	\$49,604	\$49,503	\$101	0.0323	\$16
CIUM FULM MONTERP 0 0.01	CION TULY MOTURE 0 35.01 55.01 51.01 0 0 0 </td <td>PRODUCTION PLAN</td> <td>L.</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>CLUED</td> <td>\$11,002 \$1,183,155</td> <td>\$11,002 \$1,222,396</td> <td>839,241</td> <td>-</td> <td>\$1,398</td>	PRODUCTION PLAN	L.			CLUED	\$11,002 \$1,183,155	\$11,002 \$1,222,396	839,241	-	\$1,398
0 55341 550	0 55.01 55.	GE PLANT WELL CONSTRU	CTION		FULLY ACC	CRUED*	80	-\$35,934	\$35,934	0.0000	80
NUMPUNENCY 10 10 800,100 540,4	N N	STORAGE PLANT					98	-\$35,934	\$35,934		80
OD INFORMENTS 0 101 81(2.51) 81	SUMPROVERSE 0 10 916.216 916.2	MISSION PLANT RIGHTS-OF-WA	×		02	- R4	S868.160	\$548.463	S319.697	1.3211	811.469
OBECLATING STATION RQUIPAIENT 0 E3 SUGTAGE E2.36.7.03 E2.36.7.03 <the2.37.03< th=""> E2.36.7.03 <the2.37.03< td="" th<=""><td>OBECLATING STATION RQUIPAIENT 0 EB SLOTAGE ELLID SLOTAGE LID SLOTAGE LID SLOTAGE NEULITATING STATION RQUIPAIENT 0 EB SLATAGE SLATAGE SLATAGE LID SLATAGE SLATAGE</td><td>STRUCTURES A</td><td>ND IMPROVEMENTS</td><td></td><td>30</td><td>- R1</td><td>\$162,216</td><td>\$147,551</td><td>\$14,665</td><td>0.6917</td><td>\$1,122</td></the2.37.03<></the2.37.03<>	OBECLATING STATION RQUIPAIENT 0 EB SLOTAGE ELLID SLOTAGE LID SLOTAGE LID SLOTAGE NEULITATING STATION RQUIPAIENT 0 EB SLATAGE SLATAGE SLATAGE LID SLATAGE	STRUCTURES A	ND IMPROVEMENTS		30	- R1	\$162,216	\$147,551	\$14,665	0.6917	\$1,122
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	ON RECUTING SYTON OUTPARY 0.0 $1.0.3$ $8.0.3.2.38$ $8.0.0.3.1.38$ $1.0.45$ $8.0.0.3$ 0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.	MAINS			70	- R3	\$39,074,497	\$22,345,709	\$16,728,788	1.1570	\$452,102
OPEN Control Summa Summa <t< td=""><td>OND OND Summary Summar</td><td>MEASURING A</td><td>ND REGULATING STATION EQUIPMENT</td><td></td><td>49</td><td>- R2</td><td>\$6,152,338 52,466,126</td><td>84,059,205</td><td>\$2,093,133 51 841 718</td><td>1.4635</td><td>\$90,040</td></t<>	OND OND Summary Summar	MEASURING A	ND REGULATING STATION EQUIPMENT		49	- R2	\$6,152,338 52,466,126	84,059,205	\$2,093,133 51 841 718	1.4635	\$90,040
DINENT S 01011 S 157,633 S 23.08 2.3.09 5.0.1 ANT S 0000NB S 01011 S 17,533 S 01012 S 17,533 S 0100 S 0101 ANT S 0000NB S 1,127 S 0000NB S 1,127 S 0101 S 1,127 S 0101 S 1,127 S 0101 S 1,127 S 0101 S 0,127 S 0,101	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	OTHER FOUL	PONEVT		3 2	- nu.5 - B2.5	8140.637	\$130.718 \$130.718	89.919	0.7637	81.074
		TESTING EQU	IPMENT		20	- R3	\$210,011	\$157,623	\$52,388	2.3399	\$4,914
M M	M M	TRANSMISSION P	LANT				\$50,093,995	\$29,633,687	\$20,460,308		\$658,505
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	AND INFORMENT AND INFO	BUTION PLANT RIGHTS-OF-V	X V		75	- R3	83 544 560	81 497 055	82.117.514	1 2013	845 770
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	MILY STEL. HOV TC TC TC TC TC TC TC TC TC TC	STRUCTURES	AND IMPROVEMENTS		50	- 50.5	\$5,554,376	\$3,342,999	\$2,211,377	1.5283	\$84,890
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	MAINS - PRIM	ARILY STEEL		73	- R2.5	\$644,569,968	\$196,561,136	\$448,008,832	1.5101	\$9,733,889
MILTY WROTCHT HON 09-001 70 HI 873-900 8273-900 8273-900 837.301 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.301 93.302 93.303 93.302 93.302 <t< td=""><td>MILTY WROTCHT HON 09-201 10 11 973-999 523-361 912-366 523-361 912-366 523-361 912-366 523-361 912-366 523-361 912-361 <th< td=""><td>MAINS - CAST MAINS - PLAS</td><td>IRON</td><td>09-2027</td><td>7 67</td><td>- R1 - B3</td><td>\$1,577,960 \$1,671,330,365</td><td>\$95,389 \$310.744.131</td><td>\$1,482,571 \$1 360 586 234</td><td>29.7332 1.6646</td><td>\$469,177 \$27 821 001</td></th<></td></t<>	MILTY WROTCHT HON 09-201 10 11 973-999 523-361 912-366 523-361 912-366 523-361 912-366 523-361 912-366 523-361 912-361 <th< td=""><td>MAINS - CAST MAINS - PLAS</td><td>IRON</td><td>09-2027</td><td>7 67</td><td>- R1 - B3</td><td>\$1,577,960 \$1,671,330,365</td><td>\$95,389 \$310.744.131</td><td>\$1,482,571 \$1 360 586 234</td><td>29.7332 1.6646</td><td>\$469,177 \$27 821 001</td></th<>	MAINS - CAST MAINS - PLAS	IRON	09-2027	7 67	- R1 - B3	\$1,577,960 \$1,671,330,365	\$95,389 \$310.744.131	\$1,482,571 \$1 360 586 234	29.7332 1.6646	\$469,177 \$27 821 001
ND RECULATIVE STATION BQUIPMENT. CENERAL 5.9Q 81.32.001 80.007 81.12.001 5.000 81.0000		MAINS - PRIM	LARILY WROUGHT IRON	09-2041	1 20	- 81	\$279,892	\$228,361	851,531	2.2458	\$6,286
AD RECUATING FOUPMENT - CENERAL 17.342.360 \$293.40.100 \$11.70.21.001.2010 3.435 \$53.360.400 \$40.131.000 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.001 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.01 \$100.21.01 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.01 \$10.31.41 \$100.21.01 \$100.21.01 \$100.21.01 \$10.31.21 \$100.21.01 \$100.21.01 \$10.31.21 \$100.21.01 \$100.21 \$100.21.01 \$10	NO RECULATING STATION EQUIPMENT - CENTRAL VO RECULATING STATION EQUIPMENT - CENTRAL NO RECULATING STATION EQUIPMENT - CENTRAL NO RECULATING STATION EQUIPMENT - CTY CATE 1 2 12 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21	REG AFUDC			10	- so	\$1,322,088	\$201,067	\$1,121,021	2.5000	\$33,052
CONTROLITION CONTRACT Control Second	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	MEASURING.	AND REGULATING STATION EQUIPMENT - GENERAL and becth ating stration equipment - <i>c</i> ity <i>c</i> ate		74 74	- S0	\$177,442,869 ene 625.000	\$29,540,709 e0.022.440	\$147,902,160 e16.609.461	3.0327	\$5,381,267 \$604.615
		SERVICES	ALE NEGOLA LINE STATION EQUILMENT - 411 L 44 LE		46	- IS	81.430.996.244	8427.815.980	\$1.003.180.264	2.4875	835.596.439
S S		METERS			35	- R2	\$158,148,754	\$59,011,320	\$99,137,434	3.1193	\$4,933,183
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	METERS - ERT	S		21	- 53	\$23,249,327	\$20,366,200	\$2,883,127 660 700 200	2.1988	8511,217
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		MELER INSLA	ALLATIONS LATORS		46	10.1	\$100,829,279 \$10.706.008	\$38,320,891 \$6 959 309	\$08,502,388 \$3 746 600	2.3/00	\$2,538,841 \$146.521
dEACURING AND RECULATING STATION EQUIPMENT 45 - R2 \$39.907.546 \$13.360,73.23 \$2.473 \$81.727 REV ON CUSTOMERS PREMISES 45 - S1 \$80.307.346 \$13.340 \$13.347 \$13.340 \$13.340 RETY ON CUSTOMERS PREMISES 45 - S1 \$80.303 \$27.405 \$2.4765 \$2.4765 \$3.17.327 \$13.340 \$3.13 RETY ON CUSTOMERS PREMISES 5.8 \$4.713 \$8.4.305 \$2.4.705 \$2.4.705 \$2.4.705 \$2.4.135 \$3.1.356 3	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	HOUSE REGU	LATOR INSTALLATIONS		46	5.5	\$18.879.888	89.261.373	89.618.515	1.9820	8374.203
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	INDUSTRIAL	MEASURING AND REGULATING STATION EQUIPMENT		45	- R2	\$39,907,546	\$18,360,798	\$21,546,748	2.0478	\$817,227
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	OTHER PROP	ERTY ON CUSTOMERS PREMISES		46	- SI	\$68,824	-\$84,503	\$153,327	13.5403	\$9,319
MEYT 25 R3 82.4,05 80 0.000 90,455 MEYT 35 82.4,05 81.0457 81.35.669 2.0411 89.425 MEYT 35 82.4,05 81.0457 81.35.669 2.0411 89.425 MEYT 35 82.4,05 81.43072 81.73.022 91.453072 91.453072 91.427 MEYT 55 5.90 81.490644 81.43072 81.7592 0.2002 84.417 AND INPROVEMENTS 55.15.40 81.430667 81.43660 2.0411 80.224.946 AND INPROVEMENTS 55.15.405 81.430667 81.435.732.25 81.437.732 81.2566.749 81.752.25 AND INPROVEMENTS 06-2005 80 81.5 85.254.319 85.51.5405 91.4566 81.417.77 AND INPROVEMENTS 06-2005 80 81.356667 81.417.81 80.97.32 81.75.295 81.96677 81.75.295 81.75.95 81.75.95 81.75.95 81.75.95 81.75.95 81.75.95 81.75.95 <	$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	OTHER PROP	ERTY ON CUSTOMERS PREMISES - FARM TAPS		45	- R2	\$953,218	\$678,603	\$274,615	1.5061	\$14,356
The start is a substant in the start is a substant is a substant in the start is a substant is a substant in the start is a substant	The formation of	OTHER PROPE	EKTY ON CUSTOMERS PREMISES - GAS LIGHTS		22	- K3 Do f	\$24,705 64 071 042	\$24,705 e2 024 574	032 200 La	0.0000	80 600 497
ANT 84,327,383,606 81,136,402,613 83,190,91,679 869,224,946 AND IMPROVEMENTS RB-40 81,136,402,614 83,190,91,679 869,224,946 AND IMPROVEMENTS RB-40 81,136,402,614 83,190,91,679 869,224,946 AND IMPROVEMENTS GESTRETRUCE DULLDING 06-2026 80 - R1,5 85,254,319 83,36,371 81,307,342 31,405 879,426 GESTRETRUCE DULLDING 06-2020 80 - R1,5 81,91,256,053 81,266,571 81,897,0342 31,91,366 879,426 NERNUCE DULLDING 06-2020 80 - R1,5 82,94,4371 81,835,613 8770,390 8770,299 NERNUCE DULLDING 06-2026 80 - R1,5 82,94,4371 81,836,613 8797,0342 39,915 8770,299 NINGE SERRUCE DULLDING 06-2026 80 - R1,5 82,94,013 2,3661 813,05,001 8,70,426 8770,299 NINGE SERRUCE DULLDING 06-2026 80 - R1,5 82,94,013 2,3661 813,05,001 2,3661 813,05,01	ANT 84,327,383,606 81,136,402,613 83,190,91,679 869,224,946 AND IMPROVEMENTS 84,327,383,606 81,136,402,613 83,190,91,679 869,224,946 AND IMPROVEMENTS RB-40 81,356,407 81,356,407 81,366,407 869,224,946 AND IMPROVEMENTS CERENTUCE DULIDING 06-2026 80 - R1.5 85,351,342 8,360,71 81,970,342 31,046 8704,207 GERENTUCE BULIDING 06-2020 80 - R1.5 81,944,034 82,366,57 81,970,342 31,053 8704,291 8770,290 NING CENTER 06-2027 80 - R1.5 82,94,4637 81,836,603 870,342 31,30,506 8770,290 NING CENTER 06-2027 80 - R1.5 82,04,577 81,335,403 870,4010 2,3661 8170,305 8770,397 NING CENTER 06-2027 80 - R1.5 82,046,303 82,406,303 8770,397 8707,395 8707,95 8770,397 8707,95 8770,397 8707,95 8707,95 8707,95 8707,95	OTHER FOULP	MENT - GRAPHIC DATA BASE		35 25	- SO -	\$4,871,243 \$1,490,664	\$3,034,514 \$1.473.072	817.592 \$17.592	2.0411	84.177 84.177
	$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	DISTRIBUTION PI	ANT		ì	2	\$4,327,383,696	\$1,136,402,618	\$3,190,981,079		\$89,224,946
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $		AL PLANT									
ER SERVICE BULDING 0.6-205 80 R.1.5 85.257.39 85.37.143 85.37.142 51.366.05 570.420 SERVICE BULDING 06-2000 80 R.1.5 85.257.39 85.26.66.74 86.63.3012 51.363 590.366 ENSERVICE BULDING 06-2007 80 R.1.5 819.44.04 82.36.657 81.87.70.290 39.67 81.97.0342 51.363 577.029 ENSERVICE BULDING 03-2000 80 R.1.5 82.94.4.04 82.36.657 81.80.70.42 51.363 577.029 DEFENSERVICE BULDING 03-2000 80 R.1.5 82.95.4.577 81.82.1.64 2.3661 81.36.509 85.70.89 87.70.89 87.70.89 87.70.89 87.70.89 87.70.89 <td>ER SERVICE BULDING 0.6-206 80 r.l.3 55.25,319 53.57.142 53.57.142 53.66.77 13.405 57.0,29 SERVICE BULDING 06-2006 80 r.l.3 85.25.331 83.26.677 81.266.0779 13.405 57.0,29 86.63.3012 51.863 570.420 EM SERVICE BULDING 06-2007 80 r.l.3 82.0,44.03 81.266.077 81.82.14 23.901 87.037 87.03</td> <td>STRUCTURES A</td> <td>ND IMPROVEMENTS</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>RB-40</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	ER SERVICE BULDING 0.6-206 80 r.l.3 55.25,319 53.57.142 53.57.142 53.66.77 13.405 57.0,29 SERVICE BULDING 06-2006 80 r.l.3 85.25.331 83.26.677 81.266.0779 13.405 57.0,29 86.63.3012 51.863 570.420 EM SERVICE BULDING 06-2007 80 r.l.3 82.0,44.03 81.266.077 81.82.14 23.901 87.037 87.03	STRUCTURES A	ND IMPROVEMENTS					RB-40			
TARTER DETIDIVE 00 - ML3 B014,000 B014,000 B014,000 B017,000 B017,000 <thb017,000< th=""> <thb017,000< th=""> <th< td=""><td>TARTER DETIDIVE 00 - FUL3 01 - FUL3</td><td>LANCAST</td><td>ER SERVICE BUILDING</td><td>06-2026</td><td>8 8 8</td><td>- R1.5</td><td>\$5,254,319 510,157,007</td><td>\$3,571,842</td><td>82,060,749</td><td>13.4036</td><td>\$704,267</td></th<></thb017,000<></thb017,000<>	TARTER DETIDIVE 00 - FUL3 01 - FUL3	LANCAST	ER SERVICE BUILDING	06-2026	8 8 8	- R1.5	\$5,254,319 510,157,007	\$3,571,842	82,060,749	13.4036	\$704,267
VERVICE BUILDING 06-2027 80 - R1.5 82,074,577 81,882,154 82,0,00 3.247 867,307 VERVICE BUILDING 06-2027 80 - R1.5 82,074,577 81,882,154 82,0,00 3.247 867,307 NING CENTER BUILDING 06-2029 80 - R1.5 85,515,549 81,901,504 2.247 80,503 81,901,009 84,015,164 2.266 81,056 81,882,164 81,056 81,882,164 81,056,00 8,5107,51 82,946,001 2.4277 80,791 87,807,915 81,904,109 2.2271 826,713 87,487 ARD - MINOR STRUCTURES 03-2022 80 - R1.5 82,219,511 82,219,51 82,219,51 82,944,000 2.2271 826,713 87,487 AID - MINOR STRUCTURES 03-2022 80 - R1.5 82,219,511 82,219,51 82,219,51 82,944,000 2.2271 826,713 81,944,00 2.2271 826,713 81,944,00 2.949,703 19,953 1000 19,953 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 100000 10000 100000 100000 100000 100000 1000000	VERVICE BULIDING 06-2027 80 - R1.5 22/07-577 81.82.154 82.0900 3.247 867.397 VIEF BULIDING 06-2027 80 - R1.5 52.061 81.82.154 82.0900 3.247 867.397 807.915 NING CENTER BULIDING 06-2027 80 - R1.5 55.367 81.82.154 82.0900 3.247 867.397 807.915 NING CENTER 12.9047 80 - R1.5 55.367 81.205.088 81.205.381 85.904.090 2.2271 820.715 807.915 NING CENTER 12.9047 80 - R1.5 81.2065.388 86.202.351 85.904.090 2.2271 8206.718 NARD-MINOR STRUCTURES 12.9047 80 - R1.5 81.2065.388 86.202.31 85.904.090 2.2271 8206.718 NARD-MINOR STRUCTURES 03-2022 80 - R1.5 82.219.511 82.914.090 2.2271 820.715 807.915 NARD-MINOR STRUCTURES 03-2022 80 - R1.5 81.205.393 85.202.31 85.904.090 2.2271 820.718 NARD-MINOR STRUCTURES 03-904.997 2.2483 81.9.038 S2.904.099 2.2271 820.718 S1.905.388 85.202.31 85.904.099 2.2271 820.718 S1.905.388 85.202.31 85.904.099 2.2271 820.718 S1.905.389 85.202.31 85.904.099 2.2271 820.718 S1.905.391 81.906.33 82.904.997 2.2483 81.903.31 82.904.997 2.2483 81.903.31 82.904.997 2.2483 81.903.31 82.904.997 2.2483 81.903.31 83.904.997 2.2483 81.903.31 82.904.997 2.2483 81.903.31 82.904.997 2.2483 81.903.31 82.904.997 2.2483 81.903.31 82.904.997 2.2483 81.903.31 80.904 800 2.2214 2.2483 81.903.31 80.904 800 2.2214 2.2483 81.904.904 2.2214 2.2483 81.904.904 2.2214 2.2483 81.904.904 2.2214 2.2484 80.904 80.	RETHILEI	5 SERVICE BUILDING JEM SERVICE RITLDING	08-2030	808	- R15 - R15	819.494.034 819.494.034	\$12,000,794 \$2,586,057	\$0,000,042 \$18 970 342	3 9515	000,1996 8770 999
IDGE SERVICE BUILDING 06-2059 80 - R1.5 \$5.515,549 \$1.591,809 \$4.015,164 2.3661 \$130,503 INIVG CENTER 0.9-271 80 - R1.5 \$5.005,338 \$5.205,331 \$5.902,531 \$5.902,903 \$1.30,503 YARD MAR STRUCTURES 12-947 80 - R1.5 \$5.005,338 \$5.202,531 \$5.902,903 \$2.2271 \$2.86713 YARD MING STRUCTURES 12-947 80 - R1.5 \$5.205,338 \$5.202,531 \$5.902,731 \$5.903,793 YARD MING STRUCTURES 0.3-2022 80 - R1.5 \$5.219,511 \$2.90 \$2.90 \$5.80 \$5.80 ILD - R1.5 \$6.156,509 \$8.2.19,531 \$2.294,997 \$2.946,900 \$2.946,703 \$5.967,703 \$5.967,703 \$5.967,703 \$5.207,531 \$5.967,703 \$5.214,55 \$5.967,703 \$5.214,55 \$5.967,703 \$5.214,55 \$5.946,700 \$5.946,700 \$5.946,700 \$5.946,700 \$5.946,700 \$5.946,700 \$5.946,700 \$5.946,700 \$5.946,700 \$5.946,700 \$5.946,700	IDCE SERVICE BUILDING 06-2059 80 · R1.5 \$5.515,549 \$1.591,809 \$4.015,164 2.3661 \$130,503 INIVG CENTER 0 - R1.5 \$5.005,338 \$5.05,333 \$5.90,500 \$2.327 \$807,915 VARD -MLOR STRUCTURES 0 - R1.5 \$5.005,338 \$5.205,31 \$5.90,109 \$2.227 \$5.867,13 VARD -MLOR STRUCTURES 12-9047 80 - R1.5 \$5.205,338 \$5.205,31 \$5.90,109 \$2.221 \$2.86,713 YARD -MLOR STRUCTURES 03-2022 80 - R1.5 \$2.219,511 \$9 0.0000 \$9 UD 03-2022 80 - R1.5 \$5.136,509 \$2.214,55 \$949,907 2.4333 \$10,000 \$9 UD 04.000 8.13,56,509 \$2.214,55 \$8.39,4967 2.4333 \$10,000 \$9 \$0 UD 12-3053 80 - R1.5 \$1.36,309 \$8.19,496 2.4333 \$10,000 \$9 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 <td< td=""><td>LEBANO</td><td>N SERVICE BUILDING</td><td>06-2027</td><td>200</td><td>- R1.5</td><td>82.074.577</td><td>s1.832.154</td><td>\$250.900</td><td>3.2487</td><td>867.397</td></td<>	LEBANO	N SERVICE BUILDING	06-2027	200	- R1.5	82.074.577	s1.832.154	\$250.900	3.2487	867.397
NING CEVTE 09-2071 80 R1.5 83.046.603 829.496.801 2.627 890.715 YARD - MAJOR STRUCTURES 12-2047 80 - R1.5 82.205.538 85.202.531 85.607.10 2.2271 826.713 YARD - MAJOR STRUCTURES 12-2047 80 - R1.5 82.219.511 82.94.00 2.2271 826.713 YARD - MAJOR STRUCTURES 0.3-3022 80 - R1.5 82.219.511 80 90 96.713 TUD< - MINON STRUCTURES	NING CEVTER 02-071 80 R.1.5 83.0.66.08 81.86.603 829.9.0.601 2.6.27 896.715 YARD - MAON FRUCTURES 12-2017 80 - R1.5 81.2.06.536 80.202.531 85.0.410 2.2.271 8204.715 YARD - MAON FRUCTURES 12-2017 80 - R1.5 81.2.06.536 85.02.531 85.04.109 2.2.271 8204.713 YARD - MINOR FRUCTURES 0.3-2022 80 - R1.5 82.19.511 8.0 0.000 80 LD 12 82.219.511 8.2.0 82.31.455 83.04.109 2.2.673 81.07.35 BUR G 12 82.19.510 82.04.165 2.2.271 81.07.35 81.07.35 BUR G 12 82.19.5.11 82.31.45 81.07.35 81.07.35 SUB CONTRUCTURES 12 82.31.45 81.37.8.395 81.49.402 81.49.303 81.03.35 SUB CONTRUCTURES 0.6.2033 80 R1.5 87.5.433 81.03.35 81.23.35 81.37.35 81.9.33 81.9.33	STONE B	IDGE SERVICE BUILDING	06-2059	9 80	- R1.5	85,515,549	\$1,591,809	\$4,015,164	2.3661	\$130,503
VARD-MAJOR STRUCTURES 12-2047 80 - R1.5 812.065.358 86,202.351 85.940,109 2.2271 8268.713 YARD-MINOR STRUCTURES 0.3002 80 - R1.5 82.219,511 82.919,511 80 0.0000 80 YARD-MINOR STRUCTURES 0.3022 80 - R1.5 82.219,511 82.219,511 80 0.0000 80 LLD 12-2052 80 - R1.5 86,16,509 82.31,457 8.249,637 2.436.3 81,96,630 LLD 12-2052 80 - R1.5 81,16,509 82,21,457 8.249,437 2.436.3 81,96,630 LLD 17-4 17-37-326 80 - R1.5 83,21,455 2.436.37 2.436.33	YARD-MADOR STRUCTURES 12-2047 80 - RL5 812/06:359 86.202.351 85.940.109 2.2271 8.268.713 YARD-MINOR STRUCTURES 02.3022 80 - RL5 82.195.11 80 0.0000 80 LD 12-2052 80 - RL5 86.156.500 82.321.455 83.934.967 2.4363 84.9.00 12.2052 80 - RL5 87.156.500 82.321.455 83.934.967 2.4363 84.9.00 11.2.2053 80 - RL5 87.54.53 83.956.29 82.953.44 3.825 83.0384	GAS TRA	JNING CENTER	09-2071	1 80	- R1.5	\$30,805,088	\$1,886,603	\$29,496,801	2.6227	\$807,915
VARD-MINOR STRUCTURES 0.2222 80 - RL5 82.219.511 82.219.511 80 0.0000 80 1.LD 2.15.5 80.15.509 82.221.45.55 83.094.967 2.4563 81.49.503 RTPC 0.0000 1.20.55 83.094.967 2.4563 81.49.503 RTPC 0.0000 1.20.55 83.094.97 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.094.97 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.094.967 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.094.967 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.97 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.97 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.97 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.97 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.97 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.97 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.97 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.97 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.97 2.4563 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.97 2.4564 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.75 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.75 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.75 80.011 1.20.55 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.75 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.95 80.011 1.20.55 80.011 1.20.55 83.044.95 80.011 1.20.55 8	VAU)-MINOR STRUCTURES 03-2022 80 - RL5 82.219.511 82.29.511 80 0.0000 30 LL LL 21.51.5.509 82.29.515 83.94.987 2.4363 81.95.639 BURG 22.821.455 83.94.987 2.4363 81.95.639 BURG 22.821.455 83.94.987 2.4363 83.99.503 21.063 23.901 22.051 22.052 80 - RL5 87.95.453 84.94.92 829.403 21.063 839.901 501 501 501 501 501 501 501 501 501 5	EMPIRE	YARD - MAJOR STRUCTURES	12-2047	2 2	- R1.5	\$12,065,358	\$6,202,351	\$5,940,109	2.2271	\$268,713
LLU 1	LLU 1.2.0.2. 00 - NL-3 0 NL-3 0.	EMPIRE	YARD - MINOR STRUCTURES	03-2022	88	- R1.5 B1.5	82,219,511 66,126,500	82,219,511	\$0 52 024 007	0.0000	80 8140 F03
	ABURG DISTRICT OFFICE 0.2033 80 - R1.5 8705,473 805,459 8255,344 3.825 80,804	BLOOMS	ALU BRIRG	12-2052	88	- RL5 - B15	\$0,130,509 \$1 378 305	604,125,25 8440,409	\$3,934,967 \$928 903	2.4303	\$149,505 \$29 001

I&E Exhibit No. 5-SR Schedule 3 Page 1 of 2

619.37 619.685

2.9002 \$61,036 2.9041 \$19,553 2.9051 \$15,564 2.9051 \$55,566 2.9051 \$55,566 2.5548 \$45,54,506 3.7077 \$45,44,506 5.7319 \$815,606 3.7707 \$845,606 3.7717 \$845,606 9.773 \$819,406 80 \$90,56 0.0000 \$595,112 11,6400 \$83,511,416 8.9076 \$83,31,009 8.9076 \$83,007,715 8.9076 \$83,007,715 8.9077 \$82,025,311 5.1748 \$20,07,716 5.0753 \$82,007,715 5.0475 \$82,007,715 5.0475 \$82,007,715 5.0475 \$82,007,715 5.0475 \$82,007,715 5.0475 \$82,007,715 5.0475 \$82,007,715 5.0475 \$82,007,715 5.0475 \$818,440 7.0475 \$818,440	\$103,026,219		2.7720 \$945.638 0.0000 \$945.638 5.322 \$22.336 2.01552 \$221.39 11.4850 \$3.222 \$1.463.524	\$1,301,920	3.1705 \$85.817 3.1705 \$85.817 8.6173 \$8.5,555 17.4673 \$2.5,553 8.85 \$2.5,530 25.5,9308 \$572,763 25.5,9308 \$572,763 25.5,9308 \$572,763 25.5,9308 \$572,763 10.33229 \$6,174,940 10.33229 \$5,174,633 0.73300 \$5,016,339 0.73300 \$5,010,339	\$17,787,723	6.5707 \$1,830,870 -\$354,742 1.8830 \$267,551	\$34,969	\$20,530,801	\$123,557,020	86,083,750 \$129,640,770
81.094.736 82.239.610 82.239.610 81.161.6625 83.704.234 83.704.234 84.2186 82.234.115 82.234.115 82.234.115 82.234.115 82.234.115 82.234.115 82.234.115 82.234.115 82.234.115 82.234.115 82.234.115 82.234.216 82.236.216 83.23.241 83.25.012 84.56.02 85.56.02 85.56.02 85.56.02	\$3,367,414,849		\$30,180,877 \$0,475 \$01,451 \$01,451 \$0 \$20,876 \$33,936,679	\$30,825,846	\$2.701.561 \$833 \$533 \$2.353.849 \$727.064 \$336.634 \$9.065.698 \$9.012.249 \$82.254.74 \$136.556.814	\$125,195,287	\$25,918,643 \$5.770,582	\$754,215	\$181,185,561	\$3,548,600,410	\$3,548,600,410
81,006,404 81,314,077 84,5714 84,5714 84,5714 84,087,136 81,538,284 86,71,739 81,538,283 86,71,739 81,538,283 86,71,739 81,538,732 86,146 81,384,732 81,196,377 81,412 81,438,412,438,412,438,412,438,412,438,412,438,444,444,444,444,444,444,444,444,444	\$1,247,214,616		83,940,817 80 81,242,489 871,637 871,637 87,091 86,016,425	\$5,379,505	\$5,200 \$16,074 \$12,843,439 \$2,075,802 \$2,075,802 \$4,435,994 \$4,435,994 \$4,435,994 \$1,95,449 \$18,237,294 \$814,179,238 \$814,179,238	\$80,842,817	\$1,945,443 \$8,438.516	\$1,102,914	\$87,064,851	\$1,334,279,467	\$1,334,279,467
82.104,562 81.912.687 81.702.1267 81.7.65.304 81.7.65.304 81.7.63.222 84.956.07 82.94.38 87.13.925 87.13.925 87.13.925 87.13.925 87.13.925 87.13.512 87.512 8	\$4,610,273,023 \$19,619,037	\$4,629,892,060 \$1.32,060	80.947.108 80.947.108 834,121.694 80 84,362.964 81.398,843 871.637 827.967 847,069,177	\$41,877,447	\$2,706,761 \$16,577 \$15,197,238 \$0 \$2,803,866 \$10,495,616 \$13,551,607 \$13,556,195 \$13,556,195 \$13,556,195 \$13,556,195 \$133,556,1756,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$133,556,195 \$135,556,195 \$135,556,1956,1956,1956,1956,1956,1956,1956	\$206,038,105	\$27,864,086 \$14,209,098	\$1,857,129	\$273,922,509	\$4,903,814,568	\$4,903,814,568
80 - R1.5 80 - R1.5 80 - R1.5 10.05 20 - 80 20 - 123 112 - 1.3 12 - 1.3 13 - 1.2 13 - 1.2			70 - R1 20 - SQ 7 - L2.5 10 - SQ		80 - R1.5 220 - SQ 5 - SQ UARE UARE UARE 10 - SQ 10 - SQ		15 - SQ 80 - R1.5				
06-2012 06-2019 08-2073 VAR			01-2069		09-2073 09-2024 SQ 09-2034 SQ		FE ADC 19.38% 12-2047				
PORT ALLEGANY OPERATIONS CENTER PORT ALLEGANY OPERATIONS CENTER POTTSTILLE METER SHO LEHIGHTON OPERATIONS CENTER OTHER STRUCTURES STRUCTURES AND MPROVEMENTS OFFICE PURITURE AND BOUPMENT - BOUPMENT OFFICE PURITURE AND BOUPMENT - BOUPMENT OFFICE FURNITURE AND BOUPMENT - BOUTMENT OFFICE FURNITURE AND BOUPMENT - BOUTMENT OFFICE FURNITURE AND BOUPMENT - BADIA AND SUN'S TRANSPORTATION BOUPMENT - LAKEE PICK-UPS AND CHROV ANS TRANSPORTATION BOUPMENT - LAKEE PICK-UPS AND UTILITY VEHICLES TRANSPORTATION BOUPMENT - TAKEE PICK-UPS AND UTILITY VEHICLES TRANSPORTATION BOUPMENT - LAKEE PICK-UPS AND UTILITY VEHICLES TRANSPORTATION BOUPMENT - AND UTILITY VEHICLES TRANSPORTATION BOUPMENT - AND TRANSPORTATION BOUPMENT - AND TRANSPORTATION BOUPMENT FOR AND AND CARACE BOUPMENT - COMMUNICATION BOUPMENT FOR AND CARACE BOUPMENT - COMUNICATION BOUPMENT FOR AND CARACE BOUPMENT - COMUNICATION BOUPMENT FOR AND AND TRANSPORTATION BOUTMENT - COMUNICATION BOUPMENT FOR AND AND TRANSPORTATION BOUPMENT - COMUNICATION BOUPMENT FOR AND AND TRANSPORTATION BOUPMENT - COMUNICATION BOUP	L DEPRECIABLE GAS PLANT EPRECIABLE PLANT L NONDEPRECIABLE PLANT	AVT Y PLANT 100 PLANT 100 PLANT	LANDARD LAND RIGHTS - LANDARD ROLD STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS - LASED PROPERTY OFFICE PURATURE AND BQUIPMENT - FURATURE OFFICE PURATURE AND BQUIPMENT - EQUIPMENT TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT - CARS MISCLANDOUS EQUIPMENT LOOMMON PLANT	L COMMON PLANT ALLOCATED TO GAS DIVISION - 88.97% 88.97%	MATIONSERVICES (IS) STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS - NEW READING DATA CENTER OFFICE FURNITURE AND BQUIPMENT - FURNITURE OFFICE FURNITURE AND BQUIPMENT - SOFTWARE SUCCESS FACTORS UNTE REP OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - SOFTWARE UNTE REP OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - SOFTWARE OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - SOFTWARE	L INFORMATION SERVICES ALLOCATED TO GAS DIVISION - 91.68% 91.68%	OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - SYSTEM DEV. COSTS - 15 YEARS - UNI Allocated to Other UGI Operations in Rebuttal STRUE BULLING STRUE OFFICE AND IMPROVEMENTS	EMPIRE BUILDING ALLOCATED TO ELECTRIC DIVISION - 13.07%	UTHLITY PLANT ALLOCATED TO ALL GAS DIVISIONS	IN SERVICE	DN OF NEGATIVE NET SALVAGE
53 54 55 55 56 56 56 56 57 39 11 39 39 12 39 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23	55 TOTAI 55 TOTAI 56 NONDI 57 NONDI	00 TOTAL GAS PL/ 01 TOTAL GAS PL/ 02 OTHER UTULTD 03 OTHER UTULTD 04 COMM	6 389.1 7 390.1 8 391.2 9 391.2 1 392.1 1 392.1 1 392.1 1 392.1 2 398	5 TOTAL	0 17 18 19 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	9 TOTAI	0 391.4 3 EMPIR 390.1	25 LESS F	8 TOTAL OTHER	60 TOTAL PLANTI	22 AMORTIZATIC 13 14 GRAND TOTAL

* ACCOUNTS 305 AND 352.01 HAVE NO REMAINING DEPRECIATION ACCRUALS. THE FUTURE ACCRUALS SHOWN ARE RELATED TO THE AMORTIZATION OF NEGATIVE NET SALVAGE. ** SURVIVOR CURVES FOR ACCOUNT 300.1 ARE INTERIM SURVIVOR CURVES.INDIVIDUAL BUILDINGS ARE LIFE SPANNED.

I&E Exhibit No. 5-SR Schedule 3 Page 2 of 2

I&E Statement No. 6-SR Witness: Jessalynn Heydenreich

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

v.

UGI UTILITIES, INC. – GAS DIVISION

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

Surrebuttal Testimony

of

Jessalynn Heydenreich

Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement

Concerning:

PIPELINE REPLACEMENT COSTS SYSTEM LEAK REDUCTION

1	Q.	PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, OCCUPATION, AND BUSINESS
2		ADDRESS.
3	A.	My name is Jessalynn K. Heydenreich. I am a Fixed Utility Valuation Engineer in
4		the Pipeline Safety Division of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission's
5		("Commission") Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement ("I&E"). My business
6		address is Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 400 North Street, Harrisburg,
7		PA 17120.
8		
9	Q.	ARE YOU THE SAME JESSALYNN K. HEYDENREICH WHO
10		SUBMITTED DIRECT TESTIMONY ON BEHALF OF THE BUREAU OF
11		INVESTIGATION AND ENFORCEMENT?
12	А.	Yes. I submitted I&E Statement No. 6 and I&E Exhibit No. 6.
13		
14	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
15	А.	The purpose of my surrebuttal testimony is to address the rebuttal testimony of
16		UGI Utilities – Gas Division ("UGI") witness Timothy J. Angstadt's testimony
17		identified as UGI Statement No. 9-R concerning UGI's pipeline replacement costs
18		and system leaks.
19		
20	Q.	PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY.
21	A.	I stated in my direct testimony that restoration costs associated with pipeline
22		replacement are increasing and mitigation of the increases were suggested.

1		Additionally, I discussed the system leak history and increase in documented leaks
2		for 2021 and how that would pertain to the Distribution Integrity Management
3		Program ("DIMP") to determine which pipelines should be replaced.
4		
5	Q.	DID MR. ANGSTADT ADDRESS YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY IN HIS
6		REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
7	А.	Yes. Mr. Angstadt replied to my direct testimony by stating UGI Utilities has
8		plans going forward to reduce restoration costs of pipeline replacement, but he
9		specifically disagrees with my representation that restoration costs have impacted
10		pipeline replacement as UGI remain on track with its filed long term infrastructure
11		improvement plan (UGI St. No. 9-R, pp. 8-10). Additionally, Mr. Angstadt stated
12		that UGI utilizes varying leak survey intervals and due to the variability of leak
13		rates in different assets, some year-to-year leak detection volatility is to be
14		expected. (UGI St. No. 9-R, p. 11)
15		
16	Q.	DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. ANGSTADT THAT RESTORATION COSTS
17		WILL NOT NEGATIVELY IMPACT PIPELINE REPLACEMENT
18		RATES?
19	A.	Not necessarily. Utilities do not have unlimited funds. The more money it costs
20		to replace pipeline, which would include restoration costs, it follows that less
21		pipeline can be replaced simply because utilities do not have unlimited funds.
22		While it may not match dollar for dollar. I believe that if restoration costs continue

2

1		to rise, it will necessarily follow that the utility will not be able to replace as much
2		pipeline as it would at lower restoration costs.
3		
4	Q.	DO YOU HAVE ANY FURTHER COMMENTS REGARDING
5		RESTORATION COSTS?
6	А.	Yes. Mr. Angstadt stated the remaining cast iron and bare steel is in more urban
7		areas and will incur higher replacement costs (UGI St. No 9-R at 6-7). I agree the
8		replacement costs will increase and the rate of increase will likely exceed my
9		previous calculations. This simply serves to illustrate the importance of UGI's
10		efforts to reduce restoration costs associated with replacement of cast iron and
11		bare steel pipelines.
12		
13	Q.	DID MR. ANGSTADT AGREE WITH ANY OF YOUR
14		RECOMMENDATIONS RELATED TO RESTORATION COSTS?
15	А.	Yes. Mr. Angstadt stated that UGI will continue its efforts to control restoration
16		costs by coordinating projects where it can and using technology that will reduce
17		restoration activities, as well as taking other actions to reduce restoration costs. In
18		addition, UGI has agreed that it will prepare and submit an annual report to the
19		Gas Safety Division on March 1 which will identify the ten most expensive
20		restoration projects per year over the past three years with the corresponding cost
21		breakdowns (UGI St. 9-R, p. 10).

1	Q.	IS MR. ANGSTADT'S STATEMENT OF LEAK VOLATILITY DUE TO
2		UGI'S VARIED INSPECTION SCHEDULE AN ADEQUATE
3		EXPLANATION FOR THE INCREASE IN LEAKS IN 2021?
4	A.	No. In UGI St. No 9-R, Figure 1, UGI indicates they repair fewer leaks annually
5		as proof that the main replacement program is working; however, system
6		improvement must include a decrease in new leaks, not just a decrease in the
7		repair of existing leaks. Therefore, this figure is not illustrative of the total leaks
8		on the pipeline system. Class 'A' and 'B' leaks are historically found during leak
9		surveys, which have a variable inspection cycle by asset type. Class 'C', which
10		are hazardous leaks, are generally found due to odor complaints and because of
11		pipeline damage. An increase in the number of leaks in 2021 over 2020 may
12		indicate that the riskiest pipeline in UGI's pipeline system has not been replaced.
13		
14	Q.	FOR PIPELINE ASSETS HAVING A LEAK INSPECTION CYCLE LESS
15		FREQUENTLY THAN ONCE PER YEAR, WOULD DIMP ADDRESS
16		THESE ASSETS ON AN ANNUAL BASIS?
17	А.	Yes, pipeline assets are ranked annually by DIMP, with the goal of reducing risk
18		to the pipeline system. Mr. Angstadt stated that there are variable inspection
19		cycles for different asset types (UGI St. No. 9-R, p. 11). Pipeline assets are still
20		evaluated annually in an effective DIMP to reduce pipeline system risk, regardless
21		of the leak inspection cycle.

1	Q.	WHAT WAS MR. ANGSTADT'S RESPONSE TO YOUR PROPOSAL
2		THAT UGI COMPLETE A ROOT CAUSE ANALYSIS TO DETERMINE
3		WHY LEAKS INCREASED FROM 2020 TO 2021?
4	A.	Mr. Angstadt said that because the level of increase was small, he did not believe
5		further analysis was necessary (UGI St. No. 9-R, p. 12).
6		
7	Q.	DO YOU CONTINUE TO RECOMMEND UGI COMPLETE A ROOT
8		CAUSE ANALYSIS?
9	A.	Yes. It is important to determine the cause of any increase in leaks even if it is a
10		modest increase. Therefore, I continue to recommend UGI complete a root cause
11		analysis.
12		
13	Q.	DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

14 A. Yes

Pennsylvania Public Utility	
Commission	:
	:
v.	:
	:
UGI Gas Division – Base Rate	:
	:

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

VERIFICATION OF ZACHARI WALKER

I, Zachari Walker, on behalf of the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement, hereby verify that the I&E Statement No. 1, I&E Exhibit No. 1, I&E Statement No. 1-R, I&E Exhibit No. 1-R, I&E Statement No. 1-SR, and I&E Exhibit No. 1-SR were prepared by me or under my direct supervision and control.

Furthermore, the facts contained therein are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and belief and I expect to be able to prove the same if called to the stand at any evidentiary hearing held in this matter.

This Verification is made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa. C.S. § 4904 relating to unsworn falsification to authorities.

Signed in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, this 1st day of June 2022.

|s| Zachari Walker

Zachari Walker

Pennsylvania Public Utility	
Commission	:
	:
v.	:
	:
UGI Gas Division – Base Rate	:
	:

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

VERIFICATION OF ANTHONY SPADACCIO

I, Anthony Spadaccio, on behalf of the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement, hereby verify that the I&E Statement No. 2, I&E Exhibit No. 2, and I&E Statement No. 2-SR, were prepared by me or under my direct supervision and control.

Furthermore, the facts contained therein are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and belief and I expect to be able to prove the same if called to the stand at any evidentiary hearing held in this matter.

This Verification is made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa. C.S. § 4904 relating to unsworn falsification to authorities.

Signed in Camp Hill, Pennsylvania, this <u>_1st</u> day of June 2022.

/s/ Anthony Spadaccio Anthony Spadaccio

Pennsylvania Public Utility	
Commission	
	:
V.	:
	:
UGI Gas Division – Base Rate	:
	:

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

VERIFICATION OF BRIAN LATORRE

I, Brian LaTorre, on behalf of the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement, hereby verify that the I&E Statement No. 3, I&E Exhibit No. 3, and I&E Statement No. 3-SR were prepared by me or under my direct supervision and control.

Furthermore, the facts contained therein are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and belief and I expect to be able to prove the same if called to the stand at any evidentiary hearing held in this matter.

This Verification is made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa. C.S. § 4904 relating to unsworn falsification to authorities.

Signed in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, this 1st day of June 2022.

/s/Brian LaTorre_____

Brian LaTorre

Pennsylvania Public Utility	
Commission	:
	:
V.	:
	:
UGI Gas Division – Base Rate	:
	:

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

VERIFICATION OF ETHAN CLINE

I, Ethan Cline, on behalf of the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement, hereby verify that the I&E Statement No. 4, I&E Exhibit No. 4, I&E Statement No. 4-SR, and **I&E Exhibit No. 4-SR** were prepared by me or under my direct supervision and control.

Furthermore, the facts contained therein are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and belief and I expect to be able to prove the same if called to the stand at any evidentiary hearing held in this matter.

This Verification is made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa. C.S. § 4904 relating to unsworn falsification to authorities.

Signed in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, this 1st day of June 2022.

/s/ Ethan H. Cline_

Ethan Cline

Pennsylvania Public Utility	
Commission	:
	:
v.	:
	:
UGI Gas Division – Base Rate	:
	:

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

VERIFICATION OF ESYAN SAKAYA

I, Esyan Sakaya, on behalf of the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement, hereby verify that the I&E Statement No. 5, I&E Exhibit No. 5, I&E Statement No. 5-SR, and I&E Exhibit No. 5-SR were prepared by me or under my direct supervision and control.

Furthermore, the facts contained therein are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and belief and I expect to be able to prove the same if called to the stand at any evidentiary hearing held in this matter.

This Verification is made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa. C.S. § 4904 relating to unsworn falsification to authorities.

Signed in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, this <u>1st</u> day of June 2022.

___/s/ Esyan Sakaya_____

Esyan Sakaya

Pennsylvania Public Utility	:
Commission	:
	:
v.	:
	:
UGI Gas Division – Base Rate	:
	:

Docket No. R-2021-3030218

VERIFICATION OF JESSALYNN HEYDENREICH

I, Jessalynn Heydenreich, on behalf of the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement, hereby verify that the I&E Statement No., I&E Exhibit No. 6, and I&E Statement No. 6-SR were prepared by me or under my direct supervision and control.

Furthermore, the facts contained therein are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and belief and I expect to be able to prove the same if called to the stand at any evidentiary hearing held in this matter.

This Verification is made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa. C.S. § 4904 relating to unsworn falsification to authorities.

Signed in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, this 1st day of June 2022.

Jessalynn Heydenreich

•	
: : :	Docket No.: R-2021-3030218
	• • • •

UGI Utilities, Inc. – Gas Division Base Rates

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

:

I hereby certify that I am serving the foregoing Letter Regarding Pre-Served Testimony, Exhibits, and Verification Statements on June 21, 2022, in the manner and upon the persons listed below:

Served via Electronic Mail Only

Deputy Chief ALJ Joel Cheskis ALJ Gail M. Chiodo Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Office of Administrative Law Judge Commonwealth Keystone Building 400 North Street Harrisburg, PA 17120 jcheskis@pa.gov gchiodo@pa.gov

Kent Murphy, Esq. Michael S. Swerling, Esq. Timothy K. McHugh, Esq. UGI Corporation 460 North Gulph Road King of Prussia, PA 19406 <u>murphyke@ugicorp.com</u> <u>mchught@ugicorp.com</u> <u>swerlingm@ugicorp.com</u> *Counsel for UGI Utilities, Inc - Gas Division*

David B. MacGregor, Esq. Post & Schell, P.C. Four Penn Center 1600 John F. Kennedy Boulevard Philadelphia, PA 19103-2808 <u>dmacgregor@postschell.com</u> *Counsel for UGI Utilities, Inc - Gas Division* Garrett P. Lent, Esq. Devin T. Ryan, Esq. Lindsay A. Berkstresser, Esq. Post & Schell, P.C. 17 North Second Street, 12th Floor Harrisburg, PA 17101-1601 dryan@postschell.com lberkstressor@postschell.com glent@postschell.com Counsel for UGI Utilities, Inc - Gas Division

Joseph L. Vullo, Esq. Burke Vullo Reilly Roberts 1460 Wyoming Avenue Forty Fort, PA 18704 <u>jlvullo@bvrrlaw.com</u> *Counsel for CEO*

Karen O. Moury, Esq. Eckert Seamans Cherin & Mellott, LLC 213 Market Street, 8th Floor Harrisburg, PA 17101 <u>kmoury@eckertseamans.com</u> *Counsel for NRG* Lauren N. Berman, Esq. Elizabeth R. Marx, Esq. John W. Sweet, Esq. Ria M. Pereira, Esq. Pennsylvania Utility Law Project 118 Locust Street Harrisburg, PA 17101 pulp@pautilitylawproject.org Counsel for CAUSE-PA

Steven C. Gray, Esq. Office of Small Business Advocate Forum Place 555 Walnut Street, 1st Floor Harrisburg, PA 17101-1923 sgray@pa.gov

Laura J. Antinucci, Esq. Mackenzie C. Battle, Esq. Christy M. Appleby, Esq. Darryl A. Lawrence, Esq. Office of Consumer Advocate 555 Walnut Street Forum Place, 5th Floor Harrisburg, PA 17101 OCAUGIGas2022@paoca.org

Paula Mercuri 3 Villa Drive Moosic, PA 18507 <u>qwilliams22@gmail.com</u> Elisabeth Lynch 210 Poplar Lane Mill Hall, PA 17751 fenrivers1@yahoo.com

Francis J. Riviello 609 Moosic Road Old Forge, PA 18518 mjriviello@icloud.com

Paul Forlenza 128 Saddle Ridge Drive Dallas, PA 19612 prf2323@comcast.net

Joseph Sohn 1409 Girard Avenue Wyomissing, PA 19610 gzeppe1@comcast.net

Annette Miraglia 349 Rutter Avenue Kingston, PA 18704 a.miraglia@hotmail.com

Carri B Whizek

Carrie B. Wright Prosecutor Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement PA Attorney ID No. 208185 (717) 783-6156 carwright@pa.gov